
 

  
 

 

Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Date: Wednesday 28 September 2022 
 
Time:  1:30pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room, Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Governance Officer: Adrian Mann Direct Dial: 0115 8764468 
 
The Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board is a partnership body that brings 
together key local leaders to improve the health and wellbeing of the population of 
Nottingham and reduce health inequalities. 
 

Agenda 
 

 Pages 

1  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2  Declarations of Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2022, for confirmation 
 

3 - 12 

4  Minutes of the Commissioning Sub-Committee  
Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2022, for noting 
 

13 - 16 

5  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2022-25  
Report of the Director for Public Health, Nottingham City Council 
 

17 - 346 

6  Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Annual Report  
Report of the Director for Public Health, Nottingham City Council 
 

347 - 352 

7  Nottingham City Place-Based Partnership Update  
Update from the Nottingham City Place-Based Partnership 
 

353 - 358 

8  Joint Health Protection Board Update  
Update from the Joint Health Protection Board 
 

Verbal 
Report 

9  Board Member Updates  
Updates from Board Members 
 

359 - 360 

10  Work Plan  
 

361 - 362 

11  Future Meeting Dates  
Wednesday 30 November 2022 at 1:30pm 
Wednesday 25 January 2023 at 1:30pm 

 

Public Document Pack



Wednesday 29 March 2023 at 1:30pm 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillors, co-optees, colleagues and other participants must declare all 
disclosable pecuniary and other interests relating to any items of business to be 
discussed at the meeting. If you need any advice on declaring an interest in an item 
on the agenda, please contact the Governance Officer shown above before the day 
of the meeting, if possible. 
 
Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. 
Any recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the 
Council’s policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available 
at: https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/council-
meetings-decisions/recording-reporting-on-public-meetings. Any person intending 
to record the meeting is requested to notify the Governance Officer shown above in 
advance. 

https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/council-meetings-decisions/recording-reporting-on-public-meetings
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/council-meetings-decisions/recording-reporting-on-public-meetings


Nottingham City Council  
 
Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, 
Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 27 July 2022 from 1.33 pm - 3.24 pm 
 
 
Voting Membership 

 

Present Absent 
Councillor Adele Williams (Chair)  
Dr Hugh Porter (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Cheryl Barnard 
Sarah Collis 
Lucy Dadge 
Councillor Jay Hayes 
Lucy Hubber 
Sara Storey 
Councillor Linda Woodings 
 

Michelle Tilling (sent Substitute) 
David Briggs 
Dianne Gamble 
Ciara Stuart (Substitute for 
Michelle Tilling) 
Catherine Underwood 

Non-Voting Membership  
Present Absent 
Nicki Bridge (substitute for Louise 
Bainbridge) 
Mel Barrett 
Superintendent Kathryn Craner 
Leslie McDonald 
Jules Sebelin 
Mick Sharman 
 

Louise Bainbridge 
Dr Sue Elcock 
Stephen Feast 
Tim Guyler 
Elaine Mulligan (substitute for Jean 
Sharpe)  
Emma Roswell 
Jean Sharpe 

  
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Kathryn 
Bouchlaghem  

- Early Years Manager, Nottingham City Council 

Katy Ball - Director of Procurement & Commissioning, Nottingham 
City Council 

Rich Brady - Programme Director, Nottingham City Place Based 
Partnership 

Sarah Fleming - Head of Joint Commissioning, NHS Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire Integrated Care Board 

Kate Morris - Governance Officer, Nottingham City Council 
 
 
15  Changes to Membership 

 
The Board noted the change in membership to reflect the changes to the system.  
 
The Board acknowledged the input of Dr Manik, and thanked him for his years of 
hard work with the Board.  
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

2 

16  Apologies for Absence 
 

 
 
17  Declarations of Interests 

 
None. 
 
18  Minutes 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2022 were confirmed as a true record 
and were signed by the Chair of that meeting. 
 
19  Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Delivery Update 

 
Rich Brady, Programme Director at Nottingham City Place Based Partnership 
presented  an update on the delivery of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy to 
the Board, detailing progress on the delivery plans for each of the four Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy priorities, following its approval at the March 2020 meeting of 
this Board. He highlighted the following points:  
 

(a) Following the development of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-25 
the Nottingham City Place Based Partnership (PBP) are responsible for driving 
delivery. Programme Governance has been established, with the PBP driving 
delivery, with oversight from the Health and Wellbeing Board. Delivery plans 
are under development for the four overarching priorities of the Strategy;  
 

(b) The strategy is clear about the need for parity between physical and mental 
health issues, and how this is fed into each of the delivery plans. The same 
approach is being taken around health inequalities in the BAME communities, 
with each of the priorities required to specifically focus on the diversity of the 
community;  
 

(c) A Place Based Partnership Executive Group has been established, which 
consists of Chief Executive Officers from partner organisations. The Chair is 
Mel Barrett, Chief Executive of Nottingham City Council. The role of the PBP 
Executive Group will be to feed into the Health and Wellbeing Board;  
 

Tim Guyler - Assistant Chief Executive, Nottingham University 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

Elaine Mulligan – 
substitute 

- Disability Employment Advisor Leader,  
Department for Work and Pensions 

Jean Sharpe – sent 
substitute  

- District Senior Employer and Partnerships Leader, 
Department for Work and Pensions  

Ciara Stuart – 
substitute 

- Head of Mental Health Contracting and Service 
Redesign NHS Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
Integrated Care Board 

Michelle Tilling – sent 
substitute 

- City Locality Director, NHS Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire Integrated Care Board 

Catherine Underwood - Corporate Director for People, Nottingham City Council  

Page 4



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

3 

(d) Each priority programme has an Executive Sponsor from a partner 
organisation, a Programme Lead and a Programme Manager. Recruitment for 
two Programme Managers is still ongoing, otherwise resourcing is good;  
 

(e) Due to the extensive nature of the work each of the four programme delivery 
plans are currently at different stages, work around differing focuses means 
that the development of all four programmes is progressing, but it is important 
to ensure all of the right partners are engaged at the right time around the right 
issues;   
 

(f) The Programme Oversight Group (POG) has met with each of the Programme 
Leads and has provided feedback on the delivery programmes as they 
currently stand with the aim of focusing and progressing the development. 
Questions that have come out of these reviews include around engagement of 
the right partners, resources and risk;  
 

(g) The Smoking and Tobacco Control Programme builds on the significant 
partnership working already in place. It is an ambitious programme working 
towards a smoke free generation by 2040. Areas for the programme 
development to focus on are ensuring all partners understand their 
involvement and input, and to include timescales and measures for key 
outcomes;  
 

(a) The Eating and Moving for good health programme again builds on previous 
activity and as a programme with a very broad scope there is work to be done 
to narrow down the focus. Work is taking place to establish where an impact 
can be made to push towards the targets. The POG is seeking assurance that 
deliverable actions are being developed alongside measurable short and 
medium term outcomes; 
 

(b) The Financial Wellbeing programme is emerging work, seeking to build on the 
work of the Financial Resilience Partnership (FRP). The programme is yet to 
be fully established pending further engagement from PBP partners. Ambitions 
are to be agreed between the FRP and the PBP and those ambitions need to 
have resource committed. There is immediate risk around the cost of living 
crisis, the impact of which is already being felts across Nottingham City;  
 

(c) The Severe Multiple Disadvantage programme has lots of activity with 
numerous resources attached to it, alongside additional grant funding. There 
has been enthusiastic buy-in from partners on this programme both from an 
operational and strategic perspective. There is no established timescales but 
the multiple work streams are working towards that along with a more details 
plan on how activity across the city will be coordinated;  
 

(d) Once finalised Delivery Plans, including outcome measures and impact 
assessments are received, the POG will cross-reference them with the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy to ensure that the ambitions align. The POG 
will continue to monitor the delivery of the programmes and will seek regular 
assurance that people with lived experience are meaningfully engaged; 
 

Page 5



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

4 

(e) It is proposed that an update comes to the Health and Wellbeing Board three 
times a year. This will allow enough time between updates to show progress.  
 

During questions and comments from Board Members the following additional 
information was highlighted:  
 

(f) A staggered approach to goals, with milestone or Key targets makes large 
pieces of work more management and allows Board members to more easily 
see the progress. Work towards ensuring that these tangible targets are set is 
ongoing across all four programmes;  
 

(g) There has been an increase in childhood obesity and the complex challenge is 
to tackle this issue as a whole life-course approach. Children from lower 
income groups are more likely to experience obesity and Board members 
were pleased to see that a whole life approach is being taken. This includes 
looking at resource delivery in schools;  
 

(h) Bringing together partners to work towards making the City more child friendly, 
and enable a more active lifestyle is essential to tackle this issue. Active travel 
should be made easier and more accessible, and there should be safe places 
to play out. Issues like shared road space can be controversial and support 
and joined up working is welcomed;  
 

(i) Vapping will be considered under the Smoking and Tobacco Control 
programme. There will be a specific focus on vapping in young people and 
reducing the number of young people using vapping as an entry to tobacco 
consumption;  
 

(j) Board members were pleased to see that Health inequalities has its own work 
stream within the Multiple Severe Disadvantages programme, and that all of 
the programmes have specific regard to those issues too. The aim is to reduce 
potential duplications and ensure a good sense of issues and where the most 
meaningful impact can be made. Health equality is at the core of the work 
being undertaken;  
 

(k) Board members noted that the Financial Wellbeing programme was starting 
from a less developed point than other programmes, but that the risks were 
currently highest for citizens across the City.  The Programme Lead has 
arranged a workshop with partners across the PBP to establish they can add 
value, and to connect and link in. The trust is ambitious and the workshop will 
help partners to understand what contributions they can make. Recruitment for 
Financial Advisors is underway and Link Advisors are currently in place 
attached to Primary Care Centres, these are relatively new positions and so 
their impact is only just beginning to be seen;  
 

(l) Board members suggested more information and work be done within schools 
around financial planning and managing finances in a realistic way. There is 
an opportunity to engage financial institutions who already provide some 
resources for schools such as Experian who are a partner within the FRP, and 
the Bank of England who have school programmes; 
 

Page 6



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

5 

(t) Board members agreed that it was important to dispel the shame that many 
people feel around financial difficulties and the importance of every contact 
counting. There is lots of work that can be done to send the message that 
experiencing financial difficulty and needing support is not a shameful 
situation. 
 

The Board thanked Rich Brady for the presentation and for the information within the 
report.  
 
Resolved to: 
 

(1) Note the work being undertaken by the Nottingham City Place Based 
Partnership Programme leads to develop delivery plans for each of the 
four Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy programmes; 
 

(2) Note the programme status updates; 
 

(3) Note that this report has been approved by members of the PBP 
Programme Oversight Group; and 
 

(4) Approve the sequencing of progress reporting from the PBP Programme 
Oversight Group at every other board meeting (three times a year).  
 

 
20  Roadmap to a Place-Based Collaborative Commissioning Plan 

 
Katie Ball, Director of Procurement and Commissioning for Nottingham City Council 
presented the report introducing a Roadmap to a Place-Based Collaborative 
Commissioning Plan and the work that has gone on to develop collaborative 
commissioning to deliver integrated care within the local Integrated Care System 
(ICS). She highlighted the following points:  
 

(a) Part of the focused work taking place is driving further integration in 
Nottingham, to join up care and support. This Roadmap creates a plan to 
further this work and sets out how partners can work together in both planning 
and commissioning;  
 

(b) The work group are looking at the principles of working together, focusing on 
prevention and early intervention meaning care is needed earlier but that 
citizens return to independence sooner. This shift will allow care to move out 
of traditional care settings to expand on good, own home based alternatives 
working within communities and with local providers; 
 

(c) The work is taking a phased approach and the task and finish group is starting 
to identify test pieces that will be progressed to ensure processes are 
sufficiently robust and allow reflection and changes to be made during 
development. It will allow the group to identify if challenges arise in similar 
areas and work to resolve those;  
 

(d) A number of areas are being considered for this focused work. The first is 
early intervention and how it is possible to personalise interventions. The aim 

Page 7



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

6 

is to make personalised intervention more widely available through the 
personal budget and encourage and enable access to services across the 
system; 
 

(e) The second area being considered at a system level is Maternity and up to 
age 5 services where there has recently been system change. The work here 
will look to support these recent changes and ensure the workforce have the 
tools necessary to support citizens. There will be a focus on recruitment and 
workforce stability; 
 

(f) Mental health services are another priority. There are a large number of 
resources available, however the system is fragmented and work needs to be 
done to bring them together and how the different services available can 
interact and complement each other;  
 

(g) The last test piece is the Community Care workforce. There are a lot of people 
waiting for care services, so making community care an attractive and 
appealing career choice will help to manage this demand. It is essential to 
stabilise the workforce, attract more people into care roles and make it 
sustainable;  
 

(h) An important part of the work undertaken will look at ensuring the Place Based 
Partnership understand the lived experience of citizens and of the workers 
within the system. Building the joint commissioning through the PBP will see 
more joint posts within integrated hubs; 
 

(i) This work will also allow the development of financial mechanisms, ensuring 
funding works harder for citizens. There will also be a review the Better Care 
Fund, and the schemes it currently funds following a recent legislative update, 
and to reflect how priorities are evolving locally. A 2 year plan setting out the 
altered use of the Better Care Fund will be produced;;  
 

(j) The governance of the Joint Commissioning is being established and a 
meeting in September will look at further developing governance structures 
and will be reported to a future meeting of this Board.  
 

Board members asked a number of questions and made comment on the contents of 
the report. The following additional information was highlighted:  
 

(k) There are significant system challenges to overcome. The system is currently 
reactive, and a shift in focus needs to be to proactive services. A joined up, 
proactive system will reduce costs further down the line. Commissioners need 
to pull together areas where immediate progress and impact can be seen to 
reduce pressure on services, particularly in preparation for the upcoming 
winter months;  
 

(l) Shifting resources to early intervention will be challenging in the current 
environment but it is essential to ensure service delivery into the future and 
Public Health are in agreement with the need for that shift whilst still delivering 
statutory function. A shared framework of services is a solid approach to joint 
commissioning; 

Page 8



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

7 

 
(m)It is important to be clear where each programme sits and is delivered from 

within the joint commissioning partnership. The Personalisation hub works well 
and links capacity of carers across the city and individuals requiring care, 
pulling together all resources into the personalisation hub will bring benefits to 
citizens and the workforce;  

 
(n) The collaborative approach will help parents and carers of young people to 

access services, all in one place where they have previously been more 
fragmented. It will also realise an opportunity to reflect on barriers to accessing 
services and how citizens move through the system and where there are gaps;  
 

(o) Brining in commissioning from the voluntary and community sector will provide 
a different approach, increasing capacity within the system and helping to 
ensure a joined up approach and will make the system more responsive to 
service users; 
 

(p) There are workforce challenges within the sector, looking to the voluntary and 
community sector can help to develop this capacity as well as provide services 
that are currently not otherwise available. Making care careers more attractive 
and appealing is necessary to stabilise the workforce and ensure it is viewed 
as a worthwhile and rewarding career path;  
 

(q) Looking at lived experience of users and the workforce is powerful and an 
important part of any commissioning work. Reflecting on diversity in the 
community and gathering this lived experience will be an important part of the 
work undertaken. The BAME work group within the PBP is looking at different 
ways to address health inequalities and this will feed into the joint 
commissioning approach. 
 

Resolved note the progress on developing a Collaborative Commissioning 
approach in Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
 
21  Speech, Language and Communication Strategy 

 
Kathryn Bouchlaghem , Early Years Manager for Nottingham City Council presented 
a report to the Board detailing the Speech, Language and Communication Strategy 
0-5 years for Nottingham City. She highlighted the following points:  
 

(a) In 2019 the early years speech, language and communication (SLC) area was 
inspected. Children were tested at the age of 5 and were found to have lower 
than average skills as seen across the country. The Local Authority 
commissioned a peer challenge inspection, to look at what could be done 
differently to improve outcomes from birth to 5 years;  
 

(b) Nottingham City was fortunate to secure joint funding from the Department for 
Education with Derby and Leicester for the development of family hubs, but 
this came with the expectation of a SLC strategy;  
 

(c) In 2021 a report was brought to this Board outlining a draft strategy, seeking 
input and feedback from Board members. Following consultation with parents, 

Page 9



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

8 

carers, key partners and young people a finalised strategy is presented to the 
Board;  
 

(d) This strategy recognises the importance of planning together to support young 
people’s development, not only from birth to 5years, but the ongoing impact it 
has into adulthood. 
 

Board members asked a number of questions and made observations. The following 
information was highlighted:  
 

(e) There has been an impact on SLC development across the country due to the 
Covid pandemic and the subsequent lockdowns. Part of the consultation 
process has looked at how this has impacted children and their future 
development through nursery and preschool;  
 

(f) Tackling inequality in SLC development is key to tackling health inequalities 
throughout life. Ensuring children have the best start in life, gives them the 
right footing for development through to adulthood. Moving towards the Family 
Hub model ensures that SLC development is a the core of work with families; 
 

(g) There is a national challenge for health visitors getting up to date information 
on children aged 0 -  5 during lockdown and so national data is not as 
accurate as it could be. Locally the numbers of children taking up the free pre-
school and nursery places are good although this varies ward to ward for a 
number of different reasons; 
 

Board members acknowledged the system wide impact of work on Speech, 
Language and Communication for 0 -5 year olds will have. 
 
Resolved to endorse the Speech, Language and Communication Strategy   
 
22  Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Substance Misuse 

 
Lucy Hubber, Director of Public Health, Nottingham City Council, introduced the 
report informing the Board about the new Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Chapter 
looking at all age, illicit drug and alcohol misuse in Nottingham. She informed the 
Board that the JSNA sets the tone for work, it does not provide answers but 
highlights areas and issues for consideration. She highlighted the following points: 
 

(a) Data used to create the JSNA chapter on all age illicit drug and alcohol misuse 
in Nottingham has been pulled from both local and national sources; 
 

(b) Key findings indicate that there may be an unmet need for those aged under 
35 accessing structured treatment for opiate and/or crack cocaine use, with 
reported use highest among 16-19 and 20-24 year olds. Services need to be 
made accessible for young people and more understanding around where the 
problem starts with treatment and recovery services alongside prevention 
services;  
 

(c) Trends and patterns of misuse among students is not clear. There needs to be 
additional focus on understanding the level of need in this population; 

Page 10



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

9 

 
(d) There are a number of known data gaps, including around LGBQT+ 

population data, and various ethnic groups, that if filled would allow better 
tailoring of services to these communities; 
 

(e) Drinking behaviours have changed over the pandemic and the national 
lockdowns.  There has been an increase in the number of people drinking at 
harmful levels and not seeking support, perhaps because they do not realise 
their drinking is harmful. A whole system approach is needed as this issue 
impacts on other family members and children within the home. Easier access 
to early intervention services is needed, as is more work to make the 
population aware of what constitutes harmful levels of drinking; 
 

(f) Understanding the drivers of misuse in different communities is key to 
addressing the issues;  
 

(g) A substance misuse commissioning review will take place, with significant 
grant investment into services. Work will focus on engagement and 
compliance and will look to address gaps in the data. This work will be led by 
the Crime and Drug Partnership and will be developed across Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire;  
 

Following questions and comments from Board members the following information 
was highlighted:  
 

(h) There is currently no data available to indicate the level of use of short term 
memory boosting drugs in student populations. There is anecdotal evidence 
that suggests that use is increasing and is an area of substance misuse that 
needs to be addressed. The Chapter recommends work with universities to 
gain greater understanding on this issue; 
 

(i) Board members agreed that the information around knowledge gaps was not 
unexpected and highlighted the need for more lived experience to feed into the 
system to ensure gaps in provision are filled, and to understand why existing 
services are not being accessed in order to fill that gap.  
 

(j) A recent pilot scheme has shown that there has been an increase in alcohol 
related liver damage following the pandemic. This wide ranging increase has 
the potential to cause significant issues in the future in terms of service 
availability, and the important steps to take are getting the message across to 
citizens about problematic drinking; 
 

(k) More work needs to be done around awareness of strength of alcohol, 
especially cheaper brands of alcohol and around the long-term impacts of 
alcohol misuse;  
 

(l) Board members agrees that the information within the new chapter was a 
useful focus on issues, particularly for commissioners looking at whole 
communities have services that are accessible and appropriate; 
 

Board members thank Lucy Hubber for her presentation.  

Page 11



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board – 27.07.22 

10 

 
Resolved to endorse the contents of the new Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment – Substance misuse Chapter and in particular, the 
recommendations for consideration by service commissioners. 
 
23  Nottingham City Place-Based Partnership Update 

 
Dr Hugh Porter indicated that the Nottingham City Based Partnership update had 
been covered in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy item earlier in the meeting. 
 
24  Joint Health Protection Board Update 

 
There was no update from the Joint Health Protection Board.  
 
25  Board Member Updates 

 
Board Members provided the following updates: 
 
(a) Catherine Underwood, Corporate Director for People at Nottingham City Council, 

submitted a report on the current work being carried out by the Council’s 
Children’s and Adults’ Services. 

 
The Board noted the updates from members. 
 
26  Work Plan 

 
The Chair presented the Board’s proposed work plan for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
If members have any comments or suggestions for future items to be considered by 
the Board, these can be forwarded to Nottingham City Council’s Director for Public 
Health. Issues that can be presented by multiple Board members are particularly 
welcome. 
 
The Board noted the Work Plan. 
 
27  Future Meeting Dates 

 
The Board noted the future meeting dates 

 Wednesday 28 September 2022 at 1:30pm 

 Wednesday 30 November 2022 at 1:30pm 

 Wednesday 25 January 2023 at 1:30pm 

 Wednesday 29 March 2023 at 1:30pm 
 

Page 12



Nottingham City Council  
 
Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub-
Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, 
Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 27 July 2022 from 4.00 pm - 4.13 pm 
 
 
Voting Membership 
Present 

 
 
Absent 

Sarah Fleming (Chair) 
Katy Ball  
Councillor Adele Williams  
Councillor Linda Woodings 
 

Dr Manik Arora 
 
 
 

Non-Voting Membership  
Present Absent 
Lucy Hubber 
Sarah Collis 

Sara Storey  
Ceri Walters 
Ailsa Barr 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Naomi Robinson - Joint Commissioning Manager, NHS Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire Integrated Care Board 
Kate Morris - Governance Officer 
 
Call in 
Unless stated otherwise, all decisions made by the Nottingham City Health and 
Wellbeing Board: Commissioning Sub-Committee are subject to call-in. The last date 
for call-in is Thursday 4th August 2022. Decisions cannot be implemented until the 
next working day following this date. 
 
1  Changes to Membership 

 
The Committee noted that the NHS Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Integrated Care 
Board is now the NHS body represented on the Sub-Committee, as it replaced the 
prior Clinical Commissioning Group as of 1 July 2022.  
 
The committee highlighted that Dr Manik Arora was no longer a member of the 
group. Sarah Fleming will confirm a replacement 
 
2  Apologies for Absence 

 
Sara Storey – Director for Adult Health and Social Care, Nottingham City Council  
 
3  Declarations of Interests 

 
None. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub-Committee – 27.07.22 

2 

 
4  Minutes 

 
The Committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2022 as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
5  Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-End Template 

 
Naomi Robinson, Senior Joint Commissioning Manager at the NHS Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire Integrated Care Board (ICB), presented a report on the Nottingham 
City Better Care Fund (BCF) 2021/22 year-end template. The following points were 
discussed: 
 
(a) The template reports that progress for each metric is on target, apart from the 

avoidable admissions where national data was unavailable to assess the 
progress. Looking at local data this metric is still on target;  
 

(b) Challenges highlighted by the template include a slight increase in admissions 
relating to Covid 19 and other conditions that deteriorated during lock down, 
Covid related sickness absence impact ability to provide sufficient homecare 
provision and an increased use of interim beds and likely increase of people 
moving to permanent care as a result of the reduced homecare provision;  

 
(c) The template helps commissioners to carefully consider how the schemes 

commissioned work together to provide care, it provides a framework that allows 
commissioners to assess how well the schemes are integrated and to think 
creatively about service provision;  

 
(d) It can be challenging to see the benefit of prevention services when they are only 

given a relatively short period. Benefits of prevention work are more likely to be 
seen over the long term, and the services are not always in place long enough to 
show the benefits to the system as a whole;  

 
(e) A longer term approach to commissioning is important and the City has been 

working for the last 15 years on services that are showing benefit, however with 
the significant cuts over the last decade it has been hard to maintain all of these 
services.  

 
Resolved to approve the 2021-22 Better Care Fund Year-End Template. 
 

 Reasons for the decision 
 
The purpose of this report is to approve the BCF 2021-22 year-end reporting 
template for submission to NHS England & Improvement. The template confirms the 
status of continued compliance against the requirements of the BCF, including the 
final end of year spending position, and provides information about challenges, 
achievements and support needs in progressing delivery. 
 

 Other options considered 
 
To not submit the return: this option is rejected as this BCF reporting to NHS England 
& Improvement is a national requirement. 

Page 14



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board Commissioning Sub-Committee – 27.07.22 

3 

 
6  Future Meeting Dates 

 
Resolved to meet on the following dates: 

 Wednesday 28 September 2022 at 4:00pm 

 Wednesday 30 November 2022 at 4:00pm 

 Wednesday 25 January 2023 at 4:00pm 

 Wednesday 29 March 2023 at 4:00pm 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board 
28 September 2022 

 
Report Title: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) 2022-25 

 

Lead Board Member(s): Lucy Hubber – Director for Public Health, 
Nottingham City Council 
 

Report author and contact 
details: 

David Johns – Deputy Director for Public Health, 
Nottingham City Council 
david.johns@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
The Board has a statutory duty to assess needs for pharmaceutical services in its 
area and publish a statement of its assessment, as mandated by the National 
Health Service Act 2006. The last PNA for the city covered the years 2018-21, with 
this report seeking approval for an updated assessment of pharmaceutical need 
for 2022-25. 
 
The PNA looks at the demographics and health needs of the population of the city 
and how they will change within its three-year lifetime. The current provision of 
pharmaceutical services by pharmacies, dispensing appliance contractors and 
dispensing doctors both within and outside the city has been analysed and 
mapped so that any current gaps in provision can be identified. In addition, the 
PNA considers whether any gaps will arise in the time period 1 October 2022 to 30 
September 2025. These gaps are then articulated either as a need for a particular 
pharmaceutical service, or range of pharmaceutical services, or as improvements 
or better access to an existing pharmaceutical service or range of pharmaceutical 
services. 
 
A steering group was established to oversee the development of the PNA with 
representatives invited from the two NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups for 
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, NHS England, the Nottinghamshire Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee and the Nottinghamshire Local Medical Committee. 
Views on the provision of services by pharmacies were sought from the public to 
help inform the PNA’s conclusions. 
 
As part of the PNA process, the Board is required to undertake a consultation of at 
least 60 days. This consultation ran from 26 May to 25 July 2022. All the 
organisations required to be consulted with were emailed and provided with a link 
to the document. In addition, the consultation documents were made available and 
promoted via Nottingham Insight, allowing members of the public the opportunity 
to also submit their views. The overall response to the consultation has been 
positive. No concerns have been raised regarding non-compliance with the 
regulatory requirements, no pharmaceutical services provision has been missed 
and the main conclusions are agreed with. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

mailto:david.johns@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 
In the city, pharmaceutical services are provided by 64 community pharmacies, 
including nine 100-hour pharmacies and four distance selling pharmacies 
(sometimes called mail-order or internet pharmacies). In addition, there are three 
dispensing appliance contractor premises. All city residents can access a 
pharmacy within a 20-minute drive. In addition, it is noted that there is a good 
public transport service across the city, allowing access for all residents to a 
pharmacy within 20 minutes. Around 98% of residents are within a 20-minute walk 
of a pharmacy. 
 
The main conclusion of this PNA is that there are no gaps in the current provision 
of pharmaceutical services as the providers, both within and outside of the city 
area, are meeting the residents’ current needs for such services. 
 

Recommendation(s): The Board is asked to approve the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment for 2022-25 and authorise its publication by 1 October 2022. 
 

 

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

Aims and Priorities How the recommendation(s) 
contribute to meeting the Aims and 
Priorities: 
 

Aim 1: To increase healthy life 
expectancy in Nottingham through 
addressing the wider determinants of 
health and enabling people to make 
healthy decisions 
 

As well as identifying if there is a need 
for additional premises, the PNA will 
also identify whether there is a need for 
an additional service or services, or 
whether improvements or better access 
to existing services are required. 
Identified needs, improvements or better 
access could either be current or will 
arise within the three-year lifetime of the 
PNA. A robust PNA will ensure those 
who commission services from 
pharmacies and dispensing appliance 
contractors target services to areas of 
health need and thus contribute towards 
reducing health inequalities. 

Aim 2: To reduce health inequalities by 
having a proportionately greater focus 
where change is most needed 
 

Priority 1: Smoking and Tobacco 
Control 
 

Priority 2: Eating and Moving for Good 
Health 
 

Priority 3: Severe Multiple 
Disadvantage 
 

Priority 4: Financial Wellbeing 
 

How mental health and wellbeing is being championed in line with the 
Board’s aspiration to give equal value to mental and physical health: 
In discussing the health needs of the local population, the PNA discusses both the 
physical and mental health and wellbeing of key patient groups. 
 

Page 18



 

List of background papers relied 
upon in writing this report 
 

None 

Published documents referred to in 
this report 
 

Pharmaceutical needs assessments: 
Information pack for local authority 
health and wellbeing boards (link) 
 

 

Page 19

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1029805/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment-information-pack.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
  

 

 

 

Nottingham City  

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Pharmaceutical Needs 

Assessment  

1st October 2022 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



2 

 
  

Contents 
 

Executive summary ............................................................................................................... 3 

1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 7 

2 Overview of Nottingham City ............................................................................................ 21 

3 General health needs of Nottingham City ......................................................................... 46 

4 Identified patient groups – particular health issues ........................................................... 64 

5 Provision of pharmaceutical services ............................................................................... 82 

6 Other NHS services ....................................................................................................... 112 

7 Health needs that can be met by pharmaceutical services ............................................. 120 

8 Area Partnership 1 locality ............................................................................................. 127 

9 Area Partnership 2 locality ............................................................................................. 146 

10 Area Partnership 3 locality ........................................................................................... 163 

11 Area Partnership 4 locality ........................................................................................... 181 

12 Area Partnership 5 locality ........................................................................................... 200 

13 Area Partnership 6 locality ........................................................................................... 221 

14 Area Partnership 7 locality ........................................................................................... 241 

15 Conclusions for the purpose of schedule 1 to The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended ................................................ 259 

Appendix A – policy context and background papers ........................................................ 265 

Appendix B – essential services ........................................................................................ 270 

Appendix C – advanced services ...................................................................................... 275 

Appendix D – enhanced services ...................................................................................... 282 

Appendix E – terms of service for dispensing appliance contractors ................................. 286 

Appendix F – steering group membership ......................................................................... 289 

Appendix G – patient and public engagement survey ....................................................... 290 

Appendix H – full results of the resident’s questionnaire ................................................... 296 

Appendix I – contractor questionnaire ............................................................................... 306 

Appendix J – consultation report ....................................................................................... 310 

Appendix K – opening hours ............................................................................................. 322 

 

  

Page 22



3 

 
  

Executive summary 
 

Introduction 

 

Since 1 April 2013, every health and wellbeing board in England has had a statutory 

responsibility to publish and keep up-to-date a statement of the needs for pharmaceutical 

services for the population in its area, referred to as a ‘pharmaceutical needs assessment’. 

This version replaces the previous pharmaceutical needs assessment published by 

Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board in 2018. 

 

The main purpose of this pharmaceutical needs assessment is to inform ‘market entry’ 

decisions by NHS England on whether to grant applications to join the pharmaceutical list for 

the area of Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board under The National Health Service 

(Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended. It may 

also be used to inform commissioners such as Nottingham City Council’s public health team, 

of the current provision of pharmaceutical services and where locally commissioned services 

could help meet local health priorities. 

 

Process 

 

In undertaking this assessment, a pharmaceutical needs assessment steering group was 

formed to oversee the development process and ensure that the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment meets the statutory requirements.  

 

The views of residents on their use of pharmacies, and information provided by contractors 

which could not be nationally sourced, was obtained using surveys. The information gained 

was used to inform the pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

A comprehensive range of sources were used to gain an overview of the demographic 

characteristics and the health profile of residents of Nottingham City. This was then used to 

identify those needs that can be met by pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors. 

 

Specific groups were identified, including those who share a protected characteristic under 

the Equality Act 2010, and their likely health needs were included.  

 

The current provision of pharmaceutical services was identified and mapped. 

Pharmaceutical contractors outside of Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board area, 

who provide a service to its residents, were also considered. 

 

The types of services provided by pharmaceutical contractors. were also considered as part 

of the pharmaceutical needs assessment, including: 

 

• Essential services – these are services which must be provided as set out in terms of 

services, such as the dispensing of prescriptions. 

• Advanced services – these are services community pharmacy contractors and 

dispensing appliance contractors may choose to provide and are subject to 

Page 23



4 

 
  

accreditation. Examples include the NHS community pharmacist consultation service, 

and the appliance use review service and stoma customisation services. 

 

In addition, community pharmacy contractors may also choose to provide: 

 

• Enhanced services – service specifications for this type of service are developed by 

NHS England and then commissioned to meet specific health needs, such as the 

palliative care service and the emergency supply service. 

• Locally commissioned services – these services are currently commissioned by 

Nottingham City Council to meet specific health needs, such as the emergency 

hormonal contraception service and the substance misuse services. 

 

Access to pharmaceutical service providers was considered in terms of opening hours and 

travel times. A standard of 20 minutes by car was chosen by the Health and Wellbeing 

Board as a reasonable time for residents to take to access a pharmacy, in line with national 

access standards. Furthermore, travel times by public transport and by walking were also 

considered. Travel times were analysed and mapped using the Office for Health 

Improvement and Disparities’ Strategic Health Asset Planning and Evaluation (SHAPE) tool.  

 

There are some services which affect the need for pharmaceutical services either by 

increasing or reducing demand. Such services include the hospital pharmacies and the GP 

out of hours service, and these were also considered. 

 

The geographical area of Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board was broken down 

into localities based on the seven area partnerships and their wards, as used by the annual 

Nottingham Citizen’s survey. This was for the purpose of reviewing the demographic 

characteristics, health needs and the current provision of pharmaceutical services to 

residents at a more local level. Consideration was given as to whether there were any gaps, 

or improvements, or better access required to existing service delivery, or that may arise 

during the lifetime of the pharmaceutical needs assessment.  

 

A sixty day consultation was undertaken on the draft pharmaceutical needs assessment, 

which included those organisations identified under regulation 8 of the NHS (Pharmaceutical 

and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 as amended. The feedback received 

was used to inform the final pharmaceutical needs assessment.  

 

Key Findings 

 

In Nottingham City, pharmaceutical services are provided by 64 community pharmacies, 

including four distance selling pharmacies (sometimes called mail order or internet 

pharmacies). There are also three dispensing appliance contractor premises within the 

Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, which dispense for example catheters and colostomy 

bags. All provide the full range of essential services as commissioned by NHS England and 

required by their contractual arrangements, such as dispensing of prescriptions. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 86.3% of items prescribed by GP practices in Nottingham City were 

dispensed by pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors within the area. Between 

Page 24



5 

 
  

April 2021 and September 2021, there was little change at 86.2%. While there is good 

service provision within the Health and Wellbeing Board area, some residents may choose 

to access pharmaceutical contractors elsewhere. In 2020 to 2021, 12.4% of prescriptions 

items were dispensed outside of Nottingham City. Whilst the majority were dispensed by 

pharmaceutical contractors in the neighbouring health and wellbeing board area, around a 

quarter were dispensed much further afield. This suggests that some residents prefer to use 

a specific dispensing appliance contractor or a specialist provider, with some prescriptions 

being dispensed whilst the person is on holiday, near to their place of work, or returning 

home from studying.  

 

The pharmaceutical needs assessment considered the provision of the advanced services 

that pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors may choose to provide. Most 

pharmacies provide, or have signed up to provide, the new medicine service, community 

pharmacist consultation service and flu vaccination advanced service, considered by the 

Health and Wellbeing Board to be necessary. Furthermore, it is noted that the number of 

pharmacies providing these advanced services has further increased while drafting the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment, now that the focus has moved away from the 

coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.  

 

Demand for the appliance advanced services is lower than for the other advanced services 

due to the much smaller proportion of the population that may require these services. 

Further to this, it is noted that other organisations provide the same or similar services, for 

example the Nottinghamshire appliance management service. It is also noted that one of the 

reasons why prescriptions are dispensed outside of the area is because they have been sent 

to a dispensing appliance contractor.  

 

Whilst only three pharmacies have signed up to provide the community pharmacy Hepatitis 

C antibody testing service, it is noted that this is a niche service that will not be relevant to 

many residents. In addition, take-up of the service nationally has been very low. The service 

is due to end on 31st March 2023.  

 

The hypertension case-finding service and the smoking cessation service are relatively new 

services, launched in October 2021 and March 2022 respectively. The number of 

pharmacies that have signed up to provide these advanced services has increased whilst 

drafting the pharmaceutical needs assessment, and this is expected to continue.  

 

The enhanced services from pharmacies that are currently commissioned by NHS England 

are being reviewed prior to the introduction of the integrated care board. 

 

All residents of Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board’s area can access a pharmacy 

within a 20 minute drive. In addition, it is noted that there is a good public transport service 

across Nottingham City, allowing access for all residents to a pharmacy within 20 minutes. 

Around 98% of residents are within a 20 minute walk of a pharmacy.  

 

There are nine 100 hour pharmacies within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. When 

the 100 hour pharmacies in the neighbouring health and wellbeing board’s area are also 

taken into consideration, all the population is within a 15 minute drive of a 100 hour 

Page 25



6 

 
  

pharmacy. Most of the residents are within a five minute drive of a 100 hour pharmacy. 

There are also extended opening hours offered by other pharmacies within and outside of 

Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, which residents can also access. 

 

Conclusion 

 

The main conclusion of this pharmaceutical needs assessment is that there are no gaps in 

the current provision of pharmaceutical services as the providers, both within and outside of 

the Health and Wellbeing board’s area, are meeting the residents’ current needs for such 

services. 

 

The pharmaceutical needs assessment also looks at changes which are anticipated within 

the lifetime of the document, for example the predicted population growth. Given the current 

population demographics, housing projections and the distribution of service providers 

across the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, the document concludes that the current 

provision will be sufficient to meet the future needs of the residents during the three year 

lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has not identified any changes to services that would 

secure improvements, or better access to the provision of pharmaceutical services either 

now or expected within the lifetime of the pharmaceutical needs assessment (1 October 

2022 to 30 September 2025). 

 

 
  

Page 26



7 

 
  

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 Purpose of a pharmaceutical needs assessment 

 

The purpose of the pharmaceutical needs assessment is to assess and set out how the 

provision of pharmaceutical services can meet the health needs of the population of the 

Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board’s area for a period of up to three years, linking 

closely to documents in the joint strategic needs assessment. Whilst reports in the joint 

strategic needs assessment will focus on the general health and wellbeing needs of the 

population of Nottingham City, the pharmaceutical needs assessment looks at how those 

health needs can be met by pharmaceutical services commissioned by NHS England and in 

the future by Nottingham City Integrated Care Board. 

 

At the point of drafting (May 2022), NHS England is responsible for the commissioning of 

pharmaceutical services. However, it is anticipated that within the lifetime of the document 

the Nottingham City Integrated Care Board will become responsible for their commissioning. 

As it has not been confirmed when the integrated care board will take on responsibility, this 

document will continue to refer to NHS England as the commissioner.  

 

If a person (a pharmacy or a dispensing appliance contractor) wants to provide 

pharmaceutical services, they are required to apply to NHS England to be included in the 

pharmaceutical list for the health and wellbeing board’s area in which they wish to have 

premises. In general, their application must offer to meet a need that is set out in the health 

and wellbeing board’s pharmaceutical needs assessment, or to secure improvements or 

better access similarly identified in the pharmaceutical needs assessment. There are 

however some exceptions to this e.g. applications offering benefits that were not foreseen 

when the pharmaceutical needs assessment was published (‘unforeseen benefits 

applications’). 

 

As well as identifying if there is a need for additional premises, the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment will also identify whether there is a need for an additional service or services, or 

whether improvements or better access to existing services are required. Identified needs, 

improvements or better access could either be current or will arise within the three-year 

lifetime of the pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

Whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment is primarily a document for NHS England to 

use to make commissioning decisions, it may also be used by local authorities. A robust 

pharmaceutical needs assessment will ensure those who commission services from 

pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors target services to areas of health need 

and reduce the risk of overprovision in areas of less need. 

 

1.2 Health and wellbeing board duties in respect of the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment 
 

Further information on the health and wellbeing board’s specific duties in relation to 

pharmaceutical needs assessments and the policy background to pharmaceutical needs 

Page 27



8 

 
  

assessments can be found in appendix A. However, following publication of its first 

pharmaceutical needs assessment the health and wellbeing board must, in summary: 

 

• Publish revised statements (subsequent pharmaceutical needs assessments), on a 

three-yearly basis, which comply with the regulatory requirements, 

• Publish a subsequent pharmaceutical needs assessment sooner when it identifies 

changes to the need for pharmaceutical services which are of a significant extent, 

unless to do so would be a disproportionate response to those changes, and 

• Produce supplementary statements which explain changes to the availability of 

pharmaceutical services in certain circumstances. 

 

1.3 Pharmaceutical services 

 

The services that a pharmaceutical needs assessment must include are defined within both 

the National Health Service Act 2006 and the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended. 

 

Pharmaceutical services may be provided by: 

 

• A pharmacy contractor who is included in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the 

health and wellbeing board, 

• A pharmacy contractor who is included in the local pharmaceutical services list for 

the area of the health and wellbeing board, 

• A dispensing appliance contractor who is included in the pharmaceutical list held for 

the area of the health and wellbeing board, and 

• A doctor or GP practice that is included in the dispensing doctor list held for the area 

of the health and wellbeing board.  

 

NHS England is responsible for preparing, maintaining and publishing these lists. In 

Nottingham City there were 63 pharmacies and three dispensing appliance contractors 

(December 2021). The number of pharmacies increased by one to 64 by September 2022. 

 

Pharmacy contractors may operate as either a sole trader, partnership or a body corporate 

and The Medicines Act 1968 governs who can be a pharmacy contractor.  

 

1.3.1 Pharmaceutical services provided by pharmacy contractors 

 

Unlike for GPs, dentists and optometrists, NHS England does not hold contracts with the 

majority of pharmacy contractors. Instead, they provide services under a contractual 

framework, sometimes referred to as the community pharmacy contractual framework, 

details of which (the terms of service) are set out in schedule 4 of the NHS (Pharmaceutical 

and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended, and also in the 

Pharmaceutical Services (Advanced and Enhanced Services) (England) Directions 2013. 

 

Pharmacy contractors provide three types of service that fall within the definition of 

pharmaceutical services and the community pharmacy contractual framework. They are: 

Page 28



9 

 
  

• Essential services – all pharmacies must provide these services. 

o Dispensing of prescriptions (both electronic and non-electronic), including 

urgent supply of a drug or appliance without a prescription 

o Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions 

o Disposal of unwanted drugs 

o Promotion of healthy lifestyles 

o Signposting 

o Support for self-care  

o Home delivery service (during a declared pandemic only) 

o The discharge medicines service. 

 

• Advanced services – pharmacies may choose whether to provide these services or 

not. If they choose to provide one or more of the advanced services, they must meet 

certain requirements and must be fully compliant with the essential services and 

clinical governance and promotion of healthy living requirements. 

o New medicine service 

o Stoma appliance customisation 

o Appliance use review 

o Seasonal influenza adult vaccination service 

o Community pharmacist consultation service 

o Hepatitis C antibody testing service (currently time limited until 31 March 

2023) 

o Community pharmacy COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service 

(commissioning ended 31st March 2022) 

o Community pharmacy hypertension case-finding service (launched 1 October 

2022) 

o Smoking cessation referral from secondary care into community pharmacy 

service (launched 10 March 2022). 

 

• Enhanced services – service specifications for this type of service are developed by 

NHS England and then commissioned to meet specific health needs. 

o Anticoagulation monitoring 

o Antiviral collection service 

o Care home service 

o Disease specific medicines management service 

o Gluten free food supply service 

o Independent prescribing service 

o Home delivery service 

o Language access service 

o Medication review service 

o Medicines assessment and compliance support service 

o Minor ailment scheme 

o Needle and syringe exchange* 

o On demand availability of specialist drugs service 

o Out of hours service 

o Patient group direction service 

o Prescriber support service 

Page 29



10 

 
  

o Schools service 

o Screening service 

o Stop smoking service 

o Supervised administration service* 

o Supplementary prescribing service 

o Emergency supply service. 

 

It should be noted that those enhanced services marked with an asterisk are currently 

commissioned by Nottingham City Council and are referred to as locally commissioned 

services.  

 

Further information on the essential, advanced and enhanced services requirements can be 

found in appendices B, C and D respectively. 

 

Underpinning the provision of all of these services is the requirement on each pharmacy 

contractor to participate in a system of clinical governance and promotion of healthy living. 

This system is set out within the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 

Regulations 2013, as amended and includes: 

 

• A patient and public involvement programme, 

• An audit programme, 

• A risk management programme, 

• A clinical effectiveness programme, 

• A staffing and staff management programme, 

• An information governance programme, and  

• A premises standards programme. 

 

Pharmacies are required to open for 40 hours per week, and these are referred to as core 

opening hours, but many choose to open for longer and these additional hours are referred 

to as supplementary opening hours. Between April 2005 and August 2012, some contractors 

successfully applied to open new premises on the basis of being open for 100 core opening 

hours per week (referred to as 100 hour pharmacies), which means that they are required to 

be open for 100 core hours per week, 52 weeks of the year (with the exception of weeks 

which contain a bank or public holiday, or Easter Sunday). It continues to be a condition that 

these 100 hour pharmacies remain open for 100 core hours per week and they may open for 

longer hours. Since August 2012 some pharmacy contractors may have successfully applied 

to open a pharmacy with a different number of core opening hours in order to meet a need, 

improvements or better access identified in a pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

The proposed opening hours for each pharmacy are set out in the initial application, and if 

the application is granted and the pharmacy subsequently opens, then these form the 

pharmacy’s contracted opening hours. The contractor can subsequently apply to change 

their core opening hours and NHS England will assess the application against the needs of 

the population of the health and wellbeing board area as set out in the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment to determine whether to agree to the change in core opening hours or not. If a 

Page 30



11 

 
  

pharmacy contractor wishes to change their supplementary opening hours they simply notify 

NHS England of the change, giving at least three months’ notice. 

 

Whilst the majority of pharmacies provide services on a face-to-face basis e.g. people attend 

the pharmacy to ask for a prescription to be dispensed, or to receive health advice, there is 

one type of pharmacy that is restricted from providing services in this way. They are referred 

to in the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as 

amended, as distance selling premises (sometimes called mail order or internet 

pharmacies). 

 

Distance selling premises are required to provide essential services and participate in the 

system of clinical governance and promotion of healthy living in the same way as other 

pharmacies; however, they must provide these services remotely. For example, a patient 

asks for their prescription to be sent to a distance selling premises via the Electronic 

Prescription Service and the contractor dispenses the item and then delivers it to the 

patient’s preferred address. Distance selling premises therefore interact with their customers 

via the telephone, email or a website. Such pharmacies are required to provide services to 

people who request them wherever they may live in England and delivery of dispensed items 

is free of charge. 

 

1.3.2 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing appliance contractors 

 

As with pharmacy contractors, NHS England does not hold contracts with dispensing 

appliance contractors. Their terms of service are set out in schedule 5 of the NHS 

(Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended and in 

the Pharmaceutical Services (Advanced and Enhanced Services) (England) Directions 2013.  

 

Dispensing appliance contractors provide the following services for appliances (not drugs) 

for example catheters and colostomy bags, which fall within the definition of pharmaceutical 

services: 

 

• Dispensing of prescriptions (both electronic and non-electronic), including urgent 

supply without a prescription, 

• Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions, 

• Home delivery service for some items, 

• Supply of appropriate supplementary items (e.g. disposable wipes and disposal 

bags), 

• Provision of expert clinical advice regarding the appliances, and 

• Signposting. 

 

They may also choose to provide advanced services. If they do choose to provide them then 

they must meet certain requirements and must be fully compliant with their terms of service 

and clinical governance requirements. The two advanced services that they may provide 

are: 

 

• Stoma appliance customisation, and 

Page 31



12 

 
  

• Appliance use review. 

 

As with pharmacies, dispensing appliance contractors are required to participate in a system 

of clinical governance. This system is set out within the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended and includes: 

 

• A patient and public involvement programme, 

• A clinical audit programme, 

• A risk management programme, 

• A clinical effectiveness programme, 

• A staffing and staff programme, and 

• An information governance programme. 

 

Further information on the requirements for these services can be found in appendix E. 

 

Dispensing appliance contractors are required to open at least 30 hours per week and these 

are referred to as core opening hours. They may choose to open for longer and these 

additional hours are referred to as supplementary opening hours.  

 

The proposed opening hours for each dispensing appliance contractor are set out in the 

initial application, and if the application is granted and the dispensing appliance contractor 

subsequently opens then these form the dispensing appliance contractor’s contracted 

opening hours. The contractor can subsequently apply to change their core opening hours. 

NHS England will assess the application against the needs of the population of the health 

and wellbeing board area as set out in the pharmaceutical needs assessment to determine 

whether to agree to the change in core opening hours or not. If a dispensing appliance 

contractor wishes to change their supplementary opening hours they simply notify NHS 

England of the change, giving at least three months’ notice. 

 

1.3.3 Pharmaceutical services provided by doctors 

 

The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as 

amended allow doctors to dispense to eligible patients in certain circumstances. The 

regulations are complicated on this matter but in summary: 

 

• Patients must live in a ‘controlled locality’ (an area which has been determined by 

NHS England or a preceding or successor organisation as rural in character), more 

than 1.6km (measured in a straight line) from a pharmacy (excluding distance selling 

premises), and 

• Their practice must have premises approval and consent to dispense to that area. 

 

There are some exceptions to this, for example patients who have satisfied NHS England 

that they would have serious difficulty in accessing a pharmacy by reason of distance or 

inadequacy of means of communication.  

  

Page 32



13 

 
  

1.3.4 Local pharmaceutical services 

 

Local pharmaceutical services contracts allow NHS England to commission services, from a 

pharmacy, which are tailored to specific local requirements. Local pharmaceutical services 

complement the national contractual arrangements described above but is an important local 

commissioning tool in its own right. Local pharmaceutical services provide flexibility to 

include within a contract a broader or narrower range of services (including services not 

traditionally associated with pharmacies) than is possible under the national contractual 

arrangements. For the purposes of the pharmaceutical needs assessment the definition of 

pharmaceutical services includes local pharmaceutical services. There are, however, no 

local pharmaceutical services contracts within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area and 

NHS England does not have plans to commission such contracts within the lifetime of this 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

1.4 Locally commissioned services 

 

Nottingham City Council and, until they cease to exist on 1 April 2022, the clinical 

commissioning group may also commission services from pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractors, however these services fall outside the definition of pharmaceutical 

services. For the purposes of this document, they are referred to as locally commissioned 

services and at the time of drafting the following locally commissioned services are 

commissioned by Nottingham City Council: 

 

• Emergency Hormonal Contraception 

• Chlamydia screening 

• Chlamydia treatment 

• Needle exchange 

• Supervised consumption 

 

The needle exchange and supervised consumption service are contracted with the Crime & 

Drugs Partnership, which is part of Nottingham City Council. The clinical commissioning 

group does not currently commission services from pharmacies. 

 

Locally commissioned services are included within this assessment where they affect the 

need for pharmaceutical services, or where the further provision of these services would 

secure improvements or better access to pharmaceutical services. 

 

1.5 Other NHS services 

 

Other services which are commissioned or provided by NHS England, Nottingham City 

Council, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group (until 1 April 2022), 

Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust, Nottingham CityCare and Nottinghamshire 

Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, which affect the need for pharmaceutical services are 

also included within the pharmaceutical needs assessment. Examples include the hospital 

pharmacies, community nurse prescribers, and urgent treatment centres. 

Page 33



14 

 
  

1.6 How the assessment was undertaken 

 

1.6.1 Pharmaceutical needs assessment steering group 

 

The Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board has overall responsibility for the 

publication of the pharmaceutical needs assessment, and the director of public health is the 

Health and Wellbeing Board member who is accountable for its development. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board has established a pharmaceutical needs assessment steering group 

whose purpose is to ensure that the Health and Wellbeing Board develops a robust 

pharmaceutical needs assessment that complies with the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended and meets the needs of the local 

population. The membership of the steering group ensured all the main stakeholders were 

represented and can be found in appendix F. 

 

1.6.2 Pharmaceutical needs assessment localities 

 

The localities that have been used for the pharmaceutical needs assessment are the seven 

area partnerships, which are based around ward clusters as shown in Table 1 and Map 1 

below. This approach is consistent with the annual Nottingham City Citizens' survey. 

 

Table 1: Area partnerships and their wards 

Area Partnerships & wards 

Area Partnership 1 

Bulwell  

Bulwell Forest 

Bestwood 

Area Partnership 2 

Basford 

Berridge 

Sherwood 

Area Partnership 3 

Aspley 

Bilborough 

Leen Valley 

Area Partnership 4 

Radford 

Hyson Green & Arboretum 

Castle 

Area Partnership 5 

Lenton & Wollaton East 

Wollaton West 

Meadows 

Area Partnership 6 

Dales 

St Anns 

Mapperley  

Area Partnership 7 
Clifton East 

Clifton West 

Source: Nottingham City Council 

  

Page 34



15 

 
  

Map 1: Area partnerships and their wards  

 

Source: Nottingham City Council 

 

1.6.3 Patient and public engagement 

 

In order to gain the views of patients and the public on pharmaceutical services, a 

questionnaire was developed. It was available online from 7 December 2021 to 16 January 

2022 and promoted by the council and the clinical commissioning group. As well as being 

available online, an easy read version was available in either an electronic or paper format. 

A copy, which shows the questions asked, can be found in appendix G. The full results can 

be found in appendix H. 

 

59 people responded to the questionnaire, predominantly white females within the 16 to 24 

and 65 and over age ranges. Below is a summary of the responses. 

Page 35



16 

 
  

• 49.2% of respondents always use the same pharmacy, with 37.3% using different 

pharmacies but preferring to visit one most often. 

• There was no single factor that influences the choice of pharmacy but the top five 

were close to home, location is easy to get to, close to the GP practice, easy to park 

at the pharmacy and trusting the staff who work there. It should be noted that more 

than one option could be selected for this question. 

• 33.9% said that there is a more convenient and/or closer pharmacy that they don’t 

use. The most common reasons for not using that pharmacy were service is too 

slow, it isn’t open when the person needs it to be, it isn’t easy to park there, and there 

is not enough privacy.  

• Collecting their dispensed medicines is the most common reason to visit a pharmacy, 

followed by collecting dispensed medicines for someone else and then buying 

medicines for their own use. It should be noted that more than one option could be 

selected for this question. 

• 53.4% visit a pharmacy monthly/every four weeks and 25.9% visit quarterly. 

• 39.0% said they do not have a preferred time to visit a pharmacy, 16.9% said 

between 3pm to 6pm and 13.6% said between 12noon to 3pm and 6pm to 9pm. 

• 62.7% said they don’t have a preference for which day of the week they use a 

pharmacy, 18.6% said weekdays in general, and 8.5% said Saturday. 

• The most common ways to travel to a pharmacy were on foot (54.2%) and by car 

(37.3%). 

• With regard to the length of time it takes to travel to a pharmacy, 49.1% said between 

five and 15 minutes, and 38.6% said less than five minutes. 

• The top four ways of finding out information about a pharmacy were searching on the 

internet, calling the pharmacy, popping in and asking and looking in the window. It 

should be noted that more than one option could be selected for this question. 

• 59.3% of people said they felt able to discuss something private with a pharmacist, 

with 25.4% saying that they had never needed to, and only 15.3% saying no. 

 

When asked if there was anything else that respondents wished to say about local pharmacy 

services, 20 responses were received. The majority were satisfied with the service that they 

received, for example:  

• “Excellent customer service.” 

• “Staff always pleasant and helpful.” 

• “My lcoal one delivers medication to the local community and is well known and liked” 

 

Two respondents gave examples of services they were satisfied with: 

• “Have a review if prescriptions think every 2 yr. Very helpful. Non medical staff are 

long serving and knowledge.”   

• “I use the NHS app on my phone and am able to order my repeat prescription from 

my Doctor and then collect it from my pharmacy. I think this service is really useful for 

people who work long hours or shifts and my pharmacy opening hours means I can 

collect it up to 11pm.” 

 

Two other respondents also commented on their preference for using late opening 

pharmacies: 

Page 36



17 

 
  

• “My pharmacist opens quite late which I find useful as sometimes my workshift is 

past 6pm when most shops are closed.” 

• “i go to the supermarket pharmacy as they have late night opening, and have space 

to not feel crowded.” 

 

Five comments were about accessibility. Examples include: 

• “Keep them locally accessible.” 

• “They are better than the GP's as they actually listen to you and are accessible.” 

• “I wish I had closer pharmacy to my address.”  

 

Three respondents were now satisfied with the services they received following a change of 

pharmacy, for example: 

• “The pharmacy that I use always has the medicine ready for me to pick up straight 

away.  I have a monthly prescription for both myself and my son.  The pharmacy that 

I used before that was next to my doctors always took a long time to get your 

prescription ready even if you went in a few days after it was sent to them they never 

seemed to make it up until you got there.  Hence why I changed to the one I am at 

now following the recommendation of a neighbour who is at the same surgery as 

me.” 

• “My local pharmacy is great it was a [pharmacy name] but has just been taken over 

by a local company and is much better now” 

 

Two of the comments received were less positive about services provided: 

• “More privacy is needed. Even if you whisper to the person on the counter they then 

go and talk loud about it to the main person in the pharmacy so everyone hears so 

more privacy is needed in all chemists. Also it is very difficult to use pharmacy first 

because they only use one member of staff to deal with that but if the staff member is 

not there or busy then you cannot use that service which means you have to get a 

GP appointment but then the GP get mad because it is using up an appointment. 

Also it seems even though I have regular medication monthly I always have to go 

back a few days later to collect ones they don’t have in stock.” 

• “I and my husband booked a flu vaccine at a local pharmacy (not our usual one as flu 

jab appointments were not available). Unfortunately our appointments got cancelled 

twice due to supply issues. We had booked quite a long time in advance as there 

were not many times available that we could attend. We then booked appointments 

for the next day at [name and location of pharmacy] (we live in [location]). It was quite 

frustrating that we had waited longer to be able to get the jab locally but could have 

had it a lot sooner if we had travelled further.” 

 

One comment was specifically about access to language services: 

• “I have friends who do not speak English and need a language access service in 

community pharmacies. At present, this service is not available in the Midlands. This 

diverts them to their GP or Accident and Emergency Department where they can 

obtain an in-person or telephone interpreter. NHS guidance from 2018 says quite 

clearly that language access should be available in community pharmacies. Current 

local arrangements put patients at risk and increase demand on other NHS services.” 

Page 37



18 

 
  

When asked if there were any services that they would use if they were provided by 

pharmacies, 13 respondents gave examples which included the following: 

 

• Treatment of minor ailments/Pharmacy First 

• Routine tests e.g. blood test (for example for diabetes), sight tests, hearing tests, 

urine dip test for urinary tract infections 

• Medication reviews and medication advice 

• Vaccinations e.g. flu, coronavirus (COVID-19) boosters, shingles, pneumonia and 

other routine ‘jabs’ 

• Women’s health 

• Sexual health checks 

• Health checks 

 

One comment specifically mentioned language access and two comments highlighted the 

willingness to use any other potential services that pharmacies may offer: 

• “Any medical service that a pharmacy could offer.” 

• “I have used the pharmacy this year for both my Covid booster and flu vaccinations, 

this was very convenient for me, and would happily use the pharmacy if other 

services were available. I also ask advice from my pharmacist regarding medications 

and they have a vast knowledge and think they are under used by the public.” 

 

1.6.4 Contractor engagement 

 

An online questionnaire for pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors was 

undertaken, and the approach was taken to only ask contractors for information that could 

not be sourced elsewhere. The contractor questionnaire did however provide an opportunity 

to validate the information provided by NHS England in respect of core and supplementary 

opening hours. Where opening hours were reported as different contractors were advised to 

raise this with NHS England for resolution. 

 

A copy of the questionnaire can be found in appendix I. 

 

The questionnaire was open from 4 February until 25 February 2022 and the results are 

summarised below. Of the 63 pharmacies, 21 responded (a response rate of 33%) which is 

lower than anticipated but reflected the fact that contractors were still dealing with the effects 

of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. None of the three appliance contractors 

responded to the questionnaire. The Health and Wellbeing Board is grateful for the support 

of the Nottinghamshire Local Pharmaceutical Committee in encouraging contractors to 

complete the questionnaire. 

 

For the purposes of this document the pharmacy opening hours relied upon are those 

provided by NHS England as these are the contractual hours that are included in the 

pharmaceutical list for the area of the Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board. Of the 

21 pharmacies, 17 respondents confirmed that the opening hours were correct.  

 

Page 38



19 

 
  

The majority of respondents (95%) confirmed that prescriptions for all types of appliances 

are dispensed from the premises. One pharmacy responded that they dispensed 

prescriptions for all appliances, excluding stoma appliances. 

 

When asked whether they collect prescriptions from GP practices, 18 respondents said that 

they did. However, going forward the requirement for contractors or patients to deal with 

paper copies of prescriptions will continue to reduce. The Electronic Prescription Service 

allows prescribers to send prescriptions electronically to the pharmacy or dispensing 

appliance contractor of the patient's choice. This makes the prescribing and dispensing 

process more efficient and convenient for patients and staff.  

 

Only four pharmacies said they didn’t routinely provide a delivery service to patients. 

However two of these pharmacies provided examples when they would potentially deliver, 

including nearby housebound patients, with one particularly naming those aged over 80 

years with no family members able to collect on their behalf. 

 

Of the 17 pharmacies that do routinely offer a delivery service, 16 pharmacies provide a 

delivery service free of charge, with eight offering the service to all patients. Of the eight 

pharmacies that restrict their delivery service, seven provided examples of patient groups 

such as the housebound, elderly, disabled, vulnerable, prescribed heavy/ bulky items, 

appliance users and those residing close to the pharmacy (e.g. radius of 1.5 miles from 

pharmacy). One pharmacy mentioned they offer pandemic deliveries for people that have a 

track and trace code and are high risk or shielding. Seven pharmacies also offer a private, 

chargeable delivery service for example to patients under 65 years of age and with less than 

three items on prescription.  

 

One pharmacy offered a private, chargeable delivery service only. However, they did deliver 

free of charge to care homes. 

 

It should be noted that these collection and delivery services are provided privately. Only 

during a pandemic may a delivery service be commissioned by NHS England. 

 

Eighteen pharmacies reported that another language was the spoken each day by staff at 

the premises, in addition to English. Of those 18 pharmacies, 15 offered more than one 

additional language. The range of languages include: 

 

• Arabic • Hakka • Polish 

• Bengali • Hindi • Punjabi 

• Cantonese • Hokkien • Spanish 

• Foo Chow • Igbo • Swahili 

• French • Indi • Telugu 

• German • Malay • Twi-Ghanaian 

• Gujarati • Mandarin • Urdu 

 

The most commonly spoken languages other than English are Urdu, followed by both 

Gujarati and Punjabi. 

Page 39



20 

 
  

There are currently a number of housing and other developments taking place across 

Nottingham City with more planned. When asked about their ability to meet the needs of 

those moving into the new houses, the responses were as follows: 

 

• 16 of the pharmacies (76%) that responded have sufficient capacity within existing 

premises and staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area. 

• Four of the pharmacies (19%) would need to make adjustments to manage the 

increase in demand in the area: 

o Two have sufficient capacity within existing premises but not staffing levels. 

However, both pharmacies could make adjustments to staffing levels. 

o One has sufficient capacity with staffing levels but not within their premises but 

could make adjustments to manage the increase in demand in the area. 

o One pharmacy responded that they don’t have sufficient premises and staffing 

capacity at present but could make adjustments. 

• One pharmacy (5%) responded that they don’t have sufficient premises and staffing 

capacity at present and that they would have difficulty in managing an increase in 

demand in the area. 

 

1.6.5 Other sources of information 

 

Information was gathered from NHS England, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group and Nottingham City Council regarding: 

 

• Services provided to residents of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, whether 

provided from within or outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, 

• Changes to current service provision, 

• Future commissioning intentions, 

• Known housing developments within the lifetime of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, and 

• Any other developments which may affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

Nottingham City Council Joint Strategic Needs Assessment1 and datasets from the Office for 

National Statistics 2 and Nomis websites,3 including on the 2011 Census, provided 

background information on the health needs of the population such as deprivation, rates of 

disease, mortality, life and healthy life expectancy. Maps for pharmaceutical service 

provision, including travel times, were developed using the Office for Health Improvement 

and Disparities’ Strategic Health Asset Planning and Evaluation (SHAPE) tool.  

 

1.6.6 Consultation 

 

A report of the consultation including any changes to the pharmaceutical needs assessment 

has been added to appendix J.  

 
1 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Nottingham Insight 
2 Office for National Statistics 
3 2011 Census datasets, Nomis, Office for National Statistics 

Page 40

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/sources/census_2011


21 

 
  

2 Overview of Nottingham City 
 
2.1 Introduction 

 

Nottingham is a city and unitary authority area surrounded by the seven districts that make 

up Nottinghamshire County Council. It is part of the East Midlands region. It is centrally 

located within England and lies close to Derby and Leicester with important and 

complementary economic linkages between the cities.  

 

Nottingham City is a designated Core City, recognised as a city of national importance, and 

an important driver of the wider economy. It is also one of six cities designated a Science 

City in the UK, recognised as a centre of scientific innovation - promoting the knowledge 

economy. Integral to this are the two leading universities, the University of Nottingham and 

Nottingham Trent University, with a student population of around 70,000. Together they 

formed the Biocentre - the UK's biggest bioscience innovation and incubation centre, 

housing around 80 science-based companies. The Boots brand was founded by John Boot 

in Nottingham City at Goose Gate. It is now one of the largest retailers in the UK and is 

renowned for inventing ibuprofen. Boots UK Support Office site now forms part of the 

Nottingham Enterprise Zone, creating a UK centre for innovation in health, beauty and 

wellbeing. The City also has a growing financial technology sector. 

 

Nottingham City has a long tradition as a trading hub and manufacturing centre and was 

known for its lace-making, bicycle (Raleigh) and tobacco industries. More recently, it has 

become a popular tourist destination known worldwide for its connections to the legendary 

outlaw Robin Hood. It has a growing reputation as a city of culture and creativity, known for 

its literary heritage, with Lord Byron, D.H. Lawrence and Alan Sillitoe having links to the city. 

In December 2015, Nottingham City was named a 'City of Literature' by UNESCO, joining 

Dublin, Edinburgh, Melbourne, and Prague as one of only a handful in the world.  

 

Nottingham City is the home of several nationally important sports facilities, including the 

National Ice Centre and the professional football team of Notts County. Just south of the city 

are the Trent Bridge Cricket Ground, the National Watersports Centre and the Nottingham 

Forest football stadium. In October 2015, Nottingham was named 'Home of English Sport'. 

 

Nottingham’s public transport system won awards prior to 2015, including the largest publicly 

owned bus network in England. Nottingham City is served by Nottingham railway station and 

the modern Nottingham Express Transit tram system. East Midlands Airport is situated just 

13 miles southeast of the city and is easily accessible by car, coach or train.  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 41



22 

 
  

Map 2: Nottingham City by wards 

 
2.2 Population 

 

The latest estimate of Nottingham City’s resident population is 337,098, having risen by 

almost 4,200 (1.3%) since 2019. Between 2019 and 2020, Nottingham City gained 1,057 

people through natural change (the excess of births over deaths), gained 5,242 people due 

to international migration, and lost 2,137 people through internal migration (within the 

country), as shown in Table 2.  

  

Page 42



23 

 
  

Table 2: Population change based on mid-year estimates for 2020 for city council, 
county council, region and England 

  Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 

Population mid-2019 332,900 828,224 4,835,928 56,286,961 

Births 3,666 7,801 48,167 600,708 

Deaths 2,609 9,035 49,988 553,546 

Natural Change 1,057 -1,234 -1,821 47,162 

Internal In 32,329 34,481 140,942 90,650 

Internal Out 34,466 29,701 132,181 110,943 

Internal Net -2,137 4,780 8,761 -20,293 

International In 8,042 2,789 35,539 553,116 

International Out 2,800 1,192 13,703 322,002 

International Net 5,242 1,597 21,836 231,114 

Special 12 -28 638 2,369 

Other 24 38 241 2,825 

Population mid-2020 337,098 833,377 4,865,583 56,550,138 

Percentage change 1.3% 0.6% 0.6% 0.5% 

Source: Office of National Statistics - Analysis of Population Estimates Tool 

 

The main reasons for the increase in population over the last decade continue to be 

international migration (recently from Eastern Europe) and the natural increase in the 

population4, as shown in Figure 1. The increase in population was higher than the average 

for the previous five years, mainly due to higher international migration, which was the 

highest since 2005. This may have been affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic 

travel restrictions. 

 

Figure 1: Components of change in Nottingham City, mid-year estimate 2001 to 2020 

 
Source: Demography chapter 2021, JSNA 

 

Nottingham City has a very high proportion (30%) of people aged 18 to 29 years, as shown 

in Figure 2. This is due largely, but not entirely, to the presence of the two universities, with 

 
4 Office for National Statistics Mid-Year Estimates & components of change data 2005-2020. 

-4000

-2000

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

Components of population change 2001-2020

international net internal net natural change

Page 43



24 

 
  

full-time university students accounting for approximately one in eight of the population. The 

percentages in other age-groups are lower than the average for England, with the 

proportions of those between 70 and 85 being particularly low. The proportion of children is 

lower than the England average, although not for those aged under five.  

 

The median age in Nottingham City is 29.7 years and is younger than Nottinghamshire (43.7 

years), East Midlands (41.4 years) and England (40.2 years).5 

 

Figure 2: Age Structure of Nottingham (bars) and England (lines), 2020 

 
Source: ONS Mid-Year Estimates, 2020 

 

The gender balance generally follows national patterns. More boys are born than girls (about 

108 boys for every 100 girls), but as men tend to die younger, for age-groups aged over 75 

there are more women than men; there are almost twice as many women aged 85 and over 

as men. However, the percentage of men aged 25 to 39 is unusually high in Nottingham. 

 

In Nottingham City, the main determinants of future changes in the total population are 

house building; natural change (the excess of births over deaths); international migration; 

and the number of university students. 

 

The Office for National Statistics latest population projections are 2018-based population 

projections, published in March 2020. They show that the population is projected to increase 

in Nottingham City between mid-2018 to mid-2028 by 4% (13,100 residents) to 344,200 and 

by 7.6% (25,000 residents) to 356,100 by 2043 as shown in Figure 3 below. 

 

 
5 Office for National Statistics' Mid-Year Population Estimates June 2020 

Page 44



25 

 
  

The mid-year estimate for 2020 is just over 3,100 residents higher than that predicted by the 

2018-based population projections. Taking into account this higher baseline and adjusting 

the projections accordingly gives an estimated population increase of just over 4,000 people 

over the timeline of the pharmaceutical needs assessment. This is a population increase of 

1.2% to just over 343,000 residents. 

 

Figure 3: Population projections (2018-based) by percentage change for city council, 
county council, region and England, 2018 to 2043 

 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Population projections with components of change (births, 
deaths and migration) for regions and local authorities within England, mid-2018 to mid-2043. 

 
The main changes in the age-structure are likely to reflect the current structure aging: 

 

• The number of children (under 15's) is projected to decrease in the short term.  

• The 15 to 19 age group is projected to see one of the largest numerical increases, 

becoming the second largest group.  

• The 20 to 24 age band is projected to remain the largest group– primarily due to the 

large student population in Nottingham City.  

• The 25 to 29 age band is projected to see one of the largest numerical decreases 

becoming the third largest group. 

• The largest percentage increase is in the 75 to 79 age group, predicted to increase 

by around 11% over the pharmaceutical needs assessment timeframe. 

 

Housing is a significant driver of future population change. The Aligned Core Strategy was 

adopted in 2014 and aims to ensure a suitable mix and balance of housing so that there is a 

range of good quality homes in appropriate locations with good connections to jobs, services 

and leisure opportunities. For Nottingham City, this includes Purpose Built Student 

Accommodation, affordable housing, specialist housing, and family housing - allowing choice 

to residents who would otherwise have to leave the area to meet their housing needs.  

 

The latest housing trajectory produced by the council covers the timeline of the Aligned Core 

Strategy period (2011 to 2028), as shown in Figure 4 below. It gives an indication of past 

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
4

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
6

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
8

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
2

2
0

4
3

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 c
h

an
ge

Year

England East Midlands Nottingham Nottinghamshire

Page 45



26 

 
  

completions, annual requirements and the possible level of housing up to 2028. It anticipates 

that the minimum 17,150 dwellings required to the end of the Aligned Core Strategy period 

will potentially be achieved earlier than planned, by 2023 to 2024. Preparation of a new 

Strategic Plan has already begun with the local housing need of 27,846 dwellings identified 

from 2021 to 2038, calculated using the Government’s standard methodology. 

 

Figure 4: Housing trajectory for Nottingham City (net completions) 

 
Source: Nottingham City Council (Sept 2021) – Housing land availability at 31st March 2021  

 

An estimated 6,774 dwellings are due to be completed over the timeline of the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment – 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025. This would 

provide accommodation for a potential 15,000 people and is higher than the projected 

population increase over the same period, as shown in Table 3 below. 

 

Table 3: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment timeline (PNA) - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

              PNA Timeline 

Area 
Partnership Sites 

Net 
Dwellings 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 Dwellings* 

Person 
increase 

AP1 11 904 382 277 80 80 477 1,279 

AP2 12 307 133 241 14 14 218 473 

AP3 4 486 158 189 30 30 202 576 

AP4 26 3,062 811 389 464 422 1,359 2,590 

AP5 20 3,683 1,351 818 440 400 2,023 4,572 

AP6 25 1,890 404 565 288 275 1,082 2,451 

AP7 6 589 105 266 136 124 406 1,075 

Windfall   111 111 560 560 1,007 2,013 

Total 104 10,921 3,455 2,856 2,012 1,905 6,774 15,029 
Source: Nottingham City Council (January 2022). * Numbers have been rounded  

Page 46



27 

 
  

Many of the proposed developments continue to be Purpose Built Student Accommodation, 

intended to meet the needs of an increasing student population and to overcome the existing 

shortfall. This will help rebalance communities in areas, mainly close to the universities, 

where there have historically been high concentrations of student driven Houses in Multiple 

Occupation (HMOs), contributing to a loss of family houses. 

 

Nottingham City Council’s housing delivery focuses on larger regeneration areas, including 

the Southside, a major project aimed at transforming the southern gateway to the city around 

the railway station in the Canal Quarter and linking the south of Nottingham to the city 

centre. Other developments in the Canal Quarter include Waterside, a new sustainable 

community located close to the city centre. The Meadow Lane, Trent Basin and Park Yacht 

Club developments form part of the next regeneration phase of the riverside area. This 

includes a continuous riverside path at the edge of the waterside, which is being developed 

on a site by site basis. The proposed Waterside bridge, for pedestrians and cyclist, would 

link Colwick Park on the north bank to Lady Bay and West Bridgford on the south and is 

expected to be complete within the lifetime of the pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

In the Island Quarter, the island development is a mixed use development. Once complete, 

there will be a mix of residential dwellings on offer from family homes to apartments, and 

homes for sale and for rent. It will create office, retail and residential space alongside a 

range of hospitality venues and public realm, creating 4,500 office jobs. The Canal turn, an 

all-day, canal-side destination with restaurants, bars and extensive events space is expected 

to open in 2022. The next phases of development will include student accommodation and a 

hotel and are expected to complete within the timeline of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

 

In the Creative Quarter, redevelopment continues around the area of Sneinton Market. 

 

The Boots UK Limited, Thane Road development is on the boundary of Nottingham City and 

Broxtowe. It is for a mixed-use phased development with up to 675 residential units across 

both council areas.  

 

In other neighbourhoods beyond the city centre, medium sized housing development sites 

are predominant and include surplus council sites such as the former Government Buildings 

on Chalfont Drive and former educational facilities such as the Padstow development. A 

number of smaller, brownfield sites are also being developed throughout Nottingham City. 

Further details of the housing development sites can be found in the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment locality chapters. 

 

Other industrial, office, retail and leisure developments that are likely to occur during the 

timeline of the pharmaceutical needs assessment include: 

 

• Nottingham Central Library, which through the Future High Streets Fund will be 

converted into a Creative Cooperative Hub offering event, gallery and exhibition 

space, and workspace for creative businesses by 2023. 

• Guildhall Place, which is a mixed use redevelopment site in Nottingham’s City 

Centre. Proposed development plans include a prestigious office building, university 

Page 47



28 

 
  

academic facilities, student accommodation and a potential conference centre as well 

as proposals to transform the historic Guildhall building into a boutique hotel. 

• The former Imperial Tobacco factory, Thane Road development is close to the 

boundary of Nottingham City and Broxtowe. It has planning permission for five 

industrial units with office space between 30,000 sq ft and 145,000 sq ft in size and is 

expected to be completed in 2023 with as many as 1000 jobs created. 

• The Boots UK Limited, Thane Road development is on the boundary of Nottingham 

City and Broxtowe. It is for a mixed-use phased development comprising up to 

82,000 square metre of employment floorspace, comprising office units; research 

and development; industrial process; general industrial; storage and distribution; 

residential institutions; non-residential institutions; up to 2,500 square metre retail & 

food/drink; and associated works. 

 

Plans to create and improve sustainable transport infrastructure across the city and wider 

area continue and have been incorporated as part of development plans. 

 

Moving forward, the Nottingham Economic Recovery & Renewal Plan6 sets out a strategic 

framework for the city’s economic recovery following the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. 

It sets out its aim to build the economy back in a way that is “equitable, inclusive and 

sustainable – both socially and environmentally – so that no-one in our city is left behind.” It 

outlines how the pandemic and subsequent lockdown accelerated a shift towards:   

 

• Online retail – which is more likely to have a lasting effect on the face of the high 

street. In the Creative quarter, plans for the redevelopment of Broadmarsh shopping 

centre were paused. However, this has provided the opportunity for the imaginative 

redevelopment of the Broadmarsh area, from the Castle (recently restored and 

redesigned as a new visitor experience) to the new Nottingham College City Hub to 

support Nottingham’s growing reputation as a city of creativity and culture.  

• Homeworking - it is more likely that a hybrid pattern of homeworking mixed with use 

of offices for meetings and collaborative working will continue. Plans to establish ‘15 

minute neighbourhoods’ – where most of people’s daily needs can be met within a 

short walk or cycle – across the city are being developed. These will include 

opportunities to develop retail, office and industrial areas outside of the central area.  

 

In addition, proposed plans include an extension to the tram network for Toton, Clifton and 

Gedling, to connect areas of housing growth with areas of employment and expansion and 

to reduce carbon emissions.  

 

Further details and timelines for these plans have yet to be established at the time of writing 

the pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

Patterns of migration to and from other parts of the UK are likely to remain relatively similar 

in the short to medium term. However, increasing the level of family housing will allow choice 

to residents who would otherwise have to leave the area to meet their housing needs. 

 

 
6 nottingham-economic-recovery-and-renewal-plan.pdf (nottinghamcity.gov.uk) 

Page 48

https://nottinghamcity.gov.uk/media/3373529/nottingham-economic-recovery-and-renewal-plan.pdf


29 

 
  

The impact of the UK leaving the European Union (EU) in 2020 (Brexit), changes to 

immigration policy, and the performance of the British economy relative to other countries, 

may influence the levels of migration from both inside and outside of the EU. Numbers of 

registrations for a National Insurance Number from most countries fell in 2020 to 2021, as a 

result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, but registrations from the Accession states 

fell at a faster rate than for other areas. The full impact the pandemic has had on migration, 

both directly, for example on travel restrictions, and indirectly, on the economy and jobs for 

migrant workers is still unknown. 

 

2.3 Ethnicity 

 

According to the 2011 Census, the large majority of people who live in Nottingham City are 

White British (65.4%), as shown in Figure 5 below. This is a decrease from 81.1% in the 

2001 Census. The proportion of the population from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) 

groups, which are defined as everyone who is not White British, is 34.6%. This is an 

increase of 15.7% from 2001.  

 

The largest groups other than White British are now Other White (5.1%) - which will include 

large numbers of people from Poland, and Pakistani (5.5%). 

 

Figure 5: Ethnic groups in Nottingham City, 2001 and 2011 

 
Source:  Office for National Statistics (ONS), 2011 Census 

Mixed or multiple ethnic groups includes White and Black Caribbean, White and Black African, 
White and Asian and any other Mixed or multiple ethnic background. 

 

2.4 Household language 

 

The School Census (January 2021) estimates that English is the main language spoken in 

Nottingham City followed by Urdu and then Polish, as shown in Figure 6 below. 

 

 

  

Ethnic Group in Nottingham, 2011 Census

65.46.1

6.7

13.1

7.3 1.5

White British

White (not White

British)

Mixed or multiple

ethnicity

Asian or Asian British

Black/African/

Caribbean/Black British

Other ethnic group

2001 Census

81.1

3.9

3.2

7.1
4.3 0.5

Page 49



30 

 
  

Figure 6: Main language spoken in Nottingham City, January 2021 

 
 

2.5 Religion 

 

A question on religion was included in the Census for only the second time in 2011. It is the 

only voluntary question in the Census and 7.6% of people in Nottingham City chose not to 

state their religion. The largest religious group in Nottingham is Christian (44.2%), followed 

by people with no religion (35.0%) and Muslim (8.8%), as shown in Table 4 below.  

 

Table 4: Religion by city council, county council, region and England 

 Count Percentage 

Religion Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 

Christian 135,216 44.2% 61.3% 58.8% 59.4% 

Buddhist 2,051 0.7% 0.2% 0.3% 0.5% 

Hindu 4,498 1.5% 0.4% 2.0% 1.5% 

Jewish 1,069 0.3% 0.1% 0.1% 0.5% 

Muslim 26,919 8.8% 0.9% 3.1% 5.0% 

Sikh 4,312 1.4% 0.4% 1.0% 0.8% 

Other religion 1,483 0.5% 0.3% 0.4% 0.4% 

No religion 106,954 35.0% 29.3% 27.5% 24.7% 

Religion not stated 23,178 7.6% 7.0% 6.8% 7.2% 

Source: Census 2011, Nomis 

 

2.6 Index of multiple deprivation 

 

The Indices of Deprivation measures relative levels of deprivation between small areas 

called Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs). The Indices allow these small areas in England 

to be ranked and compared and show how areas have changed over time relative to other 

Page 50



31 

 
  

areas. They do not show whether areas have become more deprived or less deprived in real 

terms. The Indices of Deprivation measures a broad concept of deprivation, made up of 

seven distinct domains, as shown in Figure 7, rather than just financial deprivation. The 

domains are weighted and combined to give an overall ‘Index of Multiple Deprivation.’  

 

Figure 7: Seven domains of deprivation 

 
Source: Department for Communities and Local Government 

 

The new Indices of Deprivation were published on 26th September 2019 by the Ministry for 

Housing, Communities and Local Government, updating the 2015 Indices. A number of 

summary measures have been produced, based on LSOAs, to help describe relative 

deprivation at higher geographical levels, such as local authorities, with a ranking of one 

being the most deprived. Of the 317 local authority districts in England, Nottingham City 

ranked: 

 

• 11th most deprived district in England using the Average Score measure (the 

average score of the district's LSOAs), a relative improvement on 8th in 2015.  

• 10th most deprived district in England using the Average Rank measure (the average 

rank of all a district’s LSOAs), the same as in 2015.  

• 15th most deprived district in England for the proportion of LSOAs in Nottingham City 

in the most deprived 10% nationally, a relative improvement on 8th in 2015.  

 

There are 32,844 LSOAs in England, with a ranking of one being the most deprived and a 

ranking of 32,844 the least deprived. Nottingham City has 182 LSOAs, as shown on Map 3 

below, and the majority have a population of between 1,300 and 1,700 people. Fewer small 

areas of Nottingham City now rank within the most deprived areas of the country in 2019 

compared to 2015. Of the 182 Nottingham City LSOAs in 2019, 56 (30.8%) fall amongst the 

10% most deprived areas in the country compared to 61 (33.5%) in 2015.  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 51



32 

 
  

Map 3: Indices of Deprivation 2019: Index of Multiple Deprivation 

 
Source: Nottingham City Council 

 

Of the seven domains that make up the Index of Multiple Deprivation, the Employment 

Deprivation Domain and the Income Deprivation Domain, (including the two sub-domains 

Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index and the Income Deprivation Affecting Older 

People Index) for Nottingham City have more LSOAs in the 10% and 20% most deprived 

areas in the country in 2019 compared to 2015. These two domains comprise almost half of 

the Index of Multiple Deprivation. Nottingham City is one of the top 20 local authority districts 

nationally that are ranked as most deprived on the Income Deprivation Domain, ranking 17th 

based on average score. Overall, 29.8% of children and 23.8% of people aged 60 and over 

live in areas affected by income deprivation.7 

 

The remaining domains have seen a relative improvement between 2015 and 2019. The 

domain showing the biggest change since 2015 is the Crime Deprivation Domain, where 28 

LSOAs rank in the most deprived decile compared to 56 in 2015.  

 

The Education, Skills and Training Deprivation Domain has the highest number of LSOAs 

falling within the worst 10% nationally at 57. The Employment Deprivation Domain (56) has 

the second highest followed by the Income Deprivation Domain (55) and the Health and 

Disability Deprivation Domain (55). The domain with the least number of LSOAs falling within 

the worst 10% nationally is the Housing and Services Deprivation Domain. 

 
7 Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government. The English Indices of Deprivation 2019 - 
Statistical Release. The English Indices of Deprivation 2019 (publishing.service.gov.uk) 

Page 52

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/835115/IoD2019_Statistical_Release.pdf


33 

 
  

Table 5: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) by domain for Indices of 
Deprivation 2015 and 2019 and deprivation fifth, in Nottingham City 

  2019 2015 

  

LSOAs in 10% 

most deprived 

nationally 

LSOAs in 20% 

most deprived 

nationally 

LSOAs in 10% 

most deprived 

nationally 

LSOAs in 20% 

most deprived 

nationally 

Deprivation Domains Count Count Count Count 

Index of Multiple Deprivation 56 104 61 110 

Income 55 98 54 96 

Affecting Children 69 110 68 108 

Affecting Older People 51 99 48 95 

Employment 56 94 54 92 

Education, Skills & Training 57 100 62 102 

Health & Disability 55 115 63 119 

Crime 28 69 56 92 

Housing & Services 10 24 16 42 

Living Environment 20 51 33 57 

Source: The Indices of Deprivation, 2019 Compendium of results for Nottingham City October 2019 

 

2.7 Births 

 

The number of births to mothers living in Nottingham City has decreased in recent years 

from a high in 2010, as shown in Figure 8 below. There were fewer live births in 2020 

(3,503) than in 2019 (3,781), a decrease of 7.4%. This is the lowest number since 2002, 

where there were 3,324 live births. 

 
Figure 8: Live births in Nottingham City, 1977 to 2020  

 
 

In 2020, 41.8% of births were to mothers born outside of the UK, a slight increase on 2019 

(39.5%). This is higher than the average for Nottinghamshire (15.3%), East Midlands 

(24.9%) and England (30.2%) (Office for National Statistics – Parents' country of birth).  

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

Source: Office of National Statistics VS Tables

Page 53



34 

 
  

The General Fertility Rate is a measure of current fertility levels. It is the number of live births 

in a year per 1,000 women aged 15 to 44 years. In Nottingham City, the General Fertility 

Rate has fallen over the last seven years as shown in Figure 9. In 2020, the General Fertility 

Rate for Nottingham City was 42.3, a decrease from 46.3 the previous year. This is lower 

than Nottinghamshire (53.6), East Midlands (53.1) and the average for England (55.3).  

 

Figure 9: General Fertility Rate by city council, county council, region and England, 
2013 to 2020 

 
Source: Nomis  

 

2.8 Life expectancy 

 

Life expectancy is a statistical measure of the average number of years a baby born in an 

area is expected to live based on the year of their birth, current age and other demographic 

factors including their sex (Office for National Statistics, 2017a). It is one of the most widely 

used generic measures of health inequalities. In England, the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic led to a greater number of deaths in 2020 than normal. This resulted in little 

change in life expectancy in females but had a slightly greater impact for males, reflecting 

the larger increase in male mortality rates in 2020.8 

 

Overall, residents of Nottingham City have a significantly shorter life expectancy at birth and 

at 65 years when compared to the average population of England, as shown in Table 6. In 

Nottingham City, the life expectancy at birth for females was 81.0 years in 2018 to 2020, with 

little change from 81.1 years in 2015 to 2017 (non-overlapping years). The life expectancy at 

birth for males was 76.6 years, a reduction from 77.0 years in 2015 to 2017. In Nottingham 

City life expectancy at 65 for females was 19.9 years in 2018 to 2020, an increase from 19.7 

years from 2015 to 2017. For males, life expectancy at 65 was 16.8 years in 2018 to 2020, a 

reduction from 17.1 years in 2015 to 2017. 

 

 
8 Office for National Statistics: National life tables – life expectancy in the UK: 2018 to 2020 National 
life tables – life expectancy in the UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

G
en

er
al

 F
er

ti
lit

y 
R

at
e

Year

Nottingham Nottinghamshire England East Midlands

Page 54

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lifeexpectancies/bulletins/nationallifetablesunitedkingdom/2018to2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lifeexpectancies/bulletins/nationallifetablesunitedkingdom/2018to2020


35 

 
  

Table 6: Life expectancy for females and males by city council, county council, region 
and England, 2018 to 2020 

Life expectancy 2018 to 2020 

(years) Nottingham  Nottinghamshire  East Midlands  England  

Female at birth 81.0 82.6 82.7 83.1 

Male at birth 76.6 79.6 79.2 79.4 

Female at 65  19.9 20.6 20.8 21.1 

Male at 65 16.8 18.5 18.5 18.7 

Source: Office of National Statistics, Dataset for Life expectancy estimates, all ages, UK 

 

Healthy life expectancy shows the years a person can expect to live in good health (rather 

than with a disability or in poor health). Overall, the healthy life expectancy is significantly 

worse in Nottingham City compared to the average for England as shown in Table 7. 

 
Table 7: Healthy life expectancy for females and males by city council, county council, 
region and England, 2017 to 2019 

Healthy life 2017 to 2019 

 Expectancy (years) Nottingham  Nottinghamshire  East Midlands England  

Female at birth 55.6 61.6 61.9 63.5 

Male at birth 56.4 63.4 62.2 63.2 

Female at 65  6.2 10.9 10.6 11.1 

Male at 65 7.8 10.5 10.3 10.6 

Source: Office of National Statistics, Dataset for Health state life expectancy, all ages, UK 

 

2.9 Deaths  

 

In England, there were 569,700 deaths in 2020, an increase of 14.8% from 496,370 in 2019. 

Of these deaths 280,958 (49.3%) were female and 288,742 (50.7%) were male. The overall 

leading cause of death was due to COVID-19 with 69,299 (12.2%) recorded deaths. The top 

four leading causes of death for females and males remain the same in 2020 as for 2019, 

when deaths due to COVID-19 are excluded, as shown in Figure 10 below.  

 

Figure 10: Five leading causes of death by gender in England, 2020 

Female Male  

Dementia and Alzheimer disease (15.4%) COVID-19 (13.3%) 

COVID-19 (11.0%) Ischaemic heart disease (11.6%) 

Ischaemic heart disease (6.6%) Dementia and Alzheimer disease (7.9%) 

Cerebrovascular disease (5.5%) Lung cancer (5.0%) 

Chronic lower respiratory diseases (4.6%) Chronic lower respiratory diseases (4.7%) 

Source: Nomis – Mortality statistics 

 

In Nottingham City, there were 2,729 deaths in 2020, an increase of 13.9% from 2,397 in 

2019. Of these deaths 1,279 (46.9%) were female and 1,450 (53.1%) were male. This 

increase was linked to the ongoing pandemic, with 408 deaths due to COVID-19. This was 

Page 55



36 

 
  

15.0% of all deaths and was the main cause of death in Nottingham City for both females 

and males, as shown in Figure 11 below. 

 

Figure 11: Five leading causes of death by gender in Nottingham City, 2020 

Female Male 

COVID-19 (14.1%) COVID-19 (15.7%) 

Dementia & Alzheimer disease (12.8%) Ischaemic heart disease (14.1%) 

Ischaemic heart disease (7.9%) Dementia & Alzheimer disease (6.1%) 

Cerebrovascular disease (5.7%) Lung cancer (5.8%) 

Chronic lower respiratory diseases (5.4%) Chronic lower respiratory diseases (5.6%) 

Source: Nomis – Mortality statistics 

 

Between 2013 to 2019, mortality rates have remained fairly constant, with Nottingham City 

having a higher mortality rate in comparison to Nottinghamshire, East Midlands and the 

average for England. Similarly, in 2020, the age-standardised mortality rate per 100,000 

people was higher in Nottingham City (1,279.9) than Nottinghamshire (1,072.2), East 

Midlands (1,080.5) and England (1,042.7). The age-standardised mortality rates were higher 

than previous years due to the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. In Nottingham 

City, the age-standardised mortality rate is higher for males (1,576.9 deaths per 100,000 

males) than for females (1,041.6 deaths per 100,000 females), which is the same as 

England. 

 

2.10 People with disabilities 

 

The Equality Act 2010 defines a disability as: “A physical or mental impairment that has a 

substantial (more than minor or trivial) and long-term (12 months or more) negative effect on 

your ability to do normal activities”.  

 

According to the 2011 Census, 55,382 residents of Nottingham City have a long term health 

problem or disability, which is 18.1% of the total population. Of these, 27,699 (9.1%) found 

their day-to-day activities limited a lot and 27,683 (9.1%) found their day-to-day activities 

limited a little, as shown in the table below. 

 

Table 8: Count and percentage of the population with a disability by city council, 
county council, region and England, 2011 

  
Population 

count 

Daily 

activities 

limited a 

lot count 

Percent 

Daily 

activities 

limited a 

little count 

Percent 
Total Limit 

count 
Percent 

Nottingham 305,680 27,699 9.1% 27,683 9.1% 55,382 18.1% 

Nottinghamshire 785,802 76,216 9.7% 83,456 10.6% 159,672 20.3% 

Midlands 4,533,222 393,242 8.7% 451,055 9.9% 844,297 18.6% 

England 53,012,456 4,405,394 8.3% 4,947,192 9.3% 9,352,586 17.6% 

Source: NOMIS 2011 census table QS303EW 

  

Page 56



37 

 
  

A Disabilities Benefits9 review using The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) benefits 

data (November 2019) showed that: 

 

• 33,003 people in Nottingham City claim a disability benefit to help to pay for their 

care or mobility needs, 9.1% of the population. This is higher than the regional rate 

(8.5%) and national rate (8.1%). 

• Nottingham City’s younger than average population reduces its claimant rate. If the 

rates are controlled for these differences, it increases to 10.5%. 

• Claimant rates tend to increase with age with 29.0% of over 65s in Nottingham City 

claiming a disability related benefit. 

• Claimant numbers and claimant rates have steadily increased since the introduction 

of Personal Independence Payments in February 2013. 

 

Risk of sight loss is heavily influenced by health inequalities, including ethnicity, deprivation 

and age. Nottingham City has higher levels of people aged 65 and over who are registered 

blind or partially sighted as shown in Table 9. It also has slightly higher than average levels 

of preventable sight loss due to diabetic eye disease, but fairly low levels due to glaucoma 

and age related macular degeneration. This may be due to Nottingham City’s young age 

structure. 

 

Table 9: Vision impairment and preventable sight loss crude rate per 100,000 
population by city council, county council, region and England, 2019 to 2020 

 
Source: Public Health Outcomes Framework 
 

A learning disability is a reduced intellectual ability and difficulty with everyday activities, 

which starts in childhood. The total number of adults in Nottingham City with a learning 

disability can be estimated based on the research that 2% of the overall population will have 

a learning disability (based on Emerson and Hatton 2004). Based on 2020 population 

estimates this gives 6,742 adults likely to be affected in Nottingham City.  

 

2.11 Households 

 

The number of households in Nottingham City was 126,131 at the 2011 Census, of which: 

 

• 15.8% were made up solely of people aged 65 years or over, of which 10.8% were 

one person households, 

• 3.8% were households of full-time students, 

• 27.4% were households with dependent children of which 9.5% were lone parents 

with dependent children, 

 
9 Disability Benefits (June 2020). Policy and Research Team, Development Department, Nottingham 
City Council 

Measure Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England
People aged 65-74 registered blind or partially sighted 685.4 459.8 437.0 535.7

People aged 75+ registered blind or partially sighted 3546.1 3271.6 2798.9 3428.9
Preventable sight loss - age related macular degeneration 95.4 101.0 98.7 105.4
Preventable sight loss - glaucoma disease 8.2 9.8 10.2 12.9
Preventable sight loss - diabetic eye disease 4.9 2.8 2.9 2.9

Page 57



38 

 
  

• 13.7% of households were couples with no children, 

• 6.1% were other households. These households are likely to contain groups of 

unrelated people. 

 

In 2016, there were 135,399 dwellings in Nottingham City. When broken down by tenure, 

42% were owner occupied, 32% were privately rented and 26% were social rented housing. 

This showed a shift towards the private, and more specifically, private rented sector, over the 

past 15 years since the 2001 Census, as shown in Figure 12 below. 

 

Figure 12: Nottingham City tenure share change 2001 to 2016  

 
Source: Census, 2011 and BRE, 2016 

 

2.12 Car ownership 

 

Average car ownership levels are low in Nottingham City as show in Table 10. Results from 

the Census 2011 show that 56.3% of all households had at least one car in 2011 compared 

with 74.2% in England. Some groups have much lower rates – particularly pensioners living 

alone (25.7%) and lone parent households with dependent children (41%). 

 

Table 10: Number of households, and percentage of households with cars or vans by 
city council, county council, region and England, 2011 

  Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 

Number of households 96,284 419,187 2,356,539 25,696,833 

No cars or vans  43.7% 20.9% 22.1% 25.8% 

1 car or van 40.1% 43.4% 42.5% 42.2% 

2 cars or vans 13.3% 28.1% 27.4% 24.7% 

3 cars or vans  2.2% 5.8% 6.0% 5.5% 

4 or more cars or vans 0.6% 1.9% 2.0% 1.9% 

Source: Nomis – Census, 2011 

 

Within Nottingham City there are excellent bus networks, as well as the Nottingham  

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

1991 (Census) 2001 (Census) 2011 (Census) 2016 (BRE)

social housing

private rented sector

owner occupier

Page 58



39 

 
  

Express Transit (NET) tram, which has won recognition for its successful management of 

travel demand, and for reversing national trends by increasing public transport use.10 The 

latest data provided by the Department for Transport 11 shows that of the households in 

Nottingham City: 

 

• 69.0% are within 30 minutes travel time of a hospital by public transport and 99.0% 

are within 45 minutes travel time (2019).  

• 93.2% are within 15 minutes travel time of a GP surgery by public transport and 

86.6% by walking (2019).  

• 100% are within 15 minutes travel time of a pharmacy by cycle or car (2015). 

 

2.13 Economic activity 

 

Unemployment is both a cause and a result of ill health. The effects of unemployment on 

health can be linked to poverty and low income amongst the unemployed. There are also 

significant psychological consequences from being out of work, especially for the long-term 

unemployed. There is also the effect that people with poorer health are more likely to be 

unemployed; this is particularly true for people with long-term disabilities. 

 

The latest employment rate (2020) for the Nottingham City is 70.9%12, compared with 75.7% 

for England. This figure is deflated by the presence of so many university students, and both 

figures may have been impacted by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.13 Data on the 

employment rates for older people show Nottingham City has an employment rate for the 50 

to 64 year population of 72%. In this age-group, as with all age groups, the male rate is 

higher than the female rate: 74.5% for males and 69.5% for females. This compares to 

74.9% for males and 67.1% for females of all working age people. 

 

Nottingham City has a relatively low economic activity rate of 75.8% of the working age 

population compared to 79.5% nationally. Again, this can be partially explained by the 

number of students, who comprise 47.2% of the economically inactive (those aged 16 to 64 

years who are not working and not seeking nor available to work). 20.5% of the economically 

inactive (over 11,000 people) are long term sick and 16% (8,600 people) are looking after 

the family / home. 

 

In November 2020, 22.0% of the working age population (51,005 people) in Nottingham City, 

were claiming one or more Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) benefits.14 This is 

higher than the national figure of 17.9%. 23,654 people claimed an ‘out of work benefit’ 

which had conditions requiring the claimant to undertake activities related to a return to work 

and 27,351 people claimed another benefit, mostly related to long term sickness, disability or 

 
10 Greater Nottingham Aligned Core Strategies Part 1 Local Plan, September 2014 
11 Department of Transport. Journey time statistics: data tables (JTS) Journey time statistics: data 
tables (JTS) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
12 Proportion of people aged 16-64 who are in employment, Annual Population Survey, January 2020 
– December 2020, ONS.  
13 Unofficial figures estimated by Nottingham City Council using Annual Population Survey data. 
14 Figures adjusted by Nottingham City Council – see the monthly Benefits Bulletin. 

Page 59

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/journey-time-statistics-data-tables-jts
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/journey-time-statistics-data-tables-jts
http://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/f/86202/Library/Social-Issues/Economic-Deprivation/Benefits-Bulletin/


40 

 
  

caring responsibilities. These numbers equate to 10.2% and 11.8% of the working age 

population respectively, compared to 8.1% and 9.8% nationally. 

 

Nottingham City has seen an increase in the total number of benefit claimants over the past 

year, but at a slower rate than regional and national increases. Both locally and nationally, 

the overall increase has been driven by increases in people claiming ‘out of work’ benefits, 

largely as a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic since February 2020.  

 

At February 2021, 8% of the population (18,433 people) were claiming some form of 

unemployment related benefits, an increase of more than 7,500 claimants in the last year. 

This compares to 6.6% nationally. 

 

Based upon the 2011 Census, about 53% of local jobs were taken by people living outside 

of Nottingham City while about 31% of residents were in employment work outside the City.  

The median gross annual earnings for residents in full-time employment in 2020 was about 

£25,400, which was lower than the England average at £31,80015. 20% of residents who 

work full time earned below £19,200 and a further 10% earned less than £20,700.  

 

2.14 Sexual orientation 

 

There is currently no widely accepted robust data on the size of the lesbian, gay, bisexual 

and transgender (LGBT) population. To address this, the Census 2021 asked the voluntary 

questions about sexual orientation and gender identity for people aged 16 and over for the 

first time. Currently, sexual orientation estimates are based on data from the Annual 

Population Survey (APS).  

 

In 2019, 93.7% of people in the UK aged 16 and over identified as heterosexual/straight 

compared to 94.6% in 2018. An estimated 2.7% of the population (over 1.43 million people) 

identified as lesbian, gay or bisexual (LGB) in 2019, a statistically significant increase from 

2.2% in 2018. This continues the trend seen over recent years. In 2019, men (2.9%) were 

more likely to identify as lesbian, gay and bisexual than women (2.5%). Younger people 

(aged 16 to 24 years) were most likely to identify as lesbian, gay and bisexual (6.6%). The 

estimated proportion of people who identified as lesbian, gay or bisexual also increased in 

England (2.7%, up from 2.3%) and East Midlands (2.7%, up from 2.2%).16 

 

When estimating sexual orientation in Nottingham City, pooled data from the Annual 

Population Survey between 2016 to 2018 showed that 3.6% of the population identified 

themselves as lesbian, gay or bisexual as shown in Table 11. However, this is most likely to 

be an underestimate. 

  

 
15 Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings 2020, ONS. 
16 Office for National Statistics. Sexual orientation, UK: 2012 to 2019 dataset 

Page 60



41 

 
  

Table 11: Sexual orientation in Nottingham City, 2016 to 2018    

Measure Nottingham (percentage) 
Heterosexual or straight 94.5% 
Gay or lesbian 2.3% 
Bisexual 1.3% 
Other 0.4% 
Don't know or refuse 1.4% 

Source: Office for National Statistics - Subnational sexual orientation estimates, 2016 to 2018 

 

At present, there is no official count of the transgender population. Gender Identity Research 

and Education Society estimates that approximately 1% of the population experience some 

degree of gender nonconformity.  

 

2.15 Carers 

 

The Care Act 2014 defines a carer as anyone who provides any amount of unpaid care. 

Carers are Nottingham City’s largest form of ‘early intervention’, supporting the most 

vulnerable citizens and preventing the people they care for from requiring greater degrees of 

health and social care support.  

 

The 2011 Census suggests that there are approximately 27,000 people who provide unpaid 

care in Nottingham City. This is likely to be a significant under-estimation as carers often 

don’t identify themselves as such. Overall, there are slightly fewer carers in Nottingham City 

(8.8%) compared to East Midlands (10.8%) and England (10.2%). However, more adults in 

Nottingham aged 35 and older are providing more hours of care per week than nationally: 

• 3.52% of the Nottingham population aged 35 to 49 years provide 50 or more hours of 

care compared to 2.68% nationally. 

• 4.98% of the Nottingham population aged 50 to 64 years provide 50 or more hours of 

care compared to 3.66% nationally. 

• 5.90% of the Nottingham population aged 65 years and over provide 50 or more 

hours of care compared to 5.29% nationally. 

 

It is clear from the 2011 Census that the general health of carers deteriorates incrementally 

with the increasing hours of care provided. Around 5% of carers reported their own health as 

‘not good’ and this rose to almost 16% among those caring for more than 50 hours a week. 

 

The proportion of women to men carers is approximately the same for Nottingham City, East 

Midlands and England (1.3 female carers per male carer). Both sexes provide more care per 

week in Nottingham City than the national average figures. 

 

The highest number of carers are in the 35 and over age groups, as shown in Figure 13. 

17% of Nottingham City’s carers are aged 65 and over, many of whom provide high levels of 

care. 45% of carers aged 65 years and older provide 50 hours or more per week. 

Approximately 3,300 young people aged under 25 years old look after another person in 

Nottingham City. 2.5% of carers are aged under 16 years old and a further 10% are aged 16 

to 24 years. 20% of carers aged under 16 years provide over 20 hours of care per week. 

Page 61



42 

 
  

Figure 13: Percentage of carers in Nottingham City by age group 

 
Source: Census 2011 

 

Many young carers are not currently being identified or assessed for support and remain 

hidden from official sight for a number of reasons. These can include family loyalty, stigma, 

bullying, young carers’ own lack of awareness of their entitlements, and reluctance to seek 

formal help. Young carers can experience difficulties in school, feelings of loneliness and 

isolation, and report feeling stigmatised by teachers and by their peers. 

 

Irrespective of background, gender and age it is usually the condition of the cared-for person 

that has the most impact on the health and wellbeing of the carer. Conditions such as mental 

health problems, dementia, learning disabilities, physical and sensory impairments and 

substance misuse contribute to increased use of health and social services, and increased 

social isolation for both the carer and the cared for citizen. Such circumstances also affect 

the quality of care given due to the increased burden they place on the carer. High levels of 

stress and low levels of perceived wellbeing are common amongst carers. The greatest 

opportunities to improve carers’ quality of life are through improving early identification, 

assessment and support, with recognition of the huge value that carers provide to health and 

social care. Further to this all professionals should attempt to recognise those with caring 

responsibilities and signpost them to appropriate support. 

 

2.16 Traveller and gypsy communities 

 

For the first time, the 2011 Census included an ethnic category to collect data on Gypsy, 

Traveller and Irish Traveller communities. In total, 54,895 people in England identified 

themselves as members of these groups, this is most likely an underestimation of the true 

number. In Nottingham City, the Gypsy and Traveller community makes up around 0.11% of 

its population (326 residents), which is higher than Nottinghamshire (0.06%), East Midlands 

(0.08%) and the average for England (0.10%).  

 

Many Gypsies and Travellers now live in settled accommodation and do not travel, or do not 

travel all the time, but nonetheless consider travelling to be part of their identity. The 2011 

Census identified 112 Gypsy and Traveller households, which accounts for 0.09% of all 

Age 0 to 15

Age 16 to 24

Age 25 to 34

Age 35 to 49

Age 50 to 64

Age 65 and over

Page 62



43 

 
  

households in Nottingham City. Of these 29 (25.9%) are owned, 36 (32.1%) are social 

rented and 47 (42.0%) are privately rented. 

 

The count of Gypsy and Traveller caravans is carried out by local authorities on traveller 

sites twice a year, in January and July, to reflect winter residence and summer travelling 

trends and seasonal movement. This provides a snapshot of the number of caravans on the 

day of the count but does not cover the number of occupants residing in these caravans or 

caravan sites. A count of Travelling Showpeople caravans is carried out in January only. 

Travelling Showpeople are distinct from Gypsies and Travellers in that they are not a distinct 

ethnicity, rather they follow a particular economic occupation. At the time of the January 

2020 count, the total number of traveller caravans in Nottingham was 21, all of which were 

on privately funded sites with permanent planning permission. This is less than the 32 

reported in January 2019 but higher than the 17 reported in July 2019. However, this is likely 

to be an underestimate. Since 2016 the total number of traveller caravans has fluctuated 

each year in both the winter and summer counts. In 2020, there were no Travelling 

Showpeople caravans counted in January 2020. This count has also fluctuated each year 

since 2015, with the highest count being 18 in 2015 and in 2019.17 

 

2.17 Offenders 

 

Nottingham City has one prison - HMP Nottingham, which is a local men’s prison serving the 

courts of Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire. As a resettlement prison, Nottingham has a 

complex population. The most recent prison inspection report18 showed that at the time of 

inspection (January 2020) there were 798 prisoners. Nearly half the population was 

unsentenced, a fifth of the population was assessed as presenting a high or very high risk of 

harm to others. Few prisoners remained at the prison for long with the majority staying for 

three months or less. The age range of the prison population was 18 to 83 years. The most 

popular age group was 30 to 39 years (31.3%) and 21 to 29 years (29.8%). 11.8% of 

prisoners were under the age of 21 years. The majority of prisoners were British (85.2%), 

with 14.4% foreign nationals and 0.4% not stated. The majority of prisoners were White 

(73.4%) with the highest proportion being White British (63.8%). The next highest ethnic 

group were Black (10.7%), with the highest proportion being Caribbean (6.6%). On average, 

155 prisoners were released each month, the majority (82%) to the local area. 

 

A young offender is someone aged 10 to 17 years who has committed a criminal offence. 

The number of first time offenders has fallen locally, regionally and nationally since at least 

2013 to 2014, as shown in Figure 14. In Nottingham City, the number of arrests of children 

have decreased by different rates for each ethnic group except for the mixed group, which 

overall has stayed the same. Proportionally, the White group and Asian group have 

decreased, while the Black group has largely stayed the same. The Mixed group has more 

than doubled. 

 
17 Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (June 2020): Traveller caravan count: 
January 2020 Traveller caravan count: January 2020 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
18 Report on an unannounced inspection of HMP Nottingham by HM Chief Inspector of Prisons 6–17 
January 2020 Report on an unannounced inspection of HMP Nottingham by HM Chief Inspector of 
Prisons (justiceinspectorates.gov.uk) 

Page 63

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/traveller-caravan-count-january-2020
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprisons/wp-content/uploads/sites/4/2020/03/Nottingham-web-2020.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprisons/wp-content/uploads/sites/4/2020/03/Nottingham-web-2020.pdf


44 

 
  

Figure 14: Number of children cautioned or sentenced by ethnicity in Nottingham City, 
by financial year 

 
Source: Youth Justice Board – Children cautioned or sentenced data, geographical data tool 

 
When considering the rate of children cautioned or sentenced by the Youth Offending Team, 

Nottingham City has a higher rate compared to Nottinghamshire, East Midlands and 

England, as shown in Table 12. It also has a higher rate for the number of proven offences 

(defined as an offence which results in a child receiving a caution or sentence), and number 

of cautions and sentences, although this has been reducing since 2013 to 2014. This shows 

that some children commit multiple offences and receive more than one sentence or caution. 

 
Table 12: Number and rate (per 10,000 population aged 10 to 17 years) of youth 
offenders, proven offences and cautions and sentences by city council, county 
council, region and England, 2019 to 2020 

 
Source: Youth Justice Board / Ministry of Justice - Youth justice annual statistics for 2019 to 2020 
 

Around a fifth of youth offenders were female in Nottingham City (19.2%) compared to males 

(80.4%) in 2019 to 2020. Violence against a person was the most committed offence with 

204 offences; eight of which scored at the highest level of seriousness. This was followed by 

theft and handling stolen goods and drugs, both with 67 offences. 

 

2.18 Homeless and rough sleepers 

 

The Homelessness Reduction Act (April 2018) introduced new prevention and relief duties 

that requires local authorities to take reasonable steps to try to prevent or relieve all eligible 

household’s homelessness by helping them to secure accommodation for at least 6 months.  

 

In Nottingham City, the number of households assessed under the statutory duties increased 

by 17 (0.6%) in 2020 to 2021, compared to a 7.2% decrease nationally. Of those assessed 

0

100

200

300

400

500

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

N
u

m
b

er

Year

Asian Black Mixed White

Measure Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England
Mid year population estimate (2019) 28291 73622 437887 5185725
Number of children (10 to 17 years) cautioned or sentenced 222 198 1459 18111

Rate per 10,000 78 27 33 35
Number of proven offences 546 517 3455 46701

Rate per 10,000 193 70 79 90
Number of cautions or sentences 286 234 1971 25972
Rate per 10,000 101 32 45 50

Page 64



45 

 
  

in Nottingham City, 97.2% of households were owed a duty: 32.4% were threatened with 

homelessness and a prevention duty was owed and 64.8% were homeless and a relief duty 

was owed. Nottingham City owed a higher proportion of relief duties compared to prevention 

duties in 2019 to 2020, which increased further in 2020 to 2021, as shown in Table 13. 

 

Table 13: Number of households assessed, and type of duty owed by city council, 
region and England, 2019 to 2020 and 2020 to 2021 

Source: Statutory homelessness -local authority tables. Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government, April 2019 to March 2020 and April 2020 to March 2021 
 

Many households require additional support to acquire and sustain accommodation and 

prevent homelessness. The top five support needs of household owed either duty was: 

 

• History of mental health problems (558, 20.2%) 

• Access to education, employment or training (371,13.4%) 

• Physical ill health and disability (330, 11.9%) 

• At risk of / has experienced domestic abuse (325, 11.7%) 

• Offending history (320, 11.6%) 

 

In 2020 to 2021, the most common age group of lead applicants in households owed a 

prevention or relief duty was 25 and 34 years old, making up 33.9% of the total.  

 

People sleeping rough are defined as those sleeping or about to bed down in open air 

locations and other places including tents and makeshift shelters. In 2020, Nottingham City 

took part in the annual autumn snapshot of rough sleeping. As this coincided with a national 

lockdown throughout November and the tier restrictions in October, this is likely to have 

impacted people’s risk of rough sleeping. There were 31 people estimated to be sleeping 

rough on a single night in autumn 2020 in Nottingham City. This is up by one person or 3.3% 

from the previous year and down 27.9% from the peak in 2017. Of the estimated 31 

individuals sleeping rough, one was female and 30 were male. Most rough sleepers were 

aged over 26 years old (80.6%).19 

 
 

  

 
19 Rough sleeping snapshot in England: autumn 2020 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Count % Count % Count % Count %

Total of households assessed 2,847 2,830 282,240 304,290

Total households owed a duty 2,768 97.2% 2,732 96.5% 268,560 95.2% 288,470 94.8%

Prevention duty owed 923 32.4% 1,169 41.3% 119,400 42.3% 148,670 48.9%

Relief duty owed 1,845 64.8% 1,563 55.2% 149,160 52.8% 139,800 45.9%

No duty owed 79 2.8% 98 3.5% 13,670 4.8% 15,820 5.2%

2020 to 2021 2019 to 20202020 to 2021 2019 to 2020

Nottingham City England

Page 65

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/rough-sleeping-snapshot-in-england-autumn-2020


46 

 
  

3 General health needs of Nottingham City 
 

3.1 Nottingham City Council Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

 
The aim of a Joint Strategic Needs Assessments is to improve the health and wellbeing of 

the local community and reduce inequalities for all ages. It is used to help to determine what 

actions local authorities, the NHS and other partners need to take to meet health and social 

care needs and to address the wider determinants that impact on health and wellbeing.  

This pharmaceutical needs assessment reflects the suite of documents as published in 

December 2021. Additional updated information was used where available, including: 

 

• Nottingham & Nottinghamshire Integrated Care System Diabetes pack (January 

2020), which uses a population health management approach. 

• The Nottingham Citizens' Survey, which is undertaken on an annual basis to gather 

citizens' perceptions on a variety of subjects. Further details can be found at 

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/research-areas/citizens-survey/ 

• Public health profiles, which are published by Office for Health Improvement and 

Disparities (OHID). 

• Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) - practice recorded disease prevalence. 

 

3.1.1 Cancer 
 
Cancer is the leading cause of death in the UK and one of the biggest health challenges.  

There are around 375,000 new cancer cases every year. Incidence rates for all cancers 

combined are highest in people aged 85 to 89, with more than a third (36%) of all cancer 

cases diagnosed in people aged 75 and over. Overall, the most common cancers in the UK 

are breast (15%), prostate (14%), lung (13%) and bowel (11%), which together account for 

over half (53%) of all new cancer cases. Cancer incidence and deaths are more common in 

people living in the most deprived areas. (Cancer Research UK, 2016 to 2018) 

 

The standardised incidence ratio (SIR) is used to determine whether the number of observed 

cancer cases is higher or lower than expected in an area, given its population and age 

distribution. In Nottingham City, the cancer incidence rate of lung, colorectal (bowel) and all 

cancers are significantly worse than the average for England, as shown in the figure below 

 
Figure 15: Incidence of all cancers, breast, colorectal, lung and prostate cancer, by 
standardised incidence ratio (SIR) for Nottingham City, 2014 to 2018 

 
Source: English cancer registration data from the National Cancer Registration and Analysis Services' 
Cancer Analysis System (AV2018 CASREF01), National Statistical Postcode Lookup (May 2020) 

  

Page 66

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/Document-Library/Document-Library/aalZnBYT
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/research-areas/citizens-survey/


47 

 
  

The incidence and survival of different cancers varies by ethnicity. Whilst some of this risk 

difference is due to genetic factors, e.g. incidence of prostate cancer in Black males, it is 

also influenced by cultural factors, which are associated with exposure to lifestyle factors 

and access to health services including screening. People with serious mental illness are 

also at greater risk of developing cancer than the general population due to a range of 

factors, also including lifestyle factors and screening uptake.  

 

Smoking is the single largest preventable risk factor for cancer, followed by being overweight 

and obesity. Approximately 40% of cancers are preventable through healthy lifestyles and 

behavioural. However, Nottingham City’s population has high rates of these risk factors.  

 

Public awareness of the signs and symptoms of cancer and uptake of cancer screening 

opportunities are key factors in increasing the early detection and prevention of cancers, yet 

late presentation is high amongst those living in areas of deprivation and in certain ethnic 

minority communities. In 2020, the overall uptake of the cancer screening programmes in 

Nottingham City was significantly poorer than the average for England, except for screening 

for cervical cancer (50 to 64 years), which was similar. (Public health profiles, OHID). 

 

Whilst incidence rates for all cancers combined are projected to rise by 2% to 742 cases per 

100,000 people between 2014 to 2035, mortality rates are projected to fall by 15% to 280 

deaths per 100,000 people in the UK. This reflects an aging population, increased diagnosis 

and improvements in survival. Liver cancer has shown the fastest increase in mortality over 

the past decade and is projected to rise to 58% by 2035. (Cancer Research UK, 2014). 

 

Mortality from cancer is high with more than 166,500 cancer deaths in the UK every year. 

Though there are more than 200 types of cancer, lung (21%), bowel (10%), breast (7%) and 

prostate (7%) – together account for almost half of all cancer deaths in 2018. Mortality rates 

for all cancers combined are highest in people aged 90 and over, with more than half (54%) 

of all cancer deaths in the 75 and over age group. (Cancer Research UK, 2016 to 2018) 

 

Nottingham City has a significantly worse premature mortality rate for all cancers, bowel 

cancer and for all preventable cancers compared to the average for England, as shown in 

the Table 14. 

 

Table 14: Premature mortality rates (persons aged less than 75 years per 100,000 
population) for all, all preventable, bowel and breast cancer by city council, county 
council, region and England, 2017 to 2019 

Premature mortality rate Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 

All cancer 157.4 132.5 131.3 129.2 

All preventable cancer 76.4 54.9 55.2 54.1 

Bowel cancer 14.9 13.8 12.8 11.8 

Breast cancer 23.3 23.7 20.7 20.3 

Source: Public Health Profiles - Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (ONS source data) 

 

  

Page 67



48 

 
  

3.1.2 Cardiovascular disease 

 

Cardiovascular disease is a general term for conditions affecting the heart or blood vessels 

and includes coronary heart disease, stroke and peripheral arterial disease. These 

conditions are frequently brought about by the development of atheroma and thrombosis 

(blockages in the arteries). It has been identified by the NHS Long Term Plan as the single 

biggest condition where lives can be saved by the NHS over the next 10 years.  

 

Modifiable risk factors account for 86% of the risk of cardiovascular disease and include:  

 

• Lifestyle factors: smoking, lack of physical activity, poor diet and nutrition, and higher 

levels of alcohol consumption, 

• Physiological/metabolic risk factors: high blood pressure (hypertension); high blood 

sugar (diabetes); high blood fats (hyperlipidaemia), 

• Poor access to quality primary care, in particular to cholesterol and blood pressure-

lowering treatments and smoking cessation services, and 

• Wider determinants: poverty, poor housing and education.  

 

Hypertension is the biggest risk factor for cardiovascular disease and is one of the top five risk 

factors for all premature death and disability in England. At least half of all heart attacks and 

strokes are caused by high blood pressure. It increases the risk of chronic kidney disease, 

heart failure and vascular dementia. It is estimated that in England, hypertension affects more 

than one in four adults. Residents of the most deprived areas are 30% more likely to have 

high blood pressure compared to those in the least deprived areas. Hypertension generally 

has no symptoms, but early diagnosis and effective management can prevent progression to 

cardiovascular disease.20 Research has shown that a 10 mm Hg reduction in systolic blood 

pressure reduces the risk of major cardiovascular disease events by 20%, coronary heart 

disease by 17%, stroke by 27%, heart failure by 28%, and all-cause mortality by 13%.21  

 

The National Cardiovascular Intelligence Network data estimated the hypertension 

prevalence for those aged 16 years and over for Nottingham City to be 19.7% (52,600 

people) in 2017. This is one of the lowest estimated hypertension prevalence rates in 

England and is mainly due to the City’s younger population. In comparison, the Quality and 

Outcome Framework hypertension prevalence was estimated to be 10.5 % (38,784) in 2016 

to 2017. This suggests that around a quarter of people aged 16 years and over with 

hypertension are undiagnosed in Nottingham City. As shown in Table 15, the Quality and 

Outcome Framework recorded prevalence for hypertension for Nottingham City was 10.4% 

(40,305 people) in 2020 to 2021.  

 

The GP practice recorded prevalence rate for stroke and coronary heart disease in 

Nottingham City is also lower than the national average, as shown in the Table 15. 

 
20 Public Heath England (January 2017): Guidance Health matters: combating high blood pressure 
Health matters: combating high blood pressure - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
21 Ettehad D et al.; Blood pressure lowering for prevention of cardiovascular disease and death: a 
systematic review and meta-analysis; Lancet; 2016; 387(10022): 957-67 Blood pressure lowering for 
prevention of cardiovascular disease and death: a systematic review and meta-analysis 
(thelancet.com) 

Page 68

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-combating-high-blood-pressure/health-matters-combating-high-blood-pressure
https://www.thelancet.com/pdfs/journals/lancet/PIIS0140-6736(15)01225-8.pdf
https://www.thelancet.com/pdfs/journals/lancet/PIIS0140-6736(15)01225-8.pdf
https://www.thelancet.com/pdfs/journals/lancet/PIIS0140-6736(15)01225-8.pdf


49 

 
  

Table 15: GP practice registered prevalence of coronary heart disease, stroke and 
hypertension by city council, county council, region and England, 2020 to 2021 

Measure  Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 
Coronary Heart Disease 2.3% 3.6% 3.3% 3.0% 
Stroke 1.4% 2.1% 2.0% 1.8% 
Hypertension 10.4% 15.0% 14.9% 13.9% 

Source: Public Health Profiles - Quality and Outcome Framework (QOF), NHS Digital 

There is also an under detection of other important risk factors for cardiovascular disease, 

such as diabetes, and some cardiovascular conditions, such as coronary heart disease, 

heart failure and atrial fibrillation. There is also significant variation in the use of optimal drug 

and other treatments. 

 

Cardiovascular disease is responsible for one in four premature deaths in the UK and 

accounts for the largest gap in healthy life expectancy. Those in the most deprived 10% of 

the population are almost twice as likely to die as a result of cardiovascular disease than 

those in the least deprived 10% of the population.22 People with severe and enduring mental 

health disorders are more at risk of having and dying from cardiovascular disease than the 

general population due to increased cardiovascular risk factors, poorer access to healthcare 

and the effect of antipsychotic medication on their metabolism. National data shows that 

people born in South Asia, the Caribbean or East Africa are more likely to die from 

cardiovascular disease than the general England population (coronary heart disease for 

South Asians, stroke for people of African Caribbean ethnicity). 

 

Whilst the rate of premature cardiovascular mortality is declining in Nottingham City, the 

inequality gap between Nottingham City and England average remains, as shown in Table 

16 below. 

 

Table 16: Premature mortality rate (persons aged less than 75 years per 100,000 
population) for all and all preventable cardiovascular diseases, heart disease and 
stroke, by city council, county council, region and England, 2017 to 2019  

 
Source: Mortality Profiles - Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (ONS source data) 

 

3.1.3 Diabetes 
 
The prevalence of diabetes is predicted to rise over the next decade and a half. It is 

expected to be one of the main diseases contributing to longstanding illness in the elderly. 

Type 2 diabetes develops when the body is unable to produce enough insulin or the body’s 

cells don’t react to insulin. It is estimated that approximately 90% of diabetes is type 2. It is 

 
22 NHS England. Our work. Living well, ageing well and tackling premature mortality: cardiovascular 
disease. https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/clinical-policy/cvd/ 
 
 

Premature mortality rate measure Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England

All cardiovascular diseases 99.8 69.0 72.1 70.4

Heart disease 52.0 36.0 37.7 37.5

Stroke 17.8 11.9 12.1 12.3

Preventable cardiovascular diseases 39.1 26.9 28.5 28.1

Page 69

https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/clinical-policy/cvd/


50 

 
  

usually diagnosed in people over 40; however, as the symptoms often appear gradually, it 

can go unnoticed, and diagnosis can be delayed.  

 

In England in 2020 to 2021, there was an estimated 3.5 million people aged 17 and over 

with diabetes mellitus recorded as part of Quality and Outcomes Framework, a prevalence 

rate of 7.1%. In Nottingham City the prevalence rate was 6.1%, around 19,300 registered 

patients. Both local and national figures are considered to be an underestimate. Finding and 

treating those residents with potentially undiagnosed diabetes is a priority. Undiagnosed 

diabetes increases the risk of serious complications from the disease. 

 

Local analysis of primary care data shows the following risk factors for diabetes in 

Nottingham City, confirming the risk factors known from national and international evidence: 

 

• Obese people (BMI >=30) are four times more likely to be diagnosed with type 2 

diabetes than people with a healthy weight (BMI < 25). 

• People with a family history of diabetes are twice as likely to develop diabetes. 

• People in the least deprived areas are 45% less likely to be diagnosed.  

• People with hypertension are three times more likely to develop the condition.   

• Males are 50% more at risk than females.  

• Increasing age - people aged 65 and over are twice more likely to be diagnosed with 

diabetes than people aged 45 to 64. 

• People from black and minority ethnic groups (BAME) are overall a 40% higher risk 

than white people. The highest risk is with Indian, Pakistani and Bangladeshi groups. 

 

The main modifiable risk factors for type 2 diabetes are obesity, low physical activity levels, 

and poor diet and nutrition. These risk factors are all associated with deprivation. 

Behavioural interventions such as supporting people to maintain a healthy weight, follow 

dietary recommendations and be more active, can significantly reduce disease risk and 

progression.  

 

Improved management of diabetes in primary care can reduce premature morbidity, hospital 

admissions and mortality. Disease complications include cardiovascular disease, stroke, 

diabetic retinopathy, glaucoma, neuropathies (nerve damage), erectile dysfunction, and 

amputations. Nice Guidelines recommend treatment targets for glucose control (HbA1c level 

of 58.0 mmol/mol or less), blood pressure (less than 140/80) and total cholesterol (below 5 

mmol/l) are important for avoiding the development and progression of complications. Local 

analysis has shown that failure to achieve all three treatment targets can lead to a 20% 

higher risk of emergency admissions. Nottingham City has a 32% achievement rate of all 

three targets.  

 

A person’s risk of being admitted to hospital is higher in those with diabetes than those 

without. People with three or more comorbidities / long term conditions, in addition to 

diabetes, are five to six times more likely to be admitted to hospital in an emergency. In 

Nottingham City, around 81% of people with type 2 diabetes have at least one other long 

term condition; 49% have two or more. The most common long term conditions are 

hypertension (58%), depression (23%) and coronary heart disease (17%).  

Page 70



51 

 
  

Type 2 diabetes is a major cause of premature mortality, with around 22,000 people with 

diabetes dying early each year in England. It is often not type 2 diabetes itself that causes 

death, but complications of the disease. Recent research has shown that those with diabetes 

mellitus have an increased risk of dying from COVID-19. 

 

3.1.4 Mental health 
 
Nottingham City’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019 to 2023), sets out its vision:  

 

‘Nottingham aspires to be a city where improving mental health is everyone’s responsibility 

and all citizens have the opportunity to experience good mental health and wellbeing without 

stigma and discrimination’.  

 

Mental health includes emotional, psychological, and social well-being. It affects how people 

think, feel, act, handle stress, relate to others, and make choices. Mental health problems 

are common and affect children, adults and older people. Based on national estimates, over 

110,000 adults aged over 16, and more than 5,000 children aged 5 to 16 in Nottingham are 

living with mental health problems. Those with serious mental illness are experiencing 

inequality in life expectancy, dying on average 15 to 20 years younger than the general 

population. There are a number of population groups that are at higher risk of experiencing 

mental health problems, often as a result of trauma. 23 

 

Table 17: Population groups at higher risk of experiencing mental health problems 

Children Adults  

Children with parents who have mental health or 
substance misuse problems 

People with a history of mental health problems 
or self-harm 

Those who suffer personal abuse and trauma or 
witness parental domestic violence 

Homeless people  
Adults with a history of violence or abuse 

Looked after children A history of being looked after/adopted 

Child carers Travellers, asylum seekers and refugees 

Children and young people excluded from school People with learning difficulties 

Young offenders Offenders and ex-offenders 

Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender 

Black, Asian and minority ethnic groups, 
especially young Asian women 

Black, Asian and minority ethnic groups, 
especially young men of Afro-Caribbean origin 

Families living in socio-economic disadvantage Unemployment 

Teenage parents Isolated older people 

Adverse childhood experiences (ACEs)  Poor physical health 
 
Nottingham City has higher levels than the England average of many of the factors that 

increase the risk of mental health problems throughout life, such as higher rates of 

deprivation, greater ethnic diversity, high levels of unemployment, increased youth offending 

and more looked-after-children. 

 

 
23 Nottingham City’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019 to 2023) 

Page 71



52 

 
  

Mental wellness is shaped not only by genetics and biology, but also by a person’s 

surrounding environmental, social circumstances and life experiences. The Nottingham City 

Citizens’ survey measures mental wellbeing of adults annually, using the Warwick Edinburgh 

Mental Wellbeing Scale. Scores range from 14 to 70, where higher scores suggest better 

mental well-being. In 2019, the score for Nottingham City was 53.2, (a score between 42 and 

60 indicates average mental wellbeing), a slight increase on the last two years. The lowest 

average scores were for people with a disability or long term illness, those otherwise not in 

paid work, and unemployed people. The highest score was for people in full time education. 

 

Mental health problems include common mental disorders such as anxiety and depression, 

and ‘serious mental illnesses’ such as psychosis, schizophrenia or bipolar disorder, which 

are less common. GPs are required to keep a register of patients with these as part of the 

Quality and Outcomes Framework. The recorded prevalence of depression in adults has 

increased each year in Nottingham City and nationally since 2013 to 2014. In 2020 to 2021, 

the percentage of patients aged 18 and over with depression in Nottingham City was 11.2% 

(35,319 patients). This remains lower than the average for England, which was 12.3%. The 

percentage of new reported cases in Nottingham City was 1.6% (4,992 new cases), which 

was higher than the average for England at 1.4%; however, numbers have decreased both 

locally and nationally since the start of the pandemic. In 2020 to 2021, the prevalence of 

‘serious mental illnesses’ was 0.99% in Nottingham City, similar to the previous year and 

higher than average for England at 0.95%. 

 

Poor mental health is strongly linked with poor physical health. People with a long-standing 

mental health problem are twice as likely to smoke, with the highest rates among people with 

psychosis or bipolar disorder. Compared with the general patient population, patients with 

severe mental illnesses are at substantially higher risk of obesity, asthma, diabetes, chronic 

obstructive pulmonary disease and cardiovascular disease. They make more use of 

secondary urgent and emergency care, and experience higher premature mortality rates. 

Between 2018 to 2020, patients with known severe mental illnesses in Nottingham City had 

nearly a 4.4 times higher death rate for ages under 75 than the general public. This is 

comparable to the average for England at 4.5. Rates have been increasing both locally and 

nationally since 2015 to 2017.  
 

Suicide is a significant cause of death in young adults and is often the end point of a 

complex history of risk factors. Between 2018 to 2020, there were 91 suicides in Nottingham 

City giving an age standardised rate of suicide of 11.5 per 100,000 persons aged 10 years 

and over. This was similar to the rates for England (10.4) and East Midlands (9.9).  

 

Loneliness, social isolation and vulnerability have a strong impact on mental health. The 

coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, through its management strategies of lockdown and 

social distancing, will have increased susceptibility to these experiences in many. 

 
3.1.5 Respiratory disease 
 
The most common chronic respiratory diseases are asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary 

disease and lung cancer. Respiratory disease continues to be a major cause of disability and 

premature mortality in the United Kingdom, affecting one in five people. The annual 

Page 72



53 

 
  

economic burden of asthma and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease on the NHS is 

estimated as £3 billion and £1.9 billion respectively. In total, lung conditions (including lung 

cancer) directly cost the NHS £11 billion each year in the United Kingdom. (NHS England) 

 

Smoking is the largest single modifiable risk factor for respiratory disease, causing: 

 

• 38% of all deaths from respiratory disease, and  

• 21% of hospital admissions due to respiratory disease, excluding cancer. (NHS 

Digital, Statistics on Smoking, 2020) 

 

Given the high proportion of these deaths that are due to smoking, a reduction in the 

prevalence of smoking would reduce the incidence of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease 

and lung cancer and extend the life of those with these illnesses. The need to tackle risk 

factors such as smoking, the promotion of early and accurate diagnosis, availability of 

pulmonary rehabilitation and correct use of inhaled asthma medications are highlighted as 

areas of importance in the NHS Long Term Plan (2019).  

 

Respiratory disease can impair quality of life through symptoms such as breathlessness 

(especially during physical exercise), cough, fatigue, pain, and through the psychological 

impact of the disease and/or symptoms leading to anxiety and depression. There are some 

specific groups in society who have poorer respiratory health generally or are at greater risk 

of specific respiratory conditions such as those with serious mental illness, the homeless, 

prisoners, those with substance misuse disorders, and those with learning or physical 

disabilities.  

 

The prevalence of chronic obstructive disease and asthma is lower in Nottingham City 

compared to the average for England, as shown in Table 18 below. 

 

Table 18: Estimated number and percentage prevalence of asthma and chronic 
obstructive pulmonary disease based on patients on GP practice registers in 
Nottingham City and England, 2019 to 2020 

 Measure Nottingham England 

Asthma (count) 20,500 3,916,150 

Asthma (percentage)  5.5% 6.5% 

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (count) 6,374 1,170,786 

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (percentage)  1.7% 1.9% 
Source: Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF), NHS Digital 

 
Between 2017 to 2019, the age-standardised premature mortality rate for respiratory disease 

and the preventable premature mortality rate in Nottingham City remained significantly worse 

than the average for England, as shown in the Table 19 below. 

 

  

Page 73



54 

 
  

Table 19: Premature age-standardised respiratory mortality rate and preventable 
respiratory mortality rate in persons less than 75 years per 100,000 population, by city 
council, county council, region and England, 2017 to 2019 

Premature mortality Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 

Mortality rate 56.7 33.8 34.3 33.6 

Preventable mortality rate 34.2 20.2 20.0 20.2 

Source: Public health profiles, Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID) 

 

Research has shown that an excess risk of premature mortality from respiratory disease is 

evident in communities living in areas of greater socio-economic deprivation. The most 

deprived areas of Nottingham have a smoking rate more than double the most affluent; 38% 

in the most deprived quintile, compared to 16% in the most affluent (Nottingham Citizens 

Survey, 2010 to 2014 pooled).  

 

Between 2017 to 2019, 455 people died from chronic obstructive pulmonary disease in 

Nottingham City, an age standardised mortality rate per 100,000 population of 75.0. This 

remained significantly worse than England at 52.8. (Inhale, OHID) 

 

Lung cancer is the most common cause of cancer death in Nottingham City and England. 

The age-standardised rate of mortality from lung cancer in persons of all ages per 100,000 

population in Nottingham City remains significantly worse than the average for England. The 

mortality rate is higher in males than females for lung cancer, as shown in Table 20 below. 

 

Table 20: Age-standardised mortality rate from lung cancer in persons, females and 
males of all ages per 100,000 population for local authorities, region and England, 
2017 to 2019 

Measure Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England 

Mortality rate 71.9 55.8 53.7 53.0 

Mortality rate (male) 81.0 66.2 64.9 63.6 

Mortality rate (female) 64.9 47.5 44.9 44.6 

Source: Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (based on ONS source data) 

 
3.1.6 Sexual health 
 

Good sexual health is an important aspect of health and wellbeing, and it is vital that people 

have the information, confidence and the means to make choices that are right for them. It 

helps people to develop positive relationships and enables them to protect themselves and 

their partners from infections and unintended pregnancy.  

 

Some groups within the population are at higher risk of poor sexual health. The highest 

burden of sexually related ill-health is borne by groups who often experience other 

inequalities in health, including men who have sex with men, young people, Black minority 

ethnic groups, people with diverse gender identities and people living in socio-economically 

deprived areas. They often experience additional stigma, discrimination and obstacles in 

accessing services which can further impact their sexual health.   

 

Page 74



55 

 
  

The under 18 conception rate in Nottingham City has fallen since 2006, although it remains 

statistically higher than the national, regional, and county average. 

 

Figure 16: Under 18 conception rates per 1000 by city council, county council, region 
and England, 1998 to 2019 

 
Source: Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
 
Prior to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, there had been little overall change in the 

local and national rate of new sexually transmitted infection diagnoses (excluding chlamydia 

in under 25 year olds), with Nottingham City remaining significantly worse than the national 

average. With the disruption of services in 2020 due to the pandemic, rates have decreased. 

The new sexually transmitted infection diagnoses rate per 100,000 population (aged 15 to 

64) in Nottingham City reduced by 28% to 759. The national rate reduced by 32% to 619. 

 

Chlamydia is the most commonly diagnosed sexually transmitted infection in the UK. It is 

caused by a bacterial infection and the majority of people who are infected will not have 

symptoms. It is easy to diagnose and treat, but untreated infections can persist for years and 

cause serious complications including pelvic inflammatory disease, ectopic pregnancy and 

infertility in women. Public health targets recommend working towards a detection rate of at 

least 2,300 per 100,000 population (aged 15 to 24) to control the infection. Nottingham City 

last met this target in 2016, while the national average has fallen consistently below it. The 

latest figures for 2020, have been affected by the pandemic and show a reduction in 

detection rate compared to the previous year. Nottingham City saw the detection rate fall by 

26% to 1,669, while the national rate fell by 31% to 1,408. Over the last two years, the 

proportion of all chlamydia tests undertaken has been significantly better in Nottingham City 

than the average for England, despite a drop in screening numbers in 2020. In 2020, the 

proportion of the population screened in Nottingham City was 16.7% compared to 14.3% 

nationally. 

 

The prevalence amongst Nottingham City residents aged 15 to 59 years living with HIV did 

not significantly change in 2019 and was 3.1 per 1,000 people. This was above the national 

public health target of less than 2.0 per 1,000 people and the national average of 2.4 per 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

C
ru

d
e 

ra
te

 p
er

 1
,0

0
0

Year

Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England

Page 75



56 

 
  

1,000 people. In 2020, the rate fell to around 2.3 per 1,000 people in both Nottingham City 

and nationally. Prior to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, HIV testing coverage in 

Nottingham City was significantly better than the England average. The start of the 

pandemic in 2019, saw a fall in testing coverage from 71.7% to 58.0% in Nottingham City, 

falling below the national average of 64.9% for the first time. This reduced further in 2020 to 

23.7% and remained significantly worse than the national average of 46.0%.  

 

3.1.7 Alcohol 
 

Alcohol misuse remains a major public health challenge. It is associated with the 

development of many health conditions and is a cause of falls, accidents and injuries, as well 

as social problems such as assaults and crimes. Alcohol-related harm is determined by the 

volume of alcohol consumed and the frequency of drinking occasions. As such, the risk of 

harm is directly related to levels and patterns of consumption, as indicated in Table 21 

below. Some people are at a higher risk of harm due to a range of factors including family 

health history, physical health, mental health and smoking status.  

 

In 2016, the UK Chief Medical Officer published new guidelines that advise drinking no more 

than 14 units of alcohol a week and spreading drinking over three or more days to keep 

health risks low. It also provided a clear message of abstinence for pregnant women.24 The 

Health Survey for England (2015 to 2018) showed that Nottingham City has a similar alcohol 

consumption risk profile to the England average. For those aged 18 years and over who self-

reported that they drank alcohol, 22.2% drank more than 14 units of alcohol each week 

compared to 22.8% in England and 13.5% reported binge drinking compared to 15.4% in 

England. In Nottingham City, 29.9% reported to abstain from drinking alcohol which was 

significantly better than the England average of 16.2%.  

 
Table 21:Alcohol consumption categories and risks 

Risk  Units (men)  Units (women) Escalating Risks 

Lower  ≤ 14 (weekly) ≤ 14 (weekly) 

Not advisable when pregnant, going to drive, 
operate machinery, swim or do strenuous 
physical activity.  

Binge  ≥ 8 (regularly)  ≥ 6 (regularly) 

Increased risk of injuries, accident, fractures, 
scarring, poisoning, and negative effect on 
mood and memory. Can lead to antisocial, 
aggressive and violent behaviour.  

Increasing 
15 to 50 
(weekly) 

15 to 35 
(weekly) 

Fatigue, depression, weight gain, poor sleep 
and sexual problems. Increased blood 
pressure. 

Higher ≥ 51 (weekly)  ≥ 36 (weekly) 

Cancer of the mouth, throat, stomach, breast 
and liver, pancreatitis, liver cirrhosis, 
reproductive problems, high blood pressure, 
irregular heartbeat and stroke. 

 
The Nottingham Citizens' survey 2019 showed that 58.6% of respondents aged 16 years 

and over drink alcoholic drinks, of which 8.2% are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is a decrease from 12% in 2018. It showed that: 

 
24 UK Chief Medical Officers' Low Risk Drinking Guidelines (publishing.service.gov.uk) 

Page 76

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/545937/UK_CMOs__report.pdf


57 

 
  

• Men are more likely to be at risk than women 

• The White British ethnic group is more likely to be at risk than BME groups 

• People in full time education, and those aged 16 to 24 years followed by those aged 

45 to 64 years, are at highest risk. This differed from national data that showed those 

aged 55 to 64 years followed by those aged 65 to 74 years were at higher risk. 

 

The percentage of people who binge drink in Nottingham City has decreased over the last 

two years from 29% in 2017 to 20% in 2020. Alcohol drinkers in full time education (28.6%) 

and those aged 16 to 24 (28.0%) are most likely to binge drink. 

 

Alcohol misuse can also have long-term social implications and can be a cause of as well as 

a consequence of family break-up and divorce, unemployment, financial problems and 

homelessness (NHS UK). Research has shown that children affected by parental alcohol 

misuse are more likely to have physical, psychological and behavioural problems. For many 

young offenders, a background of family alcohol abuse is not uncommon. Specific groups 

that are more likely to drink at hazardous levels include homeless; abused children; people 

with mentally illness; lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender people; Veterans/armed forces; 

traveller and gypsy communities; and students.  

 

In 2018 to 2019 in England, the main reasons for hospital admission attributable to alcohol 

were cancer (25%) and unintentional injuries (23%). In Nottingham City, there were 2,300 

estimated hospital admissions attributed to alcohol, the same as 2017 to 2018. The age 

standardised rate per 100,000 population for Nottingham City was 880 and was significantly 

worse than the average for England at 660. (NHS Digital Statistics on Alcohol 2020 and 

Local Alcohol Profiles for England, OHID) 

 

In 2018 to 2019 in England, the main reasons for admissions where the primary or 

secondary diagnosis was linked to alcohol, were cardiovascular disease (51%) and mental 

and behavioural disorders due to alcohol use (17%). In Nottingham City, there was an 

estimated 7,130 hospital admissions linked to alcohol, which is 2% higher than 2017 to 

2018. The age standardised rate per 100,000 population for Nottingham City was 3,000 and 

was significantly worse than the average for England at 2,370. (NHS Digital Statistics on 

Alcohol 2020 and Local Alcohol Profiles for England, OHID) 

 

Alcohol specific deaths only include those health conditions where each death is a direct 

consequence of alcohol misuse (wholly attributable). In England, alcoholic liver disease 

accounts for around 79% of alcohol-specific deaths followed by deaths due to mental and 

behavioural disorders due to the use of alcohol at 10% (NHS Digital Statistics on Alcohol 

2020). Death rates are highest in the most deprived areas and lowest in the least deprived 

areas. In 2017 to 2019 in Nottingham City, there were 117 alcohol specific deaths. The 

alcohol specific age-standardised death rate per 100,000 population remained significantly 

worse in Nottingham City at 16.6 compared to the average for England at 10.9. In 

Nottingham City the alcohol specific death rate is over twice as high in men than women. 

(Public health profiles, OHID) 

 

Initial findings during the pandemic show that there was a 20.0% increase in total alcohol 

specific deaths compared to 2019 in England. Deaths from mental and behavioural disorders 

Page 77



58 

 
  

due to alcohol increased by 10.8% (compared to a 1.1% increase between 2018 and 2019), 

and deaths from alcohol poisoning increased by 15.4% (compared to a decrease of 4.5% 

between 2018 and 2019). Alcoholic liver deaths accounted for 80.3% of total alcohol specific 

deaths in 2020 and saw a 20.8% increase between 2019 and 2020.25  

 

3.1.8 Obesity 
 
Tackling obesity is one of the greatest long-term health challenges currently faced in 

England. Obesity is characterised by excess body fat that impairs health. It is associated 

with reduced life expectancy and increases the risk of developing a range of health 

conditions including type 2 diabetes, cardiovascular disease, liver disease, respiratory 

disease and cancer. It can also have an impact on mental health. Obesity is associated with 

social and economic deprivation, with children in the most deprived parts of the country 

being more than twice as likely to be obese than those living in the least deprived areas. 

People from certain ethnic groups, such as south Asians, are more likely to be overweight 

and obese, increasing their risk of type 2 diabetes.26 

 

Obesity is a complex problem with many drivers including behaviour, environment, genetics 

and culture. The main risk factors for obesity are the food and drink environment and 

physical activity. Overall, around two-thirds of adults are above a healthy weight. In 2019 to 

2020, the proportion of adults aged 18 and over classed as overweight or obese in 

Nottingham City was 66.2%, which was significantly worse than the average for England of 

62.8%. This contrasted with the previous year where the proportion in Nottingham City was 

58.4% and significantly better than the average for England at 62.3%. This may be the result 

of other influencing factors, including the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. (Public health 

profiles, OHID) 

 

It is widely accepted that there is a link between childhood obesity and morbidity and 

mortality in later life. The family environment has a strong influence on a child’s 

development, their eating and activity habits, and predisposition to be overweight. 

Nottingham City has high rates of adult obesity increasing the risk of child obesity. It also has 

high levels of deprivation, which is a significant contributing factor. In Nottingham City, the 

prevalence of children who are overweight or living with obesity at Reception (age 4 to 5 

years) and Year 6 (aged 10 to 11 years) is significantly worse than the England average, as 

shown in the Table 22 below. A quarter of children leaving primary school in Nottingham City 

are living with obesity.  

 

 
25 Public Health England (July 2021): Monitoring alcohol consumption and harm during the COVID-19 
pandemic. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-
covid-19-pandemic/monitoring-alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-
summary 
26 Public Health England (2017). Guidance Health matters: obesity and the food environment 
Published. Available at: Health matters: obesity and the food environment - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 78

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic/monitoring-alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic/monitoring-alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic/monitoring-alcohol-consumption-and-harm-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-summary


59 

 
  

Table 22: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception and Year 6 classed as obese 
(including severe obesity) or overweight (including obesity) by city council, county 
council, region and England, 2017 to 2020 

Source: NHS Digital, National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) 

Obesity in early pregnancy increases the risk of complications for the mother and child 

during pregnancy and childbirth. The proportion of obese pregnant women in Nottingham 

City in 2018 to 2019 was 26.2% and was significantly worse than the national average of 

22.1%. (Maternity Services Dataset, OHID). 

 

Poor diet and nutrition are recognised as major contributory risk factors for obesity, ill health 

and premature death. In 2019 to 2020, the proportion of the population who, when surveyed, 

reported that they had eaten the recommended five portions of fruit and vegetables on a 

usual day remained significantly worse in Nottingham City at 50.1% than the average for 

England at 55.4%. (Public health profiles, OHID) 

 

The wide range of physical and mental health benefits of physical activity for general and 

special populations are substantial. The evidence is particularly robust for the general adult 

population and for people with pre-existing medical conditions. The greatest health impact 

can be gained by concentrating on the inactive. The Active Lives Adult Survey shows that a 

greater proportion of adults aged over 16 years in Nottingham City were ‘inactive’ or’ fairly 

active’ compared to the England average, as shown in Table 23. 

 
Table 23: Physical activity levels in adults aged over 16 years in Nottingham City and 
England, November 2019 to November 2020 

Measure Nottingham City England 

Active (an average of 150+ minutes a week) 59.2% 61.4% 

Fairly Active (an average of 30 -149 minutes a week) 12.2% 11.5% 

Inactive (less than an average of 30 minutes a week) 28.6% 27.1% 
Source: Active Live Adult Survey (November 2019 to November 2020), Sport England 

Despite evidence of activity levels in the city and country increasing prior to the coronavirus 

(COVID-19) pandemic, there continues to be stubborn inequalities in physical activity in 

specific groups in the community. These include: 

• disabled people and those with long term conditions 

• people from lower socio-economic groups 

• older people 

• women 

• people from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups. 

 

The disruption that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has caused has reinforced and 

even exacerbated these inequalities in physical activity, significantly impacting on physical 

and mental health and wellbeing and quality life of these groups as well as others. A focus is 

Prevalence measure Nottingham Nottinghamshire East Midlands England

Reception: Overweight /obesity 25.3% 22.3% 22.7% 22.6%

Reception: Obesity / severe obesity 11.8% 9.3% 9.5% 9.7%

Year 6: Overweight / obesity 40.1% 32.8% 34.2% 34.6%

Year 6: Obesity / severe obesity 24.7% 19.0% 20.1% 20.4%

Page 79



60 

 
  

therefore required on helping to remove the barriers to activity and providing opportunities to 

people and communities that are experiencing these inequalities. 

 

3.1.9 Smoking 

 

Smoking remains the single largest preventable cause of early death in the United Kingdom 

and worldwide. Half of all lifelong smokers will die prematurely, usually about 10 years 

younger than non-smokers. The main causes of death from smoking are heart disease and 

stroke, lung cancer and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. For every smoking related 

death, another ten smokers will be living with a smoking related disease. A third of all 

cancers and over 90% of lung cancers are directly caused by smoking. 

 

The adult smoking rate across England has continued to fall year on year, with 13.9% of 

adults reported as smokers in 2019 compared with 14.4% in 2018. The smoking rate in 

Nottingham City remains significantly higher than the national average. Figure 17 below 

shows that following an overall decrease from 2013, it has risen each year since 2017. In 

2019 the smoking rate was 20.9%, having increased from 20.6% in 2018.  

 

Figure 17: Prevalence of smoking in people aged 18 years and above by city council, 
county council, region and England, 2011 to 2019 

 
Source: Annual Population Survey (APS) 

 

Deprived areas continue to have smoking rates that are significantly higher than the national 

average which continues to widen the inequalities gap. Certain populations such as those 

with long standing mental health illnesses and prisoners have long been known to be high 

prevalence groups for smoking. 

 

In 2019 to 2020, there was a higher percentage of mothers smoking at the time of delivery in 

Nottingham City (16.5%) compared to England (10.4%). (Maternity Services Dataset) 

 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

Year

England East Midlands Nottinghamshire Nottingham

Page 80



61 

 
  

Nottingham Citizens’ survey shows a higher smoking rate of 25% in 2019. In line with 

national statistics, men (26.8%) are more likely than women (22.5%) to be smokers. The 

survey also showed that: 

 

• Unemployed people are most likely to smoke (42.3%). 

• More than 30% of people who live in social rented accommodation smoke.  

• Owner occupiers and retired people are the least likely groups to smoke.  

• White British people are more likely to smoke than those from BME groups. 

 

In Nottingham City, people aged 25 to 64 are most likely to smoke daily as shown in Figure 

18. An estimated 75.5% of 16 to 24 year olds are non-smokers or ex-smokers and 9.5% are 

occasional smokers, perhaps reflecting the culture of ‘social smoking’. Despite the 

perception that social smoking is low risk, there is still an increase in risk of cancer and heart 

disease.27 

 

Figure 18: Smoking behaviour by age in Nottingham City 

 
Source: Nottingham Citizens’ survey 2019 

 
The survey also showed that smoking and tobacco usage varies, with smokers most likely to 

use cigarettes (52.9%), followed by roll-ups (42.8%) and e-cigarettes (9.1%). There was an 

increase in the proportion of smokers using rollups in the last year and a fall in cigarette and 

e-cigarette smoking. Current evidence on e-cigarettes suggest that they are far less harmful 

than smoking and should be used as part of harm reduction or quitting smoking.  

 
Admissions to hospital that are wholly or partial attributed to smoking related conditions 

represent a large demand on NHS resources. High smoking attributable hospital admission 

rates are indicative of poor population health and high smoking prevalence. In 2019 to 2020, 

Nottingham City’s rate per 100,000 population (aged 35 and over) was 2,370, significantly 

higher than the national average of 1,398. Smoking still accounts for one in six of all deaths 

 
27 Smokefree.gov. Social Smoking. Available from: https://smokefree.gov/challenges-when-
quitting/cravings-triggers/social-smoking 
 

67.7%
57.8% 54.3% 50.4%

7.8%
14.8% 20.1% 32.5%

9.5%
5.8% 3.9%

1.8%

15.0% 21.6% 21.6% 15.3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

16 to 24 25 to 44  45 to 64 65

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

Years

Never smoked Used to smoke Smoke but not every day Smoke every day

Page 81

https://smokefree.gov/challenges-when-quitting/cravings-triggers/social-smoking
https://smokefree.gov/challenges-when-quitting/cravings-triggers/social-smoking


62 

 
  

in England, and there exist huge inequalities in smoking related deaths rates between the 

richest and poorest communities. Between 2017 to 2019, Nottingham City had a significantly 

higher smoking attributable mortality rate per 100,000 population (aged 35 and over) of 

315.3 compared to the national average of 202.2. (Local tobacco profiles, OHID) 

 

3.1.10 Drug misuse 

 

Drug misuse is associated with a range of psychological, physical and social issues and 

addressing these remain a key national and local priority. Cannabis remains the most used 

illicit drug in England and Wales, followed by powder cocaine in 2019 to 2020. The most 

common drugs used by age group were cannabis (7.8%) and powder cocaine (2.6%) for 

those aged 16 to 59 years, and cannabis (18.7%) and nitrous oxide (8.7%) for those aged 16 

to 24 years. Overall, there was no change in drug use from the previous year: 

 

• Younger people were still more likely to have taken a drug in the last year than older 

people: 9.4% (3.2 million people) of drug users were aged 16 to 59 years, 21% (1.3 

million people) were aged 16 to 24 years and 1% were aged 60 to 74 years.  

• The percentage of adults classed as “frequent” drug users (had taken a drug more 

than once a month in the last year) was 2.1% for those aged 16 to 59 years and 

4.3% for those aged 16 to 24 years. 

• Any drug use in the last year was also higher among men (11.9%) than women 

(6.9%) aged 16 to 59 years.  

• Level of drug use increased in line with the frequency of visits to nightclubs.28  

 

Drug addiction often occurs with other health inequalities such as mental ill health, 

homelessness, history of offending. Social consequences of substance misuse include 

chaotic lifestyle and behaviour, aggressive behaviour, criminality and a criminal record, 

problems with personal relationships and family breakdowns, self-neglect, unemployment 

and homelessness. Drug misuse is also linked to a number of physical and psychological 

health outcomes such as breathing problems, heart problems and mental health problems.  

 

The frequency of use, as well as the method of administration, such as inhalation or 

injection, can also impact on how the drug affects the user.  

 

In Nottingham City, there are an estimated 2,715 people aged 15 to 64 using opiate and / or 

crack cocaine in 2016 to 2017, as shown in Table 24. This is a rate of 11.81 users per 1,000 

population, which is higher than the national average of 8.85 users per 1,000 population. 

The estimated rate of opiate use is higher than the rate of crack cocaine use.  

 

In terms of age, the 35 to 64 age group in Nottingham City has the highest estimated rate of 

opiate use and / or crack cocaine use, and opiate use, both of which are higher than the 

average for England. In comparison, for Nottinghamshire, East Midlands and England the 

highest user rate is the 25 to 34 age group. This suggests that Nottingham City has a cohort 

of entrenched ageing opiate users. 

 
28 Office of National Statistics (2020): Drug misuse in England and Wales: year ending March 2020 
Drug misuse in England and Wales - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 

Page 82

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/drugmisuseinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2020


63 

 
  

Table 24: Estimated number and prevalence rate per 1,000 population aged 15 to 64 
years of opiate use and / or crack cocaine use (OCU), opiates, and crack cocaine, by 
city council, county council, region and England, 2016 to 2017 

 15-64 
population 

Number of users 
Rate of use per 1,000 

population 

OCU Opiates 
Crack 

cocaine 
OCU Opiates 

Crack 
cocaine 

 
Nottingham 229,814 2,715 2,250 1,593 11.81 9.79 6.93  

Nottinghamshire 509,786 4,292 3,608 1,673 8.42 7.08 3.28  

East Midlands 3,008,719 24,828 21,573 11,882 8.25 7.17 3.95  

England 35,457,660 313,971 261,294 180,748 8.85 7.37 5.10  

Source: Estimates of the prevalence of opiate use and/or crack cocaine use (2016 to 2017), Public 
Health Institute, Liverpool John Moores University 

 
Harms of most new psychoactive substances are unknown but synthetic cannabinoid 

receptor agonists are especially problematic, with growing reports of serious harm from 

some. 

 

Infection rates from blood borne viruses such as HIV, Hepatitis B and Hepatitis C are high 

amongst injecting drug users and can cause chronic poor health and can lead to serious 

disease and premature death. Hepatitis C remains a key area of concern in the UK due to 

the levels of infection, transmission, the lack of a vaccine, low levels of treatment 

engagement and the serious effects that it has on health. In the UK, those at highest risk of 

contracting Hepatitis C are people who inject drugs but who haven’t yet moved to the point 

of accepting treatment for their substance use, accounting for 90% of all new infections. For 

those entering drug misuse treatment in 2017 to 2018, the number who received a Hepatitis 

C test was 734 (80.9%) and remains significantly lower than the average for England of 

84.2%. (National Drug Treatment Monitoring System (NDTMS) 

 

The increase in drug-related deaths over the past decade is primarily driven by deaths 

involving opiates, but also by an increase in deaths involving cocaine. Deaths involving crack 

cocaine cannot normally be distinguished from those involving powder cocaine. Over the 

period 2018 to 2020, there were an estimated 42 deaths in Nottingham City related to drug 

misuse, of which 9 were female and 33 were male. The aged-standardised mortality rate 

was 5.2 per 100,000 population, which was similar to 2017 to 2019 and not significantly 

different from the average for England at 5.0 per 100,000 population.29 

 

 
 
 

 
 
  

 
29 Office for National Statistics: Deaths related to drug poisoning by local authority, England and 
Wales, 1993 to 2020 

Page 83



64 

 
  

4 Identified patient groups – particular health issues 
 
The following patient groups have been identified as living within, or visiting, Nottingham 

City: 

 

• Those sharing one or more of the following Equality Act 2010 protected characteristic 

• Age 

• Disability, which is defined as a physical or mental impairment, that has a 

substantial and long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out 

normal day-to-day activities 

• Pregnancy and maternity  

• Race which includes colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins 

• Religion (including a lack of religion) or belief (any religious or philosophical 

belief) 

• Sex  

• Sexual orientation 

• Gender re-assignment 

• Marriage and civil partnership 

• University students 

• Offenders 

• Homeless and rough sleepers 

• Traveller and gypsy communities 

• Refugees and asylum seekers 

• Military veterans 

• Visitors to the area for business or to visit friends and family or the sporting and 

leisure facilities in the county - for example the Old Market square, Nottingham 

Castle, City of Caves, Wollaton Hall and Nottingham Racecourse 

• Severe multiple disadvantage (SMD). 

 

Whilst some of these groups are referred to in other parts of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, this section focusses on their particular health issues. 

 

4.1 Age 

 

Health issues tend to be greater amongst the very young and the very old. The Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment for Nottingham City identifies the following health issues. 

 

For older people: 

 

• Age is the single biggest factor associated with having a long-term condition and 

60% of people aged 65 and over are affected. The number of people with two or 

more chronic illnesses is increasing, and as people age, they are more likely to 

experience ‘multi-morbidity’.  

• Lifestyle factors such as smoking, excessive alcohol consumption, unhealthy diets 

and physical inactivity are major cause of long-term conditions.  

Page 84



65 

 
  

• Falls and fall-related injuries are a common and serious problem for older people. 

People aged 65 and older have the highest risk of falling, with 30% of people older 

than 65 and 50% of people older than 80 falling at least once a year. In Nottingham 

City, approximately 5% suffer fractures and 2% suffer hip fractures. The human cost 

of falling includes distress, pain, injury, loss of confidence, loss of independence and 

mortality. Falling also affects the family members and carers of people who fall.  

• Osteoporosis leads to over 300,000 patients presenting with fragility fractures to 

hospitals in the UK each year. Because of increased bone loss after the menopause 

in women, and age-related bone loss in both women and men, the prevalence of 

osteoporosis increases markedly with age, from 2% at 50 years to more than 25% at 

80 years in women. If people at risk can be identified, treatments are available.  

• Adults with two or more physical illnesses have a 6.4-fold increased risk of having 

mental health problems. 

• Depression is the most common mental health need for older people and prevalence 

rises with age. Around 16% of people aged 60 and over and 21% of people aged 80 

and over have depression. In addition more than 2% of people aged 65 or over report 

having had suicidal thoughts in the past year. Evidence also suggests that older 

people are not necessarily getting the help or the treatment that they need for dealing 

with depression (NDTI 2015). 

• Dementia encompasses a range of brain disorders resulting in a progressive and 

severe loss of brain function. It affects over 5% of people over 65. The number of 

people living with dementia in Nottingham will reach over 4,000 by 2035, almost 

doubling from 2017. Dementia has superseded cardiovascular disease as the leading 

cause of death (excluding COVID-19). Non-modifiable risk factors are increasing 

age, female sex and genetic differences. Modifiable risk factors include lifestyle 

(smoking, overweight and obesity, physical inactivity), socioeconomic class, social 

isolation, mental health, stress and cognitive activity. Estimates indicate that over a 

third of dementia cases are preventable. People with mental health problems 

(depression, anxiety and posttraumatic stress disorder) are at a higher risk of 

developing dementia. Many of the early symptoms of dementia are cognitive. For the 

most part, forgetfulness and getting easily confused go unnoticed. As the disease 

progresses, people with dementia often experience word-finding difficulty and 

difficulty recognising familiar people and places.  

• Feeling lonely or unconnected to friends can have a very negative effect on well-

being and health. It is associated with poor mental health, including depression, and 

conditions such as cardiovascular disease and hypertension. Loneliness is a risk 

factor for developing dementia, and it is also detrimental to quality of life. Social 

isolation remains a prominent issue for people with dementia, with 55% of people 

with dementia feeling lonely and 83% of carers feeling socially isolated due to their 

caring responsibilities. Lonely people tend to make more use of health and social 

care services and are more likely to have early admission to care homes.  

• 61.8% of all prescriptions written in England in 2018 were for patients aged 60 and 

over.30 

  

 
30 NHS Digital, Prescription Cost Analysis - England, 2018 

Page 85



66 

 
  

For children and young people: 

 

• A child’s physical, social and cognitive development strongly influences how ready 

they are to start school and their educational attainment, as well as their health and 

employment prospects as an adult. This development begins before birth when the 

health of a baby is affected by the health of their mother and is influenced by the 

socio-economic status of their parents. The best possible health underpins a child’s 

ability to flourish, stay safe and achieve as they grow up; and lifestyles and habits 

established during childhood, influence a person’s health throughout their life. 

• Adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) are stressful experiences occurring during 

childhood that directly hurt a child (e.g. maltreatment) or affect them through the 

environment in which they live (e.g. growing up in a house with domestic violence). 

Adverse childhood experiences include childhood abuse (physical, sexual or 

emotional); neglect (emotional or physical); family breakdown; exposure to domestic 

violence; or living in a household affected by substance misuse, mental illness, or 

where someone is incarcerated. (Gray and Woodfine, 2018) People who have 

experienced adverse childhood experiences are known to be at a significantly higher 

risk of mental health issues, homelessness, offending and substance misuse. 

• The importance of breast feeding is well evidenced to provide health benefits for both 

mother and baby and to promote attachment; however, young mothers are among 

the groups least likely to breast feed. 

• Being born to a mother who is obese and smokes throughout pregnancy, puts a baby 

at greater risk of developing unhealthy lifestyle behaviours in the future and serious 

chronic conditions. This will impact on their quality of life and life expectancy.  

• Poor oral health can be associated with low weight and failure to thrive in infancy, as 

well as causing pain or infection, school absence, and the need for parents to take 

time off work to attend hospital appointments related to dental decay. Good oral 

health can therefore contribute to school readiness.  

• A child’s diet during the early years has an impact on their growth and development. 

Diet is linked to the incidence of many common childhood conditions such as iron-

deficiency anaemia, tooth decay and vitamin D deficiency (NICE 2015). Healthy 

eating during childhood and adolescence is vital as a means to ensure healthy 

growth and development, and to set up a pattern of positive eating habits in order to 

reduce the risk of poor health in adult life. 

• Unhealthy diets, along with physical inactivity, have contributed to the growth of 

obesity in England. The combination of unhealthy diets, physical inactivity, and high 

BMI is the biggest overall contributor to disability adjusted life years in England.  

• The proportion of children locally that are obese is significantly higher than the 

England average and more than doubles between age 4 to 5 years and 10 to 11 

years. Trends in national and local obesity prevalence suggest adult and child 

obesity rates are likely to continue rising for the foreseeable future and inequalities 

are likely to widen without intervention. 

• Avoidable injuries in children and young people are a serious public health issue and 

a leading cause of death and hospital admission for children in the United Kingdom. 

Injuries put more children in hospital than any other cause. The impact and 

Page 86



67 

 
  

consequences of avoidable injuries are major contributors to health inequalities with 

children from the most disadvantaged backgrounds at significantly increased risk. 

• Untreated sexually transmitted infections can have a longer-term health impact, 

including infertility. Young people’s sexual behaviour may also lead to unplanned 

pregnancy which has significant health risks and damages the longer-term health 

and life chances of both mothers and babies. Teenage pregnancies, while falling in 

Nottingham City, remain above the England average.  

• Good mental and emotional health is essential to enable children and young people 

to fulfil their potential. One in ten children in Great Britain has a clinically recognisable 

mental disorder. By the age of 14 about half of all lifetimes mental health problems 

start. This highlights the long term nature of mental illness and the importance of 

intervening early to prevent mental illness alongside early recognition and treatment. 

• Boys are more likely than girls to have a mental disorder with highest prevalence 

amongst 11 to 16 year olds. 

• Young people who start using cannabis before they’re 15 are 6.7 times more likely to 

develop schizophrenia. 

• Substance misuse can impact on both physical and emotional health. It can be 

associated with poor outcomes in relation to sexual health (including risk of teenage 

pregnancy), mental health, education, employment and training. Misuse is also 

associated with involvement in anti-social and criminal activity and can have a 

negative impact on family life.  

• In Nottingham City the proportion of increasing and higher risk alcohol drinkers and 

binge drinkers is greatest in the 16 to 24 year olds and full-time student population.  

• Almost two fifths (39 per cent) of adults who were current or ex-regular smokers 

started smoking before the age of 16. Men were more likely than women to have 

started smoking before the age of 16 (41 per cent and 36 per cent respectively). 

 

4.2 Disability31, 32 

 
Both physical and sensory impairments (visual, hearing and dual – deaf blindness) may be 

congenital or acquired at any age and are more prevalent with age. Most sensory 

impairments develop gradually and are often secondary to other disabilities. Physical 

impairment can be temporary, long-term, or fluctuating and limit a person's physical capacity 

to move and coordinate actions. 

 

Both physical and sensory impairments can hinder basic daily activities and result in social 

isolation and loneliness, negatively affecting quality of life. People with impairments are:  

 

• More likely to be living in poverty, be out of work, and have lower educational 

qualifications 

• Less likely to participate in leisure activities 

• More likely to face difficulties accessing public services including difficulty with transport 

• More likely to experience mental health problems 

 
31 Nottingham City JSNA. Adults with physical and sensory impairments (2016) - Nottingham Insight 
32 Nottingham City JSNA. Adults with learning disabilities (2017) - Nottingham Insight 

Page 87

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/adults/adults-with-physical-and-sensory-impairments-2016/
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/adults/adults-with-learning-disabilities-2017/


68 

 
  

• More likely to smoke. However, smoking is a key cause of many medical conditions that 

can lead to disability, for example macular degeneration, stroke and diabetes 

• At a higher risk of violence than non-disabled people, and of being a victim of any crime.  

 

According to data from the Global Burden of Disease study, the leading causes of Years 

Lived with Disability in England in 2013 were low back and neck pain, sense organ diseases, 

skin diseases and falls. Stroke is also a major cause of disability. Stroke prevention including 

advice and information on smoking cessation, diet and nutrition, and obesity, as well as 

information on commissioned services, is key. Good diabetic blood glucose control reduces 

the risk of retinopathy which is a major cause of working age blindness. 

People with learning disabilities are one of the most vulnerable groups in society, 

experiencing health inequalities, social exclusion and stigmatisation. They have greater and 

more complex health needs compared to the general population and an increased risk of 

premature death. Health problems include: 

• coronary heart disease  

• respiratory disease  

• mental health problems (including dementia)  

• weight problems - obesity or underweight  

• physical impairment with associated risk of gastro-oesophageal reflux, eating and 

swallowing problems, constipation and incontinence, chest infections, hip dislocation 

and postural deformities  

• sensory impairments  

• epilepsy. 

 

It is important that health promotion and prevention initiatives are actively promoted and 

inclusive for people with learning disabilities, and those supporting them, particularly 

regarding weight management, healthy eating and physical activity. 

 
4.3 Pregnancy and maternity33 
 
Pregnancy is a particularly important period during which the physical and mental wellbeing  

of the mother can have lifelong impacts on the child. For example, during pregnancy, factors  

such as maternal stress, smoking, diet, and alcohol or drug misuse can place a child’s future  

development at risk. A wide range of research now shows that from conception to age two is  

a crucial phase of human development and is the time when focused attention can reap 

great dividends for society. (Wave Trust, 2013) 

 

There has been no reduction in indirect causes of maternal mortality for 10 years. Nationally, 

recent evidence shows that suicide is the leading cause of maternal death. Further risk 

factors include the rise in maternal obesity, the high smoking prevalence and the rise in the 

proportion of women with medically complex pregnancies, all of which are key concerns for 

 
33 Nottingham City JSNA. Pregnancy (2019) - Nottingham Insight 

Page 88

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/adults/pregnancy-2019/


69 

 
  

Nottingham City. Maternal mental health is a significant issue in Nottingham City with 1,885 

(44%) of pregnant women estimated to have mental health issues during 2017. 

 

Women with complex social factors (substance misuse, domestic abuse, recent migrants, 

asylum seekers and refugees and young women under 20 years) are far less likely to seek 

antenatal care early in pregnancy or to stay in contact with maternity services. Delays in 

accessing maternity care often results in worse outcomes for both mother and baby; this is a 

key concern given Nottingham City’s diverse population.  

 

There are many common health problems that are associated with pregnancy. Some of the 

more common ones are: 

 

• urinating a lot 

• pelvic pain 

• piles (haemorrhoids) 

• skin and hair changes 

• sleeplessness 

• stretch marks 

• swollen ankles, feet, fingers  

• swollen and sore gums, which may bleed 

• tiredness 

• vaginal discharge 

• vaginal bleeding 

• varicose veins.  

 

4.4 Race34 

 
Health patterns differ significantly between ethnic minority groups and the white population, 

and between different minority groups, reflecting the diversity of demographic, socio-

economic, behavioural, cultural and other characteristics between ethnic groups. Main 

differences can be found in: 

 

Maternal mortality – Although the number of deaths is relatively low in 2016 to 2018, the rate 

of women dying in the UK during or up to one year after pregnancy is higher in the Black 

group (more than four times) and Asian group (almost double) compared to the White group.  

 

Stillbirths and infant mortality – Although stillbirth and infant mortality rates in England and 

Wales have fallen in all ethnic groups since 2007, they remain higher among ethnic minority 

groups. They are highest among babies from the Pakistani and Black groups (ONS 2021).  

 

Child health - Health and wellbeing in the early years have a significant bearing on future 

health. Childhood obesity rates are higher among Black and Asian children. Some of these 

differences may be associated with higher levels of deprivation among ethnic minority 

 
34 V. Raleigh and J. Holmes, The King’s Fund (Sept 2021): The health of people from ethnic minority 
groups in England. The health of people from ethnic minority groups in England | The King's Fund 
(kingsfund.org.uk) 

Page 89

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/health-people-ethnic-minority-groups-england
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/health-people-ethnic-minority-groups-england


70 

 
  

groups, as children in deprived areas are twice as likely to be obese than those in less-

deprived areas. South Asian children also have lower levels of physical fitness than children 

in white European and Black groups, and physical activity levels are lower among children 

from Bangladeshi and Pakistani groups (NHS Digital 2020).  

 

Cardiovascular disease – There is a higher incidence, prevalence and mortality from 

cardiovascular disease in South Asian groups compared with the White group or national 

average. South Asian groups have the highest mortality from heart disease and develop 

heart disease at a younger age. Stroke incidence and mortality are also higher in the South 

Asian population. Black groups in the UK have a significantly lower risk of heart disease 

compared to the majority of the population. Heart disease rates are low in sub-Saharan 

Africa and the Caribbean. Black groups have higher-than-average incidence of and mortality 

from hypertension and stroke, and they have strokes at a younger age.  

 

Diabetes - The prevalence of diabetes is higher among South Asian groups (up to six times 

higher) and Black groups (up to three times higher) than in the white population and people 

in these groups develop the condition at a younger age.  

 

Cancer – the incidence of cancer overall is generally lower among ethnic minority groups in 

England than in White groups. Asian, Chinese and Mixed groups have a significantly lower 

risk of getting cancer than the White group. Cancer incidence is also lower among Black 

women compared with White women but similar in Black and White men. Of the four major 

cancers (breast, prostate, lung, colorectal), Asian groups have a lower risk than the White 

group. Black groups also have a significantly lower incidence except for prostate cancer, 

where the incidence of and mortality from prostate cancer is significantly higher among Black 

males than White males.  

 

COVID-19 - The coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has had a disproportionate effect on 

ethnic minority groups, with Black, Asian and most other ethnic minority groups more likely 

to be diagnosed with COVID-19, get severely ill and die compared to the white population. 

Demographic, geographical, socio-economic and household characteristics, and co-

morbidities contribute significantly to ethnic differences in COVID-19 outcomes, but they do 

not explain all the variation. The reasons for ethnic differences in COVID-19 outcomes are 

not yet fully understood, and the government has funded research on this. 

 

4.5 Religion and belief35 
 

Health beliefs and values vary between cultures and religions and between individuals within 

these groups. Cultural, spiritual and religious beliefs and practices can impact on: 

 

• health behaviours 

• health outcomes 

• use of and access to healthcare services 

 
35 Public Health England (2021). https://www.gov.uk/guidance/culture-spirituality-and-religion 

Page 90

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/culture-spirituality-and-religion


71 

 
  

• beliefs, rites and rituals around specific milestones like pregnancy and birth, ‘coming 

of age’, menstruation, marriage, and death 

• acceptability of medical care, such as diagnostic procedures, medications and 

treatment programmes 

• adherence to medication and treatment plans (for example, periods of religious 

fasting) 

• use of alternative traditional medicine and healing practices. 

 

Female genital mutilation is related to cultural, religious and social factors within families and 

communities although there is no direct link to any religion or faith. It is an illegal practice 

that raises serious health related concerns. In Britain, female genital mutilation among 

pregnant women is mostly seen in women who are recent migrants, asylum seekers or 

refugees and has usually taken place before they arrive in the UK.  

 

‘Honour based violence’ which is a type of domestic violence motivated by the notion of 

honour, occurs in those communities where the honour concept is linked to the expected 

behaviours of families and individuals.  

 

There is a possibility of hate crime related to religion and belief. 

 

4.6 Sex 
 

• In 2018 to 2020 in Nottingham City, the life expectancy at birth for females was 81.0 

years. For males it was lower at 76.6 years. This is a gender gap of 4.4 years.  

• Men tend to use health services less than women and present later with diseases. 

than women do. Consumer research by the Department of Health and Social Care36 

into the use of pharmacies in 2009 showed men aged 16 to 55 to be ‘avoiders’ i.e. 

they actively avoid going to pharmacies, feel uncomfortable in the pharmacy 

environment as it currently stands due to perceptions of the environment as 

feminised/for older people/lacking privacy and of customer service being indiscreet. 

• The mortality rate for coronary heart disease is much higher in men, and men are 

more likely to die from coronary heart disease prematurely. Men are also more likely 

to die during a sudden cardiac event. Women’s risk of cardiovascular disease in 

general increases later in life. Women are more likely to die from stroke than men 

most likely due to their older age when they have a stroke.  

• The proportion of men and women who are obese is roughly the same, although men 

are markedly more likely to be overweight than women, and present trends suggest 

that weight-related health problems will increase among men in particular. Women 

are more likely than men to become morbidly obese. 

• Women are more likely to report, consult for and be diagnosed with depression and 

anxiety. It is possible that depression and anxiety are under-diagnosed in men. 

Suicide is more common in men, as are all forms of substance abuse.  

 
36 Pharmacy consumer research. Pharmacy usage and communications mapping – Executive 
summary. June 2009 

Page 91

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130105061352/http:/www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/documents/digitalasset/dh_101094.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130105061352/http:/www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/documents/digitalasset/dh_101094.pdf


72 

 
  

• Alcohol disorders are more common in men in Nottingham City, with men over one 

and a half times more likely to drink at an increasing or higher risk level than women. 

The gap is much narrower for binge drinking, and higher in the 16 to 24 age group. 

• Morbidity and mortality are consistently higher in men for virtually all cancers that are 

not sex-specific. At the same time, cancer morbidity and mortality rates are reducing 

more quickly for men than women. Survival is higher in females than in males. 

 

4.7 Sexual orientation37 

 
Sexual orientation or gender identity can have a significant impact on physical, mental and 

sexual health and wellbeing. Existing evidence shows that health outcomes are generally 

worse for lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people than the rest of the population, and 

that lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people feel that their specific needs are not taken 

into account in their care. In 2018, more than 5,000 lesbian, gay, bi and trans (LGBT) people 

across England, Scotland and Wales took part in a survey and were asked about their life, 

including their mental health and their specific experiences when accessing healthcare 

services. Results showed that: 
 

• Half of lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (52%) said they’ve experienced 

depression in the last year.  

• Three in five lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (61%) said they’ve 

experienced anxiety in the last year. 

• One in eight lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people aged 18 to 24 (13%) said 

they’ve attempted to take their own life in the last year. 

• Almost half of transgender people (46%) have thought about taking their own life in 

the last year, 31% of lesbian, gay and bisexual people who aren’t transgender said 

the same.  

• 41% of non-binary people said they harmed themselves in the last year compared to 

20% of lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender women and 12% of gay, bisexual, or 

transgender men.  

• One in six lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (16%) said they drank 

alcohol almost every day over the last year.  

• One in eight lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people aged 18 to 24 (13%) took 

drugs at least once a month.  

• One in eight lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (13%) have experienced 

some form of unequal treatment from healthcare staff because they’re lesbian, gay, 

bisexual, or transgender. 

• Almost one in four lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (23%) have 

witnessed discriminatory or negative remarks against lesbian, gay, bisexual, or 

transgender people by healthcare staff. In the last year alone, six per cent of lesbian, 

gay, bisexual, or transgender people – including 20% of trans people – have 

witnessed these remarks.  

 
37 Stonewall, 2018. LGBT in Britain – Health Report. 
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/system/files/lgbt_in_britain_health.pdf 
 

Page 92

https://www.stonewall.org.uk/system/files/lgbt_in_britain_health.pdf


73 

 
  

• One in twenty lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (five per cent) have been 

pressured to access services to question or change their sexual orientation when 

accessing healthcare services. 

• One in five lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (19%) aren’t out to any 

healthcare professional about their sexual orientation when seeking general medical 

care. This number rises to 40% of bi men and 29% of bi women. 

• One in seven lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (14 per cent) have 

avoided treatment for fear of discrimination because they're lesbian, gay, bisexual, or 

transgender. 

 
4.8 Gender re-assignment38 
 

• Drugs and alcohol are processed by the liver as are cross-sex hormones. Heavy use 

of alcohol and/or drugs whilst taking hormones may increase the risk of liver toxicity 

and liver damage. 

• Alcohol, drugs and tobacco and the use of hormone therapy can all increase 

cardiovascular risk. Taken together, they can also increase the risk already posed by 

hormone therapy. 

• Smoking can affect oestrogen levels, increasing the risk of osteoporosis and 

reducing the feminising effects of oestrogen medication. 

• Transgender people face a number of barriers that can prevent them from engaging 

in regular exercise. Many transgender people struggle with body image and as a 

result can be reluctant to engage in physical activity. Gender dysphoria is the medical 

term used to describe this discomfort.  

• Transgender people are likely to suffer from mental ill health as a reaction to the 

discomfort or gender dysphoria they experience. This is primarily driven by a sense 

of difference and not being accepted by society. If a transgender person wishes to 

transition and live in the gender role they identify with, they may also worry about 

damaging their relationships, losing their job, being a victim of hate crime and being 

discriminated against. The fear of such prejudice and discrimination, which can be 

real or imagined, can cause significant psychological distress. 

 
4.9 University students39 
 
University students make up a significant proportion of Nottingham City’s population, with 

full-time university students comprising about one in eight of the population. Although 

generally in good health, students have particular health needs in terms of:  

 

• mental health 

• sexual health  

• smoking 

• alcohol use 

• drug use  

 
38 Gender Identity Research and Education Society Trans Health Factsheets 
39 Nottingham City JSNA.  Students (2016) - Nottingham Insight 

Page 93

http://www.gires.org.uk/trans-health-factsheets/
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/adults/students-2016/


74 

 
  

• physical activity 

• diet and nutrition 

• immunisation and vaccination – including routine vaccinations such as MMR and 

MenACWY, as well as outbreak prevention and management. Students arriving from 

countries with higher incidence of disease such as tuberculosis (TB) need to be 

identified and immunised. 

 

There are also issues relating to access to health services, particularly for international 

students, who may be living in the UK for the first time and around the challenges of 

integrating large student populations into local communities. Continuity of care may also be 

an issue for some between ‘home’ and university providers, particularly in terms of the 

management of chronic conditions such as mental illness. Flexibility around waiting times 

and appointments that acknowledge the university timetable would be helpful. 

 

4.10 Offenders 

 
Survey results from the most recent unannounced prison inspection report for HMP 

Nottingham by HM Inspectorate of Prisons (6th to 17th January 2020)40 provides insight into 

the health needs at the prison during this time:  

 

• 59% of prisoners surveyed described themselves as having mental health problems 

• 49% of prisoners surveyed described themselves as having a disability (long-term 

physical, mental or learning needs that affect your day-to-day life). 

 

The report also highlights a range of health problems around mental health, substance 

misuse and physical health experienced by prisoners on first arrival at the prison, and the 

proportion of prisoners who had problems with:  

  

• feeling depressed, 58% 

• feeling suicidal, 26%  

• other mental health problems, 39% 

• physical health problems, 26% 

• alcohol problem, 23% 

• drug problem (including illicit drugs and medication not prescribed for personal use), 

34%. 

 

52% of prisoners said it was easy to get illicit drugs in the prison and 18% said they had 

developed a drug problem while at the prison. 

 

Levels of self-harm and suicides are higher in the prison population compared to the general 

population. Since the last inspection in January 2018, recorded levels of self-harm had 

increased substantially, and four self-inflicted deaths had occurred.  

 
40 Report on an unannounced inspection of HMP Nottingham by HM Chief Inspector of Prisons 6–17 

January 2020 Report on an unannounced inspection of HMP Nottingham by HM Chief Inspector of 
Prisons (justiceinspectorates.gov.uk) 

Page 94

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprisons/wp-content/uploads/sites/4/2020/03/Nottingham-web-2020.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprisons/wp-content/uploads/sites/4/2020/03/Nottingham-web-2020.pdf


75 

 
  

Children and young people in contact with the youth justice system can have more health 

and well-being needs than other children of their age. The most common health needs of 

young offenders in Nottingham City are likely to be: 

 

• substance misuse 

• mental health 

• poor oral health 

• respiratory problems 

• smoking  

• sexually transmitted infections. 

 

Youth offenders may have increased sexual health needs at a younger age than their non-

offending peers. They are also four times more likely to access mental health services.41 

 
4.11 Homeless and rough sleepers42 
 
Sleeping rough is dangerous and is seriously detrimental to a person’s physical and mental 

health. Research by the homeless charity Crisis43, found that people who sleep rough are 17 

times more likely to be victims of violence than the public. More than one in three people 

sleeping rough have been deliberately hit or kicked or experienced some other form of 

violence whilst homeless. Homeless people are over nine times more likely to take their own 

life than the general population. 
 

In 2019, the mean age at death for someone who is homeless in England and Wales was 

45.9 years for men and 43.4 years for women compared to 76.1 years for men and 80.9 

years for women in the general population. The number of estimated deaths of homeless 

people in 2019 was 778 deaths, the highest estimated number since 2013, when recording 

began. Most of the 778 estimated deaths were among homeless men (88.3%) and were 

related to drug poisoning in 2019 (37.1%). Suicides among homeless people increased by 

30.2% in one year, from 86 estimated deaths in 2018 to 112 estimated deaths in 2019.44 

Many people who are homeless will have significant needs in relation to:  

 

• Substance misuse – This is sometimes used by rough sleepers for self-medication or 

to help street homeless people sleep and feel less cold. According to homeless 

charity Crisis, two thirds of homeless people cite drugs or alcohol as a reason for first 

becoming homeless. Further to this, drug users are 7 times more likely to become 

homeless than the general population and 12% of homeless population have a 

mental health and substance misuse problem.  

• Physical health - Homelessness can cause the onset of poor physical health. The 

research from Homeless Link finds that three quarters of homeless people have a 

 
41 A Health Needs Assessment of Young Offenders in Nottingham City (Feb 2012) 
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/search?q=offenders# 
42 Nottingham City JSNA. Homelessness (2017) - Nottingham Insight 
43 Crisis Sanders, B. & Albanese, F. (2016) “It’s no life at all”: Rough sleepers’ experiences of violence 
and abuse on the streets of England and Wales. crisis_its_no_life_at_all2016.pdf 
44 ONS (2019): Deaths of homeless people in England and Wales:2019 registrations 

Page 95

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/search?q=offenders
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/behavioural-factors-and-wider-determinants-of-health/homelessness-2017/
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/20502/crisis_its_no_life_at_all2016.pdf


76 

 
  

physical health problem (41% have long term physical health problems). Crisis data 

indicates that 70% of homeless people suffer from physical health problems including 

respiratory, joint, muscle and stomach problems.  

• Mental health - A 2016 report from St Mungo’s45 found 40% of rough sleepers had a 

mental health problem and that people’s mental health deteriorated while they were 

sleeping rough because of stress caused by the physical hardship and lack of sleep, 

feelings of guilt, shame and isolation from friends and family.  

 

According to report by Centrepoint,46 homeless young people are amongst the most socially 

disadvantaged in society. Previous research has shown that many have complex problems 

including substance misuse, mental and physical health problems, and have suffered abuse 

or experienced traumatic events. Around 42% of homeless young people have a diagnosed 

mental health problem or report symptoms of poor mental health, 18% have attempted 

suicide, 31% have a physical health problem (such as problems with their breathing, joints 

and muscles, or frequent headaches), 21% have a history of self-harm, 52% report problems 

with their sleep, 55% smoke, and 50% use illegal substances. 

 

4.12 Traveller and gypsy communities47 

 
A number of studies have identified that the Gypsy and Traveller population faces poorer 

health outcomes when compared to the general population. Overall, Gypsy and Travellers: 

 

• live shorter lives 

• suffer from chronic ill health such as cardiovascular disease, cancers, diabetes 

asthma and other respiratory conditions, and have higher rates of stroke 

• have poorer mental health, from mild to moderate to severe and enduring conditions 

• have poorer dental health 

• have higher rates of stillbirths, perinatal mortality and post-natal depression 

• have higher rates of hereditary conditions as a result of consanguineous marriages 

• have lower levels of childhood vaccinations/immunisations 

• smoke and drink more 

• have poorer diets 

• have higher rates of accidents 

• have higher rates of domestic violence. 

 

A range of factors, such as poor accommodation, discrimination, poor health literacy, and a 

lack of cultural awareness and understanding by health professionals of Gypsy and Traveller 

health and social needs, are thought to create barriers to accessing healthcare. 

 

Being Gypsy, Roma or Traveller is usually an important part of someone’s identity. Cultural 

beliefs include considering that health problems should be dealt with by household members 

 
45 https://www.mungos.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/Stop-the-Scandal-the-case-for-action-on-
mental-health-and-rough-sleeping.pdf 
46 Toxic Mix: The health needs of homeless young people, Centrepoint 2014 
47 Welsh Government (2015). Travelling to Better Health Policy Implementation Guidance for 
Healthcare Practitioners on working effectively with Gypsies and Travellers.  

Page 96

https://www.mungos.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/Stop-the-Scandal-the-case-for-action-on-mental-health-and-rough-sleeping.pdf
https://www.mungos.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/Stop-the-Scandal-the-case-for-action-on-mental-health-and-rough-sleeping.pdf
https://centrepoint.org.uk/what-we-do/health/


77 

 
  

or kept within the extended family unit. There is also a strong gender divide, with women 

seen as the heart of the family. There is also a value of privacy. 

 

4.13 Refugees and asylum seekers48 

 
Asylum seekers, refugees and migrants are distinct groups of people with distinct differences 

from each other; however, they have a common factor in that they have all migrated from 

their country of origin. According to the office of the United Nations High Commissioner for 

Refugees (UNHCR, 2017): 

 

• A refugee is, “someone who has been forced to flee his or her country because of 

persecution, war, or violence. A refugee has a well-founded fear of persecution for 

reasons of race, religion, nationality, political opinion or membership in a particular 

social group. Most likely, they cannot return home or are afraid to do so. War and 

ethnic, tribal and religious violence are leading causes of refugees fleeing their 

countries”.  

• An asylum seeker is “someone who has asked the Government for refugee status 

and is waiting to hear the outcome of their application.” 

• A migrant “should be understood as covering all cases where the decision to migrate 

is taken freely by the individual concerned, for reasons of 'personal convenience' and 

without intervention of an external compelling factor.”  

 

Asylum seekers and refugees tend to be young people, thus commonly experiencing low 

incidences of chronic conditions such as hypertension and diabetes. Literature identifies the 

four key health needs of asylum seekers and refugees as being:  
 

• Mental health - Asylum seekers and refugees commonly experience anxiety, 

depression, and post-traumatic stress disorder and sleep problems. These symptoms 

result from the multiple losses and atrocities people have experienced, alongside 

displacement from their country of origin, social isolation, poverty and the uncertainty 

of the asylum process.  

• Maternal health - Women may have experienced rape or sexual violation leading to 

unwanted pregnancies or sexually transmitted infections. Delayed access to 

antenatal care and female genital mutilation can lead to obstetric complications. 

There is low uptake of breast and cervical screening amongst asylum seeker and 

refugee women. 

• Communicable diseases - Depending upon the country of origin and circumstances 

of migration, some groups of asylum seekers and refugees can have high rates of 

tuberculosis (TB), HIV and Hepatitis. Fear, stigma and mistrust of healthcare workers 

can lead to these conditions being under diagnosed.  

• Sexual health - Contraception may not be used due to cultural or religious reasons. 

Some may have experienced rape or sexual violation putting them at risk of sexually 

transmitted infections. 

 

 
48 Nottingham City JSNA. Asylum seekers, refugee & migrant health (2018) - Nottingham Insight 

Page 97

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/adults/asylum-seekers-refugee-migrant-health-2018/


78 

 
  

Literature suggests that in the UK, the majority of migrants tend to be from member states of 

the European Union (EU). Most migrants in the UK are young and healthy. The health needs 

of migrants are influenced by:  

 

• Country of origin – Infection, nutritional deficiency, toxic exposures 

• Migration - mental health, access to health care, health inequalities linked to socio-

economic status 

• Culture – Female Genital Mutation 

• Ethnicity – cardiovascular disease, diabetes, haemoglobinopathies. 

 

Evidence also suggests that whilst there are specific health conditions that affect some 

groups of migrants, the main issue common to them all is one of accessing health services.  

 
4.14 Military veterans 
 
Based on the Office for National Statistics (ONS) Annual Population Survey results49, there 

were estimated to be around 2.4 million veterans aged 16 and over residing in households 

across Great Britain in 2017, who had previously served at least one day in the UK Armed 

Forces. Veterans were estimated to be predominantly white (99%), male (89%) and/or aged 

65 and over (60%). By 2028, the number of veterans is expected to decrease to around 1.6 

million, with a higher proportion of veterans being of working age. The estimated veteran 

population in Nottinghamshire is 43,000, around 2% of the population.  

 

Results of the survey showed that overall, there were ‘no differences’ between veterans’ and 

non-veterans’ self-reported general health, whether any health problems suffered were 

expected to last more than 12 months and whether health problems limited activity or 

affected the amount and kind of work carried out. Veterans and non-veterans (of working 

age and retirement age) all reported the same top three health conditions, with ‘no 

difference’ between groups:  

 

• heart, blood pressure or circulatory related conditions 

• leg or feet related conditions 

• back or neck related conditions. 

 

In addition, almost one-quarter of retirement age veterans also reported difficulty in hearing 

(23%). This was ‘no different’ to retirement age non-veterans (16%). However, veterans 

aged 35 to 49 were significantly more likely than non-veterans to report problems with: 

 

• back or neck related conditions (34% and 23% respectively) 

• leg or feet related conditions (33% and 20% respectively) 

• arm or hand related conditions (22% and 13% respectively). 

 

 
49 Annual Population Survey: UK Armed Forces Veterans residing in Great Britain, 2017, Ministry of 
Defence. 

Page 98



79 

 
  

Although historically, smoking was highly prevalent within the UK Armed Forces, there were 

‘no differences’ between the percentage of veterans and non-veterans who reported that 

they currently smoke. However veterans of working age (55%) and retirement age (66%) 

were significantly more likely than non-veterans to have ever smoked (44% and 56% 

respectively). A negative association between smoking and health was found among 

veterans and non-veterans. 

 

A report from the King’s Centre for Military Health Research (September 2018) 50, found that: 

 

• Potentially harmful alcohol misuse remains a common behavioural problem in the 

armed forces but has declined steadily from 16% in 2004 to 2006 to 10% in 2014 

2016.  

• The rate of common mental disorders has remained stable at around 20% between 

2004 to 2006 and 2014 to 2016 for army regulars.  

• The prevalence of post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) varies across veteran 

groups depending on their role and their last deployment before leaving service. 

Between 2014 to 2016, in still serving regular personnel the overall prevalence was 

4.8% compared to 4.4% in the civilian population. Overall, the rate of post-traumatic 

stress disorder was significantly higher amongst ex-regular veterans at 7.4%. For 

those veterans whose last deployment had been in a combat role the rate of post-

traumatic stress disorder was as high as 17%. 

• Mental health-related stigmatisation is one barrier to care. Unwillingness to use 

mental health services is a general problem across society and is not specific to the 

UK Armed Forces. 

 

4.15 Visitors to sporting and leisure facilities in the county 
 
In 2019, there was an estimated 11.85 million tourists visiting Nottingham City, an increase 

of 1.5% from 2018. The main types of visitors to Nottingham City are: 

 

• Day visitors – 10.46 million (88.3%) of tourists visiting Nottingham City are day 

visitors. 

• Overnight stay (including visiting friends and relatives) – 1.391 million (11.7%) of 

visitors stay overnight. 

- Commercial overnight stays (excluding visiting friends and relatives) – 872,000 

(62.7%) of overnight stays are commercial overnight stays.51  

 

In 2019, Nottingham City was the eighteenth most visited town or city in the UK for overseas 

visitors staying overnight for at least one night, attracting 245,000 visitors. London was the 

most visited city in this category with 21.7 million visitors.52 ` 

 

 
50 https://www.kcl.ac.uk/kcmhr/publications/assetfiles/2018/kcmhr-admmh-factsheet-sept2018.pdf 
51 What is the value and volume of Tourism in Nottinghamshire? Value-and-Volume-of-Tourism-in-
Nottinghamshire-October-2020-STEAM-2019-report-with-change.pdf (marketingnottingham.uk) 
52 Office for National Statistics – International Passenger Survey. Travel trends - Office for National 
Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 

Page 99

https://www.kcl.ac.uk/kcmhr/publications/assetfiles/2018/kcmhr-admmh-factsheet-sept2018.pdf
https://marketingnottingham.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Value-and-Volume-of-Tourism-in-Nottinghamshire-October-2020-STEAM-2019-report-with-change.pdf
https://marketingnottingham.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Value-and-Volume-of-Tourism-in-Nottinghamshire-October-2020-STEAM-2019-report-with-change.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/leisureandtourism/articles/traveltrends/2019
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/leisureandtourism/articles/traveltrends/2019


80 

 
  

It is not anticipated that the health needs of visitors to Nottingham City are likely to be very 

different to those of its general population. As they are only in the county for a short while 

their health needs are likely to be: 

 

• treatment of an acute condition which requires the dispensing of a prescription; 

• the need for repeat medication;  

• support for self-care; or  

• signposting to other health services such as a GP or dentist or Nottingham NHS 

Urgent Care Centre. 

 

4.16 Severe Multiple Disadvantage53 

 

Severe multiple disadvantage (SMD) refers to people with two or more of the following 

issues:  

 

• mental health 

• homelessness 

• offending  

• substance misuse.  

 

It can include other sources of disadvantage, for instance poor physical health, and for 

women, domestic and sexual abuse - and for Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 

people, community isolation.  

 

Nottingham has the 8th highest prevalence of severe multiple disadvantage in England - 

currently it is estimated that over 5,000 of the Nottingham City’s citizens experience severe 

multiple disadvantage. Severe multiple disadvantage mainly originates in adverse childhood 

experiences (ACE’s), approximately 85% of people facing severe multiple disadvantage 

have experienced childhood trauma. This effects mental health which can lead to issues 

such as homelessness, substance misuse and offending. Services working with people 

facing severe multiple disadvantage struggle to meet needs, because they are mainly set up 

to deal with single issues. The consequence for people facing severe multiple disadvantage 

is their other issues prevent them successfully engaging with single issue treatment or 

support. For example substance misuse may lead to exclusion from a mental health service. 

Instead they tend to end up at “blue light services”: e.g. A&E, Ambulance calls outs, arrests 

and custody. As a result Nottingham has commissioned a severe multiple disadvantage 

service called Opportunity Nottingham54. This works in partnership with other organisations 

across the area, providing more connected treatment and support so that people are less 

likely to 'fall through the gaps' in the system. 

 

The origins of severe multiple disadvantage lie in trauma and adverse experiences in early 

life: childhood and young adulthood. Therefore the ability to work to reach the matter “at 

 
53 Nottingham City JSNA. Severe multiple disadvantage (Multiple needs) (2019) - Nottingham Insight 
54 Opportunity Nottingham. Opportunity Nottingham. Believing in people, inspiring change 

 

Page 100

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/children-and-young-people/severe-multiple-disadvantage-multiple-needs-2019/
http://www.opportunitynottingham.co.uk/


81 

 
  

source” will possibly be the biggest factor effecting levels of severe multiple disadvantage 

long term. This will likely include:  

 

• providing adequate support to families 

• improving access to support in education for young people experiencing adverse 

childhood experiences (ACE’s) 

• better access for young people to mental health services 

• providing trauma informed approaches in youth offending and substance misuse 

services working with young people 

• supporting young people through transition to adulthood - particularly those who have 

been in care.  

 
  

Page 101



82 

 
  

5 Provision of pharmaceutical services 
 

All data in this chapter is from the NHS Business Services Authority’s website55 unless 

otherwise stated. 

 

5.1 Necessary services: current provision within the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area 

 

Necessary services are defined within the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical 

Services) Regulations 2013, as amended, as those services that are provided: 

 

• Within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area and which are necessary to meet the 

need for pharmaceutical services in its area, and  

• Outside the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area but which nevertheless contribute 

towards meeting the need for pharmaceutical services within its area. 

 

For the purposes of this pharmaceutical needs assessment, the Health and Wellbeing Board 

has agreed that necessary services are: 

 

• Essential services provided at all premises included in the pharmaceutical lists, and  

• The advanced services of new medicine service, community pharmacist consultation 

service and flu vaccination. 

 

There were 63 pharmacies included in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board as of December 2021, operated by 41 different contractors. As of 

September 2022, this had increased to 64 pharmacies operated by 42 different contractors 

(see section 8.2 for further details). Of these 64 pharmacies, nine provide services for 100 

hours per week and four are distance selling premises.  

 

There are no pharmacies providing local pharmaceutical services 

 

There are three dispensing appliance contractor premises within the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s area, operated by three different contractors. It is noted that a relocation application 

was received on 11 May 2022 from a dispensing appliance contractor to relocate their 

premises from National Distribution Centre, Unit 1, Phoenix Centre, Millennium Way West, 

Nottingham, NG8 6AS, to plot B1 Fairham Business Park, Clifton, Nottingham, NG1. NHS 

England has until 11 Sept 2022 to determine the application (see section 14.2). 

 

As of March 2022, there are 46 GP practices within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, 

none of which are dispensing practices. 

 

 
55 Dispensing contractor’s data, Information Services, NHS Business Services Authority website 
 
 

Page 102

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/dispensing-contractors-data


83 

 
  

Map 4 shows the location of the pharmacy and dispensing appliance contractor premises 

within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area compared to the population density (the darker 

the colour the greater the density). Due to the size of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area 

many of the premises are not shown individually, however more detailed maps can be found 

in the locality chapters.  

 

In general the premises, in particular pharmacies, are located in areas of greater population 

density. 

 

Map 4: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to population density 

 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 5 shows the location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 

compared to levels of deprivation. In this map the darker the shading the greater the level of 

Page 103

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


84 

 
  

deprivation. As can be seen, there is a good distribution of pharmacies within the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area, particularly in the more deprived areas. 

 

Map 5: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to levels of deprivation 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 86.3% of items prescribed by GP practices in Nottingham City were 

dispensed by pharmacies within the area (86.2% in the period between April and September 

2021) and 1.3% were personally administered by the GP practices (0.7% in the period 

between April and September 2021). 

 

Two of the three dispensing appliance contractors dispensed from their premises 125 items 

prescribed by GP practices in Nottingham City in 2020 to 2021 and 91 items in the period 

between April and September 2021.  

Page 104

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


85 

 
  

5.1.1 Access to premises  

 

Nationally, standards for access to a pharmacy are quoted as 99% of the population, even 

those living in the most deprived areas, can get to a pharmacy within 20 minutes by car and 

96% by walking or using public transport56. In September 2016 the Department of Health 

and Social Care undertook a mapping exercise which confirmed that 88% of the population 

was within a 20 minute walk of a pharmacy. This data also demonstrated that 40% of all 

community pharmacies were within a ten minute walk of two or more other community 

pharmacies57.  

 

In line with the national access standards and taking into account the urban-rural split of the 

area, the Health and Wellbeing Board has chosen 20 minutes by car as a reasonable time 

for residents to take to access a pharmacy. 

 

In order to assess whether residents can access a pharmacy in line with this travel standard, 

travel times were analysed using the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities’ 

Strategic Health Asset Planning and Evaluation (SHAPE) tool.  

 

Map 6 shows that all of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area is within a 20 minute drive of 

a pharmacy outside of rush hour times. The vast majority is within 15 minutes, with the only 

exception being the area to the north and northeast of Adbolton, which is greater than a 15 

minute drive time but within 20 minutes. Google Maps reveals this to be Colwick Country 

Park, which is a non-residential area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
56 Pharmacy in England. Building on strengths – delivering the future. Department of Health April 
2008. 
57 Post-implementation report on the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 
Regulations 2013, Department of Health and Social Care March 2018 

Page 105

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmacy-in-england-building-on-strengths-delivering-the-future
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nhs-pharmaceutical-and-local-pharmaceutical-services-regulations-2013-post-implementation-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nhs-pharmaceutical-and-local-pharmaceutical-services-regulations-2013-post-implementation-review


86 

 
  

Map 6: Time taken to access a pharmacy by car outside of peak times 

 

 Travel times in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors  

 

The picture changes slightly during rush hour times with the non-residential area of Colwick 

Country Park now no longer within a 20 minute drive time as shown on Map 7.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 106

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


87 

 
  

Map 7: Time taken to access a pharmacy by car during peak times 

    

  

 Travel times in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that all residents can access a 

pharmacy within 20 minutes by private transport. 

 

As noted from the residents’ questionnaire people also choose to walk to a pharmacy or use 

public transport. Map 8 shows those areas that are within 20 minutes of a pharmacy by 

public transport. 

Page 107

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


88 

 
  

Map 8: Time taken to access a pharmacy by public transport 

 

 Travel times in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

There are four areas which are not within 20 minutes by public transport, all of which are 

non-residential areas. These are: 

 

• Colwick Country Park,  

• Clifton Wood and Clifton Grove Local Nature Reserve,  

• Riverside Family Golf Centre and Sports Complex, and 

• Parts of Bulwell Hall Golf Course and Country Park. 

 

All residents of Nottingham City are within 30 minutes of a pharmacy on foot. Map 9 shows 

that most of the residents are within 20 minutes of a pharmacy on foot. Further to this, the 

Page 108

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


89 

 
  

Strategic Health Asset Planning and Evaluation (SHAPE) tool identifies that only 6,894 

residents (2.0% of the population) cannot walk to their nearest pharmacy within 20 minutes. 

 
Map 9: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

 

 Travel times in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board therefore notes that in addition all residents can access a 

pharmacy within 20 minutes by public transport and the vast majority of residents can 

access a pharmacy within 20 minutes on foot. 

 

Responses to the residents’ questionnaire provide the following insights into accessing 

pharmacies: 

Page 109

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


90 

 
  

• 49.2% always use the same pharmacy, with 37.3% using different pharmacies but 

preferring to visit one most often. 

• 54.2% walk to a pharmacy and 37.3% drive. 

• 96.5% can get to a pharmacy within 20 minutes (38.6% said less than five minutes, 

49.1% said between five and 15 minutes, 8.8% said more than 15 minutes but less 

than 20 minutes and 3.5% said more than 20 minutes). 

• The most convenient times to visit a pharmacy are between 15:00 to 18:00 (16.9%), 

followed by both 12:00 to 15:00 and 18:00 to 21:00 (13.6% each). 39.0% said they 

do not have a preferred time to visit a pharmacy. 

• The most convenient days to visit a pharmacy are weekdays in general (18.6%) and 

Saturday (8.5%). 62.7% said they don’t have a preference for which day of the week 

they use a pharmacy. 

 

Based on the information available, the Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that across 

its patch there is good access to premises, however this may not be the case at locality 

level. 

 

5.1.2 Access to essential services and dispensing appliance contractor 

equivalent services 

 

Whilst the majority of people will visit a pharmacy during the 08:30 to 18:00 period, Monday 

to Friday, following a visit to their GP or another healthcare professional, there will be times 

when people will need or choose to access a pharmacy outside of those times. This may be 

to have a prescription dispensed after being seen by the out of hours GP service, or to 

collect dispensed items on their way to or from work or it may be to access one of the other 

services provided by a pharmacy outside of a person’s normal working day. The residents’ 

questionnaire showed that for those with a preference the period 15:00 to 18:00 is the most 

convenient time to visit a pharmacy followed by 12:00 to 15:00 and 18:00 to 21:00. 

 

Appendix K provides information on the pharmacies opening hours as of June 2022 and at 

that point in time there were: 

 

• 12 pharmacies open seven days a week  

• 14 pharmacies open Monday to Saturday 

• 9 pharmacies open Monday to Friday, and Saturday until lunchtime 

• 28 pharmacies open Monday to Friday 

 

The distance selling pharmacy which opens from the 4 August 2022 will open Monday to 

Friday. 

 

The three dispensing appliance contractor premises have core hours of Monday to Friday, 

09.00 and 17.00. One has supplementary hours extending opening hours to 8:30 to 17:30 

Monday to Friday and 8:30 to 12:30 on Saturday.  

 

Map 10 shows that all the population is within a 30 minute drive of one of the nine 100 hour 

pharmacies in Nottingham City.   

Page 110



91 

 
  

Map 10: Time taken to access a 100 hour pharmacy within Nottingham City by car 

 

 Travel times in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

When the 100 hour pharmacies in the neighbouring health and wellbeing board’s area are 

also taken into consideration, all the population is within a 15 minute drive of a 100 hour 

pharmacy, as shown on Map 11. The vast majority of residents are within a five minute drive 

of a 100 hour pharmacy. 

  

Page 111

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


92 

 
  

Map 11: Time taken to access a 100 hour pharmacy in and around Nottingham City by 
car 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

GP practices are contracted to provide services between 8:00 and 18:30, Monday to Friday, 

excluding bank and public holidays. There are also urgent primary care services operating 

across the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area which offer appointments outside of these 

times. Information on these can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

 

At the start of 2021 to 2022, there were 48 GP practices in Nottingham City. Two GP 

practices have since closed:  

 

• Bilborough Surgery closed from the 5 May 2021, and 

• Queen’s Bower Surgery in Bestwood Park closed from the 1 October 2021. 

 

Springfield Medical Centre in Bulwell will close in April 2022, with patients moving to St 

Albans and Nirmala Medical Centre, which is being expanded and refurbished to 

accommodate the increased patient list size. 

Page 112

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


93 

 
  

There are no confirmed plans for GP practice mergers or relocations that may affect access 

to pharmaceutical services during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

Based on the information available, the Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that across 

its patch there is good access to premises, however this may not be the case at locality level 

and further analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

5.1.3 Access to the new medicine service 

 

In 2020 to 2021 a total of 4,132 full service interventions were claimed over the year by 50 of 

the pharmacies. In the first six months of 2021 to 2022, a total of 3,056 full service 

interventions were claimed by 49 of the pharmacies.  

 

Figure 19 shows the pattern of claiming throughout the 2020 to 2021 financial year and for 

the first six months for 2021 to 2022 for all pharmacies. As can be seen, the coronavirus 

(COVID-19) pandemic affected service provision in the first half of 2020 to 2021. 

 

Figure 19: Number of full service interventions claimed by pharmacies in 2020 to 2021 
and April 2021 to September 2021 

 
 

In the first six months of 2021 to 2022, 49 pharmacies provided this service and Map 12 

shows the location of these pharmacies. Of the 14 pharmacies that had not provided the 

service, three are distance selling pharmacies and four are 100 hour pharmacies. 

 

There is no nationally set maximum number of new medicine service interventions that may 

be provided in a year. However the service is limited to a specific range of drugs and can 

only be provided in certain circumstances, and this therefore limits the total number of 

eligible patients.  

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
in

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

s

Month

2020 to 2021 2021 to 2022

Page 113



94 

 
  

Map 12: Location of pharmacies that have provided the new medicine service between 
April and September 2021 

 
 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that there is a good spread of providers of this 

service across its area. However, this assumes that residents are able to access the 

pharmacies providing this service which may not be the case at locality level and further 

analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

It is noted that the number of pharmacies providing this service increased to 57 during the 

later part of 2021 to 2022. 

  

Page 114

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


95 

 
  

5.1.4 Access to the NHS community pharmacist consultation service 

 

This service commenced in January 2021 and 35 pharmacies provided 491 referrals under 

this service up to the end of March 2021.  

 

In 2021 to 2022, 38 pharmacies provided 1,229 referrals between April 2021 to September 

2021. 

 

Figure 20 shows the number of referrals completed between January 2021 and September 

2021. 

 

Figure 20: Number of referrals completed January to September 2021 

 
 

Map 13 shows the location of the pharmacies that have provided the service between April 

to September 2021. 

 

  

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

al
s

Page 115



96 

 
  

Map 13: Location of pharmacies that have provided the community pharmacist 
consultation service between April and September 2021 

 
 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Whilst 38 pharmacies have provided the service in the first six months of 2021 to 2022, a 

total of 58 have signed up to provide the service i.e. 20 pharmacies had not received a 

referral between April and September 2021. The percentage of pharmacies at locality level 

which have signed up as of April 2022 is as follows: 

  

• Area Partnership 1 – 100% 

• Area Partnership 2 – 88% 

Page 116

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


97 

 
  

• Area Partnership 3 – 90% 

• Area Partnership 4 – 100% 

• Area Partnership 5 – 89% 

• Area Partnership 6 – 82% 

• Area Partnership 7 – 100% 

 

Map 14 shows the location of these 58 pharmacies. 

  
Map 14: Location of the pharmacies that have signed up to provide the community 
pharmacist consultation service, April 2022 

 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that there is a good spread of providers of this 

service across its area. However, this assumes that residents are able to access the 

Page 117



98 

 
  

pharmacies providing this service which may not be the case at locality level and further 

analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

It is noted that the number of pharmacies signed up to provide this service increased to 59 

pharmacies as of 24 July 2022. 

 

5.1.5 Access to the national influenza adult vaccination service58 

 

During the 2020 to 2021 flu season (1 September 2020 to 31 March 2021), 48 pharmacies 

provided a total of 10,182 vaccinations. The number given at pharmacy level varied from 45 

to 656 vaccinations.  

 

During the first three months of the 2021 to 2022 flu season, 47 pharmacies provided a total 

of 19,761 vaccinations. At pharmacy level, the number of vaccines given ranged from 29 to 

2,897 vaccinations across the pharmacies, as can be seen from Figure 21 below.  

 

Figure 21: Number of flu vaccinations given by individual pharmacies, September to 
December 2021 

 
 

Map 15 shows the location of the pharmacies that have provided the service between 

September to December 2021. 

  

 
58 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 
 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

N
u

m
b

er
 g

iv
en

Individual pharmacies

Page 118

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


99 

 
  

Map 15: Location of the pharmacies that have provided flu vaccinations between 
September and December 2021 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that there is a good spread of providers of this 

service across its area. However, this assumes that residents are able to access the 

pharmacies providing this service which may not be the case at locality level and further 

analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

Page 119

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


100 

 
  

5.1.6 Access to pharmaceutical services on public and bank holidays and 
Easter Sunday 
 

NHS England has a duty to ensure that residents of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area 

are able to access pharmaceutical services every day. Pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractors are not required to open on public and bank holidays, or Easter 

Sunday, although some choose to do so. 

 

Pharmacy contractors are required to advise NHS England of their opening hours on these 

days, and where necessary it will direct a contractor or contractors to open for all or part of 

these days to ensure adequate access. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore 

satisfied that there is a process in place to ensure patients are able to access 

pharmaceutical services on these days. 

 

5.2 Necessary services: current provision outside the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area 
 

5.2.1 Access to essential services and dispensing appliance contractor 

equivalent services 

 

Patients have a choice of where they access pharmaceutical services; this may be close to 

their GP practice, their home, their place of work or study or where they go for shopping, 

recreational or other reasons. Consequently, not all the prescriptions written for residents of 

Nottingham City are dispensed within the area although the vast majority of items are.  

 

Table 25 shows where prescriptions written in 2020 to 2021 and between April and 

September 2021 were dispensed, and the number of contractors that dispensed them. 

 

Table 25: Location of where prescriptions were dispensed in 2020 to 2021 and the 
between April and September 2021 

Type of contractor 
Number of items Percentage of items 

Number of 
contractors 

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 
In area - pharmacy 2,325,895 4,561,909 83.6% 84.2% 61 65 
In area - dispensing 
appliance contractor 

91 125 0.0% 0.0% 2 2 

In area - GP practice 20,391 71,350 0.7% 1.3% 45 46 
In area - distance selling 
premises  

72,779 114,655 2.6% 2.1% 3 2 

Out of area - pharmacy 264,272 517,447 9.5% 9.5% 3,961 5,469 
Out of area - dispensing 
appliance contractor 

5,558 7,092 0.2% 0.1% 23 27 

Out of area - GP practice 286 263 0.0% 0.0% 1 2 
Out of area - distance 
selling premises  

91,982 146,967 3.3% 2.7% 39 48 

Totals 2,781,254 5,419,808 100.0% 100.0% 4,135 5,661 

 

Page 120



101 

 
  

It is worth noting that during 2020 to 2021, there were two approved changes of ownership, 

and a reduction is the number of community pharmacies with three pharmacies closing at 

different stages during the year. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, a new distance 

selling pharmacy opened. There was also one approved change of ownership. 

 

For those prescriptions which were dispensed by a pharmacy or a dispensing appliance 

contractor that are outside of Nottingham City, the majority are located in the following health 

and wellbeing board areas: 

 

• Nottinghamshire (the majority at 9.2% for 2020 to 2021 and 9.3% for 2021 to 2022) 

• Leeds (predominantly by one distance selling premises and highest overall),  

• Ealing (predominantly by one distance selling premises), 

• Stoke-on-Trent (predominantly by one distance selling premises), and  

• Derby City (the highest being a community pharmacy). 

 

However, in 2020 to 2021, prescriptions were dispensed by 5,546 contractors from 150 

differed health and wellbeing boards, suggesting that people are taking their prescriptions 

with them when they go on holiday or to work or, in the case of some students – returning 

home. 

 

In the first six months of 2021 to 2022, ten contractors dispensed just over 50% of all items, 

of which: 

 

• Three are distance selling premises in Leeds, Ealing and Nottinghamshire, and 

• Seven are pharmacies in Nottinghamshire. 

 

5.2.2 Access to new medicine service, NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service and flu vaccination 

 

Information on the type of advanced services provided by pharmacies outside the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area to residents of Nottingham City is not available. When claiming 

for advanced services contractors merely claim for the total number provided for each 

service. The exception to this is the stoma appliance customisation service where payment 

is made based on the information contained on the prescription. However even with this 

service just the total number of relevant appliance items is noted for payment purposes. It 

can be assumed however that residents of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area will 

access these services from contractors outside of Nottingham City. 

 

5.3 Other relevant services 

 

‘Other relevant services’ are defined within the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended as services that are provided in 

and/or outside the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area which are not necessary to meet the 

need for pharmaceutical services but have secured improvements or better access to 

pharmaceutical services in its area. 

 

Page 121



102 

 
  

For the purposes of this pharmaceutical needs assessment, the Health and Wellbeing Board 

has agreed that other relevant services are: 

 

• Appliance use reviews, 

• Stoma appliance customisations, 

• Community pharmacy Hepatitis C antibody testing service, 

• COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service, 

• Community pharmacy hypertension case-finding service, 

• Community pharmacy smoking cessation service, 

• Emergency supply enhanced service, 

• Pharmacy first enhanced service, 

• Palliative care enhanced service, and 

• Extended care service tiers 1 and 2. 

 

5.3.1 Other relevant services within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area 

 

5.3.1.1 Access to appliance use reviews 

 

No pharmacies in the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area have provided this service 

between April 2020 and September 2021.  

 

However, according to the responses to the pharmacy contractor questionnaire:  

 

• 20 pharmacies dispense prescriptions for all appliances at their premises, and 

• One said they don’t dispense prescriptions for stoma and incontinence appliances. 

 

The service is provided by only one of the three dispensing appliance contractors.  

 

In 2019 to 2020, the dispensing appliance contractor provided 232 appliance use reviews in 

the home setting. Between April 2020 to October 2020 it appears that this service stopped 

as no appliance use reviews were provided. However, this is most likely in response to the 

coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and lockdown measures. The service started again in 

November 2020 and a total of 23 reviews were provided to March 2021. Although the 

number of reviews has increased in the first six months of 2021 to 2022, with 48 appliance 

use reviews provided by the dispensing appliance contractor in the user’s home, it remains 

lower than pre-pandemic levels. 

 

Figure 22 shows the number of appliance use reviews undertaken in the home setting 

between November 2020 to September 2021 by the dispensing appliance contractor. 

Page 122



103 

 
  

Figure 22: Number of appliance use reviews provided by the dispensing appliance 
contractor in the user’s home, November 2020 to September 2021 

 
 

Prior to September 2020, the same dispensing appliance contractor did not provide the 

appliance use review service at their premises. Between September 2020 to March 2021, 30 

appliance use reviews were provided at the contractor’s premises, most likely in response to 

the coronavirus (COVID-19) affecting provision of reviews in the user’s home. Over the first 

six months of 2021 to 2022, the number of reviews has decreased to four as shown in Figure 

23. 

 

Figure 23: Number of appliance use reviews provided by the dispensing appliance 
contractor at the contractors’ premises, September 2020 to September 2021 

 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the community-based Nottinghamshire 

appliance management service offers an annual review with a stoma nurse as part of its 

service. The review covers all of the information that's included within the appliance use 

review offered by pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors, in addition to a clinical 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
s

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
s

Page 123



104 

 
  

review. Access to specialist advice and support is also available as required. The Health and 

Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that residents are able to access this service, and 

there are no gaps in its provision. 

 

5.3.1.2 Access to stoma appliance customisations 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of five full service interventions were claimed over the year by two of 

the pharmacies. 

 

In the first six months of 2021 to 2022, a total of five full service interventions were claimed 

by three of the pharmacies. 

 

However, according to the responses to the pharmacy contractor questionnaire 20 

pharmacies said they dispense prescriptions for all appliances at their premises. 

 

All three dispensing appliance contractors provide the stoma appliance customisations 

service with the vast majority provided by one of the contractors. In 2020 to 2021, 25,906 

customisations were provided, ranging from three to 23,816 customisations at the contractor 

level. 

In the first six months of 2021 to 2022, 14,194 customisations were provided, ranging from 

six to 13,112 customisations at the contractor level. 

 

Figure 24 shows the number of stoma appliance customisations provided by dispensing 

appliance contractors each month between April 2020 to September 2021. 

 

Figure 24: Number of stoma appliance customisations provided by dispensing 
appliance contractors, by month and year 

 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that not all stoma appliances require 

customisation, and that more prescriptions for appliances are dispensed outside of its area 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
is

a
ti
o
n
s

2020 to 2021 2021 to 2022

Page 124



105 

 
  

than within it. It is therefore satisfied that residents are able to access this service, and there 

are no gaps in its provision. 

 

5.3.1.3 Access to the community pharmacy Hepatitis C antibody testing 

service 

 

As of September 2021, three pharmacies have signed up to provide this time limited service 

which was originally due to end on 31 March 2022 but has been further extended to 31 

March 2023. In the 13 months since the launch of this service (1 September 2020), no tests 

have been claimed for by the pharmacies. Nationally, only 37 tests have been provided 

between April and September 2021 and there appears to be little demand. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no gaps in the provision 

of this service.  

 

5.3.1.4 Access to the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service 

 

Between April 2021 to September 2021, 57 of the pharmacies have provided this service 

and 55,032 tests kits were supplied. This service finished in April 2022, in line with the 

ending of COVID-19 mass testing nationally. 

 

The majority of the pharmacies have provided this service and it can be provided by any 

member of the pharmacy team. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that 

there is sufficient capacity within existing contractors in relation to this service should this 

service be recommissioned in the future. 

 

5.3.1.5 Access to the community pharmacy hypertension case-finding service 

 

The hypertension case-finding pilot commenced on 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting 

the pharmaceutical needs assessment, no activity data was available.  

 

As of 8th April 2022, 35 pharmacies have registered to provide this service. Map 16 shows 

the location of these pharmacies.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this is a relatively new service. It is satisfied 

that there is a good spread of providers of this service across its area, and that more are 

expected to sign up now that focus has moved away from the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic. Further analysis is also undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

It is noted that the number of pharmacies signed up to provide this service increased to 41 

pharmacies by the 22 July 2022. 

 

Page 125



106 

 
  

Map 16: Location of the pharmacies that have signed up to provide the hypertension 
case-finding advanced services as of April 2022 

 
 

5.3.1.6 Community pharmacy smoking cessation service 

 

This new service is to support patients with their stop smoking journey after hospital 

discharge. Inpatients who start a stop smoking attempt in hospital will be able to be referred 

to a community pharmacy of their choice to receive ongoing support for their quit progress 

for up to 12 weeks. 

 

The service commenced on 10 March 2022 and therefore activity data for this service is not 

yet available. As of the 29 March 2022, seven pharmacies have signed up to provide this 

service. This increased to 17 by 18 July 2022. 

Page 126



107 

 
  

• Two pharmacies in Area Partnership 1 

• Three pharmacies in Area Partnership 2 

• Five pharmacies in Area Partnership 3 

• Two pharmacies in Area Partnership 4 

• Two pharmacies in Area Partnership 5 

• One pharmacy in Area Partnership 6 

• Two pharmacies in Area Partnership 7 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this a new service. It has also noted the 

number of providers that have signed up to provide this service and that more pharmacies 

are expected to sign-up, now that the focus has moved away from the coronavirus (COVID-

19) pandemic. Further analysis is also undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

5.3.1.7 Access to emergency supply enhanced service 

 

This service is commissioned by NHS England – Midlands from pharmacies in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area. The purpose of the service is to ensure that people can access 

an urgent supply of their regular prescription medicines where they are unable to obtain a 

prescription before they need to take their next dose. The service can only be provided 

during the GP out of hours period (i.e. from 18:30 to 08:00 Monday to Thursday, and 18:30 

Friday to 08:00 Monday, and on public and bank holidays). 

 

Unlike the community pharmacist consultation service, people do not need to be referred to 

a pharmacy by NHS 111 to receive this service. It therefore complements the provision of 

the community pharmacist consultation service. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, 38 of the 63 pharmacies are commissioned to provide the service, of which 

nine are 100 hour pharmacies and therefore open at times when the service is to be 

provided. Due to the fact that it can only be provided during the GP out of hours period it 

cannot be provided by those pharmacies that close at or before 18:30 Monday to Friday and 

do not open at the weekend. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this service is currently being reviewed. It 

has also noted the spread of providers of this service across its area and that provision has 

been affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19). It is satisfied that provision will only increase if 

the service is to continue. Further analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

5.3.1.8 Access to Pharmacy First enhanced service 

 

This service is commissioned by– Midlands from pharmacies in the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s area. It is available to persons registered with a GP practice within the NHS 

Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group area, who are exempt from 

paying prescription charges. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, 43 of the 63 pharmacies are commissioned to provide the service.  

 

Page 127



108 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this service is currently being reviewed. It 

has also noted the spread of providers of this service across its area and that provision has 

been affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19). It is satisfied that provision will only increase if 

the service is to continue. Further analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

5.3.1.9 Access to palliative care enhanced service 

 

This service is commissioned by NHS England – Midlands from pharmacies in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, five of the pharmacies are commissioned to provide the service, two of 

which are 100 hour pharmacies.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this service is currently being reviewed. It 

has also noted the spread of providers of this service across its area and that provision has 

been affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19). It is satisfied that provision will only increase if 

the service is to continue. Further analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

5.3.1.10 Access to extended care enhanced service – tier 1 

 

This service is commissioned by NHS England – Midlands from pharmacies in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, 27 pharmacies are commissioned to provide the conjunctivitis service and 

the urinary tract infection service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this service is currently being reviewed. It 

has also noted the spread of providers of this service across its area and that provision has 

been affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19). It is satisfied that provision will only increase if 

the service is to continue. Further analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

 

5.3.1.11 Access to extended care enhanced service – tier 2 

 

This service is commissioned by NHS England – Midlands from pharmacies in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, 17 pharmacies are commissioned to provide the service.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that this service is currently being reviewed. It 

has also noted the spread of providers of this service across its area and that provision has 

been affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19). It is satisfied that provision will only increase if 

the service is to continue. Further analysis is undertaken within the locality chapters. 

  

Page 128



109 

 
  

5.3.1.12 NHS Smoking Cessation Service Pilot: Transfer of Care to Community 

Pharmacy from Maternity Services 

 

Under this pilot commissioned by NHS England, the maternity service at Nottingham 

University Hospitals NHS Trust will determine the smoking status of pregnant women and 

household members and refer those who smoke to a pharmacy of their choice so that they 

can receive ongoing treatment, advice and support with their attempt to quit smoking. 

  

Those referred under the pilot will be offered consultations at their choice of pharmacy (from 

the list of participating pharmacies) for a 12-week period. The consultations will include the 

provision of behavioural support and supply of nicotine replacement therapy by an 

appropriately trained smoking cessation practitioner. 

  

Only those pharmacy contractors who are within the pilot area can register for the pilot 

service, which launched on the 17 March 2022. As of 11 April 2022, eight pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service: 

 

• Two are in Area Partnership 1 

• Two are in Area Partnership 2 

• Three are in Area Partnership 3 

• One is in Area Partnership 4 

 

It is expected that the number of pharmacies providing the service will increase. 

 

5.3.2 Other relevant services provided outside the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s area 

 

Information on the appliance use review and stoma appliance customisation services 

provided by pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors outside the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area to residents of Nottingham City is not available due to the way 

contractors claim. It can be assumed however that residents of the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s area will access these two services from pharmacies and dispensing appliance 

contractors outside of Nottingham City. 

 

It is also possible that residents will have accessed enhanced services from pharmacies 

outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area, but again this information is not available. 

 

5.4 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 

 

As can be seen from sections 5.1 and 5.2, the residents of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 

area currently exercise their choice of where to access pharmaceutical services to a 

considerable degree.  

 

Within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area they have a choice of 64 pharmacies 

(operated by 42 different contractors), and three dispensing appliance contractor premises 

(operated by three different contractors). Outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area 

Page 129



110 

 
  

residents chose to access a further 5,517 pharmacy contractors and 27 appliance 

contractors in 2020 to 2021. Between April 2021 to September 2021, residents chose to 

access 4,000 pharmacy contractors and 23 appliance contractor premises, although many 

were not used on a regular basis. 

 

When asked what influences their choice of pharmacy the top seven responses in the 

residents’ questionnaire were: 

 

• ‘close to my home’;  

• ‘the location is easy to get to’;  

• ‘close to my doctor’; 

• ‘it is easy to park at the pharmacy’; 

• ‘I trust the staff who work there’; 

• ‘the pharmacy has good opening hours’; and 

• ‘they usually have what I need in stock’. 

 

Figure 25 shows the full range of responses provided to this question. 

 

Figure 25: We would like to know what influences your choice of pharmacy. Please 
could you tell us why you use this pharmacy? 

 
 
Where the response ‘other’ was chosen the following broad themes were identified:  

 

Prescriptions being sent electronically or manually from the practice to the pharmacy: 

 

• “One is linked to my doctors for my prescriptions” 

• “It is my chosen e linked pharmacy to my GP” 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

The pharmacy was recommended to me
It is very accessible ie wheelchair/baby buggy friendly

Close to children’s school or nursery
The pharmacy delivers my medicines

The pharmacy collects my prescription and delivers my…
The staff don’t know me

I’ve always used this pharmacy
Close to work

It’s a well-known big chain
Other

Close to other shops
I just like the pharmacy

The pharmacy provide good advice and information
The service is fast

It’s not one of the big chains
The staff know me and look after me

The customer service
The service is quick

They usually have what I need in stock
The pharmacy has good opening hours

I trust the staff who work there
It is easy to park at the pharmacy

Close to my doctor
The location of the pharmacy is easy to get to

Close to my home

Number of responses

Page 130



111 

 
  

• “Electronic script goes through this pharmacy. They used to sort any repeats on my 

behalf but GP practice no longer allows this to happen.”  

 

The range and standard of services provided: 

 

• “Texts when my routine prescription is ready”  

• “They don’t charge to deliver”  

• “They 'go the extra mile' to look after their patients.” 

• “Offer good range of products, and health care services (flu, covid vax, etc) in 

addition to medication dispensing.” 

• “I use the same one because its reliable service. The one closer to me was 

disgracefully bad service.” 

 

When asked if there is a more convenient and/or closer pharmacy that respondents choose 

not to use 56% replied no, 34% replied yes, and 10% said they didn’t know. Figure 26 shows 

the responses as to why a more convenient and/or closer pharmacy is not used. 

 
Figure 26: Please could you tell us why you do not use that pharmacy? 

 
 

The reasons provided from those respondents who chose ‘other’ in response to this question 

varied and were: 

 

• “Fifty years of habit.” 

• “I prefer using the bigger chain pharmacy where I can trust the dispensing 

pharmacist is appropriately qualified” 

• “Very small and routinely has my neighbours in there!” 

• “It’s not close to my doctor and in opposite direction to home”  

• “It's not on public transport route” 

• “They charge for delivery”  

• “Terrible service”  

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

The pharmacy doesn’t deliver medicines

It’s not wheelchair/baby buggy friendly

The staff are always changing

I have had a bad experience in the past

The staff don’t know me

They don’t have what I need in stock

There is not enough privacy

It is not easy to park at the pharmacy

It’s not open when I need it

Other

The service is too slow

Number of responses

Page 131



112 

 
  

6 Other NHS services 
 

The following NHS services are deemed, by the Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing 

Board, to affect the need for pharmaceutical services within its area. 

 

• Hospital pharmacies – overall reduce the demand for the dispensing essential 

service as prescriptions written in hospitals are mainly dispensed by the hospital 

pharmacy service 

• Personal administration of items by GPs – similar to hospital pharmacies this also 

reduces the demand for the dispensing essential service. Items are sourced and 

personally administered by GPs and other clinicians at the practice thus saving 

patients having to take a prescription to a pharmacy, for example for a vaccination, in 

order to then return with the vaccine to the practice so that it may be administered 

• GP out of hours service – whether a patient is given a full or part course of treatment 

after being seen by the out of hours service will depend on the nature of their 

condition. This service will therefore affect the need for pharmaceutical services, in 

particular the essential service of dispensing 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service - generates prescriptions which 

affects the need for the dispensing essential service 

• Continence prescription services - generates prescriptions which affects the need for 

the dispensing essential service 

• Community nurse prescribers - generates prescriptions which affects the need for the 

dispensing essential service 

• Notspar - generates prescriptions which affects the need for the dispensing essential 

service 

• Urgent primary care services - generates prescriptions which affects the need for the 

dispensing essential service 

• Nottingham City General Practice Alliance GP+ Nottingham City service - generates 

prescriptions which affects the need for the dispensing essential service 

• Dental practitioners - generates prescriptions which affects the need for the 

dispensing essential service 

• Public health services commissioned by Nottingham City Council (substance misuse, 

needle exchange and sexual health services) - all these services remove the need 

for them to be commissioned as enhanced services by NHS England from 

pharmacies 

 

6.1 Hospital pharmacies 

 

Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust is a teaching hospital with a national and 

international reputation. It has three sites within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area: 

 

• Nottingham City Hospital is Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust’s planned 

care site, with a cancer centre, heart centre and stroke services. Some emergency 

admissions units are also located on the site. The pharmacy located in Nottingham 

City Hospital dispenses hospital and GP prescriptions and provides related services 

to the patients, visitors and staff of the hospital.  

Page 132



113 

 
  

• Queen’s Medical Centre is home to Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust’s 

emergency department, major trauma centre and Nottingham Children’s Hospital. It 

is also home to the University of Nottingham’s School of Nursing and Medical School. 

The pharmacy located on the campus dispenses hospital and GP prescriptions and 

provides related services to the patients, visitors and staff. 

• Ropewalk House site is where a range of outpatient services are provided, including 

hearing services. 

 

Overall, the majority of patients receiving treatment at Nottingham University Hospitals will 

have their prescription(s) dispensed by the hospital pharmacies. However, some patients will 

have their medicines dispensed in the community through the issue of a FP10(HP) 

prescription. Between January to December 2021, 8,028 items on FP10(HP) prescriptions 

were dispensed by 404 contractors in 39 different health and wellbeing boards areas, the 

main ones being: 

 

• Nottinghamshire – 150 contractors dispensed 57.3% of items  

• Nottingham City – 63 contractors dispensed 36.0% of items 

• Derbyshire – 52 contractors dispensed 2.6% of items  

• Lincolnshire – 43 contractors dispensed 1.5% of items 

• Leicestershire – 27 contractors dispensed 1.1% of items 

 

The remaining 1.5% was dispensed by 69 other contractors in 34 different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

Over the same period, the following FP10(HP) prescription items were dispensed by 

contractors in Nottingham City from the following neighbouring hospitals: 

 

• Sherwood Forest Hospital NHS Trust - 257 of the 59,426 prescription items (0.4%) 

• Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust – eight of the 

58,639 prescription items (0.0%)  

 

6.2 Personal administration of items by GPs 

 

Under their primary medical services contract with NHS England there will be occasion 

where a GP or other healthcare profession at the practice personally administers an item to 

a patient.  

 

Generally, when a patient requires a medicine or appliance their GP will give them a 

prescription which is dispensed by their preferred pharmacy or dispensing appliance 

contractor. In some instances however the GP or other healthcare professional will supply 

the item against a prescription. This is referred to as personal administration as the item that 

is supplied will then be administered to the patient by the GP or the nurse. This is different to 

the dispensing of prescriptions and only applies to certain specified items for example 

vaccines, anaesthetics, injections, intra-uterine contraceptive devices and sutures. 

 

Page 133



114 

 
  

For these items the practice will produce a prescription however the patient is not required to 

take it to a pharmacy, have it dispensed and then return to the practice for it to be 

administered. Instead, the practice will retain the prescription and submit it for 

reimbursement to the NHS Business Services Authority at the end of the month. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, GP practices personally administered a total of 71,350 items. Between April 

2021 and September 2021, a total of 20,391 items were personally administered. 

 

6.3 GP out of hours service  

 

The GP out of hours service provide services on weekday evenings and overnight from 

18.30 to 08.00 and 24 hours a day at weekends and on public and bank holidays. 

 

6.3.1 NEMS GP out of hours service 

 

This service provides urgent medical care and advice for people who live in Nottingham City 

and the south of Nottinghamshire. Most people access the service via the NHS 111 

telephone service and may be seen by a clinician, or receive a telephone consultation or a 

home visit, depending on their needs. Patients may also be referred from the hospital 

accident and emergency department. The out-of-hours service is provided at Station Street, 

Nottingham, NG2 3AJ. 

 

The service prescribed 8,806 items in 2020 to 2021 which were dispensed by 289 different 

pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors as follows: 

 

• Nottingham City – 66 contractors dispensed 48.5% of the items 

• Nottinghamshire – 136 contractors dispensed 48.5% 

• Derbyshire – 38 contractor dispensed 2.1% 

 

The remaining 1.0% was dispensed by 49 other contractors in 19 different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

6.4 Nottinghamshire appliance management service 

 

This service is provided across Nottingham City and Nottinghamshire County. It is a 

confidential, discreet service, supported by a team of prescription coordinators and specialist 

stoma nurses. The service ensures that prescriptions are issued in a timely manner to the 

patient’s dispenser of choice (pharmacy, dispensing appliance contractor or dispensing 

doctor) and that the prescribed products are appropriate for the patient’s needs. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 54,858 items were prescribed which were dispensed by 115 

different pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors as follows: 

 

• Peterborough – two contractors dispensed 39.5% of the items 

• Nottinghamshire – 51 contractors dispensed 26.4% 

• Derbyshire – one contractor dispensed 18.3% 

Page 134



115 

 
  

• Nottingham City – 23 contractors dispensed 7.5% 

• Buckinghamshire – one contractor dispensed 2.2% 

 

The remaining 6.3% was dispensed by 37 other contractors in 28 different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

6.5 Continence prescription service 

 

The continence prescription service offers prescribing for patients within the community who 

use continence appliances, such as: 

 

• Urinary catheters (indwelling and intermittent), 

• Urinary sheaths, 

• Urinary drainage systems, 

• Urinals, and 

• Trans-anal irrigation equipment   

 

Specialist continence nurse prescribers ensure that appropriate continence appliances are 

prescribed for patients according to their individual clinical needs. Prescriptions are sent to a 

pharmacy, dispensing appliance contractor or address of the patient’s choice. 

 

The service also offers advice and support to patients, carers and healthcare professionals 

regarding the appliances used and best management of their continence. A specialist 

catheter outreach nurse can provide support to community nursing staff with complex 

catheterisations to help avoid hospital admission. Support is also provided to patients using 

intermittent self-catheterisation and / or urinary sheaths. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 17,212 items were prescribed which were dispensed by 119 

different pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors, as follows: 

 

• Peterborough – one contractor dispensed 30.6% of the items 

• Nottingham City – 61 contractors dispensed 29.1% 

• Nottinghamshire – 31 contractors dispensed 17.0%  

• Salford – one contractor dispensed 10.8% 

• Stoke on Trent – one contractor dispensed 6.4% 

 

The remaining 6.2% was dispensed by 24 other contractors in 20 different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

6.6 Community nurse prescribers 

 

Community nurses, for example district nurses, may prescribe items required by the patients 

under their care. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 2,129 items were prescribed which were dispensed by 80 different 

pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors, as follows: 

Page 135



116 

 
  

• Nottinghamshire – 62 contractors dispensed 80.4% of the items 

• Salford – one contractor dispensed 16.7% 

• Nottingham City – eleven contractors dispensed 1.7% 

 

The remaining 1.3% was dispensed by six other contractors in four different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

6.7 Notspar 

 

This service provides primary medical services to people who have been removed from their 

GP practice’s patient list in certain circumstances. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 5,115 items were prescribed which were dispensed by 32 different 

pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors. 

 

• Nottingham City – 22 contractors dispensed 96.9% of the items 

• Nottinghamshire – six contractors dispensed 1.8% 

• Luton – one contractor dispensed 1.2% 

 

The remaining 0.1% was dispensed by three other contractors in two different health and 

wellbeing board areas (Cambridgeshire and Luton). 

 

6.8 Urgent primary care services 

 

6.8.1 Nottingham NHS Urgent Treatment Centre  

 

The Nottingham NHS Urgent Treatment Centre is a Clinician-led service that provides face-

to-face and healthcare advice. The centre offers assessment and treatment for health 

conditions that are urgent but non-life threatening such as: 

• Minor burns or scalds 

• Minor head injury with no loss of consciousness 

• Skin infections or animal bites 

• Suspected broken bones, sprains and strains (X-ray service available) 

• Eye infections or minor eye injuries 

 

The service is based at Seaton House, City Link, NG2 4LA and is located next to the BBC 

on a business park close to the city centre and railway station. It is open 365 days a year 

between 7am and 9pm.  It is a walk in service and no appointment is needed. 

The service is currently provided by Nottingham CityCare, a social enterprise and provider of 

NHS services. However the level of prescribing activity is unknown. 

 

 

  

Page 136



117 

 
  

6.8.2 NEMS Urgent Treatment Unit  

 

This is based at Queens Medical Centre and operates daily (24 hour service). It provides 

Urgent Treatment Unit Services to patients attending Queens Medical Centre Emergency 

Department with primary care needs. It also provides Pathways Service for GPs and 

operates during normal GP surgery hours and into the evening, offering GP alternatives to 

hospital admission for a range of urgent medical and surgical problems. See section 6.3.1 

for information on level of prescribing activity.  

 

6.8.3 Nottingham, Mansfield and Newark 

 

This service is an urgent care centre based next to the Kings Mill Hospital emergency 

department that provides medical care for people who do not need emergency department 

care. It is a nurse-led service and is supported by GPs in the out of hours period (weekday 

evenings and overnight from 18.30 to 08.00 and 24 hours a day at weekends and on public 

and bank holidays). It is accessed via the NHS 111 telephone service. 

 

5,500 items were prescribed in 2020 to 2021 which were dispensed by 176 different 

pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors. 

 

• Nottinghamshire – 92 contractors dispensed 89.3% of the items 

• Derbyshire – 42 contractor dispensed 9.2% 

• Nottingham City – 14 contractors dispensed 0.8% 

 

The remaining 0.7% was dispensed by 29 other contractors in 14 different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

6.9 Nottingham City General Practice Alliance GP+ Nottingham City 

service 

 

All patients registered at practices in Nottingham City can access additional routine 

appointments at evenings and weekends through this service. Launched in April 2018, it is 

Nottingham’s first city-wide extended hours GP Service. 

 

The service offers appointments with GPs, practice nurses, clinical pharmacists, 

physiotherapists and stop smoking advisors in a fully equipped accessible location in the 

heart of Nottingham city. It operates Monday to Friday 16.00 to 20.00, and at the weekend 

between 10.00 and 14.00. Appointments are made via the patient’s registered GP practice. 

 

18,113 items were prescribed in 2020 to 2021 which were dispensed by 300 

pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors. 

 

• Nottingham City – 66 contractors dispensed 90.9% of the items 

• Nottinghamshire – 72 contractors dispensed 6.5% 

• Leeds – one contractor dispensed 0.6% 

 

Page 137



118 

 
  

The remaining 2.0% was dispensed by 161 other contractors in 72 different health and 

wellbeing board areas. 

 

6.10 Prisons 

 

HMP Nottingham is a men’s prison in the Sherwood area of Nottingham and serves the 

courts in Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire. The prison has a pharmacy department and 

currently employs pharmacy technicians. All medicines are obtained from an offsite 

community pharmacy which also provides clinical support to the prison’s pharmacy team. 

  

6.11 Dentists 

 

Dental Practitioners can only prescribe products included in the Dental Prescribing 

Formulary (Part XVIIA of the Drug Tariff) and on an FP10D prescription. In 2020 to 2021, 

40,331 items (0.9% of all dental items) prescribed in England by a dental practitioner on an 

FP10D prescription were dispensed by 66 contractors in Nottingham City. 

 

6.12 Nottingham City commissioned public health services 

 

6.12.1 Substance misuse services 

 

The council commissions the following substance misuse services from pharmacies: 

 

• Needle exchange – this service involves the provision of sterile needles and syringes 

and sharps containers for return of used equipment. Where agreed locally, 

associated materials, for example condoms, citric acid and swabs, to promote safe 

injecting practice and reduce transmission of infections by substance misusers may 

also be provided. 

• Supervised consumption - this service requires the pharmacist to supervise the 

consumption of prescribed medicines at the point of dispensing in the pharmacy, 

ensuring that the dose has been administered to the patient. 

 

6.12.2 Emergency hormonal contraception 

 

The council commissions some pharmacies to provide emergency hormonal contraception. 

Emergency contraception has the potential to reduce unintended pregnancy rates, thereby 

reducing the number of terminations. Equitable provision of and easier access to emergency 

hormonal contraception via pharmacies has the potential to improve the effectiveness of this 

contraceptive method by reducing the time interval between unprotected intercourse and 

initiation of treatment.  

 

Pharmacists commissioned to provide the service will supply emergency hormonal 

contraception when appropriate to clients aged 13 years to 24 years free of charge. The 

pharmacy will provide support and advice to clients accessing the service, including advice 

on the avoidance of pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections through safer sex and 

Page 138



119 

 
  

condom use, advice on the use of regular contraceptive methods and provide onward 

signposting to services that provide long-term contraceptive methods and diagnosis and 

management of sexually transmitted infections. 

 

6.12.3 C Card scheme 

 

The C-Card Scheme is a condom distribution scheme for young people aged 13 to 24 which 

offers access to free condoms in a wide range of places, including pharmacies. It aims to 

reduce both unintended conceptions and the number of sexually transmitted infections.  

 

The C-Card contract in Nottingham has recently ended and the current future provision of 

this service is being considered as part of a current strategic commissioning review. 

 

6.12.4 Chlamydia screening and treatment 

 

The council commissions some pharmacies to provide chlamydia screening and treatment 

services, which reflects the aims of the National Chlamydia Screening Programme (NCSP). 

Community pharmacies can offer a convenient and easily accessible location to provide the 

target group of 15 to 24 year old people with advice and information regarding Chlamydia 

infection and to offer them screening and treatment where appropriate. The service 

complements the provision of Emergency Hormonal Contraception (EHC), by offering a more 

holistic sexual health care service to this user group. 

 

The chlamydia screening and treatment service provides appropriate, opportunistic advice 

and support to clients about sexually transmitted infections (STIs). It promotes good sexual 

health and safer sex, as well as signposting to other sexual health services. In addition, it 

requires those pharmacists commissioned to provide the screening service to supply a 

chlamydia testing kit to eligible clients. Pharmacists commissioned to provide the treatment 

service are required to supply a course of Doxycycline and advice on potential side effects 

and drug interactions to eligible clients. 

 

  

Page 139



120 

 
  

7 Health needs that can be met by pharmaceutical services 
 

In England there are an estimated 1.2 million health related issue visits to a pharmacy every 

day59 and these provide a valuable opportunity to support behaviour change through making 

every one of these contacts count. Making healthy choices such as stopping smoking, 

improving diet and nutrition, increasing physical activity, losing weight and reducing alcohol 

consumption could make a significant contribution to reducing the risk of disease, improving 

health outcomes for those with long-term conditions, reducing premature death and 

improving mental wellbeing. Pharmacies are ideally placed to encourage and support people 

to make these healthy choices as part of the provision of pharmaceutical services and 

services commissioned by the council and, currently, the clinical commissioning groups. 

 

As can be seen from this section, it is important that NHS England, the clinical 

commissioning groups and the public health team at Nottingham City Council work together 

to maximise the local impact of health communications, messages and opportunities.  

 

Promotion of the services that pharmacies provide is undertaken in a number of ways 

including pharmacies ensuring that their NHS website60 profile is up-to-date, which is now a 

contractual requirement. 

 

7.1 Need for drugs and appliances 

 

Everyone will at some stage require prescriptions to be dispensed irrespective of whether or 

not they are in one of the groups identified in section four. This may be for a one-off course 

of antibiotics or for medication that they will need to take, or an appliance that they will need 

to use, for the rest of their life in order to manage a long-term condition. This health need 

can only be met within primary care by the provision of pharmaceutical services be that by 

pharmacies, dispensing appliance contractors or dispensing doctors. 

 

Coupled with this is the safe collection and disposal of unwanted or out of date dispensed 

drugs. Both NHS England and pharmacies have a duty to ensure that people living at home, 

in a children’s home or in a residential care home can return unwanted or out of date 

dispensed drugs for their safe disposal. 

 

Distance selling premises will receive prescriptions remotely (either via the electronic 

prescription service, or post) and are required to deliver all dispensed items. This will clearly 

be of benefit to people who are unable to access a pharmacy. In addition dispensing 

appliance contractors deliver the majority, if not all, of the items they dispense. 

 

NHS England commissions an emergency supply enhanced service from pharmacies during 

the GP practice out of hours period (Monday to Thursday 18.30 to 08.00, 18.30 Friday to 

08.00 Monday, and all day on public and bank holidays). The purpose of this service is to 

ensure that people can, where the pharmacist deems it appropriate, access an urgent supply 

 
59 Public Health England, Royal Society of Public Health (2016) Building Capacity: Realising the 
potential of community pharmacy assets for improving the public’s health 
60 https://www.nhs.uk/  

Page 140

https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-work/policy/wider-public-health-workforce/pharmacies-in-the-community.html
https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-work/policy/wider-public-health-workforce/pharmacies-in-the-community.html
https://www.nhs.uk/


121 

 
  

of their regular prescription medicines where they are unable to obtain a prescription before 

they need to take their next dose. The service may be needed because the person has run 

out of a medicine, or because they have lost or damaged their medicines, or because they 

have left home without them. This service complements the national community pharmacist 

consultation service. 

 

NHS England commissions a palliative care drugs service from pharmacies to provide easy 

access to such drugs by ensuring that there is on-demand supply available from a network 

of pharmacies. Under the service the pharmacist will provide advice to health care 

professionals regarding the prescribing or dosage of palliative care drugs that should be 

administered to a patient, and information and advice relating to the use of palliative care 

drugs to patients and their carers. 

 

7.2 Alcohol and drug use 

 

As needle exchange and the supervised consumption of substance misuse medicines are 

commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of this 

pharmaceutical needs assessment there is or will be a need for either service to be 

commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services. 

 

However, there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this 

health need. 

 

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include drug and alcohol abuse. Health 

campaigns could include raising awareness about the risks of alcohol consumption 

through discussing the risks of alcohol consumption over the recommended 

amounts, displaying posters and distributing leaflets, scratch cards and other relevant 

materials. 

• Where the pharmacy does not provide the locally commissioned services of needle 

exchange and the supervised consumption of substance misuse medicines, 

signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of the services. 

• Signposting people who are potentially dependent on alcohol to local specialist 

alcohol treatment providers. 

• Using the opportunity presented when people attend the pharmacy to discuss the 

risks of alcohol consumption and during health campaigns or in discussion with 

customers requesting particular over the counter medicines, to raise awareness of 

the risks of alcohol misuse. 

• Providing healthy living advice during consultations and engagement with people 

attending the pharmacy. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing advanced service aims to increase the level of testing for 

Hepatitis C amongst people who inject drugs (for example steroids or heroin) but who 

haven’t yet moved to the point of accepting treatment for their substance use. National data 

demonstrates that this group of individuals accounts for 90% of all new Hepatitis C infections 

Page 141



122 

 
  

and therefore provision of this advanced service, or signposting people to pharmacies that 

do provide it, will help contribute to: 

 

• An increase in the number of diagnoses, 

• Permit effective interactions to lessen the burden of illness to the individual, 

• Decrease long-term costs of treatment, and 

• Decrease onward transmission of Hepatitis C. 

 

7.3 Cancer 

 

In addition to dispensing prescriptions, pharmacies can contribute to many of the public 

health issues relating to cancer care as part of the essential services they provide. 

 

• Where a person presents a prescription, and they appear to have diabetes, be at risk 

of coronary heart disease (especially those with high blood pressure), smoke or are 

overweight, the pharmacy is required to give appropriate advice with the aim of 

increasing that person’s knowledge and understanding of the health issues which are 

relevant to their circumstances. 

• Disposal of unwanted drugs, including controlled drugs. 

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include cancer awareness and/or screening. 

• Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of services or support, for 

example providers of smoking cessation services. 

 

NHS England commissions a palliative care drugs service from pharmacies to provide easy 

access to such drugs by ensuring that there is on-demand supply available from a network 

of pharmacies. Under the service the pharmacist will provide advice to health care 

professionals regarding the prescribing or dosage of palliative care drugs that should be 

administered to a patient, and information and advice relating to the use of palliative care 

drugs to patients and their carers. 

 

7.4 Long-term conditions 

 

In addition to dispensing prescriptions, pharmacies can contribute to many of the public 

health issues relating to long-term conditions as part of the essential services they provide. 

 

• Where a person presents a prescription, and they appear to have diabetes, be at risk 

of coronary heart disease (especially those with high blood pressure), smoke or are 

overweight, the pharmacy is required to give appropriate advice with the aim of 

increasing that person’s knowledge and understanding of the health issues which are 

relevant to their circumstances. 

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include long-term conditions. 

Page 142



123 

 
  

• Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of services or support, for 

example providers of smoking cessation services. 

• Providing healthy living advice during consultations and engagement with people 

attending the pharmacy. 

 

Provision of the discharge medicine service, community pharmacist consultation service, 

appliance use review, stoma appliance customisation, new medicine service, flu vaccination 

and hypertension case-finding advanced services will also assist people to manage their 

long-term conditions in order to maximise their quality of life.  

 

NHS England commissions a palliative care drugs service from pharmacies to provide easy 

access to such drugs by ensuring that there is on-demand supply available from a network 

of pharmacies. Under the service the pharmacist will provide advice to health care 

professionals regarding the prescribing or dosage of palliative care drugs that should be 

administered to a patient, and information and advice relating to the use of palliative care 

drugs to patients and their carers. 

 

7.5 Obesity 

 

Four elements of the essential services will address this health need. 

 

• Where a person presents a prescription, and they are overweight, the pharmacy is 

required to give appropriate advice with the aim of increasing the person’s knowledge 

and understanding of the health issues which are relevant to their circumstances. 

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include obesity. 

• Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of services or support. 

This may include referring people to the NHS Digital Weight Management 

programme61. 

• Providing healthy living advice during consultations and engagement with people 

attending the pharmacy. 

 

7.6 Sexual health 

 

As chlamydia screening and treatment, and emergency hormonal contraception services are 

commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of this 

pharmaceutical needs assessment there is or will be a need for it to be commissioned as 

part of pharmaceutical services. 

 

However there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this health 

need. 

 

 
61 The NHS Digital Weight Management Programme 

Page 143

https://www.england.nhs.uk/digital-weight-management/


124 

 
  

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include sexually transmitted infections and 

Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV). 

• Where the pharmacy does not provide the locally commissioned service for 

chlamydia screening and/or treatment, signposting people using the pharmacy to 

other providers of this service. 

• Where the pharmacy does not provide the locally commissioned service of 

emergency hormonal contraception provision, signposting people using the 

pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

• Providing healthy living advice during consultations and engagement with people 

attending the pharmacy. 

 

7.7 Teenage pregnancy 

 

As emergency hormonal contraception provision is commissioned by the council, it is not 

envisaged that within the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment there is or will be 

a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services. 

 

However, there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this 

health need. 

 

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include teenage pregnancy. 

• Where the pharmacy does not provide the locally commissioned service of 

emergency hormonal contraception provision, signposting people using the 

pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

 

7.8 Smoking  

 

The new advanced stop smoking service that started in March 2022 enables NHS trusts to 

refer patients discharge from hospital to a pharmacy of their choice to continue their smoking 

cessation care pathway. This may include providing medication and behavioural support as 

required. 

 

However, there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this 

health need. 

 

• Where a person presents a prescription, and they appear to have diabetes, be at risk 

of coronary heart disease (especially those with high blood pressure), smoke or are 

overweight, the pharmacy is required to give appropriate advice with the aim of 

increasing that person’s knowledge and understanding of the health issues which are 

relevant to their circumstances. 

Page 144



125 

 
  

• Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns 

are selected by NHS England and could include smoking. 

• Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers that offer a smoking 

cessation service. 

• Routinely discussing stopping smoking when selling relevant over the counter 

medicines. 

• Providing healthy living advice during consultations and engagement with people 

attending the pharmacy. 

 

7.9 Healthy living 

 

Following agreement between the Department of Health and Social Care, NHS England and 

the Pharmaceutical Services Negotiating Committee (PSNC) all pharmacies, as part of 

essential services, are required to promote healthy living by being healthy living pharmacies. 

The aim of this is to maximise the role of the pharmacy in prevention of ill health, reduction 

of disease burden, reduction of health inequalities and in support of health and wellbeing. 

The healthy living pharmacy concept is designed to develop (in respect of health and 

wellbeing services):  

 

• The community pharmacy workforce, 

• Community pharmacy engagement with the general public (including “Making Every 

Contact Count”), 

• Community pharmacy engagement with local stakeholders such as local authorities, 

voluntary organisations and other health and social care professionals, and  

• The environment in which health and wellbeing services are delivered. 

 

First piloted in Portsmouth in 2009, the objective of healthy living pharmacies is to create 

teams that are aware of local health issues and are consistently demonstrating they are 

promoting healthy lifestyles by tackling the health problems their populations face head on. 

 

As part of the acceptable system of clinical governance and promotion of healthy living that 

all pharmacies are required to participate in, pharmacies will undertake an approved 

community engagement exercise at least once a year in relation to the promotion of healthy 

living. As part of these exercises, pharmacies must:  

 

• actively work in collaboration with other organisations to deliver pharmacy outreach 

and any locally commissioned services, and  

• take prevention and health promotion services beyond the pharmacy premises. 

Pharmacy outreach may be face-to-face or virtual and take services to people where 

they live or spend time.  

 

7.10 Minor ailments 

 

NHS England commissions a minor ailments service (also known as Pharmacy First) and an 

extended care services from pharmacies. These services aim to ensure that patients can 

Page 145



126 

 
  

easily access self-care advice for the treatment of a range of common conditions, and, 

where appropriate, can be supplied with antibiotics or other prescription only medicines to 

treat certain specific conditions. 

  

Where a pharmacy doesn’t provide one or all of these services there are elements of the 

essential services that will help address this health need. 

  

• Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

• Providing healthy living advice during consultations and engagement with people 

attending the pharmacy. 

• Provide advice to help with self-management of limiting conditions, including advice 

on the selection and use of any appropriate medicines. 

  

  

  

Page 146



127 

 
  

8 Area Partnership 1 locality 
 

8.1 Key facts 
 
Area Partnership 1 (AP1) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 

wards of Bulwell, Bulwell Forest and Bestwood. Of all the seven area partnerships, it has: 

 

• the fifth largest population at 46,675; 

• the second highest population proportion aged under five years and aged 15 years 

and under; 

• the lowest population proportion aged 16 to 24 years; 

• the third highest population proportion aged 25 to 64 years; and 

• the second highest population proportion aged 65 years and over. 

 

Table 26 shows the population estimates for the area partnership, including by age groups. 

 
Table 26: Population estimates for wards, area partnership and Nottingham City by 
age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Bulwell 16,328 1,253 2,665 1,707 8,190 2,513 

Bulwell Forest 13,352 814 1,774 1,188 6,655 2,921 

Bestwood 16,995 1,342 2,762 1,769 8,695 2,427 

AP1 46,675 3,409 7,201 4,664 23,540 7,861 

AP1 (%)   7.3% 15.4% 10.0% 50.4% 16.8% 

Nottingham (%)   5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 
With 83.1% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is  

less ethnically diverse than the average for Nottingham City (71.5%), but slightly more so 

than the average for England (85.5%). Of all the area partnerships, it is the second least 

ethnically diverse area partnership. It is worth noting that the underlying data, as shown in 

the Table 27, is derived from the 2011 Census and may have changed during the 

intervening period.  

 

Table 27: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple  

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Bulwell 84.6% 81.4% 7.0% 2.1% 6.0% 0.3% 

Bulwell Forest 84.5% 81.7% 4.4% 4.8% 6.0% 0.4% 

Bestwood 80.6% 76.7% 7.0% 3.5% 8.3% 0.5% 

AP1 83.1% 79.8% 6.2% 3.4% 6.8% 0.4% 

Nottingham City   71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England    85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 

Page 147



128 

 
  

There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City of which 31 are in 

Area Partnership 1, as shown in Table 28. In Area Partnership 1, Bulwell ward has the 

highest number of its LSOAs (10 out of 11) that fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in 

the country, based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). Overall, it is estimated to be 

ranked the second most deprived ward in Nottingham City out of the 20 wards (based on an 

average of the population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). The lowest ranking LSOA 

in Nottingham City is in Bulwell ward, ranking 130th nationally out of 32,844. Bulwell Forest 

ward is the least deprived ward in AP1 and is ranked 15th in Nottingham City. Bestwood ward 

is ranked fourth. 

 

Of the seven area partnerships, Area Partnership 1 is estimated to be: 

 

• The joint most deprived area partnership according to the Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (ranked 21st, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 21 out of a 

possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within each of the 

seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most deprived and a 

rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The most deprived area partnership for Income Deprivation Affecting Children 

Domain (ranked 19th, range 19 to 41). 

• The least deprived area partnership for Income Deprivation Affecting Older People 

Domain (ranked 35th, range 23 to 35). 

 

Table 28: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs 

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) 

Income Deprivation Affecting 

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs 
in worst 

10% 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

Bulwell 11 2 10 2 10 8 4 

Bulwell Forest 9 15 1 12 3 18 0 

Bestwood 11 4 5 5 5 9 1 

AP1 31 21 16 19 18 35 5 

Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 

England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 
 

All wards within the locality have a higher unemployment rate than the average for England, 

as shown in Table 29. Bulwell Forest ward has a lower unemployment rate than the 

Nottingham City average. Bulwell ward has the highest unemployment rate of all 20 wards. 

  

Page 148



129 

 
  

Table 29: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

  Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Bulwell 1,083 10.9 11.9 -94 -8.0% 

Bulwell Forest 460 5.9 6.4 -119 -20.6% 

Bestwood 902 8.6 9.4 -286 -24.1% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census   

 

The general fertility rate (live births per 1,000 women aged 15-44 years) for all wards in the 

locality are significantly higher than the average for England, as shown in Table 30 below. 

 

Table 30: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

 Bulwell Bulwell Forest Bestwood Nottingham England 

General fertility rate 78.1 67.8 73.5 50.7 60.6 
Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 

Life expectancy at birth for both females and males is significantly lower than the national 

average for the wards of Bulwell and Bestwood, as shown in Table 31.  

 

Table 31: Life expectancy at birth by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2019 

Area  Female (years) Male (years) 

Bulwell 78.5 72.8 

Bulwell Forest 82.5 79.7 

Bestwood 80.2 75.9 

Nottingham  81.2 77.2 

England 83.4 79.8 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 

 

All wards within the locality have a higher percentage of children in Reception and Year 6 

who are overweight or obese compared to the England average as shown in the table below. 

 
Table 32: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020 

Prevalence measure Bulwell 
Bulwell 
Forest Bestwood Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight 25.9% 25.6% 28.5% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity 12.2% 12.2% 13.9% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight  40.6% 42.2% 43.1% 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity  25.4% 23.3% 26.4% 24.7% 20.4% 
Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 

Page 149



130 

 
  

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 1 an estimated: 

 

• 28.3% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is the second highest rate of all area 

partnerships and higher than the Nottingham City average of 25%. 

• 50.8% drink alcoholic drinks. This is the lowest rate of all area partnerships and lower 

than the Nottingham City average of 58.6%. 

• 4.5% of those who drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is the second lowest of all area partnerships 

and lower than the Nottingham City average of 8.2%. 

• 18.0% have a poor mental wellbeing score. This is the second highest of all area 

partnerships and worse than the Nottingham City average of 12.1%. 

• 12.9% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is the lowest of all the area 

partnerships and lower than the Nottingham City average of 15.4%.  

 

There are 11 housing developments in Area Partnership 1, with a potential of 904 dwellings 

once all are fully completed, as shown in Table 33 below. An estimated 477 of these 

dwellings are expected to be delivered during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, offering potential accommodation for 1,279 people.  

 

Table 33: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development sites  PNA timeline  

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Bestwood Eastglade Road 9.68 300 150 3 450 

Bestwood Beckhampton Road 5.13 129 81 3 243 

Bestwood Eastglade, Birkdale Way 2.43 106 35.5 2 71 

Bestwood Arnside Road  2.58 60 45 2 90 

Bestwood Edwards Lane 4.38 118 45 2 90 

Bestwood Ridgeway  2.56 55 40 3 120 

Bestwood Chiltern Way 0.35 22 11 3 33 

Bulwell Hucknall Lane 0.13 6 3 2 6 

Bulwell Cinderhill Road 0.07 6 1.5 2 3 

Bulwell Forest Piccadilly 1.15 57 42.5 3 128 

Bulwell Forest Highbury Road  0.99 45 22.5 2 45 

Total for all AP1 developments and person increase 904 477   1,279 
Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 

In Bestwood ward there are seven housing developments with a total of 790 dwellings, of 

which 408 dwellings (accommodating 1,097 people) are expected to be built by October 

2025. The developments include: 

 

• The Padstow development, which comprises of three distinct sites based on the 

former Padstow school site and detached playing fields: 

o The Padstow Main is the largest site and is located south of Eastglade Road. 

The 300 dwellings are a mix of one to four bed dwellings, consisting of 

Page 150



131 

 
  

apartments and detached, semi-detached and terraced housing. Around 26% 

(75 dwellings) will be affordable and the remainder for private sale. Full 

completion is expected by 2028.  

o The Beckhampton Road site is for 129 dwellings, which are a mixture of two 

and three bedroom houses, flats and bungalows, some of which are designed 

for wheelchairs. Building is expected to be completed in 2023 to 2024.  

o The Padstow Ridgeway site, which is located near Southglade Primary and 

Nursery School and the Ridge Adventure Playground, Beckhampton Road 

and Belleville Drive. The 55 dwellings are a mix of one to four bedroom 

homes, with the majority being two and three bedrooms. A portion will also be 

affordable. Building is expected to be completed in 2023 to 2024.  

• A neighbouring development on the former Eastglade school site, Birkdale Way, 

which is for 106 dwellings, consisting of two and three bedroom houses, bungalows 

and flats. Building is expected to be completed in 2022 to 2023.  

• Edwards Lane site, which is the former Haywood School detached playing field. 

Building is expected to start in 2024 to 2025.  

• Arnside Road development, which is on the former Chronos Richardson site. Building 

is expected to be completed by 2023 to 2024. 

 

Map 17 below provides an indication of the locations of the seven housings developments.  

 

Map 17: Planned housing development sites in Bestwood ward  

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

 

Bulwell Forrest ward has two development sites on the former Henry Mellish School and 

neighbouring Piccadilly Playing Field. Together, they are expected to deliver 102 dwellings, 

Page 151

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


132 

 
  

of which 65 dwellings (accommodating 173 people) are estimated to be completed by 

October 2025. Bulwell ward has two small sites of six dwelling each. 

 
8.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area 
 
As of December 2021, there were 10 pharmacies in the locality operated by eight different 

contractors. Two of the pharmacies are 100 hour pharmacies, which are in Bulwell ward and 

Bulwell Forest ward. At the time of writing, a relocation application had been received from a 

distance selling pharmacy in Nottinghamshire County to relocate their premises from 21, 

Cirrus Drive, Watnall, NG16 1FS, to Bulwell Unit 12, Vision Business Park, Firth Way, 

Nottingham, NG6 8GF. The application was received on 15 February 2022 and was notified 

to the interested parties on 22 February 2022 with representations to be submitted by 8 April 

2022. It is noted that the relocation application was granted on 26 May and the distance 

selling pharmacy started to provide pharmaceutical services from its new premises from 4 

August 2022.  

 

As can be seen from Map 18 the 11 pharmacies are located generally in areas of greater 

population density (the darker the shading the greater the population density). 

 

Map 18: Location of pharmacies compared to population density    

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Page 152

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


133 

 
  

Many of the pharmacies are in or near the more deprived areas of the locality, as can be 

seen from Map 19 where the darker the shading the greater the level of deprivation. 
 

Map 19: Location of pharmacies compared to levels of deprivation 

      

  

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 84.8% of prescription items written by the GP practices in Area Partnership 

1 were dispensed within the locality by one of the pharmacies and 1.1% were personally 

administered by the GP practices.  

 

As shown on the maps below, all the locality is within:  

 

• A 10 minute drive of a pharmacy outside of rush hour times (Map 20). 

• A 15 minute drive of a pharmacy during the rush hour periods (Map 21). 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 22). The only exception is the 

area to the northwest of the locality. Google Maps shows this to be around Bulwell 

Hall Golf Course and Country Park, Home Wood, and the top part of Blenheim Lane 

Allotments. 

• A 20 minute walk of a pharmacy except for western parts of Bulwell ward (Map 23). 

  

 

Page 153

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


134 

 
  

Map 20: Access to pharmacies by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel times in minutes   

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 21: Access to pharmacies by car during rush hour times 

 

 Travel times in minutes  

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 154

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


135 

 
  

Map 22: Access to pharmacies by public transport  

 

 Travel times in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 23: Access to pharmacies on foot 

 

 Travel times in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 155

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


136 

 
  

There are two 100 hour pharmacies in the locality, which are open seven days a week and 

between them cover the hours: 

 

• Monday   08:00 to 22:30 

• Tuesday to Friday  06:30 to 22:30  

• Saturday   06:30 to 22:00   

• Sunday   10:00 to 17:00 

 

Regarding the remaining eight community pharmacies: 

 

• Three are open Monday to Friday 

• Two are open Monday to Friday and Saturday morning 

• Three are open Monday to Saturday 

 

These eight community pharmacies are open between: 

 

• 08:00 to 09:00 and 17:30 to 19:30 Monday to Friday (four close after 18:00) 

• 09:00 and 13:00 Saturday morning 

• 08:30 to 09:00 and 15:00 to 17:30 Saturday 

 

The distance selling pharmacy opening hours from the 4 August 2022 are: 

 

• 08:30 to 17:00 Monday to Friday (closed between 12:30-13:00) 

 

Of the five pharmacies who responded to the contractor questionnaire, all five dispense all 

appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

All ten pharmacies provided 1,071 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with 

a range of 15 to 232 provided at pharmacy level. All ten pharmacies provided a total of 1,155 

full service interventions between April and September 2021, a range of nine to 464 

interventions across the pharmacies. 

 

Six pharmacies provided 94 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, with a range of four to 49 consultations at the 

pharmacy level. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, six pharmacies provided 275 

consultations, a range of two to 113 interventions across the pharmacies. However, all 

pharmacies have signed up to provide the service, therefore four pharmacies had not 

received a referral between April and September 2021. 

 

Eight pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021, 

vaccinating a total of 2,912 people with a range of 108 to 656 vaccinations at pharmacy 

level. Between September 2021 and December 2021, 5,902 vaccinations were given by 

eight pharmacies, ranging from 116 to 2,897 vaccinations across the pharmacies.62 One of 

 
62 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 156

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


137 

 
  

the pharmacies that hasn’t provided the service is in Bulwell ward and the other is in 

Bestwood ward. 

 

8.3 Necessary services: current provision outside the locality’s area 
 
Some residents choose to access contractors outside both the locality and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area in order to access services: 

 

• Offered by dispensing appliance contractors 

• Offered by distance selling premises 

• Which are located near to where they work, shop or visit for leisure or other 

purposes 

 

Of all the prescription items written by the GP practices in the locality in 2020 to 2021, 85.9% 

were dispensed within the locality by the pharmacies or personally administered by the GP 

practices. The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 5.1% were dispensed by 53 different pharmacies, of which: 

o 2.4% were in Area Partnership 2 

o 1.0% were in Area Partnership 4 

o 0.9% were in Area Partnership 3 

o 0.4% were in Area Partnership 5 

o 0.4% were in Area Partnership 6 

o 0.1% were in Area Partnership 7 

• 32 items (0.0%) were dispensed by two different dispensing appliance contractors 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

 

• 5.6% were dispensed by 402 different pharmacies (5.1% in Nottinghamshire) 

• 3.3% were dispensed by 21 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.1% were dispensed by 15 different dispensing appliance contractors 

• 260 items (0.0%) were dispensed by one GP practice. 

 

The maps below show that when provision in the neighbouring localities and health and 

wellbeing board area are considered, all the locality is within: 

 

• A five-minute drive of a pharmacy outside of rush hour times (Map 24). 

• A 10-minute drive of a pharmacy during rush hour times (Map 25). 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport, with the majority within 15 minutes 

(Map 26). 

 

Page 157



138 

 
  

Map 24: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 1 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car outside of rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
Map 25: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 1 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car during rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 158

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


139 

 
  

Map 26: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 1 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Most of the locality is within a 20 minute walk of a pharmacy except for the western part of 

Bulwell ward, as shown on Map 27. Google Maps shows this to include parts of Bulwell Hall 

Golf Course and Country Park, Home Wood, and Blenheim Lane Allotments. In addition, it 

includes fields near the southwest corner of the map. These areas are most likely to be non-

residential areas. However, it also includes parts of the residential area east of Low Wood 

Road. 

Page 159

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


140 

 
  

Map 27: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 1 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas on foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

8.4 Other relevant services: current provision 
 

No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews or stoma appliance customisations in 

2020 to 2021 and this remains the position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022. This is 

despite at least five pharmacies saying they dispense prescriptions for all appliances at the 

premises.  

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

• Four pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service, including two 

100 hour pharmacies.  

• One 100 hour pharmacy provided the palliative care service. 

• Six pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service, including two 100 hour 

pharmacies. 

• Four pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 1). 

• Three pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 2). 

 

As of September 2021, nine of the pharmacies had provided a total of 10,969 test kits under 

the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

Page 160

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


141 

 
  

14 February 2022, one pharmacy has signed up to provide this service. However, no activity 

has been recorded. 

 

The smoking cessation advanced services commenced on 10 March 2022 and therefore 

activity data for this service is not yet available. As of the 29 March 2022, two pharmacies 

have signed up to provide this service. 

 

Four pharmacies had registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service which 

commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment no activity data was available. It is noted that a further two pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service as of 22 July 2022.  

 

8.5 Other NHS services 
 
The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccination; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it). 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 1.1% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

  

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

Page 161

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


142 

 
  

8.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 
 
As can be seen from sections 8.2 and 8.3, those living within the locality and registered with 

one of the GP practices generally choose to access one of the pharmacies in the locality in 

order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality usually do so 

either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance contractor or distance 

selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 515 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 439 were outside of Nottingham City and 

located across 101 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 

8.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 
 
Five of the 10 pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, their 

responses were as follows: 

 

• Two have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and staffing levels to 

manage the increase in demand.  

• One doesn’t have sufficient capacity within their existing premises but could make 

adjustments to manage the increase in demand. 

• Two pharmacies do not have sufficient premises and staffing capacity at present, but 

one could make adjustments to manage the increase in demand, while one 

pharmacy would have difficulty in managing an increase in demand in the locality. 

 

Whilst not an NHS service, three pharmacies collect prescriptions from GP practices. Three 

pharmacies provide a free delivery service to all patients. None of the five pharmacies that 

responded offer a private, chargeable delivery service.  

 

Four of the pharmacies confirmed the following languages are available to patients from staff 

at the premises every day, as listed separately below: 

• Mandarin/Chinese, Cantonese, Malay, Foo Chow, Hokkien, and Hakka. 

• Urdu, Spanish, Punjabi, French and German. 

• Urdu and Gujarati.  

• Urdu and Punjabi. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that all the locality is within a 10 minute drive of a pharmacy outside of rush hour 

times and within 15 minutes during rush hour times. When provision in the neighbouring 

localities and health and wellbeing board area is taken into account, all the locality is within 

five minutes of a pharmacy by car outside of rush hour times and within 10 minutes during 

rush hour times, with the majority within five minutes. In addition, all the locality is within 20 

minutes of a pharmacy by public transport, with the vast majority within 15 minutes. Most 

residential areas within the locality are also within a 20 minute walk of a pharmacy.  

 

Page 162



143 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that those residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• the delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide, or 

• the private delivery service offered by some pharmacies, and 

• remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting that there are two 100 hour pharmacy in the locality and the 

spread of pharmacies across the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that an application to consolidate the following 

pharmacies was granted and took effect on 30 July 2018: 

 

• Mistry’s Pharmacy Ltd. Units 3-4 Top Valley Way, Top Valley, Nottingham. NG5 

9DD, and  

• Southglade Health Centre, Southglade Road, Bestwood, Nottingham, NG5 5GU (the 

closing pharmacy).  

 

The application was granted on the basis that the closure of one of the pharmacies would 

not create a gap that could be met by a ‘routine application’ offering to: 

 

• Meet a current or future need for pharmaceutical services, or 

• Secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future  

need for a pharmacy in any of the 11 housing developments in the locality. It has noted the 

size of the developments, expected completion times, and the number and locations of the 

existing pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted 

that although one pharmacy would find it difficult to manage an increase in demand in the 

Page 163



144 

 
  

area, at least two of the pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises 

and staffing levels to do so. Furthermore, one pharmacy could make adjustments to their 

premises and another pharmacy could make adjustments to premises and staffing levels in 

order to manage an increase in demand in the area. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies in the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

 
8.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 
 

Whilst none of the pharmacies provide the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services despite at least five dispensing prescriptions for appliances, it is 

noted that one of the reasons why prescriptions are dispensed outside of the locality is 

because they have been sent to a dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will therefore be 

able to access these two services via those contractors. In addition stoma nurses employed 

by dispensing appliance contractors will provide the services at the patient’s home and the 

stoma care department at the hospitals may provide similar services. 

  

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all the information that's 

included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing appliance 

contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support is also 

available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. The 

Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

 

One pharmacy has signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is 

due to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be 

relevant to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few 

tests. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However, if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

Page 164



145 

 
  

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that four of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written and it is expected that most of the remaining pharmacies will sign-up prior to 

the publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that two of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022, but no activity data is 

available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written but that roll-out of the service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in 

place by the hospitals. It is expected that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the 

publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic and this will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS 

England’s review it is not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of 

pharmacies providing the service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to these services. 

 

 

 
  

Page 165



146 

 
  

9 Area Partnership 2 locality 
 

9.1 Key facts 
 
Area Partnership 2 (AP2) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 

wards of Basford, Berridge and Sherwood. Of all the seven area partnerships, it has: 

• the third highest population at 50,300; 

• the third highest population proportion aged under five years and aged 15 years and 

under; 

• the third lowest population proportion aged 16 to 24 years; 

• the highest population proportion aged 25 to 64 years; and 

• the fourth highest/lowest population proportion aged 65 and over. 

 

Table 34 shows the population estimates for the area partnership, including by age groups. 

 

Table 34: Population estimates for wards, area partnership and Nottingham City by 
age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Basford 16,780 1,088 2,498 1,980 8,900 2,314 

Berridge 17,436 1,300 2,529 2,500 9,661 1,446 

Sherwood 16,084 977 2,085 1,673 8,851 2,498 

AP2 50,300 3,365 7,112 6,153 27,412 6,258 

AP2 (%)  6.7% 14.1% 12.2% 54.5% 12.4% 

Nottingham (%)  5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics – Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 

With 71.2% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is 

more ethnically diverse than the average for England (85.5%) and is similar to the average 

for Nottingham City (71.5%). At a ward level, Berridge ward has the third highest percentage 

of all wards of the Asian or British Asian (including Chinese) ethnic group. Basford ward has 

the third highest percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group. It is worth noting that the 

underlying data, as shown in Table 35, is derived from the 2011 Census and may have 

changed during the intervening period.  

 

Table 35: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Basford 74.5% 70.1% 8.5% 8.1% 8.3% 0.6% 

Berridge 59.8% 50.6% 6.6% 24.7% 7.3% 1.6% 

Sherwood 79.4% 72.6% 6.0% 7.5% 6.0% 1.1% 

Area Partnership 2 71.2% 64.5% 7.1% 13.4% 7.3% 1.1% 

Nottingham City   71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England 85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 

 

Page 166



147 

 
  

There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City of which 29 are in 

Area Partnership 2, as shown in Table 36. In Area Partnership 2, Berridge ward has the 

highest number of its LSOAs (3 out of 9) that fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in 

the country, based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). However, Basford ward is 

estimated to be overall the most deprived ward in Area Partnership 2 and is ranked 10th 

most deprived ward in Nottingham City out of the 20 wards (based on an average of the 

population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). Berridge ward is ranked 11th and 

Sherwood is ranked 14th. 

 

Of the seven area partnerships, Area Partnership 2 is estimated to be: 

 

• The fifth most deprived area partnership according to the Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (ranked 35th, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 35 out of a 

possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within each of the 

seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most deprived and a 

rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The sixth most deprived area partnership according to Income Deprivation Affecting 

Children Domain (ranked 38th, range 19 to 41) and Income Deprivation Affecting 

Older People Domain (ranked 34th, range 23 to 35). 

 
Table 36: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs  

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) 

Income Deprivation Affecting  

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs 
in worst 

10% 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs 
in worst 

10% 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs 
in worst 

10% 
Basford 10 10 1 7 5 12 1 
Berridge 9 11 3 15 1 7 4 
Sherwood 10 14 0 16 2 15 0 
AP2 29 35 4 38 8 34 5 
Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 
England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 

Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 

 

All wards within the locality have a higher unemployment rate than the average for England, 

as shown in Table 37. Sherwood ward and Basford ward have a lower unemployment rate 

than the average for Nottingham City when students are excluded. Berridge ward has the 

fifth highest unemployment rate of all 20 wards. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 167



148 

 
  

Table 37: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

  Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Basford 767 7.0 7.8 -158 -17.1% 

Berridge 1,047 8.6 9.8 -271 -20.6% 

Sherwood 643 6.1 6.7 -225 -25.9% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census 

 

Both Berridge ward and Basford ward have significantly higher general fertility rates (live 

births per 1,000 women aged 15-44 years) than the England average, as shown in Table 38. 

 

Table 38: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

  Basford Berridge Sherwood Nottingham England 

General fertility rate 65.1 69.3 60.3 50.7 60.6 
Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 

For Berridge ward, life expectancy at birth for both females and males is significantly lower 

than the national average and it is significantly lower for males, in both Basford ward and 

Sherwood ward, as shown in Table 39. 

 

Table 39: Life expectancy at birth by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and 
England, 2017 to 2019 

Area  Female (years) Male (years) 

Basford 81.9 76.3 

Berridge 80.8 76.0 

Sherwood 81.4 76.2 

Nottingham City 81.2 77.2 

England 83.4 79.8 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 

 
Sherwood ward has a lower percentage of children in Reception Year that are overweight 

(including with obesity) compared to the average for England, as shown in Table 40. 

 

Table 40: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020  

Prevalence measure Basford Berridge Sherwood Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight  26.2% 24.6% 20.0% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity 13.5% 12.7% 10.0% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight 39.4% 44.0% 36.0% 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity  22.8% 29.6% 22.0% 24.7% 20.4% 
Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 

Page 168



149 

 
  

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 2 an estimated: 

 

• 28.6% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is the highest rate of all area 

partnerships and higher than the Nottingham City average of 25%. 

• 60.3% drink alcoholic drinks. This is the third highest rate of all area partnerships and 

higher than the Nottingham City average of 58.6%. 

• 12.9% of those who drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is the highest of all area partnerships and 

higher than the Nottingham City average of 8.2%. 

• 10.9% have a poor mental wellbeing score. This is the third lowest of all area 

partnerships and better than the Nottingham City average of 12.1%. 

• 14.8% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is better than the Nottingham City 

average of 15.4%. 

 

There are 12 housing developments in Area Partnership 2, with the potential to provide 307 

dwellings once all are fully completed, as shown in Table 41. An estimated 218 of these 

dwellings are expected to be delivered during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, offering potential accommodation for 473 people. 

 

Table 41: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development sites  PNA timeline 

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Basford Nottingham Rd 0.13 42 35 2 70 

Basford Irwin Business Centre, Church St 0.11 24 12 2 24 

Basford Public House, Mill Street  0.18 5 2.5 3 7.5 

Berridge Palmerston House, Mount St 0.08 61 45.5 2 91 

Berridge Maville House, Beech Avenue 0.21 45 45 2 90 

Berridge Mayfair Court, North Gate 0.26 38 28.5 3 85.5 

Berridge Damad House, 490 Radford Rd 0.11 29 21.5 2 43 

Berridge Ellis and Everard site, Haydn Rd 1.01 28 7 3 21 

Berridge The Elm Tree, 53 Beech Avenue 0.07 8 8 2 16 

Berridge Herbert Rd 0.08 6 3 2 6 

Sherwood Hucknall Rd 0.15 16 7 2 14 

Sherwood Crossley St 0.03 5 2.5 2 5 
Total for all AP2 developments and person increase 307 218   473 

Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 

In Basford ward there are three housing developments with a total of 71 dwellings, of which 

50 dwellings (accommodating 102 people) are expected to be completed by October 2025. 

The largest development is on the corner of Nottingham Road and Lincoln Street. Building is 

due to start in 2023 to 2024 and be completed in 2025 to 2026. The two smaller 

developments are expected to be completed in 2022 to 2023.  

Page 169



150 

 
  

There are seven housing developments in Berridge ward with a total of 215 dwellings, of 

which 159 dwellings (accommodating 353 people) are estimated to be completed by October 

2025. The largest developments are: 

 

• Palmerston House site, which is a former mill.  

• Maville House, Maville Works, Beech Avenue, which is on the site of a derelict lace 

factory.  

• Mayfair Court development, which is a conversion from offices to studio apartments.  

• S And N Fashions, Damad House, 490 Radford Road site, which is a conversion of 

building to apartments. 

 

Building on all four sites is expected to be completed by 2023 to 2024. Building on the Ellis 

and Everard site, Haydn Road site is expected to be completed in 2022 to 2023. 

 

Sherwood ward has two small developments with a combined potential of 21 dwellings, of 

which 10 dwellings (accommodating 19 people) are expected to be completed by October 

2025. 

 

Map 28 provides an indication of the locations of the largest housing developments in 

Basford ward (shown in green) and Berridge ward (shown in red). 

 
Map 28: Planned housing development sites in Basford ward and Berridge ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

  

Page 170

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


151 

 
  

9.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area 
 
There are eight pharmacies in the locality operated by seven different contractors. One of 

the pharmacies is a 100 hour pharmacy in Sherwood ward. There is also one dispensing 

appliance contractor.  

 

In general, the contractor premises are located in areas of greater population density, as can 

been seen from Map 29, where the darker the colour the greater the density.  

 

Map 29: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to population density 
  

 
 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
Many of the contractor premises are in or near the more deprived areas of the locality, as 

can be seen from Map 30, where the darker the shading the greater the level of deprivation. 

 

Page 171

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


152 

 
  

Map 30: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to levels of deprivation 
 

 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

In 2020 to 2021, 49.5% of prescription items written by the GP practices in Area Partnership 

2 were dispensed within the locality by one of the pharmacies and 1.6% were personally 

administered by the GP practices. The dispensing appliance contractor dispensed 24 items 

prescribed by the GP practices. 

 

As shown on the maps below, all of the locality is within:  

 

• A five-minute drive of a pharmacy, both during and outside of the rush hour times 

(Map 31).  

• 15 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 32). 

 

Most of the locality is within a 15 minute walk of a pharmacy (Map 33). 

 

The dispensing appliance contractor premises have not been included in these maps as 

people will rarely, if ever, visit them.  

 

Page 172

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


153 

 
  

Map 31: Access to pharmacies by car 

  

 Travel times in minutes      
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
  

Map 32: Access to pharmacies by public transport 

 Travel times in minutes          
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 173

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


154 

 
  

Map 33: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

Travel times in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

There is one 100 hour pharmacy in the locality which is open seven days a week and covers 

the hours: 

 

• Monday to Friday  07:30 to 23:00  

• Saturday   07:30 to 23:00   

• Sunday   10:00 to 17:00 

 

Regarding the remaining seven pharmacies: 

 

• Five open Monday to Friday 

• Two are open Monday to Saturday 

 

These seven pharmacies are open between: 

 

• 08:15 to 09:00* and 17:30 to 18:30* Monday to Friday (five close after 18:00) 

• 09:00 and 16:00 to 17:30 Saturday  

 

*One pharmacy opens at 09:00 on Friday instead of 08:30 and another pharmacy closes at 

13:00 on Thursday instead of 18:00. 

 

The dispensing appliance contractor opens 09.00 to 17.00 Monday to Friday and is closed at 

the weekend. 

Page 174

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


155 

 
  

Of the four pharmacies who responded to the contractor questionnaire, all four dispense all 

appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

Four pharmacies provided 350 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with a 

range of 37 to 199 at the pharmacy level. Between April and September 2021, five 

pharmacies provided a total of 215 full service interventions, a range of six to 99 

interventions across the pharmacies. Of the three pharmacies that haven’t provided the 

service, one of the pharmacies is in Basford ward, another is in Berridge ward, and one is in 

Sherwood ward. However, it is noted that the pharmacy in Basford ward did provide the 

service in the second half of 2021 to 2022. 

 

Five pharmacies provided 73 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, a range of two to 31 consultations at the pharmacy 

level. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, four pharmacies provided 48 consultations, 

with a range of six to 20 consultations across the pharmacies. However, seven of the 

pharmacies have signed up to provide the service, therefore three pharmacies had not 

received a referral between April and September 2021. The one pharmacy that hasn’t signed 

up to the service is in Berridge ward. 

 

Five pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021 

vaccinating a total of 1,204 people with a range at pharmacy level of 88 to 467 vaccinations. 

Between September 2021 and December 2021, 2,228 vaccinations were given by five 

pharmacies, as shown on Map 34, ranging from 117 to 888 vaccinations across the 

pharmacies.63 

 
Map 34: Location of the pharmacies that have provided flu vaccinations between 
September and December 2021 

  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
63 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 175

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


156 

 
  

9.3 Necessary services: current provision outside the locality’s area 

 
Some residents choose to access contractors outside both the locality and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area in order to access services: 

 

• Offered by dispensing appliance contractors 

• Offered by distance selling premises 

• Which are located near to where they work, shop or visit for leisure or other 

purposes 

 

Just over half (51.1%) of all prescription items written by the GP practices in the locality in 

2020 to 2021 were dispensed within the locality. The following prescription items were 

dispensed elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 33.5% were dispensed by 58 different pharmacies, of which: 

o 19.2% were in Area Partnership 1 

o 5.7% were in Area Partnership 3 

o 5.4% were in Area Partnership 4 

o 2.3% were in Area Partnership 6 

o 0.9% were in Area Partnership 5 

o 257 items (0.0%) were in Area Partnership 7 

• 24 items (0.0%) were dispensed by one dispensing appliance contractor 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

• 11.8% were dispensed by 515 different pharmacies (11.4% in Nottinghamshire). 

• 3.5% were dispensed by 26 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.1% were dispensed by 16 different dispensing appliance contractors 

 

When provision in the neighbouring localities and health and wellbeing board area is taken 

into account, all of the locality is within: 

 

• 10 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 35) 

• A 15-minute walk of a pharmacy (Map 36).  

 

Page 176



157 

 
  

Map 35: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 2 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by public transport 

 

  Travel times in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 36: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 2 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas on foot 

 

Travel times in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Page 177

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


158 

 
  

9.4 Other relevant services: current provision 
 
No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews in 2020 to 2021 and this remains the 

position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022. This is despite at least four pharmacies 

saying they dispense prescriptions for all appliances at the premises. The dispensing 

appliance contractor has not provided the service. 

 

One pharmacy provided two stoma appliance customisations in 2020 to 2021. In the first six 

months of 2021 to 2022, no pharmacy provided any stoma appliance customisations. The 

dispensing appliance contractor customised 2,087 stoma appliances in 2020 to 2021 and 

1,076 between April and September 2021. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

 

• Five pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service, including one 

100 hour pharmacy.  

• One pharmacy provided the palliative care service. 

• Six pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service, including one 100 hour 

pharmacy. 

• Five pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 1), including one 100 hour 

pharmacy. 

• Three pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 2), including one 100 hour 

pharmacy. 

 

As of September 2021, seven of the pharmacies had provided a total of 7,120 test kits under 

the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

14 February 2022, no pharmacy has signed up to provide this service.  

 

The smoking cessation advanced services commenced on 10 March 2022 and therefore 

activity data for this service is not yet available. As of the 29 March 2022, one pharmacy had 

signed up to provide this service. It is noted that this had increased to three pharmacies by 

18 July 2022. 

 

Four pharmacies had registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service which 

commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment no activity data was available. It is noted that this had increased to five 

pharmacies by 22 July 2022. 

 

9.5 Other NHS services 
 
The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

Page 178



159 

 
  

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccinations; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it).  

 

In 2020 to 2021, 1.6% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

9.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 
 
As can be seen from sections 9.2 and 9.3, just over half of the those living within the locality 

and registered with one of the GP practices choose to access one of the pharmacies in the 

locality in order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality 

usually do so either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance 

contractor or distance selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 631 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 557 were located outside of Nottingham 

City and across 111 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 

9.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 
 
Four of the eight pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, all four 

pharmacies confirmed that they have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area.  

Page 179

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


160 

 
  

Whilst not an NHS service, all four pharmacies collect prescriptions from GP practices. One 

pharmacy provides a free delivery service to all patients. Two pharmacies provide a free of 

charge delivery service limited to certain categories of patients, with one pharmacy limiting 

the service to those living close to the pharmacy (e.g., within 1.5 miles). The same two 

pharmacies also offer a chargeable delivery service to all patients. One pharmacy 

responded that they didn’t routinely provide a delivery service, although they have on 

occasion delivered to those patients who are aged over 80 and housebound with no family to 

collect on their behalf. 

 

One pharmacy confirmed that Mandarin, Cantonese, Gujarati, Hindi, Punjabi and Telegu are 

spoken by staff every day. Another said that staff speak Punjabi, Urdu, Swahili, and some 

French. One said that staff speak Indi and Igbo. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that the population can access a pharmacy within five minutes by car. In 

addition, all the area is within 15 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport. When provision 

in the neighbouring localities and health and wellbeing board area is taken into account, all 

of the locality is within 10 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport and within 15 minutes 

on foot. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that these residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• the delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide; or 

• the private delivery service offered by some pharmacies; and 

• remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting that there is one 100 hour pharmacy in the locality and the spread 

of pharmacies across the locality. 

Page 180



161 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future need 

for a pharmacy in any of the 12 housing developments in the locality. It has noted the size of 

the developments, expected completion times, and the number and locations of the existing 

pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted that at 

least four of the pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies or the dispensing 

appliance contractor in the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

 

9.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 
 

None of the pharmacies provide the appliance use review service and only one pharmacy 

provided two stoma appliance customisations in 2020 to 2021, despite at least four 

dispensing prescriptions for appliances. However, it is noted that one of the reasons why 

prescriptions are dispensed outside of the locality is because they have been sent to a 

dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will therefore be able to access these two services 

via those contractors. In addition stoma nurses employed by dispensing appliance 

contractors will provide the services at the patient’s home and the stoma care department at 

the hospitals may provide similar services. 

 

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all the information that's 

included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing appliance 

contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support is also 

available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. The 

Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

 

The appliance contractor provides the stoma appliance customisation service.  

 

No pharmacy has signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is due 

to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be relevant 

to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few tests. The Health 

Page 181



162 

 
  

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However, if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that four of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written and it is expected that most of the remaining pharmacies will sign-up prior to 

the publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that one of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022, but no activity data is 

available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written but that roll-out of the service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in 

place by the hospitals. It is expected that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the 

publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic and this will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS 

England’s review it is not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of 

pharmacies providing the service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to these services. 

 
  

Page 182



163 

 
  

10 Area Partnership 3 locality 
 

10.1 Key facts 
 
Area Partnership 3 (AP3) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 
wards of Aspley, Bilborough and Leen Valley. Of all the seven area partnerships, it has: 
 

• the sixth largest population at 45,436; 

• the highest population proportion aged under five years and aged 15 years and 

under; 

• the second lowest population proportion aged 16 to 24 years; 

• the third lowest population proportion aged 25 to 64 years but higher than the 

average for Nottingham City; and 

• The third highest population proportion aged 65 years and over. 

 

Table 42 shows the population estimates for the area partnership and its wards, including by 

age groups. 

 

Table 42: Population estimates for wards, area partnership and Nottingham City by 
age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Aspley 19,560 1,701 4,401 2,454 9,338 1,666 

Bilborough 16,737 1,176 2,731 1,783 8,226 2,821 

Leen Valley 9,139 696 1,448 902 4,577 1,516 

AP3 45,436 3,573 8,580 5,139 22,141 6,003 

AP3 (%)  7.9% 18.9% 11.3% 48.7% 13.2% 

Nottingham (%)  5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 

With 73.5% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is  

slightly less ethnically diverse than Nottingham City (71.5%) but more so than the average 

for England (85.5%). It is the third least ethnically diverse area partnership in Nottingham 

City. Of all the area partnerships it has:  

 

• The third smallest percentage of the Asian or British Asian (including Chinese) ethnic 

group. However, Leen Valley ward has the highest percentage of all wards. 

• The joint second highest percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group, with 

Aspley ward having the second highest percentage of all the wards. 

• The third highest percentage of the Black or Black British ethnic group, with Aspley 

ward having the fourth highest percentage of all wards. 

• Leen Valley ward has the joint second highest percentage of the Other ethnic groups.  

 

It is worth noting that the underlying data, as shown in Table 43, is derived from the 2011 

Census and may have changed during the intervening period.   

Page 183



164 

 
  

Table 43: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Aspley 74.8% 70.1% 9.4% 4.7% 10.5% 0.5% 

Bilborough 80.5% 77.1% 6.6% 5.9% 6.4% 0.6% 

Leen Valley 57.0% 51.9% 4.2% 30.7% 5.1% 3.0% 

Area Partnership 3 73.5% 69.2% 7.3% 10.2% 7.9% 1.0% 

Nottingham City 71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England 85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 

 
There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City of which 25 are in 

Area Partnership 3, as shown in Table 44. In Area Partnership 3, Aspley ward has the 

highest number of its LSOAs (9 out of 10) that fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in 

the country, based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). Overall, it is estimated to be 

ranked the most deprived ward in Nottingham City out of the 20 wards (based on an average 

of the population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). Bilborough ward is ranked 3rd and 

Leen Valley is ranked 17th.  

 

Of all the seven area partnerships, Area Partnership 3 is estimated to be: 

 

• The joint most deprived area partnership according to the Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (ranked 21st, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 21 out of a 

possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within each of the 

seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most deprived and a 

rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The second most deprived area partnership according to Income Deprivation 

Affecting Children Domain (ranked 23rd, range 19 to 41) and Income Deprivation 

Affecting Older People Domain (ranked 25th, range 23 to 35). 

 
Table 44: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership, and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs  

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) 

Income Deprivation Affecting  

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

Aspley 10 1 9 1 9 6 3 

Bilborough 11 3 8 4 7 5 4 

Leen Valley 4 17 0 18 0 14 0 

AP3 25 21 17 23 16 25 7 

Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 

England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 

 

Page 184



165 

 
  

All wards in the locality have a higher unemployment rate than the average for England, as 

shown in Table 45. At ward level, Leen Valley ward and Bilborough ward have a lower 

unemployment rate than the average for Nottingham City when students are excluded. 

Aspley ward has the second highest unemployment rate of all 20 wards. 

 

Table 45: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

  Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Aspley 1,142 9.7 10.7 -254 -18.2% 

Bilborough 701 7.0 7.7 -205 -22.6% 

Leen Valley 348 6.4 7.0 -101 -22.5% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census 

 

The general fertility rate (live births per 1,000 women aged 15-44 years) for all wards in the 

locality is significantly higher than the average for England, as shown in Table 46. 

 
Table 46: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

 Aspley Bilborough Leen Valley Nottingham England 

General fertility rate 72.7 66.4 72.4 50.7 60.6 
Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 

For Bilborough ward, life expectancy at birth for both females and males is significantly lower 

than the national average and it is significantly lower for females, in Aspley ward, as shown 

in Table 47 below. 

 

Table 47: Life expectancy at birth by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and 
England, 2017 to 2019 

Area  Female (years) Male (years) 
Aspley 79.7 78.9 
Bilborough 78.1 75.9 
Leen Valley 83.0 79.1 
Nottingham City 81.2 77.2 
England 83.4 79.8 

Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 

 
Leen Valley ward has a lower percentage of children in Reception that are overweight 

(including with obesity) compared to the England average, as shown in Table 48. 

 
 
 

Page 185



166 

 
  

Table 48: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020 

Prevalence measure Aspley Bilborough Leen Valley Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight /obesity 25.8% 29.5% 20.3% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity / severe obesity 12.4% 13.2% 10.1% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight /obesity 41.5% 39.0% 43.8% 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity / severe obesity 27.5% 26.2% 24.7% 24.7% 20.4% 

Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 

 

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 3 an estimated: 

 

• 22.4% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is lower than the Nottingham City 

average of 25% and third lowest of all area partnerships. 

• 53.9% drink alcoholic drinks. This is the second lowest rate of all area partnerships 

and lower than the Nottingham City average of 58.6%. 

• 2.5% of those who drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is the lowest of all area partnerships and lower 

than the Nottingham City average of 8.2%. 

• 18.1% have a poor mental wellbeing score. This is the highest of all area 

partnerships and worse than the Nottingham City average of 12.1%. 

• 15.8% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is the third highest of all the area 

partnerships and higher than the Nottingham City average of 15.4%. 

 

There are four housing developments in Area Partnership 3, providing a potential of 486 

dwellings once all are fully completed, as shown in Table 49. An estimated 202 of these 

dwellings are expected to be delivered during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, offering potential accommodation for 576 people. 

 
Table 49: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development site PNA timeline 

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Bilborough Wigman Road 6.0 150 75 3 225 

Bilborough Denewood Crescent 3.0 120 30 2 60 

Bilborough College Way 1.3 50 25 3 75 

Leen Valley Chalfont Drive 13.8 166 72 3 216 

Total for AP3 developments and person increase 486 202   576 
Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 

In Bilborough ward, there are three housing developments. Together they provide a potential 

of 320 dwellings, of which 130 dwellings (accommodating 360 people) are estimated to be 

built by October 2025. The developments include: 

 

Page 186



167 

 
  

• Wingman Road site on Chingford Road playing field, which is expected to commence 

in 2023 to 2024, with half of the 150 proposed new family dwellings being completed 

by October 2025.  

• Denewood Crescent site, which is a mix of two to four bedroom houses with the 

majority being two bedroom houses. Building is expected to be completed in 2022 to 

2023.  

• College Way development, which is on the site of Melbury School Playing Field, 

Nuthall East & Strelley and borders Broxtowe Borough Council. Construction of 50 

houses and bungalows for rent and shared ownership are expected to be completed 

in 2022 to 2023. 

 

The phased development in Leen Valley at the former Government buildings on Chalfont 

Drive, is largely for family houses of mixed sizes. Building work for the current phase 

commenced prior to October 2022. A further 72 dwellings (216 people) are expected to be 

completed in 2023 to 2024. 

 

Map 37 provides an indication of the locations of the housing developments in Bilborough 

ward (shown in red) and Leen Valley ward (shown in green). 

 

Map 37: Planned housing development sites in Bilborough ward and Leen Valley ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

 
10.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area  
 
There are ten pharmacies, including one distance selling pharmacy, in the locality operated 

by eight different contractors. Two of these pharmacies are 100 hour pharmacies and are in 

Leen Valley ward and Bilborough ward.  

 

In general the pharmacies are located in areas of greater population density, as can been 

seen by Map 38, where the darker the colour the greater the density.  

 

Page 187

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


168 

 
  

Map 38: Location of pharmacies compared to population density 
          

 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Many of the pharmacies are in or near the more deprived areas of the locality, as can be 

seen from Map 39, where the darker the shading the greater the level of deprivation. 

 

 

 

Page 188

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


169 

 
  

Map 39: Location of pharmacies compared to levels of deprivation 
         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

A change of ownership application was received on 27 January 2022 for the pharmacy at 25 

Flamsteed Road, Strelley, Nottingham, NG8 6LR to be operated by Omega Chemist Ltd. It is 

noted that this was granted with effect from 9 July 2022. 

 

 

Page 189

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


170 

 
  

In 2020 to 2021, 74.2% of prescriptions items written by the GP practices in Area 

Partnership 3 were dispensed within the locality at one of the pharmacies and 1.1% were 

personally administered by the GP practices.  
 

As shown on the maps below, all of the locality is within:  

 

• A 10-minute drive of a pharmacy outside of the rush hour times (Map 40).  

• A 10-minute drive of a pharmacy during the rush hour times (Map 41). The only 

exception is the area to the northwest which is within a 15-minute drive. Goggle 

Maps shows this area to be mainly countryside near Nottingham Business Park and 

Strelley Hall. 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport, except for a small area to the 

northwest (Map 42). Goggle Maps shows this area to be countryside above 

Nottingham Business Park stretching towards and beyond the M1 motorway. 

 

Most of the locality is within a 15 minute walk of a pharmacy (Map 43). 

 

Map 40: Access to pharmacies by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 190

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


171 

 
  

Map 41: Access to pharmacies by car during rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 42: Access to pharmacies by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 191

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


172 

 
  

Map 43: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

 
 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

There are two 100 hour pharmacies in the locality which are open seven days a week and 

between them cover the hours: 

 

• Monday to Friday  07:00 to 23:00  

• Saturday   08:00 to 23:00   

• Sunday   10:00 to 16:00 

 

Regarding the remaining eight pharmacies: 

 

• Five are open Monday to Friday 

• Three are open Monday to Saturday 

 

These eight pharmacies are open between: 

Page 192

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


173 

 
  

• 08:00 to 09:00 and 18:00 to 19:00* Monday to Friday (four close after 18:00) 

• 09:00 and 17:00 Saturday  

 

*Two pharmacies close early on Thursday at 17:15 and 17:30 instead of 18:30 and 18:00 

respectively. 

 

Of the two pharmacies who responded to the contractor questionnaire, both dispense all 

appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

Nine pharmacies provided 862 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with a 

range of seven to 229 interventions at pharmacy level. Between April and September 2021, 

nine pharmacies provided a total of 582 full service interventions, a range of two to 93 

interventions across the pharmacies. The one pharmacy that hasn’t provided the service is a 

distance selling premises. 

 

Seven pharmacies provided 104 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, a range of four to 29 consultations at the pharmacy 

level. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, six pharmacies provided 192 

consultations, with a range of eight to 45 consultations across the pharmacies. However, 

nine of the pharmacies have signed up to provide the service, therefore three pharmacies 

had not received a referral between April and September 2021. The one pharmacy that 

hasn’t signed up to provide the service is a distance selling premises. 

 

Nine pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021, 

vaccinating a total of 1,418 people with a range of 59 to 262 vaccinations at pharmacy level. 

Between September 2021 and December 2021, 2,499 vaccinations were given by nine 

pharmacies, ranging from 29 to 669 vaccinations across the pharmacies.64 The one 

pharmacy that hasn’t provided the service is a distance selling premises. 

 

Some residents choose to access contractors outside both the locality and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area in order to access services: 

 

• Offered by dispensing appliance contractors 

• Offered by distance selling premises 

• Which are located near to where they work, shop or visit for leisure or other 

purposes 

 

Around three-quarters (75.2%) of prescription items written by the GP practices in the 

locality in 2020 to 2021 were dispensed within the locality. The following prescription items 

were dispensed elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 14.7% were dispensed by 57 different pharmacies, of which: 

o 5.0% were in Area Partnership 5 

o 4.3% were in Area Partnership 4 

o 2.8% were in Area Partnership 1 

 
64 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 193

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


174 

 
  

o 1.6% were in Area Partnership 2 

o 0.8% were in Area Partnership 6 

o 0.1% were in Area Partnership 7 

• 4 items (0.0%) were dispensed by one dispensing appliance contractor. 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

 

• 7.3% were dispensed by 384 different pharmacies (6.3% in Nottinghamshire)  

• 2.6% were dispensed by 18 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.2% were dispensed by 15 different dispensing appliance contractors 

 

The maps below show that when provision in the neighbouring localities and health and 

wellbeing board area is taken into account, all of the locality is within:  

 

• 10 minutes of a pharmacy by car during rush hour times, with the vast majority within 

a five minute drive of a pharmacy (Map 44) 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 45).  

 

Most of the locality is within a 15 minute walk of a pharmacy as shown by Map 46. The only 

exceptions are in the northwest and southwest of Bilborough ward. Google Maps shows this 

to be the area around Nottingham Business Park in the northwest and parts of the residential 

area around Trowell Crossroads in the southwest. 

 

Map 44: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 3 and neighbouring localities 

and health and wellbeing board areas by car during rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 194

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


175 

 
  

Map 45: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 3 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 46: Access to pharmacies on foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 195

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


176 

 
  

10.4 Other relevant services: current provision 
 
No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews in 2020 to 2021 and this remains the 

position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022. This is despite at least two pharmacies 

saying they dispense prescriptions for all appliances at the premises.  

 

No pharmacy provided any stoma appliance customisations in 2020 to 2021. In the first six 

months of 2021 to 2022, one pharmacy provided one stoma appliance customisation.  

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

• Six pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service, including two 100 

hour pharmacy.  

• Six pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service, including two 100 hour 

pharmacy. 

• Four pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 1). 

• Two pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 2) 

 

As of September 2021, nine of the pharmacies had provided a total of 6,527 test kits under 

the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

14 February 2022, no pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. 

 

The smoking cessation advanced services commenced on 10 March 2022 and therefore 

activity data for this service is not yet available. As of the 29 March 2022, one pharmacy had 

signed up to provide this service. This had increased to five pharmacies by 18 July 2022. 

 

Eight pharmacies have registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service which 

commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, no activity data was available.  

 

10.5 Other NHS services 
 
The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccinations; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it).  

 

Page 196

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


177 

 
  

In 2020 to 2021, 1.1% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

  

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

10.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 

 

As can be seen from sections 10.2 and 10.3, those living within the locality and registered 

with one of the GP practices generally choose to access one of the pharmacies in the 

locality in order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality 

usually do so either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance 

contractor or distance selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 491 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 417 were located outside of Nottingham 

City and across 99 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 

10.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 

 
Two of the 10 pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, both 

pharmacies confirmed that they have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area.  

 

Whilst not an NHS service, the two pharmacies that responded collect prescriptions from GP 

practices. Both pharmacies provide a free delivery service to all patients. Neither pharmacy 

offers a private, chargeable delivery service.  

 

One pharmacy confirmed that Hindi and Gujarati are spoken by staff every day. Another said 

that staff speak Twi-Ghanaian Language.  

Page 197



178 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that most of the population can access a pharmacy within 10 minutes by car and 

20 minutes by public transport. When provision in the neighbouring localities and health and 

wellbeing board area is taken into account, all of the locality is within 10 minutes of a 

pharmacy by car during rush hour times, with the majority within five minutes. In addition, all 

areas are within 20 minutes by public transport. Most of the locality is within a 15 minute 

walk of a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that these residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• the delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide; or 

• the private delivery service offered by some pharmacies; and 

• remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting that there are two 100 hour pharmacy in the locality and the 

spread of pharmacies across the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future need 

for a pharmacy in any of the four housing developments in the locality. It has noted the size 

of the developments, the expected completion times, and the number and locations of the 

existing pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted 

that at least two of the pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies in the locality. 

 

Page 198



179 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

 

10.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 

 

None of the pharmacies provide the appliance use review service despite at least two 

pharmacies dispensing prescriptions for appliances from their premises. For the first six 

months of 2021 to 20222, only one pharmacy provided one stoma appliance customisation. 

It is noted, however, that one of the reasons why prescriptions are dispensed outside of the 

locality is because they have been sent to a dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will 

therefore be able to access these two services via those contractors. In addition stoma 

nurses employed by dispensing appliance contractors will provide the services at the 

patient’s home and the stoma care department at the hospitals may provide similar services. 

 

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all the information that's 

included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing appliance 

contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support is also 

available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. The 

Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

 

No pharmacy has signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is due 

to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be relevant 

to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few tests. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that eight of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that 

there are no current or future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

Page 199



180 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that one of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022, but no activity data is 

available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written but that roll-out of the service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in 

place by the hospitals. It is expected that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the 

publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic and this will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS 

England’s review it is not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of 

pharmacies providing the service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health 

and Wellbeing board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to these services. 

 

 

 
 
 

  

Page 200



181 

 
  

11 Area Partnership 4 locality 
 

11.1 Key facts 
 
Area Partnership 4 (AP4) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 

wards of Radford, Hyson Green and Arboretum and Castle. Of all the seven area 

partnerships, it has: 
 

• the largest population at 59,716; 

• the lowest population proportion aged under five years and aged 15 year and under; 

• the highest population proportion aged 16 to 24 years; 

• the lowest population proportion aged 25 to 64 years; and 

• the lowest population proportion aged 65 years and over. 

 

Table 50 shows the population estimates for the area partnership and its wards, including by 

age groups. 

 
Table 50: Population estimates for wards, area partnership (AP) and Nottingham City 
by age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Radford 17,414 603 1,129 8,958 6,209 515 
Hyson Green and 
Arboretum 26,873 1,258 2,660 11,180 10,580 1,195 

Castle 15,429 223 324 6,912 7,316 654 

AP4 59,716 2,084 4,113 27,050 24,105 2,364 

AP4 (%)  3.5% 6.9% 45.3% 40.4% 4.0% 

Nottingham (%)  5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 
The locality has a high student population, which contributes to the high percentage of 16 to 

24 years within the area. It also has a high concentration of Houses in Multiple 

Occupation/Student Households (HMOs). 

 

With 58.1% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is 

more ethnically diverse than the average for Nottingham City (71.5%) and England (85.5%). 

It is the most ethnically diverse area partnership in Nottingham City, with: 

 

• The highest percentage of the Asian or British Asian (including Chinese) ethnic 

group. Of all wards, Hyson Green and Arboretum ward has the second highest 

percentage and Radford ward has the fourth highest percentage of the Asian or 

British Asian (including Chinese) ethnic group. 

• The second highest percentage of the Black or Black British ethnic group. Of all 

wards, Radford ward has the third highest percentage and Hyson Green & 

Arboretum ward has the fifth highest percentage of the Black or Black British ethnic 

group. 

• The joint second highest percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group. 

Page 201



182 

 
  

• The highest percentage of the Other ethnic groups. Of all wards, Castle ward has the 

highest percentage and Hyson Green & Arboretum ward has the joint second highest 

percentage of the Other ethnic groups. 

 

It is worth noting that the underlying data, as shown in Table 51, is derived from the 2011 

Census and may have changed during the intervening period. 

 

Table 51: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Radford 57.9% 49.3% 7.1% 21.6% 10.9% 2.5% 

Hyson Green & Arboretum 53.1% 44.3% 7.9% 26.2% 9.9% 3.0% 

Castle 69.3% 58.1% 6.3% 17.1% 3.6% 3.7% 

Area Partnership 4 58.1% 48.9% 7.3% 22.7% 8.9% 3.0% 

Nottingham City   71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England    85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 
 

There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City of which 24 are in 

Area Partnership 4, as shown in Table 52. In Area Partnership 4, Hyson Green & Arboretum 

ward has the highest number of its LSOAs (4 out of 11) that fall amongst the 10% most 

deprived areas in the country, based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). Overall, it 

is estimated to be ranked the sixth most deprived ward in Nottingham City out of the 20 

wards (based on an average of the population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). 

Radford ward is ranked 13th and Castle ward is ranked 19th, the second least deprived ward 

in Nottingham City. 

 

Of all the area partnerships, Area Partnership 4 is estimated to be: 

 

• The sixth most deprived area partnership according to the Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (ranked 38th, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 38 out of a 

possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within each of the 

seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most deprived and a 

rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The fifth most deprived in Income Deprivation Affecting Children Domain (ranked 

34th, range 19 to 41). 

• The most deprived in Income Deprivation Affecting Older People Domain (ranked 

23rd, range 23 to 35). 

  

Page 202



183 

 
  

Table 52: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership, and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs  

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation 

Income Deprivation Affecting  

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs 
in 

worst 
10% City Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% City Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

Radford 7 13 2 6 4 1 5 
Hyson Green & 
Arboretum 11 6 4 9 3 2 8 

Castle 6 19 0 19 0 20 0 

AP4 24 38 6 34 7 23 13 

Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 

England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 

 
Castle ward has a lower unemployment rate than the average for England, as shown in 

Table 53. It has the lowest rate of all wards in Nottingham City. When students are excluded, 

the unemployment rate in Radford ward changes from the fifth lowest rate of unemployment 

to the third highest of all the wards. Hyson Green and Arboretum ward has the fourth highest 

rate of unemployment when students are excluded. 

 

Table 53: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

  Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Radford 668 4.4 10.6 -120 -15.2% 

Hyson Green & Arboretum 1,536 7.1 10.1 -274 -15.1% 

Castle 272 1.9 2.3 -60 -18.1% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census 

 
The general fertility rates (live births per 1,000 women aged 15-44 years) for all wards in the 

locality are significantly lower than the average for England, as shown in Table 54.  

 
Table 54: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

  Radford 
Hyson Green 
& Arboretum Castle Nottingham England 

General fertility rate 23.6 37.0 18.6 50.7 60.6 
Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 
Life expectancy at birth for females is significantly higher in Castle ward compared to the 

average for England, as shown in Table 55. For Hyson Green & Arboretum ward, life 

Page 203



184 

 
  

expectancy at birth for both females and males is significantly lower than the national 

average and it is significantly lower for males, in Radford ward.  

 
Table 55: Life expectancy at birth by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and 
England, 2017 to 2019 

Area  Female (years) Male (years) 

Radford 81.9 73.9 

Hyson Green & Arboretum 79.4 74.4 

Castle 92.2 80.2 

Nottingham City 81.2 77.2 

England 83.4 79.8 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 

 

Based on the available data, the wards in the locality have a higher percentage of children in 

Reception and in Year 6 (data is not available for Castle ward) who are overweight or obese 

compared to the average for England, as shown in Table 56. 

 
Table 56: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020 

Prevalence measure Radford 
Hyson Green 
& Arboretum Castle Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight 28.0% 23.8% 27.3% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity  10.0% 10.3% 18.2% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight 41.9% 43.4% N/A 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity  27.9% 27.1% N/A 24.7% 20.4% 
Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 
 

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 4 an estimated: 

 

• 25.4% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is similar to the Nottingham City average 

of 25%. 

• 61.7% drink alcoholic drinks. This is the second highest rate of all area partnerships 

and higher than the Nottingham City average of 58.6%. 

• 10.9% of those that drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is the second highest of all area partnerships 

and higher than the Nottingham City average of 8.2%. 

• 6.4% have a poor mental wellbeing score. This is better than any other area 

partnership in Nottingham and lower than the Nottingham City average of 12.1%. 

• 16.8% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is the second highest of all the area 

partnerships and higher than the Nottingham City average of 15.4%. 

 

There are 26 housing developments in Area Partnership 4 with the potential to provide 3,062 

dwellings once all are fully completed. An estimated 1,359 of these dwellings are expected 

to be built during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment, offering potential 

Page 204



185 

 
  

accommodation for 2,590 people. Sixteen of these developments are smaller sites of less 

than 40 dwellings each and have the potential to provide 89 dwellings in total 

(accommodating 181 people) by October 2025. Table 57 shows those sites with 40 or more 

dwellings.  

 

Table 57: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development sites (40 or more dwellings) PNA timeline  

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Castle Manvers Street 9.77 1,273 375 2 750 

Castle Meadow Road 3.13 332 276 2 552 

Castle Short Hill / High Pavement  0.26 117 58.5 2 117 

Castle Pemberton Street 0.13 85 64 1 64 

Hyson Green & 
Arboretum Derby Rd/ Wollaton St 0.06 47 35 2 70 

Radford Deakins Place 0.94 280 140 2.5 350 

Radford Alfreton Road - Forest Mill 1.2 310 150.5 2 301 

Radford Adam / Burton House Player St 0.8 197 48.5 1 48.5 

Radford St Peters Street 0.53 88 88 1 88 

Radford Alfreton Road 0.21 136 34 2 68 

Total for developments and person increase   2,865 1,270   2,409 

Total for all AP4 developments and person increase 3,062 1,359   2,590 

Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 
Thirteen of the housing developments are in Castle ward with a total of 1,908 potential 

dwellings, of which 824 dwellings (accommodating 1,581 people) are expected to be built 

during the timeline of the pharmaceutical needs assessment. The largest developments are: 

 

• Manvers Street, which is part of the planned Island Quarter Phase 2 phased 

developments. The overall site is for mixed use and will consist of space for creative 

market uses, offices, non-residential institution, local retail, hotel, student 

accommodation and residential dwellings. Provision will include car parking spaces 

and pedestrian and cycle facilities. Building is expected to start in 2024 to 2025.  

• HM Revenue and Customs at Castle, Meadows Road, with building expected to start 

in 2023 to 2024 and be completed by the end of 2025 to 2026.  

• 9-10 Short Hill and 54-56 High Pavement, which will range from one bed apartments 

to three bed units. Building is expected to be completed in 2022 to 2023.  

• The Pemberton Street site, which consists of houses and an apartment block. 

Building is underway and is expected to be completed in 2023 to 2024. 

 

The nine smaller developments have a combined total of 101 potential dwellings, of which 

51 dwellings (accommodating 98 people) are expected to be built by October 2025. 

 

Map 47 provides an indication of the locations of the largest developments. 

 

Page 205



186 

 
  

Map 47: Planned housing development sites in Castle ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

 

Hyson Green & Arboretum ward has seven developments with a total of 136 potential 

dwellings, of which 67 dwellings (accommodating 140 people) are expected to be built by 

October 2025. The largest development is at Derby Road and Wollaton Street and is a 

proposed conversion to provide student accommodation in the form of studio and cluster 

flats. Building is expected to be completed in 2023 to 2024.  

 

There are six developments in Radford ward with a total of 1,018 potential dwellings, of 

which 468 dwellings (accommodating 870 people) are expected to be built during the 

timeline of the pharmaceutical needs assessment. The largest developments are: 

 

• Forest Mill, Alfreton Road, which is for up to 310 residential dwellings, including an 

eight storey building and commercial premises. Building will commence in 2022 to 

2023 with around half of the dwellings expected to be completed by October 2025. 

• New Brook House, 385 Alfreton Road, which is an existing office space with 

permission to convert to 136 dwellings. Building is expected to be completed in 2022 

to 2023. 

• Deakins Place, which is a construction of a 280 bed new Purpose Built Student 

Accommodation, plus associated ground floor indoor/external amenity space, 

access, landscaping, car parking and associated infrastructure. Building is expected 

to be completed in 2022 to 2023. 

• The sites at Adam House and Burton House, Player Street, is a proposed 

development for a six storey student accommodation building comprising 197 studio 

flats with communal facilities. Building on all sites is expected to be completed in 

2022 to 2023.  

• St Peter’s Court, St Peter’s Street is expected to be completed in 2024 to 2025. 

 

Map 48 provides an indication of the locations of the largest development sites in Hyson 

Green & Arboretum ward (purple) and Radford ward (green). 

 

Page 206

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


187 

 
  

Map 48: Planned housing development sites in Hyson Green & Arboretum ward and 
Radford ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 
 

11.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area 
 

There are 10 pharmacies in the locality operated by eight different contractors. Two of the 

pharmacies are 100 pharmacies located in Hyson Green & Arboretum ward. In general the 

pharmacies are located in areas of greater population density, as can been seen from Map 

49, where the darker the colour the greater the density.  

 

Map 49: Location of pharmacies compared to population density 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Page 207

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


188 

 
  

Many of the pharmacy premises are in or near the more deprived areas of the locality, as 

can be seen from Map 50, where the darker the shading the greater the level of deprivation. 

 

Map 50: Location of pharmacies compared to levels of deprivation 
 

   
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

In 2020 to 2021, 66.8% of prescriptions items written by the GP practices in Area 

Partnership 4 were dispensed within the locality at one of the pharmacies and 1.2% were 

personally administered by the GP practices.  

 

As shown on the maps below, all of the locality is within:  

 

• A 10 minute drive of a pharmacy outside of the rush hour times (Map 51).  

• A 15 minute drive of a pharmacy during the rush hour periods (Map 52). The only 

exception is the area to the southeast. Goggle Maps shows this area to be mainly 

offices and larger retail units north of the Notts County Football club. 

• 15 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport, except the area to the southeast of the 

locality (Map 53). 

 

Most of the locality is within a 15 minute walk of a pharmacy, as shown by Map 54. 

 

  

 

Page 208

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


189 

 
  

Map 51: Access to pharmacies by car outside of rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 52: Access to pharmacies by car during rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 209

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


190 

 
  

Map 53: Access to pharmacies by public transport 

 

  Travel time in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 54: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

  Travel time in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 210

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


191 

 
  

There are two 100 hour pharmacies in the locality which are open seven days a week and 

between them cover the hours: 

 

• Monday to Friday  08:00 to 24:00  

• Saturday   09:00 to 24:00   

• Sunday   10:00 to 24:00 

 

Regarding the remaining eight pharmacies: 

 

• Two are open Monday to Friday 

• One is open Monday to Friday and Saturday morning 

• Three are open Monday to Saturday 

• Two are open Monday to Sunday (seven days a week) 

 

These eight pharmacies are open between: 

 

• 08:45 to 09:00 and 18:00 to 21:00* Monday to Friday (four close after 18:00) 

• 09:00 and 13:00 Saturday morning 

• 08:45 to 09:00 and 17:00 to 20:00 Saturday (two are open after 18:00) 

• 10:00 and 16:00 to 19:00 Sunday 

 

*On Thursday, one pharmacy closes early at 13:00, instead of 18:00 and one pharmacy 

closes at 17:00, instead of 18:45. 

Of the four pharmacies who responded to the contractor questionnaire, three dispense all 

appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff and one pharmacy dispenses all appliances 

excluding stoma appliances.  

 

Eight pharmacies provided 323 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with a 

range of one to 99 interventions at pharmacy level. Between April and September 2021, 

eight pharmacies provided a total of 223 full service interventions, a range of five to 89 

interventions across the pharmacies. Both pharmacies that haven’t provided the service are 

in Hyson Green & Arboretum ward. However, it is noted that all pharmacies provided the 

service in the second half of 2021 to 2022.” 

 

Six pharmacies provided 60 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, a range of three to 22 consultations at pharmacy level. 

During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, eight pharmacies provided 282 consultations, 

with a range of two to 65 consultations across the pharmacies. However, all ten of the 

pharmacies have signed up to provide the service, therefore two pharmacies had not 

received a referral between April and September 2021. 

 

Nine pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021, 

vaccinating a total of 1,033 people with a range of 51 to 150 vaccinations at pharmacy level. 

Between September and December 2021, eight pharmacies vaccinated 1,204 people, 

Page 211



192 

 
  

ranging from 40 to 445 vaccinations across the pharmacies.65 Both pharmacies that haven’t 

provided the service are in Hyson Green & Arboretum ward. 

 

11.3 Necessary services: current provision outside the locality’s area 

 
Over two-thirds (68.0%) of prescription items written by the GP practices in the locality in 

2020 to 2021 were dispensed within the locality. The following prescription items were 

dispensed elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 24.7% were dispensed by 55 different pharmacies of which: 

o 7.2% were in Area Partnership 6 

o 6.3% were in Area Partnership 5 

o 5.3% were in Area Partnership 3 

o 4.2% were in Area Partnership 2 

o 1.4% were in Area Partnership 1 

o 0.4% were in Area Partnership 7 

• 17 items (0.0%) were dispensed by two different dispensing appliance contractors. 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

 

• 5.3% were dispensed by 2,600 different pharmacies (3.3% in Nottinghamshire) 

• 1.9% were dispensed by 19 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.1% were dispensed by 15 different dispensing appliance contractors 

• 3 items (0.0%) were dispensed by one GP practice 

 

As shown on the maps below, when provision in the neighbouring localities is taken into 

account, all of the locality is within: 

 

• Five minutes of a pharmacy by car outside of rush hour times (Map 55) 

• 10 minutes of a pharmacy by car during rush hour times (Map 56) 

• 15 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 57). 

 

Most of the locality is within a 15 minute walk to a pharmacy when the neighbouring localities 

are taken into consideration (Map 58). The only exception is the area southwest of the 

locality. Google Maps shows this area as Nottingham Castle Marina and Nottingham Castle 

Marina Retail Park, as well as a small residential area. 

  

 
65 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 212

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


193 

 
  

Map 55: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 4 and neighbouring localities 
by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 56: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 4 and neighbouring localities 
by car during rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 213

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


194 

 
  

Map 57: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 4 and neighbouring localities 
by public transport 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 58: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 4 and neighbouring localities 
by foot 

 

  Travel time in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 214

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


195 

 
  

11.4 Other relevant services: current provision 

 
No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews in 2020 to 2021 and this remains the 

position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022. This is despite at least four pharmacies 

saying they dispense prescriptions for all appliances at the premises.  

 

One pharmacy provided three stoma appliance customisations in 2020 to 2021. In the first 

six months of 2021 to 2022, the same pharmacy provided two customisations. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

• Eight pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service, including two 

100 hour pharmacies.  

• One pharmacy provided the palliative care service. 

• Eight pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service, including two 100 hour 

pharmacies. 

• Six pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 1). 

• Five pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 2). 

 

As of September 2021, nine of the pharmacies had provided a total of 9,244 test kits under 

the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

14 February 2022, one pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. However, no activity 

has been recorded. 

 

The smoking cessation advanced services commenced on 10 March 2022 and therefore 

activity data for this service is not yet available. As of the 29 March 2022, two pharmacies 

have signed up to provide this service. 

 

Six pharmacies have registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service which 

commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment no activity data was available. It is noted that this increased to eight pharmacies 

by 22 July 2022. 

 

11.5 Other NHS services 
 
The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccinations; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Page 215



196 

 
  

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it). 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 1.2% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

  

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

11.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 
 
As can be seen from sections 11.2 and 11.3, those living within the locality and registered 

with one of the GP practices generally choose to access one of the pharmacies in the 

locality in order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality 

usually do so either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance 

contractor or distance selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 2,712 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 2,635 were located outside of Nottingham 

City and across 148 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 
11.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 
 
Four of the 10 pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, their 

responses were as follows: 

 

• Three pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and staffing 

levels to manage the increase in demand.  

• One pharmacy doesn’t have sufficient staffing levels at present but could make 

adjustments to manage the increase in demand in the locality. 

Page 216

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


197 

 
  

Whilst not an NHS service, all four pharmacies collect prescriptions from GP practices. 

Three pharmacies provide a free delivery service to certain patient groups, for example, 

those who are appliance users or patients that are elderly, vulnerable or housebound. They 

also provide a chargeable service, with one pharmacy charging those patients who are 

under 65 years of age and with less than three items on their prescription. One pharmacy 

doesn’t routinely offer a delivery service; however, it has on occasion delivered to 

housebound patients that live nearby. 

 

Four of the pharmacies confirmed the following languages are available to patients from staff 

at the premises every day, as listed separately below: 

• Gujarati, Punjabi, Urdu, French – limited Middle Eastern 

• Arabic 

• Urdu, Punjabi, Arabic, Bengali 

• Punjabi, Urdu and Gujarati 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that all of the population can access a pharmacy within 10 minutes by car 

outside of rush hour times and the majority within 15 minutes during rush hour times. When 

provision in neighbouring localities is taken into account, all of the locality is within five 

minutes of a pharmacy by car outside of rush hour times and within 10 minutes during rush 

hour times, with the majority within five minutes. In addition, all of the area is within 15 

minutes of a pharmacy by public transport. Most of the locality is also within a 15 minute 

walk of a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that these residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• the delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide; or 

• the private delivery service offered by some pharmacies; and 

• remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

Page 217



198 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting that there are two 100 hour pharmacies in the locality and the 

spread of pharmacies across the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future need 

for a pharmacy in any of the 26 housing developments in the locality. It has noted the size of 

the developments, expected completion times, and the number and locations of the existing 

pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted that at 

least three of the pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area. In addition, one pharmacy 

could make adjustments to their staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the 

area. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies in the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

 

11.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 
 
None of the pharmacies provided the appliance use review service, despite at least four 

pharmacies dispensing prescriptions for appliances from their premises. One pharmacy 

provided three stoma appliance customisations in 2020 and 2021 and two stoma appliance 

customisations during the first six months of 2021 to 2022. 

 

It is noted, however, that one of the reasons why prescriptions are dispensed outside of the 

locality is because they have been sent to a dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will 

therefore be able to access these two services via those contractors. In addition stoma 

nurses employed by dispensing appliance contractors will provide the services at the 

patient’s home and the stoma care department at the hospitals may provide similar services. 

 

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all of the information 

that's included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support 

is also available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

Page 218



199 

 
  

One pharmacy has signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is 

due to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be 

relevant to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few 

tests. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However, if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that six of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written and it is expected that most of the remaining pharmacies will sign-up prior to 

the publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that two of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022, but no activity data is 

available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written but that roll-out of the service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in 

place by the hospitals. It is expected that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the 

publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic and this will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS 

England’s review it is not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of 

pharmacies providing the service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to these services. 

 
 

  

Page 219



200 

 
  

12 Area Partnership 5 locality 
 

12.1 Key facts 
 
Area Partnership 5 (AP5) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 

wards of Lenton and Wollaton East, Wollaton West and Meadows. Of all the seven area 

partnerships, it has: 

 

• the fourth largest population at 49,959; 

• the second lowest population proportion aged under five years and aged 15 years 

and under; 

• the second highest population proportion aged 16 to 24 years; 

• the second lowest population proportion aged 25 to 64 years; and 

• the third lowest population proportion aged 65 years and over and similar to the 

average for Nottingham City. 

 

Table 58 shows the population estimates for the area partnership and its wards, including by 

age groups. 

 

Table 58: Population estimates for wards, area partnership (AP) and Nottingham City 
by age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Lenton & Wollaton East 24,076 657 1,186 13,485 7,422 1,326 

Wollaton West 15,229 901 2,387 1,353 7,215 3,373 

Meadows 10,654 643 1,387 1,944 5,752 928 

AP5 49,959 2,201 4,960 16,782 20,389 5,627 

AP5 (%)   4.4% 9.9% 33.6% 40.8% 11.3% 

Nottingham (%)   5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 
The locality has a high student population, which contributes to the high percentage of the 

population being aged 16 to 24 years. It also has a high concentration of Houses in Multiple 

Occupation/Student Households (HMOs), particularly in Lenton & Wollaton East ward. 

 

With 67.3% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is  

more ethnically diverse than the average for Nottingham City (71.5%) and England (85.5%). 

It is the third most ethnically diverse area partnership in Nottingham City with: 

 

• The second highest percentage of the Asian or British Asian (including Chinese) 

ethnic group, with Lenton and Wollaton East ward having the fifth highest percentage 

of all wards. 

• The second smallest percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group and of the 

Black or Black British ethnic group. However of all the wards, Meadows ward has the 

second highest percentage of the Black or Black British ethnic group and fourth 

highest percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group.  

Page 220



201 

 
  

• The second highest percentage of the Other ethnic group, with Lenton and Wollaton 

East ward having the joint fourth highest percentage of all wards. 

 

It is worth noting that the underlying data, as shown in Table 59, is derived from the 2011 

Census and may have changed during the intervening period.  

 
Table 59: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Lenton and Wollaton East 66.2% 59.6% 5.0% 20.5% 5.6% 2.7% 

Wollaton West 73.4% 69.2% 3.2% 18.8% 2.6% 1.9% 

Meadows 60.5% 52.2% 8.4% 17.9% 11.3% 1.8% 

Area Partnership 5 67.3% 61.0% 5.2% 19.4% 5.9% 2.3% 

Nottingham City   71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England    85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 

 
There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City of which 25 are in 

Area Partnership 5. In Area Partnership 5, Meadows ward has the highest number of its 

LSOAs (1 out of 6) that fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in the country, based on 

the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). Overall, it is estimated to be ranked the nineth most 

deprived ward in Nottingham City out of the 20 wards (based on an average of the 

population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). Lenton and Wollaton East is ranked 18th 

and Wollaton West is ranked 20th and is the least deprived ward in Nottingham City. 

 

Of all the area partnerships, Area Partnership 5 is estimated to be: 

 

• The least deprived (seventh most deprived) area partnership according to the Index 

of Multiple Deprivation (ranked 47th, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 47 

out of a possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within 

each of the seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most 

deprived and a rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The least deprived (seventh most deprived) area partnership according to the Income 

Deprivation Affecting Children Domain (ranked 41st, range 19 to 41). 

• The third least (fifth most) deprived area partnership according to the Income 

Deprivation Affecting Older People (ranked 33rd, range 23 to 35). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 221



202 

 
  

Table 60: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership, and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs 

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) 

Income Deprivation Affecting 

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

Lenton and Wollaton 
East 10 18 0 13 3 10 3 

Wollaston West 9 20 0 20 0 19 0 

Meadows 6 9 1 8 2 4 3 

AP5 25 47 1 41 5 33 6 

Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 

England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 

 
In Area Partnership 5, Wollaton West ward has a lower unemployment rate than the average 

for England, as shown in Table 61. It has the second lowest unemployment rate of all wards 

when students are excluded. Lenton and Wollaton East ward has the fourth lowest 

unemployment rate of all wards when students are excluded. 

 

Table 61: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

  Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Lenton & Wollaton East 433 2.1 5.5 -151 -25.9% 

Wollaton West 243 2.8 3.2 -111 -31.4% 

Meadows 534 6.9 8.6 -157 -22.7% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census 

 

In Area Partnership 5, Lenton and Wollaton East ward and Meadows ward have a 

significantly lower general fertility rate (live births per 1,000 women aged 15-44 years) than 

the average for England, as shown in Table 62. Lenton and Wollaton East ward has the 

lowest rate of all wards in Nottingham City.  

 
Table 62: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

  

Lenton & 
Wollaton 

East 
Wollaton 

West Meadows Nottingham England 
General fertility rate 18.1 64.9 42.8 50.7 60.6 

Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 

Page 222



203 

 
  

Wollaton West ward has a significantly higher life expectancy at birth for both females and 

males compared to the average for England. Meadows ward has a significantly lower life 

expectancy at birth for both females and males compared to the average for England. 

 
Table 63: Life expectancy at birth by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and 
England, 2017 to 2019 

Area  Female (years) Male (years) 

Lenton and Wollaton East 81.6 78.3 

Wollaton West 87.0 82.3 

Meadows 77.2 72.5 

Nottingham City 81.2 77.2 

England 83.4 79.8 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 
 

In Area Partnership 5, Wollaton West ward has a lower percentage of children in Reception 

and in Year 6 that are overweight or obese compared to the average for England, as shown 

in Table 64. 

 

Table 64: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020 

Prevalence measure 

Lenton & 
Wollaton 

East 
Wollaton 

West Meadows Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight 28.2% 16.4% 24.1% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity 12.7% 6.4% 10.1% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight  35.1% 26.5% 39.4% 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity 22.8% 14.2% 22.5% 24.7% 20.4% 
Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 
 

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 5 an estimated: 

 

• 21.4% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is the second lowest of all area 

partnerships and lower than the Nottingham City average of 25%. 

• 64.3% drink alcoholic drinks. This is the highest rate of all area partnerships and 

higher than the Nottingham City average of 58.6%. 

• 9.1% of those that drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is the third highest of all area partnerships and 

higher than the Nottingham City average of 8.2%. 

• 12.4% have a poor mental wellbeing score, which is similar to the Nottingham City 

average of 12.1%. 

• 18.3% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is the highest of all the area 

partnerships and higher than the Nottingham City average of 15.4%. 

 

There are 20 housing developments in Area Partnership 5, providing a potential of 3,683 

dwellings once all are fully completed. An estimated 2,023 of these dwellings are expected 

Page 223



204 

 
  

to be built during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment, offering potential 

accommodation for 4,572 people. Four of these developments are on smaller sites of less 

than 40 dwellings each and have the potential to provide a total of 68 dwellings of which 19 

dwellings (accommodating 44 people) are expected to be built by October 2025. Table 65 

shows those sites with 40 or more dwellings.  

 

Table 65: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development sites (40 or more dwellings) PNA timeline  

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Lenton & WE Thane Road 84.56 230 175 2 350 

Lenton & WE Radmarsh Rd 1.88 303 227.5 4 910 

Lenton & WE Triumph Road 0.37 188 94 1 94 

Lenton & WE Triumph Road 0.72 112 84 1 84 

Lenton & WE 406 & 408 Derby Rd 0.42 90 22.5 5 112.5 

Lenton & WE Sherwin Road 0.26 40 30 3 90 

Meadows Queens Road 1.24 600 375 1 375 

Meadows Sheriffs Way 1.21 382 208.5 4 834 

Meadows Waterway Street 1.07 567 292.5 2 585 

Meadows Meadow Lane 5 287 111 2 222 

Meadows Crocus St Southpoint 0.94 150 75 2 150 

Meadows 1 Wallett Street 0.32 141 105.5 2 211 

Meadows Arkwright Street East 1.44 330 78 2 156 

Meadows Robin Hood Way 0.31 42 21 2 42 

Wollaton West Woodyard Lane  3.74 110 95 3 285 

Wollaton West Russell Drive  3.85 43 9 3 27 

Total for developments and person increase 3615 2004   4528 

Total for all AP5 developments and person increase 3683 2023   4572 
Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 

There are seven housing developments in Lenton & Wollaton East ward with a combined 

potential of 970 dwellings. Of these, 637 dwellings (accommodating 1,648 people) are 

expected to be built by October 2025, with one of the developments being for only four 

dwellings (accommodating seven people). Four developments are for potential Purpose Built 

Student Accommodation located close to the University of Nottingham’s Jubilee Campus. 

The proposed Sherwin Road development is a former furniture store off Lenton Boulevard. 

They are all expected to be completed by the end of 2023 to 2024. 

 

Map 59 below provides an indication of the locations of these developments (shown in red). 

Page 224



205 

 
  

Map 59: Planned housing development sites in Lenton & Wollaton East ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

 

The Boots UK Limited, Thane Road development is near Beeston Rylands and is on the 

boundary of Nottingham City and Broxtowe. It is a mixed-use development with up to 675 

residential units across both council areas. There will also be office units, employment floor 

space, research and development space and retail and food/drink space. There are plans for 

additional green space, car park space and remodelling of access roads. This is a phased 

development with building for the 230 dwellings expected to be completed in 2024 to 2025. 

The former Imperial Tobacco factory, Thane Road development has planning permission for 

five industrial units with office space between 30,000 sq ft and 145,000 sq ft in size and is 

expected to be completed in 2023 with as many as 1,000 jobs created. Map 60 provides an 

indication of the locations of these developments (shown in red). 

 

Map 60: Planned development sites in Lenton & Wollaton East ward and Meadows 
ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

Page 225

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


206 

 
  

There are 10 housing developments in Meadows ward (shown in green on the map above 

and below). Together they provide a potential of 2,544 dwellings, of which 1,278 dwellings 

(accommodating 2,604 people) are expected to be built within the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment timeline.  

 

The Meadows Lane development forms part of the ongoing Waterside Regeneration Area 

adjacent to the River Trent. Proposed plans also include retail and cafe floorspace with new 

waterfront pedestrian and cycle path. The Eagle Building development, Riverside Way is for 

a new four storey apartment building comprising 42 apartments with associated parking. 

Building is expected to be completed in 2022 to 2023. Map 60 provides an indication of the 

locations of these developments (shown in green). 

 

Many of these housing developments are in the Canal Quarter and form part of the planned 

Southside Regeneration Area. Most of the sites are located near Nottingham railway station 

and include:  

 

• Queens Road development, which is a mixed residential development. Building is 

expected to commence in 2023 to 2024. 

• Chainey Place development on Crocus Street / 66 London, which is for up to 150 

apartments with associated communal space and parking and is expected to be 

completed in 2022 to 2023. 

• 1, Wallett Street development, which is expected to be completed in 2023 to 2024. 

• Sheriffs Way/Arkwright Street, Meadows Way development, which is a mixed 

residential development and includes Purpose Built Student Accommodation and 

apartments for private renting, and associated works. Building is expected to be 

completed in 2025 to 2026. 

• The Waterway and Traffic Street developments consist of several Purpose Built 

Student Accommodation developments.  

• The developments east of Arkwright Street are on various sites and are for 

apartments. 

 

Map 61 provides an indication of the locations of the largest developments. 

 

Map 61: Planned housing development sites in Meadows ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

Page 226

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


207 

 
  

There are three housing developments in Wollaton West ward. Together they provide a 

potential of 169 dwellings, of which 108 dwellings (accommodating 320 people) are 

expected to be built by October 2025. The largest development is at the former Siemens 

factory site, Woodyard Lane and is for 110 two storey houses, ranging in size from one 

bedroom terraced houses to five bedroom detached houses. Overall, the scheme will 

provide 11 affordable dwellings and 99 dwellings for market. Building is due to commence in 

2022 to 2023 and be completed in 2024 to 2025. The Russell Drive - Radford Bridge 

Allotments development is currently under construction and is expected to be completed in 

2022 to 2023.  

 

12.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area 
 
There are nine pharmacies in the locality, including one distance selling pharmacy, operated 

by seven different contractors. One pharmacy is a 100 hour pharmacy which is in Lenton & 

Wollaton East ward. There is also one dispensing appliance contractor.  

 

In general the contractor premises are located in areas of greater population density, as can 

been seen from Map 62, where the darker the colour the greater the density.  

 

Map 62: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to population density 

        

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Many of the contractor premises are in or near the more deprived areas of the locality, as 

can be seen from Map 63, where the darker the shading the greater the level of deprivation. 

 

Page 227

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


208 

 
  

Map 63: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to levels of deprivation     

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 71.1% of prescription items written by the GP practices in Area Partnership 

5 were dispensed within the locality by one of the pharmacies and 2.0% were personally 

administered by the GP practices.  

 

The dispensing appliance contractor did not dispense any prescriptions at its premises that 

were written by GP practices in the locality or other localities within the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s area. It mainly dispenses prescriptions written by GP practices outside of the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

As shown on the maps below, all of the locality is within:  

 

• A 20-minute drive of a pharmacy, both during (Map 64) and outside (Map 65) of the 

rush hour times. Most of the area is within 15 minutes of a pharmacy by car. The only 

exception is the most southern part of the locality, which Google Maps shows to be 

the non-residential area of Riverside Family Golf Centre. 

• 30 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 66). The vast majority is within 20 

minutes of a pharmacy except for the non-residential areas of Riverside Family Golf 

Centre and parts of Highfields Sports Complex, Boots UK Limited and a rail yard. 

 

Most of the locality is within 15 minutes of a pharmacy on foot, as shown on Map 67.  

The dispensing appliance contractor premises have not been included in these maps as 

people will rarely, if ever, visit them. 

 

Page 228

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


209 

 
  

Map 64: Access to pharmacies by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 65: Access to pharmacies by car during rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
 © Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 229

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


210 

 
  

Map 66: Access to pharmacies by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 

| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 67: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 230

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


211 

 
  

There is one 100 hour pharmacy in the locality, open seven days a week covering the hours: 

 

• Monday to Friday  09:00 to 24:00 

• Saturday   10:00 to 24:00   

• Sunday   10:00 to 24:00 

 

Regarding the remaining eight pharmacies: 

 

• Five are open Monday to Friday 

• One is open Monday to Friday and Saturday morning 

• One is open Monday to Saturday 

• One is open Monday to Sunday (seven days a week) 

 

These eight pharmacies are open between: 

 

• 08:30 to 09:00 and 17:00 to 20:00 Monday to Friday (three open after 18:00) 

• 09:00 and 13:00 Saturday morning 

• 09:00 and 17:00 to 19:00 Saturday 

• 10:30 and 16:30 Sunday 

 

The dispensing appliance contractor opens 09.00 to 17.00 Monday to Friday. 

 

Of the two pharmacies who responded to the contractor questionnaire, both dispense all 

appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

Eight pharmacies provided 708 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with a 

range of two to 271 interventions at the pharmacy level. Six pharmacies provided a total of 

342 full service interventions between April and September 2021, with a range of 18 to 104 

interventions across the pharmacies. Of the three pharmacies that haven’t provided the 

service, two are in Lenton and Wollaton East ward, one of which is a distance selling 

premises, and one pharmacy is in Meadows ward. However, it is noted that the pharmacy in 

Meadows ward and the distance selling pharmacy in Lenton and Wollaton East ward had 

provided the service in the second half of 2021 to 2022. 

 

Four pharmacies provided 35 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, a range of one to 20 consultations at the pharmacy 

level. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, five pharmacies provided 131 

consultations, with a range of one to 99 consultations across the pharmacies. However, 

eight of the pharmacies had signed up to provide the service, therefore three pharmacies 

had not received a referral between April and September 2021. The one pharmacy that has 

not signed up to provide the service is a distance selling premises. 

 

Seven pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021, 

vaccinating a total of 1,634 people with a range of 45 to 423 vaccines given at the pharmacy 

level. Between September and December 2021, seven pharmacies vaccinated 3,629 people 

Page 231



212 

 
  

with a range of 55 to 1,457 vaccines given across the pharmacies.66 Of the two pharmacies 

that haven’t provided the service, both are in Lenton and Wollaton East ward, one of which is 

a distance selling premises. 

 
12.3 Necessary services: current provision outside the locality’s area 
 
Some residents choose to access contractors outside both the locality and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area in order to access services: 

 

• Offered by dispensing appliance contractors 

• Offered by distance selling premises 

• Which are located near to where they work, shop or visit for leisure or other 

purposes 

 

Just under three-quarters (73.1%) of prescription items written by the GP practices in Area 

Partnership 5 in 2020 to 2021 were dispensed within the locality. The following prescription 

items were dispensed elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 14.2% were dispensed by 57 different pharmacies of which: 

o 6.7% were in Area Partnership 4 

o 3.8% were in Area Partnership 3 

o 2.8% were in Area Partnership 6 

o 0.5% were in Area Partnership 7 

o 0.3% were in Area Partnership 2 

o 0.1% were in Area Partnership 1 

• 15 items (0.0%) were dispensed by one dispensing appliance contractor. 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

 

• 9.8% were dispensed by 3,264 different pharmacies (6.5% in Nottinghamshire) 

• 2.7% were dispensed by 21 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.3% were dispensed by 13 different dispensing appliance contractors 

 

The maps below show that when provision in the neighbouring localities and health and 

wellbeing board area is taken into account, all of the locality is within:  

 

• 15 minutes of a pharmacy by car outside the rush hour periods. The majority can 

access a pharmacy within five minutes (Map 68). 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by car during the rush hour periods. The majority can 

access a pharmacy within 15 minutes, with the exception of the non-residential area 

of Riverside Family Golf Centre (Map 69). 

• 30 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport, with the majority within 20 minutes. 

Google Maps shows that the main exceptions are Riverside Family Golf Centre and 

 
66 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 232

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


213 

 
  

parts of Highfields Sports Complex, Boots UK Limited complex and a rail yard, which 

are all non-residential areas (Map 70). 

 
Map 68: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 5 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

Map 69: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 5 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car during rush hour time 

 

 Travel time in minutes  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 233

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


214 

 
  

Map 70: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 5 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Most of the locality is within a 15-minute walk of a pharmacy (Map 71). Google Maps shows 

the following exceptions: 

• Wollaton ward – parts of Wollaton Park (including the Nottingham Natural History 

Museum), which is a non-residential area. 

• Meadows ward – parts of Meadows Recreation Ground, Meadows Sports Pavilion 

and fields, and Victoria embankment area, which are non-residential areas. 

• Lenton & Wollaton East ward - the area south of Highfields Park, parts of Boots UK 

Limited several areas of industrial units and warehouses both north and south of the 

railway line, and the Riverside Family Golf Centre. The only residential areas 

identified include the edge of the housing estate south of Dunkirk Primary School, the 

edge of the housing estate in the east of Old Lenton, and around the edge of the 

University of Nottingham campus, which may include halls of residence. 

 

Page 234

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


215 

 
  

Map 71: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 5 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
12.4 Other relevant services: current provision 
 
No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews in 2020 to 2021 and this remains the 

position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022. This is despite at least two pharmacies 

saying they dispense prescriptions for all appliances at the premises. The dispensing 

appliance contractor provided 23 appliance use reviews at the patient’s home and 30 at the 

premises in 2020 to 2021. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, it provided 48 

appliance use reviews at the patient’s home and four at the premises. 

 

No pharmacy provided any stoma appliance customisations in 2020 to 2021. In the first six 

months of 2021 to 2022, one pharmacy provided a total of two stoma appliance 

customisations. The dispensing appliance contractor provided three stoma appliance 

customisations during 2020 to 2021 and six during the first six months of 2021 to 2022. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

 

• Five pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service, including one 

100 hour pharmacy.  

• One 100 hour pharmacy provided the palliative care service. 

Page 235

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


216 

 
  

• Five pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service, including one 100 hour 

pharmacy. 

• Four pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 1). 

• Two pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 2). 

 

As of September 2021, eight of the pharmacies had provided a total of 10,000 test kits under 

the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

14 February 2022, one pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. However, no activity 

has been recorded. 

 

The smoking cessation advanced services commenced on 10 March 2022 and as of the 29 

March 2022, one pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. It is noted that this 

increased to two pharmacies by the 18 July 2022. 

 

Six pharmacies have registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service. The 

service commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, no activity data was available. It is noted that one further pharmacy signed up 

to provide the service as of 22 July 2022. 

 

12.5 Other NHS services 
 

The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccinations; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it). 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 2.0% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

  

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

Page 236

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


217 

 
  

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• Other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

12.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 
 
As can be seen from sections 12.2 and 12.3, those living within the locality and registered 

with one of the GP practices generally choose to access one of the pharmacies in the 

locality in order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality 

usually do so either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance 

contractor or distance selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 3,370 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 3,298 were outside of Nottingham City and 

located across 148 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 
12.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 
 
Two of the nine pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, both 

pharmacies confirmed that they have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area.  

 

Whilst not an NHS service, the two pharmacies collect prescriptions from GP practices. One 

pharmacy provides a free delivery service to housebound, elderly, disabled patients and 

those with heavy or bulky items. The other pharmacy provides a free delivery service to care 

homes only. It also offers a private, chargeable delivery service that is available to all 

patients. 

 

One pharmacy confirmed that they have a diverse range of staff available to speak and 

translate the languages of Hindi, Gujarati, Urdu, and Mandarin at the pharmacy.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that all of the population can access a pharmacy within 20 minutes by car. 

When provision in neighbouring localities and health and wellbeing board areas is taken into 

account, all residents of the locality are within 15 minutes of a pharmacy by car. In addition, 

residents of the locality are able to access a pharmacy within 20 minutes by public transport 

and the vast majority are able to access a pharmacy within 15 minutes on foot. 

 

Page 237



218 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that these residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• the delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide; or 

• the private delivery service offered by some pharmacies; and 

• remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting that there is one 100 hour pharmacy in the locality and the spread 

of pharmacies across the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future need 

for a pharmacy in any of the 20 housing developments in the locality. It has noted the size of 

the developments, expected completion times, and the number and locations of the existing 

pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted that at 

least two of the pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies or the dispensing 

appliance contractor in the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

  

Page 238



219 

 
  

12.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 
 
None of the pharmacies provide the appliance use review service despite at least two 

dispensing prescriptions for appliances. One pharmacy has provided the stoma appliance 

customisation service in 2020 to 2021. It is noted, however, that one of the reasons why 

prescriptions are dispensed outside of the locality is because they have been sent to a 

dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will therefore be able to access these two services 

via those contractors. In addition stoma nurses employed by dispensing appliance 

contractors will provide the services at the patient’s home and the stoma care department at 

the hospitals may provide similar services. 

 

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all of the information 

that's included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support 

is also available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

 

The appliance contractor provides both the appliance use review service and the stoma 

appliance customisation service. 

 

One pharmacy has signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is 

due to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be 

relevant to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few 

tests. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However, if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that six of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written and it is expected that most of the remaining pharmacies will sign-up prior to 

the publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that one of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022, but no activity data is 

Page 239



220 

 
  

available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written but that roll-out of the service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in 

place by the hospitals. It is expected that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the 

publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic and this 

will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS England’s review it is 

not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of pharmacies providing the 

service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to these services. 

 

  

Page 240



221 

 
  

13 Area Partnership 6 locality 
 

13.1 Key facts 

 
Area Partnership 6 (AP6) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 

wards of Dales, St Ann’s and Mapperley. Of all the seven area partnerships, it has: 

 

• the second largest population at 57,403; 

• the third lowest population proportion aged under five years and aged 15 years and 

under and is similar to the average for Nottingham City; 

• the third highest population proportion aged 16 to 24 years, although lower than the 

average for Nottingham City; 

• the second highest population proportion aged 25 to 64 years; and 

• the second lowest population proportion aged 65 years and over. 

 

Table 66 shows the population estimates for the area partnership and its wards, including by 

age groups. 

 

Table 66: Population estimates for wards, area partnership and Nottingham City by 
age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Dales 17,047 1,255 2,662 1,988 9,077 2,065 

St. Ann's 23,812 1,204 2,514 7,339 10,937 1,818 

Mapperley 16,544 934 2,075 2,118 9,209 2,208 

AP6 57,403 3,393 7,251 11,445 29,223 6,091 

AP6 (%)  5.9% 12.6% 19.9% 50.9% 10.6% 

Nottingham (%)  5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 
With 65.1% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is  

more ethnically diverse than the average for Nottingham City (71.5%) and England (85.5%). 

It is the second most ethnically diverse area partnership in Nottingham City, with: 

 

• The highest percentage of the Black or Black British ethnic group, with St Ann’s ward 

having the highest percentage of all wards.   

• The highest percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group. Of all wards, St Ann’s 

ward has the highest percentage and Mapperley ward has the fifth highest 

percentage of the Mixed or multiple ethnic group. 

• The third highest percentage of the Asian or British Asian (including Chinese) ethnic 

group.  

• The third highest percentage of the Other ethnic group, with St Ann’s ward having the 

joint fourth highest percentage of all wards. 

 

It is worth noting that the underlying data, as shown in Table 67, is derived from the 2011 

Census and may have changed during the intervening period. 

  

Page 241



222 

 
  

Table 67: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Dales 64.4% 55.6% 7.5% 20.1% 6.7% 1.4% 

St Ann’s 58.1% 50.2% 9.9% 15.2% 14.1% 2.7% 

Mapperley  74.2% 65.0% 8.0% 9.0% 7.7% 1.0% 

Area Partnership 6 65.1% 56.5% 8.5% 14.9% 9.7% 1.7% 

Nottingham City   71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England  85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 

 

There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City, of which 30 are in 

Area Partnership 6, as shown in Table 68. In Area Partnership 6, St Ann’s ward has the 

highest number of its LSOAs (5 out of 12) that fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in 

the country, based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). Overall, it is estimated to be 

ranked the fifth most deprived ward in Nottingham City out of the 20 wards (based on an 

average of the population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). Dales ward is ranked 

seventh and Mapperley ward is ranked 12th. Of all the seven area partnerships, Area 

Partnership 6 is estimated to be: 

 

• The joint third most deprived area partnership according to the Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (ranked 24th, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 24 out of a 

possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within each of the 

seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most deprived and a 

rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The fourth most deprived area partnership for Income Deprivation Affecting Children 

Domain (ranked 28th, range 19 to 41). 

• The joint third most deprived area partnership for Income Deprivation Affecting Older 

People Domain (ranked 30th, range 23 to 35). 

 
Table 68: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs  

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) 

Income Deprivation Affecting  

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

Dales 9 7 3 11 2 11 3 

St Ann’s  12 5 5 3 8 3 9 

Mapperley  9 12 2 14 3 16 2 

AP6 30 24 10 28 13 30 14 

Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 

England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 

Page 242



223 

 
  

All wards in the locality have a higher unemployment rate than the average for England, as 

shown in Table 69. Mapperley ward has a lower unemployment rate than the Nottingham 

City average when students are excluded.  

 

Table 69: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

 Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Dales 963 8.7 9.7 -240 -20.0% 

St Ann's 1,124 6.2 8.7 -250 -18.2% 

Mapperley 716 6.3 7.2 -221 -23.6% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census 

 

Dales ward has a significantly higher general fertility rate (live births per 1,000 women aged 

15-44 years) than the average for England. St Ann’s ward has a significantly lower general 

fertility rate than the average for England, as shown in Table 70. 

 
Table 70: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

  Dales St Ann’s Mapperley Nottingham England 
General fertility rate 71.4 41.4 58.3 50.7 60.6 

Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 
In Area Partnership 6, both St Ann’s ward and Mapperley ward have a significantly lower life 

expectancy at birth for both females and males than the national average, as shown in Table 

71 below. Dales ward has a significantly lower life expectancy for males. 

 

Table 71: Life expectancy at birth by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and 
England, 2017 to 2019 

Area Female (years) Male (years) 
Dales 81.4 77.4 
St Ann’s 78.6 75.9 
Mapperley 80.1 76.7 
Nottingham City 81.2 77.2 
England 83.4 79.8 

Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 

 
All wards in the locality have a higher percentage of children in Reception and in Year 6 that  

are overweight or obese compared to the average for England, as shown in Table 72. 

  

Page 243



224 

 
  

Table 72: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception Year and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020 

Prevalence measure Dales St. Ann's Mapperley Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight 25.2% 30.7% 28.9% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity  13.0% 14.3% 14.5% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight 41.5% 45.0% 39.7% 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity  24.6% 27.9% 24.4% 24.7% 20.4% 
Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 

 

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 6 an estimated: 

 

• 20.7% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is lowest rate of all area partnerships 

and lower than the Nottingham City average of 25%. 

• 59.9% drink alcoholic drinks. This is higher than the Nottingham City average of 

58.6%. 

• 6.6% of those that drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is lower than the Nottingham City average of 

8.2%. 

• 9.5% have a poor mental wellbeing score. This is the second lowest of all area 

partnerships and better than the Nottingham City average of 12.1%. 

• 14.1% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is the joint second lowest of all the 

area partnerships and lower than the Nottingham City average of 15.4%. 

 

There are 25 housing developments in Area Partnership 6, with a potential of 1,890 

dwellings once all are fully completed. An estimated 1,082 of these dwellings are expected 

to be delivered during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment, offering 

potential accommodation for 2,451 people. Twelve of these developments are for smaller 

sites of less than 40 dwellings each and have the potential to provide 102 dwellings in total 

(accommodating 218 people) by October 2025. Table 73 shows those sites with 40 or more 

dwellings.  

 

There are seven developments in Mapperley ward with a total of 160 dwellings, of which 118 

dwellings (accommodating 336 people) are expected to be completed by October 2025. The 

largest developments are: 

 

• Millennium Garage, Woodborough Road site, which is for one to four bedroom 

dwellings, with the majority being three bedroom houses. Building is expected to be 

ongoing between 2023 to 2024 and 2024 to 2025.  

• The former Elms School, off Cranmer Street development, which is for one to four 

bedroom homes. Building is expected to be completed by 2023 to 2024.  

 

The remaining five developments are for 60 dwellings in total with 30 dwellings 

(accommodating 70 people) expected to be completed by October 2025. 

 

 

Page 244



225 

 
  

Table 73: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development sites (40 or more dwellings) PNA timeline 

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Dales Trent Lane, Yacht Club 2.3 119 13 2 26 

Dales Daleside Road 9 253 63 3 189 

Dales Daleside Road 1.54 90 45 2 90 

Mapperley Woodborough Road 0.8 55 55 3 165 

Mapperley Off Cranmer St 1.11 45 33.5 3 100.5 

St Ann's 143 Lower Parliament St 0.21 85 85 2 170 

St Ann's 167-175 Huntingdon St 0.1 500 300 2 600 

St Ann's Sneinton Market 1.24 217 130 2 260 

St Ann's St Ann’s Well Road 0.36 124 124 3 372 

St Ann's 1 Brook St 0.31 101 25.5 2 51 

St Ann's 10 Woodborough Road 0.27 48 36 1 36 

St Ann's Cowan St/Beck St 0.1 42 35 2 70 

St Ann's Brook Street East 0.65 41 34.5 3 103.5 

Total for developments and person increase 1,720 980   2,233 

Total for all AP6 developments and person increase 1,890 1,082   2,451 
Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 

In St Ann’s ward there are 15 developments with a potential of 1,268 dwellings, of which 843 

dwellings (accommodating 1,811 people) are expected to be completed by October 2025. 

Many of these developments are for Purpose Built Student Accommodation, including:   

 

• 167-175 Huntingdon Street, with building expected be to be ongoing throughout the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment timeline. 

• The former Gala Club at St Ann’s Well Road, with building expected to start in 2023 

to 2024 and be completed in 2024 to 2025.  

• IQ Nottingham, 143 Lower Parliament Street (former BT Exchange Building), which 

will have additional amenity spaces and flexible retail units. Building is expected to 

ongoing between 2023 to 2024 and 2024 to 2025.  

• The Sneinton Market development, which is in the Creative Quarter on Southwell 

Road / Lower Parliament Street and Avenue D And Avenue E. Building is expected 

to be completed in 2023 to 2024.  

• Car Park Junction of Cowan Street, Bath Street, Beck Street and 1A Brook Street, 

which is a seven storey development earmarked for students and/or residential 

purposes. Building is expected to commence in 2023 to 2024 and be completed in 

2025 to 2026.  

 

Other developments include: 

 

• 1, Brook Street development, which is for 101 apartments and includes potential for a 

new cafe and creche use. Building work is expected to commence in 2025 to 2026.  

Page 245



226 

 
  

• The Brook Street East development is for houses, apartments and duplexes with 

shared facilities and external courtyards. There are three phased sites that are next 

to and above the Victoria Leisure Centre. Building is expected to start in 2022 to 

2023 and complete in 2024 to 2025.  

• The Oakdene Residential Unit, Woodborough Road development is for 48 one 

bedroom social housing apartments and associated parking.  Building is expected to 

complete by 2023 to 2024.  

 

The remaining seven developments are for 110 dwellings in total with 73 dwellings 

(accommodating 148 people) expected to be completed by October 2025. 

 

Map 72 provides an indication of the locations of the largest housing developments in St 

Ann’s ward (shown in red). 

 

Map 72: Planned housing development sites in St Ann’s ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 
 

There are three developments in Dales ward with a total of 462 dwellings, of which 121 

dwellings (accommodating 305 people) are estimated to be completed by October 2025. 

Two of the developments are part of the planned transformation of the Waterside area. The 

largest development on Daleside Road forms part of the phased Trent Lane Basin 

development. A second development site at Waterside is for waterfront apartments at the 

Trent Lane, Park Yacht Club, which is due to commence building in 2025 to 2026. The 

Page 246

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


227 

 
  

smallest site is north of the Waterside development and is at the National Diamond Plaza, 

Trent Lane/Daleside Road. Building work is expected to commence in 2024 to 2025. 

 
Map 73 provides an indication of the locations of these housing developments (shown in 

blue). 

 
Map 73: Planned housing development sites in Dales ward 

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 
 

13.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area 

 
There are 11 pharmacies in the locality, including one distance selling pharmacy, operated 

by 11 different contractors. There is also one dispensing appliance contractor.  

 

The maps below show the location of the pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor 

premises within the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area compared to population density and 

deprivation.  

 

In general the contractor premises are located in areas of greater population density as can 

been seen from Map 74, where the darker the colour the greater the density.  

 

Many of the contractor premises are in or near the more deprived areas of the locality as can 

be seen from the Map 75, where the darker the shading the greater the level of deprivation. 

 

 

 

Page 247

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


228 

 
  

Map 74: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to population density 

     
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 75: Location of pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises 
compared to levels of deprivation 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

 

Page 248

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


229 

 
  

In 2020 to 2021, 67.4% of prescription items written by the GP practices in the locality were 

dispensed within the locality by one of the pharmacies and 1.3% were personally 

administered by the GP practices. The dispensing appliance contractor did not dispense any 

prescriptions at its premises that were written by GP practices in the locality. 

 

The maps below show that all of the locality is within:  

 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by car, both during (Map 76) and outside (Map 77) the 

rush hour periods. The only exception is the southeast part of Dales ward, which 

Google Maps shows to be part of Nottingham Racecourse and Colwick Country Park, 

both of which are non-residential areas. 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 78), except for parts of 

Nottingham Racecourse and Colwick Country Park. 

 

Most of the locality is within a 20 minute walk of a pharmacy, as shown on Map 79. 

However, for the northeast part of Mapperley ward and the southern part of Dales ward, the 

journey on foot is longer.  

The dispensing appliance contractor premises have not been included in these maps as 

people will rarely, if ever, visit them. 

 

Map 76: Access to pharmacies by car outside of rush hour times 

 
 

   Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Page 249

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


230 

 
  

Map 77: Access to pharmacies by car during rush hour times 

 

   Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 78: Access to pharmacies by public transport 

 

   Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 250

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


231 

 
  

Map 79: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

The 11 pharmacies in the locality open during the week and at weekends as follows: 

 

• Five open Monday to Friday 

• Five are open Monday to Friday and Saturday morning 

• One opens Monday to Sunday (seven days a week) 

 

These 11 pharmacies are open between: 

 

• 08:30 to 09:00 and 17:00 to 19:00* Monday to Friday (five open after 18:00) 

• 09:00 and 13:00 Saturday morning 

• 08:30 to 19:00 Saturday 

• 11:00 to 17:00 Sunday 

 

One pharmacy closes at 18:15 instead of 18:30 on Fridays. 

 

The dispensing appliance contractor opens 08:30 to 17:30 Monday to Friday and 08:30 to 

12:30 on Saturday. 

 

Of the three pharmacies who responded to the contractor questionnaire, all three dispense 

all appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

Page 251

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


232 

 
  

Eight pharmacies provided 502 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with a 

range of three to 265 interventions at pharmacy level. Between April and September 2021, 

eight pharmacies provided a total of 329 full service interventions, with a range of five to 62 

interventions across the pharmacies. One of the pharmacies that hasn’t provided the service 

is in Dales ward and the other two pharmacies are in St Anne’s ward, one of which is a 

distance selling premises. However, it is noted that the pharmacy in St Anne’s ward had 

provided the service in the second half of 2021 to 2022. 

 

Three pharmacies provided 82 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, a range of five to 72 consultations at the pharmacy 

level. During the first six months of 2021 to 2022, four pharmacies provided 167 

consultations, with a range of 12 to 119 consultations across the pharmacies. However, nine 

of the pharmacies have signed up to provide the service, therefore five pharmacies had not 

received a referral between April and September 2021. Of the two pharmacies that haven’t 

signed up to provide the service, one is a distance selling premises and the other pharmacy 

is in Dales ward. It is noted that the pharmacy in Dales ward had signed up to provide the 

service by 24 July 2022. 

 

Seven pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021, 

vaccinating a total of 1,317 people with a range of 45 to 403 at pharmacy level. Between 

September and December 2021, 2,662 vaccinations were given by six pharmacies, ranging 

from 32 to 1,961 across the pharmacies.67 Map 80 below show those pharmacies that 

provided the flu vaccination service between September and December 2021.  

 
Map 80: Location of the pharmacies that have provided flu vaccinations between 
September and December 2021 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
67 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 252

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


233 

 
  

13.3 Necessary services: current provision outside the locality’s area 
 

Some residents choose to access contractors outside both the locality and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area in order to access services: 

 

• Offered by dispensing appliance contractors 

• Offered by distance selling premises 

• Which are located near to where they work, shop or visit for leisure or other 

purposes 

 

Over two thirds (68.7%) of prescription items written by the GP practices in the locality in 

2020 to 2021 were dispensed within the locality. The following prescription items were 

dispensed elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 9.4% were dispensed by 56 different pharmacies of which: 

o 4.8% were in Area Partnership 2 

o 2.4% were in Area Partnership 4 

o 1.2% were in Area Partnership 5 

o 0.6% were in Area Partnership 1 

o 0.4% were in Area Partnership 3 

o 0.1% were in Area Partnership 7 

• 26 items (0.0%) were dispensed by one dispensing appliance contractor. 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

 

• 19.0% were dispensed by 607 different pharmacies (18.6% in Nottinghamshire) 

• 2.8% were dispensed by 26 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.1% were dispensed by 16 different dispensing appliance contractors 

 

The maps below show that when provision in neighbouring localities and health and 

wellbeing board areas is taken into account, the locality is within: 

• 10 minutes of a pharmacy by car both outside of rush hour times (Map 81) and 

during rush hour times (Map 82), with the vast majority within five minutes. 

• 20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport (Map 83). The only exceptions are 

parts of Colwick Country Park and Nottingham Racecourse in the southeast of Dales 

ward, both of which are non-residential areas. 

• A 20-minute walk of a pharmacy (Map 84). The only exceptions are parts of Colwick 

Country Park, Nottingham Greyhound Stadium and Nottingham Racecourse in the 

southeast of Dales ward, all of which are non-residential areas. 

 

Page 253



234 

 
  

Map 81: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 6 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
Map 82: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 6 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car during rush hour time 

 

 Travel time in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 254

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


235 

 
  

Map 83: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 6 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
Map 84: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 6 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 255

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


236 

 
  

13.4 Other relevant services: current provision 

No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews or stoma customisations in 2020 to 2021 

and this remains the position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022. This is despite at least 

three pharmacies dispensing all appliances listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

The dispensing appliance contractor provided 23,816 stoma customisations in 2020 to 2021 

and 13,112 during the first six months of 2021 to 2022. 

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

 

• Seven pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service.  

• One pharmacy provided the palliative care service. 

• Eight pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service. 

• Three pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 1) 

• Two pharmacies provided the extended care service (tier 2) 

 

As of September 2021, 10 of the pharmacies had provided a total of 7,546 test kits under the 

COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

14 February 2022, no pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. 

 

The smoking cessation advanced services commenced on 10 March 2022 and as of the 29 

March 2022, no pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. It is noted that one 

pharmacy had signed up to provide the service by 18 July 2022. 

 

Four pharmacies have registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service which 

commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, no activity data was available.  

 

13.5 Other NHS services 
 
The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccinations; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it).  

 

Page 256

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


237 

 
  

In 2020 to 2021, 1.3% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

  

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

13.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 
 
As can be seen from sections 13.2 and 13.3, those living within the locality and registered 

with one of the GP practices generally choose to access one of the pharmacies in the 

locality in order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality 

usually do so either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance 

contractor or distance selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 724 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 649 were outside of Nottingham City and 

located across 116 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 

13.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 
 
Three of the 11 pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, their 

responses were as follows: 

 

• Two have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and staffing levels to 

manage the increase in demand.  

• One doesn’t have sufficient staffing levels at present but could make adjustments to 

manage the increase in demand in the locality. 

 

Whilst not an NHS service, two pharmacies collect prescriptions from GP practices. One 

pharmacy provides a free delivery service to all patients. Two pharmacies provide a free 

Page 257



238 

 
  

delivery service to certain categories of patients, for example, those that are housebound, 

vulnerable or living close to the pharmacy, and patients that have a track and trace code or 

who are at high risk or shielding because of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The 

same two pharmacies offer a private, chargeable delivery service. 

 

One pharmacy confirmed that Urdu, Punjabi, Polish and Arabic are spoken by staff every 

day. Another said that staff speak Hindi and Gujarati. One said that staff speak Arabic. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that the population can access a pharmacy within 20 minutes by car. When 

provision in the neighbouring localities and health and wellbeing board area is taken into 

account, all of the locality is within 10 minutes of a pharmacy by car with the majority within 

five minutes. In addition, the residents can access a pharmacy within 20 minutes by public 

transport and on foot. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that these residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• the delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide; or 

• the private delivery service offered by some pharmacies; and 

• remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting the spread of pharmacies across the locality. The Health and 

Wellbeing Board has noted that although there is no 100 hour pharmacy in the locality, the 

Office for Health Improvement and Disparities’ Strategic Health Asset Planning and 

Evaluation (SHAPE) tool shows that all the locality is within a 15 minute drive of a 100 hour 

pharmacy when the neighbouring health and wellbeing board area is taken into 

consideration, with the majority of the locality within a 10 minute drive, as shown on Map 11 

in chapter 5. 

Page 258



239 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future need 

for a pharmacy in any of the 25 housing developments in the locality. It has noted the size of 

the developments, expected completion times, and the number and locations of the existing 

pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted that at 

least two of the pharmacies have sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area and another pharmacy could 

adjust their staffing levels to manage the increase in demand.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies or the dispensing 

appliance contractor in the locality. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

 

13.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 
 

Whilst none of the pharmacies provide the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services despite at least three dispensing prescriptions for appliances, it is 

noted that one of the reasons why prescriptions are dispensed outside of the locality is 

because they have been sent to a dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will therefore be 

able to access these two services via those contractors. In addition stoma nurses employed 

by dispensing appliance contractors will provide the services at the patient’s home and the 

stoma care department at the hospitals may provide similar services. 

 

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all of the information 

that's included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support 

is also available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

 

The dispensing appliance contractor provides the stoma appliance customisation service. 

 

No pharmacies have signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is 

due to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be 

relevant to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few 

Page 259



240 

 
  

tests. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that four of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. It is noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed 

up to provide this service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has 

been written and it is expected that most of the remaining pharmacies will sign-up prior to 

the publication of the final version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements or better access in 

relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that no pharmacy has signed up to provide the 

smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022. It is noted that roll-out of the 

service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in place by the hospitals. It is expected 

that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the publication of the final version of this 

document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic and this will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS 

England’s review it is not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of 

pharmacies providing the service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to these services. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 260



241 

 
  

14 Area Partnership 7 locality 
 

14.1 Key facts 
 
Area Partnership 7 (AP 7) is described as urban or urban minor conurbation and covers the 

wards of Clifton East and Clifton West. Of all the seven area partnerships it has the smallest 

population at 27,609 and the highest population proportion aged 65 years and over. For all 

other age groups, it ranks in the middle when compared to the seven area partnerships. It 

has a lower population proportion aged 16 to 24 than the Nottingham City average.  
 

Table 74 shows the population estimates for the area partnership and its wards, including by 

age groups. 

 
Table 74: Population estimates for wards, area partnership (AP) and Nottingham City 
by age groups, mid-2020 

Area All Ages 0 to 4 5 to 15 16 to 24 25 to 64 65+ 

Clifton East 16,865 1,129 2,524 1,924 8,566 2,722 

Clifton West 10,744 546 1,176 1,913 4,910 2,199 

AP7 27,609 1,675 3,700 3,837 13,476 4,921 

AP7 (%)  6.1% 13.4% 13.9% 48.8% 17.8% 

Nottingham (%)  5.8% 12.7% 22.3% 47.5% 11.6% 
Source: Office for National Statistics - Mid-2020 population estimates for 2020 wards  

 
With 90.7% of residents identifying as belonging to the White ethnic group, the locality is less 

ethnically diverse than the average for Nottingham City (71.5%) and England (85.5%). It is 

the least ethnically diverse area partnership in Nottingham City. Within Area Partnership 7, 

Clifton East ward has the highest percentage of all wards for the White ethnic group and 

Clifton West ward has the second highest percentage. It is worth noting that the underlying 

data, as shown in Table 75, is derived from the 2011 Census and may have changed during 

the intervening period.  

 
Table 75: Ethnic group by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and England, 2011 

  White 
White 
British 

Mixed or 
Multiple 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 

British 

Other 
Ethnic 
Groups 

Clifton East 90.8% 88.5% 3.4% 3.4% 2.2% 0.3% 

Clifton West 90.7% 87.1% 2.9% 4.3% 1.7% 0.4% 

Area Partnership 7 90.7% 88.0% 3.2% 3.7% 2.0% 0.3% 

Nottingham City   71.5% 65.4% 6.6% 13.1% 7.3% 1.5% 

England 85.5% 79.8% 2.2% 7.7% 3.4% 1.0% 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Census 2011 

 

There are 182 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Nottingham City of which 18 are in 

Area Partnership 7, as shown in Table 76. In Area Partnership 7, Clifton West ward has the 

highest number of its LSOAs (2 out of 7) that fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in 

the country, based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019). Overall, it is ranked 16th 

most deprived ward in Nottingham City out of 20 wards (based on an average of the 

Page 261



242 

 
  

population weighted LSOA scores for each ward). Clifton East ward is ranked eighth, despite 

having none of its wards fall amongst the 10% most deprived areas in the country. 

 

Of all the seven area partnerships, Area Partnership 7 is estimated to be: 

 

• The joint third most deprived area partnership according to the Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (ranked 24th, range 21 to 47). This is based on a rank of 24 out of a 

possible range of 21 to 47 (based on the totality of the ward ranks within each of the 

seven area partnerships). Within this range, a rank of 21 is the most deprived and a 

rank of 47 the least deprived. 

• The third most deprived area partnership according to the Income Deprivation 

Affecting Children Domain (ranked 27th, range 19 to 41). 

• The joint third most deprived area partnership according to the Income Deprivation 

Affecting Older People Domain (ranked 30th, range 23 to 35). 

 

Table 76: Number of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) for Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and Income Deprivation Sub-Domains in the most deprived national 
decile by wards and area partnership and estimated rank within Nottingham City 

  

Total 
LSOAs 

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (2019) 

Income Deprivation Affecting 

Children Older People 

Number 
City 

Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

City 
Rank 

LSOAs in 
worst 
10% 

Clifton East 11 8 0 10 0 13 0 

Clifton West 7 16 2 17 2 17 1 

AP7 18 24 2 27 2 30 1 

Nottingham City 182  56  69  51 

England 32,844  3,284  3,284  3,284 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020, estimated ward ranks based on LSOA from Indices of 
Deprivation 2019 (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) 

 
All the wards in the locality have a lower unemployment rate than the average for 

Nottingham City when students are excluded, as shown in Table 77. Clifton West ward has a 

lower unemployment rate than the average for England. It has the third lowest 

unemployment rate of all 20 wards. 

 

Table 77: Unemployment number and rate (aged 16 to 64 years) and annual change by 
ward, Nottingham City and England, November 2021 

  Number Rate 
Rate exc 

students* 
Annual 
change % Change 

Clifton East 700 6.7 7.3 -231 -24.8% 

Clifton West 202 3.0 3.6 -110 -35.3% 

Nottingham City 14,472 6.1 7.9 -3,647 -20.1% 

East Midlands 116,863 3.9 4.3 -46,227 -28.3% 

England 1,638,305 4.6 5.2 -615,626 -27.3% 
Source: Unemployed dashboard based on DWP Alternative Claimant Count from StatXplore 
* Rate excluding students is based on students aged 16 or over at the 2011 Census 

Page 262



243 

 
  

In Area Partnership 7, the general fertility rate (live births per 1,000 women aged 15-44 

years) in Clifton East ward is significantly higher than the average for England. The general 

fertility rate in Clifton West ward is significantly lower than the average for England, as 

shown in Table 78. 

 

Table 78: General fertility rate by ward, Nottingham City and England, 2015 to 2019 

  Clifton East Clifton West Nottingham England 

General fertility rate 66.1 50.6 50.7 60.6 
Source: Public Health England, produced from Office for National Statistics (ONS) data 

 

Life expectancy at birth for both females and males in Clifton East if significantly lower than 

the average for England, as shown in Table 79. 

 

Table 79: Life expectancy at birth by ward, area partnership, Nottingham City and 
England, 2017 to 2019 

Area  Female (years) Male (years) 

Clifton East 81.2 77.4 

Clifton West 83.1 80.7 

England 83.4 79.8 

Nottingham City 81.2 77.2 

England 83.4 79.8 
Source: Nottingham City Ward Report 2020 based on Office for National Statistics data 

 
In Area Partnership 7, Clifton West ward has a lower percentage of children in Reception 

who are overweight or obese compared to the average for England, as shown in Table 80. 

 
Table 80: Percentage prevalence of children in Reception Year and Year 6 classed as 
overweight (including obesity) and obese (including severe obesity) by wards, 
Nottingham City and England, 2017 to 2018 - 2019 to 2020 

Prevalence measure Clifton East Clifton West Nottingham England 

Reception: Overweight 23.7% 19.7% 25.3% 22.6% 

Reception: Obesity  10.4% 6.1% 11.8% 9.7% 

Year 6: Overweight 37.7% 36.8% 40.1% 34.6% 

Year 6: Obesity  23.1% 21.1% 24.7% 20.4% 
 Source: National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), NHS Digital 
 

The Nottingham Citizen’s survey 2019 highlighted that of the residents that responded to the 

survey, in Area Partnership 7 an estimated: 

 

• 27.2% aged 16 years and over smoke. This is the third highest rate of all area 

partnerships and higher than the Nottingham City average of 25%. 

• 55.2% drink alcoholic drinks. This is lower than the Nottingham City average of 

58.6% and third lowest of all area partnerships. 

• 7.9% of those that drink alcohol are at a higher or increasing risk of developing 

alcohol related health problems. This is lower than Nottingham City average of 8.2%. 

Page 263



244 

 
  

• 13.2% have a poor mental wellbeing score. This is the third highest of all area 

partnerships and worse than the Nottingham City average of 12.1%. 

• 14.1% feel lonely often or some of the time. This is the joint second lowest of all the 

area partnerships and lower than the Nottingham City average of 15.4%. 

 

There are six housing developments in Area Partnership 7, with a potential of 589 dwellings 

once all are fully completed, as shown in Table 81. An estimated 406 of these dwellings are 

expected to be delivered during the lifetime of this pharmaceutical needs assessment, 

offering potential accommodation for 1,075 people. 

 

Table 81: Proposed number of dwellings and person increase over the pharmaceutical 

needs assessment (PNA) timeline - 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2025 

Planned housing development sites PNA timeline 

Ward Site Hectares Dwellings Dwellings 
Proposed 
occupancy 

Person 
increase 

Clifton East Farnborough Road 7.71 196 122.5 3 368 

Clifton East Farnborough Road 0.25 36 27 2 54 

Clifton West Hawksley Gardens 9.59 285 212.5 2.5 531 

Clifton West Sturgeon Avenue  0.85 35 35 3 105 

Clifton West Ruddington Lane 0.62 29 4.5 2 9 

Clifton West Ruddington Lane 0.20 8 4 2 8 

Total AP7 developments and person increase 589 406   1,075 
Source: Nottingham City Council, January 2022 

 
Two of the developments are in Clifton East ward with a potential of 232 dwellings, of which 

150 dwellings (accommodating 422 people) are expected to be completed by October 2025. 

Both dwellings are at different sites on Farnborough Road. The largest development is on 

the former Fairham Comprehensive School site and is mainly for family homes. Building is 

expected to commence in 2023 to 2024. The other development is for one to two bedroom 

flats and is expected to be completed in 2023 to 2024. 

 

In Clifton West ward there are four developments with a potential of 357 dwellings, of which 

256 dwellings (accommodating 653 people) are expected to be completed by October 2025. 

The developments include: 

 

• Hawksley Gardens, which is mainly for family homes, with ongoing building work 

planned between 2022 to 2026.  

• Sturgeon Avenue, which is at the planning stage with building expected to be 

completed in 2024 to 2025.  

• Ruddington Lane, which is on two sites, with both developments for apartments and 

one to four bed houses. Building is expected to be completed in 2022 to 2023. 

 

Map 85 provides an indication of the locations of the housing developments in Clifton East 

ward (shown in red) and Clifton West ward (shown in green).  

 

Page 264



245 

 
  

Map 85: Planned housing development sites in Clifton East ward and Clifton West 
ward  

 
UK Grid Reference Finder l Copyright 2013, All Rights Reserved l Open Database Licence l © 
OpenStreetMap contributors l CC BY-SA l OpenStreetMap 

The Fairham development falls within the Rushcliffe Borough Council area but borders the 

boundary of Nottingham City, just south of Clifton. It is a large development of up to 3,000 

dwellings with employment space creating more than 2,000 new jobs and retail 

development. Community buildings will include a health centre, leisure facilities and a 

primary school. The development will be delivered in phases and is likely to take between 10 

to 15 years to complete, with 584 completions expected by October 2025. New roads and 

other access routes are included as part of the site plans. Phase one of the development, 

which obtained planning approval in December 2021, is for up to 150 houses, with an initial 

93 houses planned on the part of the site that’s to the immediate south of the existing park 

and ride terminus on the west side of Nottingham Road.  

 

14.2 Necessary services: current provision within the locality’s area 

 
There are five pharmacies in the locality operated by five different contractors. One of the 

pharmacies is a 100 pharmacy in Clifton East ward. As can be seen from Map 86, the 

pharmacies are located generally in areas of greater population density (the darker the 

shading the greater the population density). Most of the pharmacies are also in or near the 

more deprived areas of the locality, as can be seen from Map 87, where the darker the 

shading the greater the level of deprivation.  

Page 265

https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


246 

 
  

Map 86: Location of pharmacies compared to population density 

   
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 87: Location of pharmacies compared to levels of deprivation 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

 

Page 266

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


247 

 
  

A relocation application was received on 11 May 2022 from a dispensing appliance 

contractor to relocate their premises from National Distribution Centre, Unit 1, Phoenix 

Centre, Millennium Way West, Nottingham, NG8 6AS, to plot B1 Fairham Business Park, 

Clifton, Nottingham. The nearest postcode is NG11 8ES (the build is not fully completed). 

NHS England has until 11 September 2022 to determine the application. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, 87.4% of prescriptions items written by the GP practices in the locality were 

dispensed within the locality by one of the pharmacies and 1.3% were personally 

administered by the GP practices.  

 

All of the locality can access one of the five pharmacies within 20 minutes by car outside of 

the rush hour periods, with the majority able to access a pharmacy within 10 minutes, as 

shown on Map 88. The only exception is the area to the west of the locality, close to the 

River Trent. Google Maps reveals this to be Clifton Woods Local Nature Reserve and Clifton 

Grove, which are non-residential areas. The edge of Clifton village, parts of Nottingham 

Trent University, Clifton Village Cricket Ground and housing estates and fields close to the 

River Trent also fall outside the 10 minute travel time. 

 

Map 88: Access to pharmacies by car outside of rush hour times 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

All of the locality can access a pharmacy by car within 30 minutes during the rush hour 

periods, with the majority able to access a pharmacy within 15 minutes, as shown on Map 

89. In addition, access to a pharmacy by public transport is within 20 minutes for all of the 

locality except for Clifton Woods Local Nature Reserve, Clifton Grove and fields closer to the 

River Trent, as shown on Map 90. 

 

Page 267

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


248 

 
  

Map 89: Access to pharmacies by car during rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 
 

Map 90: Access to pharmacies by public transport 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 268

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


249 

 
  

Map 91 shows the areas that are within a 15 minute walk of a pharmacy. 
 
Map 91: Time taken to access a pharmacy on foot 

 

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 

The 100 hour pharmacy in the locality opens for six days a week and covers the hours: 

 

• Monday to Friday  07:00 to 24:00  

• Saturday   08:00 to 24:00  

 

Regarding the remaining four pharmacies: 

 

• Three are open Monday to Friday 

• One is open Monday to Saturday 

 

These four pharmacies are open between: 

 

• 08:00 to 09:00 and 18:00 to 19:00 Monday to Friday (two are open after 18:00) * 

• 08:30 to 17:30 Saturday 

*On Friday one additional pharmacy is open after 18:00 (closing at 18:30 instead of 18:00). 

 

Page 269

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


250 

 
  

Although there is no pharmacy with Sunday opening hours in the locality, Google Maps 

shows that residents can access three pharmacies with Sunday opening hours in the 

neighbouring health and wellbeing board’s area within a five to 20 minute drive, if required. 

The one pharmacy who responded to the contractor questionnaire dispenses all appliances 

listed in Part IX of the Drug Tariff.  

 

Three pharmacies provided 316 new medicine service interventions in 2020 to 2021, with a 

range of eight to 157 provided at pharmacy level. Between April and September 2021, three 

pharmacies provided a total of 210 full service interventions, with a range of 34 to 99 

interventions across the pharmacies. One of the pharmacies that hasn’t provided the service 

is in Clifton East ward and the other is in Clifton West ward. However, it is noted that all 

pharmacies had provided the service in the second half of 2021 to 2022. 

 

Four pharmacies provided 43 consultations as part of the NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service in 2020 to 2021, a range of three to 26 consultations at pharmacy level. 

All five pharmacies provided 134 consultations between April and September 2021, with a 

range of three to 88 consultations across the pharmacies. 

 

Three pharmacies provided flu vaccinations under the advanced service in 2020 to 2021, 

vaccinating a total of 664 people with a range of 197 to 259 at pharmacy level. Between 

September and December 2021, four pharmacies vaccinated 1,637 people, ranging from 

165 to 760 across the pharmacies.68  

 

14.3 Necessary services: current provision outside the locality’s area 

 

Some residents choose to access contractors outside both the locality and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s area in order to access services: 

 

• Offered by dispensing appliance contractors 

• Offered by distance selling premises 

• Which are located near to where they work, shop or visit for leisure or other 

purposes 

 

Of all the prescription items written by the GP practices in the locality in 2020 to 2021, 88.7% 

were dispensed within the locality. The following prescription items were dispensed 

elsewhere in Nottingham City: 

 

• 4.3% were dispensed by 61 different pharmacies of which: 

o 3.0% were in Area Partnership 5 

o 0.4% were in Area Partnership 4 

o 0.4% were in Area Partnership 2 

o 0.3% were in Area Partnership 6 

o 0.1% were in Area Partnership 3 

o 0.0% were in Area Partnership 1 

 
68 Advanced service flu report, NHS Business Services Authority public insight portal Catalyst 

Page 270

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/prescription-data/dispensing-data/advanced-service-flu-report


251 

 
  

• Seven items (0.0%) were dispensed by two different dispensing appliance 

contractors. 

 

The following prescription items were dispensed elsewhere in the country: 

 

• 5.0% were dispensed by 1,031 different pharmacies (4.3% in Nottinghamshire) 

• 1.8% were dispensed by 22 different distance selling pharmacies 

• 0.1% were dispensed by 13 different dispensing appliance contractors 

 

The maps below show that when provision in the neighbouring localities and health and 

wellbeing board area is considered, all of the locality is within: 

 

• 15 minutes of a pharmacy by car outside of rush hour times, with most of the area 

within five minutes (Map 92). 

• 20 minutes by car during rush hour times, with most of the area within 15 minutes 

(Map 93). 

• 20 minutes by public transport, except the Clifton Woods Local Nature Reserve area 

and fields north of the A453, which are non-residential areas (Map 94). 

 

Most of the locality is within a 20 minute walk of a pharmacy, as shown on Map 95. Google 

Maps shows that the main exceptions are the fields east of Farnborough Academy and 

Clifton Playing Fields in Clifton East ward. In Clifton West ward, the Clifton Woods Local 

Nature Reserve area and parts of Clifton Village, Nottingham Trent University and parts of a 

housing estate closest to the River Trent are all further than a 20-minute walk to a pharmacy. 

 

Map 92: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 7 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car outside of rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 271

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


252 

 
  

Map 93: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 7 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by car during rush hour times 

 

  Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
Map 94: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 7 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by public transport 

  

 Travel time in minutes 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

Page 272

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


253 

 
  

Map 95: Travel times to pharmacies in Area Partnership 7 and neighbouring localities 
and health and wellbeing board areas by foot 

 

 

 Travel time in minutes 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100016969 
| parallel | Mapbox | OpenStreetMap contributors 

 
14.4 Other relevant services: current provision 
 
No pharmacy provided any appliance use reviews or stoma appliance customisations in 

2020 to 2021 and this remains the position for the first six months of 2021 to 2022.  

 

In 2021 to 2022, the following contractors provided the following enhanced services: 

 

• Three pharmacies provided the emergency supply enhanced service, including one 

100 hour pharmacy.  

• Four pharmacies provided the pharmacy first service, including one 100 hour 

pharmacy. 

• One pharmacy provided the extended care service (tier 1) 

 

As of September 2021, all five of the pharmacies had provided a total of 3,626 test kits under 

the COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution service. 

 

The Hepatitis C antibody testing service commenced on 1 September 2020 and was 

originally due to end on 31 March 2022. It has now been extended for a further year. As of 

14 February 2022, no pharmacy has signed up to provide this service.  

 

Page 273

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/
https://parallel.co.uk/
https://mapbox.com/
https://www.openstreetmap.org/copyright


254 

 
  

The smoking cessation advanced service commenced on 10 March 2022 and as of the 29 

March 2022, no pharmacy had signed up to provide this service. However, it is noted that 

two pharmacies had signed up by 18 July 2022. 

 

Three pharmacies have registered to provide the hypertension case-finding service which 

commenced on the 1 October 2021. At the time of drafting the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment, no activity data was available.  

 

14.5 Other NHS services 
 

The GP practices in the locality provide the following services which affect the need for 

pharmaceutical services: 

  

• provision of emergency hormonal contraception; 

• blood pressure checks; 

• flu vaccinations; and 

• advice and treatment for common ailments. 

 

Nottingham City GP Alliance alongside Nottingham City Integrated Care Provider (ICP), 

Nottingham City Council, Nottingham University Hospitals and City Care offer the Stub it! 

Stop Smoking Service (https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it). 

  

In 2020 to 2021, 1.3% of items prescribed by the GP practices were personally administered 

by the practices. 

 

Residents will access other NHS services located in this locality or elsewhere in the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area which affect the need for pharmaceutical services, including: 

  

• hospital services; 

• the GP out of hours service; 

• evening and weekend GP appointments; 

• urgent treatment centre / unit; 

• Nottinghamshire appliance management service; 

• continence prescription service; 

• public health services commissioned by the council; and  

• other services provided within a community setting. 

  

Details on these services can be found in chapter 6 of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment. 

  

No other NHS services have been identified that are located within the locality and which 

affect the need for pharmaceutical services. 

 

14.6 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 

 

As can be seen from sections 14.2 and 14.3, those living within the locality and registered 

with one of the GP practices generally choose to access one of the pharmacies in the 

Page 274

https://www.ncgpa.org.uk/stub-it


255 

 
  

locality in order to have their prescriptions dispensed. Those that look outside the locality 

usually do so either to access a neighbouring pharmacy, or a dispensing appliance 

contractor or distance selling premises outside of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area. 

 

In 2020 to 2021, a total of 1,138 contractors dispensed items written by one of the GP 

practices within the locality. Of these contractors, 1,066 were outside of Nottingham City and 

located across 137 different health and wellbeing boards. 

 

14.7 Necessary services: gaps in provision 
 
One of the five pharmacies responded to the contractor questionnaire. Regarding the 

question on capacity to meet demand from the housing developments in the locality, the 

pharmacy confirmed that it has sufficient capacity within its existing premises and staffing 

levels to manage the increase in demand in the area.  

 

Whilst not an NHS service, the pharmacy collects prescriptions from GP practices. It also 

provides a free delivery service to all patients. 

 

The pharmacy confirmed that Gujarati is spoken by staff every day.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the location of pharmacies across this locality, 

and the fact that the population can access a pharmacy within 20 minutes by car outside of 

rush hour times and within 30 minutes during rush hour times. When provision in the 

neighbouring localities and health and wellbeing board area is taken into account, all of the 

locality is within 15 minutes of a pharmacy by car outside of rush hour times, with the vast 

majority within five minutes. All the locality is within 20 minutes of a pharmacy by car during 

rush hour times, with the vast majority within 15 minutes. In addition, all the locality is within 

20 minutes of a pharmacy by public transport and most of the locality is within 20 minutes of 

a pharmacy on foot. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that there may be some residents in the locality, 

both now and within the lifetime of the document, who may not: 

 

• have access to private transport at such times when they need to access 

pharmaceutical services; 

• be able to use public transport; or 

• be able to walk to a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has 

substantially increased the use and acceptance of remote consultations within primary care. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore of the opinion that these residents will be able 

to access pharmaceutical services remotely either via: 

 

• The delivery service that all the distance selling premises in England must provide; or 

• The private delivery service offered by some pharmacies; and 

Page 275



256 

 
  

• Remote access (via the telephone or online) to pharmaceutical services that all 

pharmacies are now required to provide to a reasonable extent. 

 

The increasing use of the Electronic Prescription Service also reduces the need for residents 

to first attend their GP surgery to collect their prescriptions and to then take them to the 

pharmacy of their choice. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the opening hours of the existing pharmacies 

and is of the opinion that they are sufficient to meet the likely needs of residents in the 

locality, particularly noting that there is one 100 hour pharmacy in the locality and the spread 

of pharmacies across the locality. The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that although 

there is no pharmacy with Sunday opening hours in the locality, residents can access three 

pharmacies with Sunday opening hours within a five to 20 minute drive if required. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has considered whether there is a current or future need 

for a pharmacy in the six housing developments in the locality. It has also considered the 

likely impact of the major housing development in the neighbouring health and wellbeing 

board area, which is south of the locality. The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted the 

size of the developments, expected completion times, and the number and locations of the 

existing pharmacies in relation to the development sites, as well as travel times. It has noted 

that at least one of the pharmacies has sufficient capacity within their existing premises and 

staffing levels to manage the increase in demand in the area.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore concluded that there are no current or future 

needs in relation to the provision of essential services by pharmacies in the locality. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is also satisfied that, based upon the information contained 

in the preceding sections and the increased use of remote consultations, there are no 

current or future needs in relation to the provision of those advanced services which fall 

within the definition of necessary services, namely: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and  

• Flu vaccination. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has also noted that the number of pharmacies providing 

these services has further increased while drafting the pharmaceutical needs assessment, 

as a result of the focus now moving away from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The 

Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that there is sufficient capacity to meet the demand 

for these advanced services within the current providers.  

 

14.8 Improvements or better access: gaps in provision 
 
Whilst none of the pharmacies provide the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services despite at least one dispensing prescriptions for appliances, it is 

noted that one of the reasons why prescriptions are dispensed outside of the locality is 

because they have been sent to a dispensing appliance contractor. Patients will therefore be 

Page 276



257 

 
  

able to access these two services via those contractors. In addition stoma nurses employed 

by dispensing appliance contractors will provide the services at the patient’s home and the 

stoma care department at the hospitals may provide similar services. 

 

The community-based Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual 

review with a stoma nurse as part of its service. The review covers all of the information 

that's included within the appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractors, in addition to a clinical review. Access to specialist advice and support 

is also available as required. In addition, not all stoma appliances need to be customised. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future 

improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use review and stoma appliance 

customisation services. 

 

No pharmacies have signed up to provide the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, which is 

due to end on 31 March 2023. It is recognised that this is a niche service that will not be 

relevant to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, not many pharmacies have 

signed up to provide the service, and those that have done so have completed very few 

tests. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that three of the pharmacies have signed up to 

provide the hypertension case-finding advanced service as of April 2022, but no activity data 

is available at the time of drafting. It is noted that across the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 

area, the number of pharmacies that have signed up to provide this service has increased 

whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has been written and it is expected that most of 

the remaining pharmacies will sign-up prior to the publication of the final version of this 

document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or 

future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that no pharmacy has signed up to provide the 

smoking cessation advanced service as of 29 March 2022. It is noted that across the Health 

and Wellbeing Board’s area, the number of pharmacies that have signed up to provide this 

service has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has been written but that 

roll-out of the service has been delayed whilst the systems are put in place by the hospitals. 

It is expected that most of the pharmacies will sign-up prior to the publication of the final 

version of this document. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there 

are no current or future improvements or better access in relation to this service. 

 

In relation to the four enhanced services that are currently commissioned by NHS England, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that these services are currently being reviewed. 

Training to provide these services has been delayed due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

Page 277



258 

 
  

pandemic and this will have affected sign-up. Should the services continue following NHS 

England’s review it is not expected that there will be a reduction in the number of 

pharmacies providing the service. In fact it is likely that the number will increase. The Health 

and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there are no current or future improvements 

or better access in relation to these services. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 278



259 

 
  

15 Conclusions for the purpose of schedule 1 to The NHS 
(Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 
2013, as amended 
 
The pharmaceutical needs assessment has considered the current provision of 

pharmaceutical services across Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board area and 

specifically the demography and health needs of the population. It has analysed whether 

current provision meets the needs of the population of Nottingham City and whether 

there are any potential gaps in pharmaceutical service provision either now or within the 

lifetime of the document.  

 

Nottingham City has 64 pharmacies, including four distance selling premises, all providing 

the full range of essential services. Many provide advanced and enhanced services as 

commissioned by NHS England, and some provide services commissioned by Nottingham 

City Council. There are also three dispensing appliance contractor premises within the 

Health and Wellbeing Board area. 

 

Overall, access to pharmaceutical services in Nottingham City is good due to the spread of 

premises across the area and the times at which they are open.  

 

Redistribution of premises, for example the clustering of pharmacies around GP practices, 

may impact negatively on the arrangements that are currently in place which in turn may 

lead to access being worsened, however this will very much depend on the local situation. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board notes that when considering relocation applications from 

pharmacies NHS England is required to have regard to, amongst other factors: 

 

•  Whether “the location of the new premises is not significantly less accessible” for the 

patient groups that use the existing premises, and 

• Whether the relocation would “result in a significant change to the arrangements that 

are in place for the provision of” pharmaceutical services. 

 

If NHS England is satisfied that the location of new premises is significantly less accessible, 

or the relocation would result in significant change, then it can refuse the application. 

 

Nottingham City has a population of approximately 337,098. The projected population 

changes and housing developments identified may consequently impact on the type of 

services required and the number of people accessing pharmaceutical services within the 

county. However, given the current population demographics, housing projections, the 

distribution of pharmacies across Nottingham City and their capacity to meet increases in 

demand, it is anticipated that the current pharmaceutical services providers will be sufficient 

to meet local needs. 

 

15.1 Necessary services – current provision 
 
Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board has defined necessary services as: 

 

Page 279



260 

 
  

• Essential services provided at all premises included in the pharmaceutical lists. 

• The advanced services of new medicine service, NHS community pharmacist 

consultation service and flu vaccination. 

 

Preceding sections of this document have set out the provision of these services in the 

Nottingham City area. 

 

15.2 Necessary services – gaps in provision 
 

15.2.1 Access to essential services 
 
In order to assess the provision of essential services against the needs of the population, the 

Health and Wellbeing Board considered access (travelling times and opening hours) as the 

most important factor in determining the extent to which the current provision of essential 

services meets the needs of the population.  

 

In line with the national access standards and taking into account the urban-rural split of the 

area, the Health and Wellbeing Board chose 20 minutes by car as a reasonable time for 

residents to take to access a pharmacy. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board also considered access times for public transport and by 

walking. 

 
15.2.1.1 Access to essential services during normal working hours 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has identified that all residents of Nottingham City are able 

to access a pharmacy during normal working hours within 15 minutes by car outside of rush 

hour times. Google Maps shows that the non-residential area of Colwick Country Park is 

greater than a 15 minute drive time to a pharmacy but within 20 minutes. The picture 

changes slightly during rush hour times with all of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area 

now within 20 minutes of a pharmacy except for the non-residential area of Colwick Country 

Park. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that all residents can access a 

pharmacy within 20 minutes by private transport. 

 

When considering access to a pharmacy by public transport, there are four areas which fall 

outside of a 20 minute travel time by public transport, all of which are non-residential areas. 

These are: 

 

• Colwick Country Park,  

• Clifton Wood and Clifton Grove Local Nature Reserve,  

• Riverside Family Golf Centre and Sports Complex, and parts of  

• Bulwell Hall Golf Course and Country Park. 

 

In addition, all residents of Nottingham City are within 30 minutes of a pharmacy on foot, with 

most of the residents able to walk to a pharmacy within 20 minutes. Further to this, the 

Strategic Health Asset Planning and Evaluation (SHAPE) tool identifies that only 6,894 

residents (2.0% of the population) cannot walk to their nearest pharmacy within 20 minutes. 

Page 280



261 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board has therefore noted that all residents can access a 

pharmacy within 20 minutes by public transport and that the vast majority of residents can 

access a pharmacy within 20 minutes on foot. 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no current gaps in the provision of essential services during 

normal working hours have been identified in any of the localities. 

 
15.2.1.2 Access to essential services outside normal working hours 
 

There is good access to essential services outside normal working hours through provision 

by nine 100 hour pharmacies and extended evening and weekend opening hours offered by 

other pharmacies: 

 

• 12 pharmacies open seven days a week 

• 14 pharmacies open Monday to Saturday 

• 9 pharmacies open Monday to Friday, and Saturday until lunchtime 

• 28 pharmacies open Monday to Friday 

 

In addition, the distance selling pharmacy which opens 4 August 2022 will open Monday to 

Friday. 

 

Outside normal working hours the GP out of hours service will provide courses of treatment 

where appropriate. Although there may be limited access to the other pharmaceutical 

services, for example medicines support, signposting or self-care, the 2010 Office of Fair 

Trading report on the previous ‘control of entry’ regulations and retail pharmacy services in 

the UK found there was a lack of published evidence for consumer demand for extended 

opening hours69. The patient and public questionnaire showed that 39% of respondents did 

not have a preference as to the most convenient time to use a pharmacy, and of those who 

did have a preference only 5.1% preferred 7am to 9am, 13% between 6pm and 9pm and 

1.7% after 9pm. 

 

It is not expected that any of the current pharmacies will reduce the number of core opening 

hours, indeed 100 hour pharmacies are unable to, and NHS England foresees no reason to 

agree a reduction of core opening hours for any service provider except on an ad hoc basis 

to cover extenuating circumstances as permitted within the terms of service where this is 

based upon a change in patient need. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is mindful that the GP extended access service, Nottingham 

City General Practice Alliance (NCGPA), may amend their opening times. However it would 

expect that either existing pharmacy contractors will adjust their opening hours to address 

such changes in the future or NHS England will direct pharmacies to open to meet any 

differences in opening hours. 

 

 
69 Office of Fair Trading. Evaluating the impact of the 2003 OFT study on the Control of Entry 
regulations in the retail pharmacies market March 2010 

Page 281

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140402214527/http:/www.oft.gov.uk/shared_oft/reports/Evaluating-OFTs-work/OFT1219.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140402214527/http:/www.oft.gov.uk/shared_oft/reports/Evaluating-OFTs-work/OFT1219.pdf


262 

 
  

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no current gaps in the provision of essential services outside 

normal working hours have been identified in any of the localities. 

 
15.2.2 Access to advanced services 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board deemed the following advanced services to be necessary: 

 

• New medicine service, 

• Community pharmacist consultation service, and 

• Flu vaccination 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board noted the number and distribution of pharmacies providing 

these services and activity levels since April 2020. For the community pharmacy consultation 

service, it has also taken into consideration the number of pharmacies that have signed up 

to provide the service but had not received a referral. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the number of pharmacies providing these 

services has further increased while drafting the pharmaceutical needs assessment, as a 

result of the focus now moving away from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The 

Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that there is sufficient capacity to meet the demand 

for these advanced services within the current providers.  

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no current gaps in the provision of the new medicine service, 

community pharmacist consultation service and flu vaccination advanced services 

have been identified in any of the localities.  

 
15.2.3 Future provision of necessary services 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board has taken into account the forecasted population growth. 

It has not identified any necessary services that are not currently provided but that will, in 

specified future circumstances, need to be provided in order to meet the anticipated 

increased need for pharmaceutical services due to the forecasted population growth. 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no gaps in the need for the necessary services in specified future 

circumstances have been identified in any of the localities. 

 
15.3 Other relevant services: current provision 
 
Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board identified that six advanced services (appliance 

use reviews, stoma appliance customisation, Hepatitis C antibody testing, COVID-19 lateral 

flow device distribution, hypertension case-finding and smoking cessation) and four 

enhanced services (palliative care drugs, emergency supply of medicines, pharmacy first 

and extended care service), whilst not necessary to meet the need for pharmaceutical 

services, have secured improvements or better access in its area. 

Page 282



263 

 
  

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no gaps in the current provision of other relevant services or in 

specified future circumstances have been identified in any of the localities 

 
15.4 Improvements and better access – gaps in provision 
 
15.4.1 Current and future access to essential services – present and future 
circumstances 
 
Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board considered the conclusions in respect of 

current provision as set out at in this document and has not identified services that would, if 

provided either now or in future specified circumstances, secure improvements, or better 

access, to essential services. 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no gaps have been identified in essential services that if provided 

either now or in the future would secure improvements, or better access, to essential 

services in any of the localities. 

 

15.4.2 Current and future access to advanced services 
 
From the data available not all pharmacies are providing all these advanced services. As 

shown in section 5, activity levels for the advanced services at pharmacy level vary across 

the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area.  

 

The lateral flow device distribution advanced service is not currently commissioned by NHS 

England following the announcement that free testing ended on 1 April 2022 in England. 

However, if it was to be recommissioned it is anticipated that those pharmacies that 

previously provided the service would do so again, and therefore no current or future 

improvements or better access have been identified in relation to this service. 

 

The hypertension case-finding service and the smoking cessation service are relatively new 

services, launched in October 2021 and March 2022 respectively. The Health and Wellbeing 

Board has noted that the number of pharmacies that have signed up to provide these 

advanced services has increased whilst the pharmaceutical needs assessment has been 

drafted. The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that provision of these services will only 

increase further as a result of the focus now moving away from the coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic. It is therefore satisfied that there is sufficient capacity to meet the demand for 

these advanced services within the current providers.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board recognises that the Hepatitis C antibody testing service, is 

a niche service that will not be relevant to many of the population. It is noted that nationally, 

not many pharmacies have signed up to provide the service, and those that have done so 

have completed very few tests. The service is due to end on 31st March 2023.  

 

Demand for the appliance advanced services will be lower than for the other advanced 

services due to the much smaller proportion of the population that may require these 

Page 283



264 

 
  

services. The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that one of the reasons why 

prescriptions are dispensed outside of the area is because they have been sent to a 

dispensing appliance contractor. In addition stoma nurses employed by dispensing 

appliance contractors will provide the services at the patient’s home and the stoma care 

department at the hospitals may provide similar services. The community-based 

Nottinghamshire appliance management service offers an annual review with a stoma nurse 

as part of its service. The review covers all the information that is included within the 

appliance use review offered by pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors, in 

addition to a clinical review. The Health and Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that there 

are no current or future improvements or better access in relation to the appliance use 

review and stoma appliance customisation services. 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no gaps have been identified in the provision of advanced services 

that if provided either now or in the future would secure improvements, or better 

access, to advanced services in any of the localities. 

 
15.4.3 Current and future access to enhanced services 
 
The four enhanced services are commissioned by NHS England to ensure that there are 

sufficient numbers of pharmacies offering these services across the county of 

Nottinghamshire. The services are currently being reviewed and therefore no new 

pharmacies are being signed up to provide these services. The Health and Wellbeing Board 

is satisfied that provision will only increase if the services continue as a result of the focus 

now moving away from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no gaps in respect of securing improvements, or better access, to 

the four enhanced services in specified future circumstances have been identified in 

any of the localities. 

 

15.4.4 Future access to advanced and enhanced services 
 
Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board has not identified any advanced or enhanced 

services that are not currently provided but that will, in specified future circumstances, need 

to be provided in order to secure improvements or better access to pharmaceutical services. 

 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this pharmaceutical 

needs assessment no gaps in respect of securing improvements, or better access, to 

advanced or enhanced services in specified future circumstances have been 

identified in any of the localities. 

 

  

Page 284



265 

 
  

Appendix A – policy context and background papers 

 

Between the 1980s and 2012 the ability for a new pharmacy or dispensing appliance 

contractor premises to open was largely determined by the regulatory system that became 

known as ‘control of entry’. Broadly speaking an application to open new premises was only 

successful if a primary care trust or a preceding organisation considered it was either 

necessary or expedient to grant the application in order to ensure that people could access 

pharmaceutical services. 

 

The control of entry system was reviewed and amended over the years, and in 2005 

exemptions to the ‘necessary or expedient’ test were introduced – namely 100 hour 

pharmacies, wholly mail order or internet pharmacies, out of town retail area pharmacies and 

one-stop primary care centre pharmacies.  

 

In January 2007 a review of the system was published by the government70, and found that 

although the exemptions had had an impact, this had not been even across the country. At 

the time access to pharmaceutical services was very good (99% of the population could 

access a pharmacy within 20 minutes, including in deprived areas71), however the system 

was complex to administer and was largely driven by providers who decided where they 

wished to open premises rather than by a robust commissioning process. 

 

Primary care trusts believed that they did not have sufficient influence to commission 

pharmaceutical services that reflected the health needs of their population. This was at odds 

with the thrust of the then NHS reforms which aimed to give primary care trusts more 

responsibility to secure effective commissioning of adequate services to address local 

priorities. 

 

When the government published the outcomes of this review, it also launched a review of 

the contractual arrangements underpinning the provision of pharmaceutical services72. One 

of the recommendations of this second review was that primary care trusts should undertake 

a more rigorous assessment of local pharmaceutical needs to provide an objective 

framework for future contractual arrangements and control of entry, setting out the 

requirements for all potential providers to meet, but flexible enough to allow primary care 

trusts to contract for a minimum service to ensure prompt access to medicines and to the 

supply of appliances. 

 

The government responded to the outcomes of both reviews, as well as a report by the All-

Party Pharmacy Group following an inquiry into pharmacy services, in its pharmacy White 

Paper “Pharmacy in England. Building on strengths – delivering the future” published in April 

2008. The White Paper proposed that commissioning of pharmaceutical services should 

meet local needs and link to practice-based commissioning. However it was recognised that 

at the time there was considerable variation in the scope, depth and breadth of 

 
70 Review of progress on reforms in England to the “Control of Entry” system for NHS pharmaceutical 
contractors. Department of Health 2007  
71 Pharmacy in England. Building on strengths – delivering the future. Department of Health 2008  
72 Review of NHS pharmaceutical contractual arrangements. Anne Galbraith 2007  

Page 285

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130107105354/http:/www.Department%20of%20Health.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DEPARTMENT%20OF%20HEALTH_063460
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130107105354/http:/www.Department%20of%20Health.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DEPARTMENT%20OF%20HEALTH_063460
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/228858/7341.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130107105354/http:/www.Department%20of%20Health.gov.uk/prod_consum_Department%20of%20Health/groups/Department%20of%20Health_digitalassets/@Department%20of%20Health/@en/documents/digitalasset/Department%20of%20Health_083871.pdf


266 

 
  

pharmaceutical needs assessments. Some primary care trusts had begun to revise their 

pharmaceutical needs assessments (first produced in 2004) in light of the 2006 re-

organisations, whereas others had yet to start the process. The White Paper confirmed that 

the government considered that the structure of and data requirements for primary care 

trusts pharmaceutical needs assessments required further review and strengthening to 

ensure they were an effective and robust commissioning tool which supported primary care 

trusts decisions. 

 

Following consultation on the proposals contained within the White Paper, the Department of 

Health and Social Care established an advisory group with representation from the main 

stakeholders. The terms of reference for the group were: 

 

“Subject to Parliamentary approval of proposals in the Health Bill 2009, to consider and 

advise on, and to help the Department devise, regulations to implement a duty on NHS 

primary care trusts to develop and to publish pharmaceutical needs assessments and on 

subsequent regulations required to use such assessments as the basis for determining the 

provision of NHS pharmaceutical services”. 

 

As a result of the work of this group, regulations setting out the minimum requirements for 

pharmaceutical needs assessments were laid in Parliament and took effect from 1 April 

2010. They placed an obligation on all primary care trusts to produce their first 

pharmaceutical needs assessment which complied with the requirement of the regulations 

on or before 1 February 2011, with an ongoing requirement to produce a second 

pharmaceutical needs assessment no later than three years after the publication of the first 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. The group also drafted regulations on how 

pharmaceutical needs assessments would be used to determine applications for new 

pharmacy and dispensing appliance contractor premises (referred to as the ‘market entry’ 

system) and these regulations took effect from 1 September 2012. 

 

The re-organisation of the NHS from 1 April 2013 came about as the result of the Health and 

Social Care Act 2012. This Act established health and wellbeing boards and transferred 

responsibility to develop and update pharmaceutical needs assessments from primary care 

trusts to health and wellbeing boards. Responsibility for using pharmaceutical needs 

assessments as the basis for determining market entry to a pharmaceutical list transferred 

from primary care trusts to NHS England from 1 April 2013.  

 

Section 128A of the NHS Act 2006, as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, 

sets out the requirements for health and wellbeing boards to develop and update 

pharmaceutical needs assessments and gives the Department of Health and Social Care 

powers to make regulations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 286



267 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The regulations referred to in the NHS Act 2006 are the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 201373, as amended, in particular Part 2 and 

Schedule 1. 

 

In summary the regulations set out the: 

 

• Services that are to be covered by the pharmaceutical needs assessment, 

• Information that must be included in the pharmaceutical needs assessment (it should 

be noted that health and wellbeing boards are free to include any other information 

that they feel is relevant), 

• Date by which health and wellbeing boards must publish their first pharmaceutical 

needs assessment, 

• Requirement on health and wellbeing boards to publish further pharmaceutical needs 

assessments on a three-yearly basis, 

• Requirement to publish a revised assessment sooner than on a three-yearly basis in 

certain circumstances, 

• Requirement to publish supplementary statements in certain circumstances, 

• Requirement to consult with certain people and organisations at least once during the 

production of the pharmaceutical needs assessment, for at least 60 days, and 

 
73 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made  

Section 128A Pharmaceutical needs assessments 
 

(1)  Each Health and Wellbeing Board must in accordance with regulations-- 
(a)  assess needs for pharmaceutical services in its area, and 
(b)  publish a statement of its first assessment and of any revised 

assessment. 
 
(2)  The regulations must make provision-- 

(a)  as to information which must be contained in a statement; 
(b)  as to the extent to which an assessment must take account of likely 

future needs; 
(c)  specifying the date by which a Health and Wellbeing Board must 

publish the statement of its first assessment; 
(d)  as to the circumstances in which a Health and Wellbeing Board must 

make a new assessment. 
 
(3) The regulations may in particular make provision-- 

(a)  as to the pharmaceutical services to which an assessment must relate; 
(b)  requiring a Health and Wellbeing Board to consult specified persons 

about  
 specified matters when making an assessment; 
(c)  as to the manner in which an assessment is to be made; 
(d)  as to matters to which a Health and Wellbeing Board must have regard 

when making an assessment. 

Page 287

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


268 

 
  

• Matters the health and wellbeing board is to have regard to when producing its 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

Each health and wellbeing board was under a duty to publish its first pharmaceutical needs 

assessment by 1 April 2015. In the meantime, the pharmaceutical needs assessment 

produced by the preceding primary care trust remained in existence and was used by NHS 

England to determine whether or not to grant applications for new pharmacy or dispensing 

appliance contractor premises.  

 

Once a health and wellbeing board has published its first pharmaceutical needs assessment 

it is required to produce a revised pharmaceutical needs assessment within three years or 

sooner if it identifies changes to the need for pharmaceutical services which are of a 

significant extent. The only exception to this is where the health and wellbeing board is 

satisfied that producing a revised pharmaceutical needs assessment would be a 

disproportionate response to those changes. 

 

In addition a health and wellbeing board may publish a supplementary statement. The 

regulations set out three situations where the publication of a supplementary statement 

would be appropriate: 

 

1. The health and wellbeing board identifies changes to the availability of 

pharmaceutical services which are relevant to the granting of applications for new 

pharmacy or dispensing appliance contractor premises, and it is satisfied that 

producing a revised assessment would be a disproportionate response to those 

changes, 

2. The health and wellbeing board identifies changes to the availability of 

pharmaceutical services which are relevant to the granting of applications for new 

pharmacy or dispensing appliance contractor premises, and is in the course of 

making a revised assessment and is satisfied that it needs to immediately modify its 

current pharmaceutical needs assessment in order to prevent significant detriment to 

the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area, and 

3. Where a pharmacy is removed from a pharmaceutical list as a result of the grant of a 

consolidation application, if the health and wellbeing board is of the opinion that the 

removal does not create a gap in pharmaceutical services that could be met by a 

routine application offer to meet a current or future need, or secure improvements or 

better access to pharmaceutical services, then the health and wellbeing board must 

publish a supplementary statement explaining that the removal does not create such 

a gap. 

 

The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as 

amended are subject to a post implementation review by the Department of Health and 

Social Care in 2017/18 the aim of which is to determine whether they have met their 

intended objectives. The review determined that: 

 

• The 2013 Regulations have slowed the growth in the number of community 

pharmacies, in line with the original policy objective to mitigate excessive provision of 

NHS pharmaceutical services in areas already meeting demand,  

Page 288



269 

 
  

• There is flexibility within the system where an unforeseen benefit is identified,  

• Access to NHS pharmaceutical services in England is good and patients generally 

have reasonable choice about how and where they access services, and  

• There remains a degree of ‘clustering’. 

 

The review concluded that the regulations have largely achieved the original policy 

objectives which remain relevant and appropriate for the regulation of pharmaceutical 

services in England. It recommended that the Department of Health and Social Care 

consulted on a number of amendments to the regulations and that changes are made to the 

underpinning guidance to address several unintended consequences and realise 

opportunities to more effectively deliver against the policy objectives. However none of these 

relate to the requirements for pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

With effect from 1 October 2020 the regulations were amended to delay the requirement on 

health and wellbeing boards to publish their third pharmaceutical needs assessment by 1 

April 2021. This was extended again until 1 October 2022. The amendments were due to the 

impact the Covid-19 pandemic has had on all commissioners and providers of health and 

social care services. 

  

Page 289



270 

 
  

Appendix B – essential services 
 

1. Dispensing of prescriptions 

 

Service description 

 

The supply of medicines and appliances ordered on NHS prescriptions, together with 

information and advice, to enable safe and effective use by patients and carers, and 

maintenance of appropriate records.  

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

To ensure patients receive ordered medicines and appliances safely and appropriately by 

the pharmacy: 

 

• Performing appropriate legal, clinical and accuracy checks, 

• Having safe systems of operation, in line with clinical governance requirements, 

• Having systems in place to guarantee the integrity of products supplied, 

• Maintaining a record of all medicines and appliances supplied which can be used to 

assist future patient care, and 

• Maintaining a record of advice given, and interventions and referrals made, where 

the pharmacist judges it to be clinically appropriate. 

 

To ensure patients are able to use their medicines and appliances effectively by pharmacy 

staff providing: 

 

• information and advice to the patient or carer on the safe use of their medicine or 

appliance, and 

• when appropriate broader advice to the patient on the medicine, for example its 

possible side effects and significant interactions with other substances 

 

2. Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions 

 

Service description 

 

The management and dispensing of repeatable NHS prescriptions for medicines and 

appliances in partnership with the patient and the prescriber. 

 

This service specification covers the requirements additional to those for dispensing, such 

that the pharmacist ascertains the patient’s need for a repeat supply and communicates any 

clinically significant issues to the prescriber. 

 

 

 

 

Page 290



271 

 
  

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

• To increase patient choice and convenience, by allowing them to obtain their regular 

prescribed medicines and appliances directly from a community pharmacy for a 

period agreed by the prescriber. 

• To minimise wastage by reducing the number of medicines and appliances 

dispensed which are not required by the patient. 

• To reduce the workload of general medical practices, by lowering the burden of 

managing repeat prescriptions. 

 

3.  Disposal of unwanted drugs 

 

Service description 

 

Acceptance by community pharmacies, of unwanted medicines which require safe disposal 

from households and individuals. NHS England is required to arrange for the collection and 

disposal of waste medicines from pharmacies. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

• To ensure the public has an easy method of safely disposing of unwanted medicines. 

• To reduce the volume of stored unwanted medicines in people’s homes by providing 

a route for disposal thus reducing the risk of accidental poisonings in the home and 

diversion of medicines to other people not authorised to possess them. 

• To reduce the risk of exposing the public to unwanted medicines which have been 

disposed of by non-secure methods. 

• To reduce environmental damage caused by the inappropriate disposal methods for 

unwanted medicines. 

 

4. Promotion of healthy lifestyles 

 

Service description 

 

The provision of opportunistic healthy lifestyle and public health advice to patients receiving 

prescriptions who appear to: 

 

• Have diabetes, or 

• Be at risk of coronary heart disease, especially those with high blood pressure, or 

• Who smoke, or 

• Are overweight 

 

and pro-active participation in national/local campaigns, to promote public health messages 

to general pharmacy visitors during specific targeted campaign periods 

 

 

Page 291



272 

 
  

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

• To increase patient and public knowledge and understanding of key healthy lifestyle 

and public health messages so they are empowered to take actions which will 

improve their health. 

• To target the ‘hard to reach’ sectors of the population who are not frequently 

exposed to health promotion activities in other parts of the health or social care 

sector. 

 

5. Signposting  

 

Service description 

 

The provision of information to people visiting the pharmacy, who require further support, 

advice or treatment which cannot be provided by the pharmacy but is available from other 

health and social care providers or support organisations who may be able to assist the 

person. Where appropriate, this may take the form of a referral. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

• To inform or advise people who require assistance, which cannot be provided by the 

pharmacy, of other appropriate health and social care providers or support 

organisations. 

• To enable people to contact and/or access further care and support appropriate to 

their needs. 

• To minimise inappropriate use of health and social care services. 

 

6. Support for self-care 

 

Service description 

 

The provision of advice and support by pharmacy staff to enable people to derive maximum 

benefit from caring for themselves or their families. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes  

 

• To enhance access and choice for people who wish to care for themselves or their 

families. 

• People, including carers, are provided with appropriate advice to help them self-

manage a self-limiting or long-term condition, including advice on the selection and 

use of any appropriate medicines. 

• People, including carers, are opportunistically provided with health promotion advice 

when appropriate, in line with the advice provided in essential service – promotion of 

healthy lifestyles service. 

Page 292



273 

 
  

• People, including carers, are better able to care for themselves or manage a 

condition both immediately and in the future, by being more knowledgeable about 

the treatment options they have, including non-pharmacological ones. 

• To minimise inappropriate use of health and social care services. 

 

7. Home delivery service while a disease is or in anticipation of a disease 

being imminently pandemic 

 

Service description 

 

This service was introduced in March 2020 as one of the measures put in place to deal with 

a disease being, or in anticipation of a disease being imminently, pandemic and a serious 

risk, or potentially a serious risk, to human health. An announcement may be made by NHS 

England, with the agreement of the Secretary of State, that certain patient groups are 

advised to stay away from pharmacy premises: 

 

• In a specified area, 

• In specified circumstances, and 

• For the duration specified in the announcement. 

 

It is therefore not a service that pharmacies are required to provide all of the time. Distance 

selling premises are already required to deliver all dispensed items to patients and therefore 

this service does not apply to them. 

 

When the service is to be provided pharmacies are required to encourage patients covered 

by the announcement to, in the first instance, arrange for their medicines to be collected 

from the pharmacy and then delivered by family, friends or a carer. 

 

Where there is no family, friend, neighbour or carer, the pharmacy team must advise the 

patient of the potential for a local volunteer to act on their behalf who can collect the patient’s 

prescription and deliver it to them. This must include local provision of volunteers and NHS 

Volunteer Responders, where either are available.  

 

Where there is no volunteer available who can deliver the medicine(s) to the patient in the 

timescale that they are required, the pharmacy contractor must ensure that eligible patients 

get their prescription delivered. This can be done in one of the following ways:  

 

• Deliver the medicine themselves as part of the advanced service, 

• Arrange for another pharmacy to deliver it on their behalf as part of the advanced 

service, or 

• Arrange for the prescription to be dispensed and delivered by another pharmacy 

under the terms of the advanced service. 

 

 

 

 

Page 293



274 

 
  

Aims and intended outcomes  

 

The aim of this service is to ensure that where a disease is, or in anticipation of a disease 

being imminently, pandemic and a serious risk, or potentially a serious risk, to human health 

eligible patients who do not have a family member, friend or carer who can collect their 

prescription on their behalf and where a volunteer is not able to collect and deliver the 

medicines can have their medicines delivered in a manner which keeps both them and 

pharmacy staff safe from the disease.  

 

8. Discharge medicines service 

 

Service description 

 

Pharmacies undertake a proactive review of the medication that patients discharged from 

hospital are taking compared to those they were taking prior to their admission to ensure that 

all changes are identified and patient records are amended accordingly. In addition patients 

will be offered a confidential discussion with the pharmacist to check their understanding of 

their medication, when to take it and any other relevant advice to support the patient to get 

the maximum benefit from their medication. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes  

 

The discharge medicines service has been established to ensure better communication 

about changes made to a patient’s medicines in hospital and the aims of the service are to: 

 

• Optimise the use of medicines, whilst facilitating shared decision making, 

• Reduce harm from medicines at transfers of care, 

• Improve patients’ understanding of their medicines and how to take them following 

discharge from hospital, 

• Reduce hospital readmissions, and 

• Support the development of effective team-working across hospital, community and 

primary care network pharmacy teams and general practice teams and provide clarity 

about respective roles.  

Page 294



275 

 
  

Appendix C – advanced services 
 

1. New medicine service 

 

Service description 

 

The new medicine service is provided to patients who have been prescribed for the first 

time, a medicine for a specified long-term condition, to improve adherence. The new 

medicine service involves three stages: recruitment into the service, an intervention 

about one or two weeks later, and a follow up after a two or three weeks.  

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The underlying purpose of the service is to promote the health and wellbeing of patients who 

are prescribed a new medicine or medicines for certain long-term conditions, in order— 

 

• As regards the long-term condition— 

o To help reduce symptoms and long-term complications, and 

o In particular by intervention post dispensing, to help identification of 

problems with management of the condition and the need for further 

information or support, and 

 

• To help the patients— 

o Make informed choices about their care, 

o Self-manage their long-term conditions, 

o Adhere to agreed treatment programmes, and 

o Make appropriate lifestyle changes. 

 

2. Stoma appliance customisation 

 

Service description 

 

Stoma appliance customisation is the customisation of a quantity of more than one stoma 

appliance, where: 

 

• The stoma appliance to be customised is listed in Part IXC of the Drug Tariff, 

• The customisation involves modification to the same specification of multiple 

identical parts for use with an appliance, and 

• Modification is based on the patient’s measurement or record of those 

measurements and if applicable, a template. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The underlying purpose of the service is to: 

 

Page 295



276 

 
  

• Ensure the proper use and comfortable fitting of the stoma appliance by a patient, 

and  

• Improve the duration of usage of the appliance, thereby reducing wastage of such 

appliances. 

 

3. Appliance use review 

 

Service description 

 

An appliance use review is about helping patients use their appliances more effectively. 

Recommendations made to prescribers may also relate to the clinical or cost effectiveness 

of treatment. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The underlying purpose of the service is, with the patient’s agreement, to improve the 

patient’s knowledge and use of any specified appliance by: 

 

• Establishing the way the patient uses the specified appliance and the patient’s 

experience of such use, 

• Identifying, discussing and assisting in the resolution of poor or ineffective use of the 

specified appliance by the patient, 

• Advising the patient on the safe and appropriate storage of the specified appliance, 

and 

• Advising the patient on the safe and proper disposal of the specified appliances that 

are used or unwanted. 

 

4. National influenza adult vaccination service 

 

Service description 

 

Pharmacy staff will identify people eligible for flu vaccination and encourage them to be 

vaccinated. This service covers eligible patients aged 18 years and older who fall in one of 

the national at-risk groups. The vaccination is to be administered to eligible patients, who do 

not have any contraindications to vaccination, under the NHS England patient group 

direction. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The aims of this service are to: 

 

• Sustain uptake of flu vaccination by building the capacity of community pharmacies 

as an alternative to general practice, 

• Provide more opportunities and improve convenience for eligible patients to access 

flu vaccinations, and 

Page 296



277 

 
  

• Reduce variation and provide consistent levels of population coverage of community 

pharmacy flu vaccination across England by providing a national framework. 

 

5. Home delivery services during a pandemic etc 

 

Service description 

 

This service was introduced in March 2020 as one of the measures put in place to deal with 

a disease being, or in anticipation of a disease being imminently, pandemic and a serious 

risk, or potentially a serious risk, to human health. An announcement may be made by NHS 

England, with the agreement of the Secretary of State, that certain patient groups are 

advised to stay away from pharmacy premises: 

 

• In a specified area, 

• In specified circumstances, and 

• For the duration specified in the announcement. 

 

It is therefore not a service that pharmacies are required to provide all of the time. Distance 

selling premises are already required to deliver all dispensed items to patients and therefore 

this service does not apply to them. 

 

When the service is to be provided pharmacies are required to encourage patients covered 

by the announcement to, in the first instance, arrange for their medicines to be collected 

from the pharmacy and then delivered by family, friends or a carer. 

 

Where there is no family, friend, neighbour or carer, the pharmacy team must advise the 

patient of the potential for a local volunteer to act on their behalf who can collect the patient’s 

prescription and deliver it to them. This must include local provision of volunteers and NHS 

Volunteer Responders, where either are available. This falls within the essential services 

home delivery service. 

 

Where there is no volunteer available who can deliver the medicine(s) to the patient in the 

timescale that they are required, the pharmacy contractor must ensure that eligible patients 

get their prescription delivered. This can be done in one of the following ways:  

 

• Deliver the medicine themselves as part of this advanced service,  

• Arrange for another pharmacy to deliver it on their behalf as part of this advanced 

service, or 

• Arrange for the prescription to be dispensed and delivered by another pharmacy 

under the terms of this advanced service.  

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The aim of this service is to ensure that where a disease is, or in anticipation of a disease 

being imminently, pandemic and a serious risk, or potentially a serious risk, to human health 

eligible patients who do not have a family member, friend or carer who can collect their 

Page 297



278 

 
  

prescription on their behalf and where a volunteer is not able to collect and deliver the 

medicines can have their medicines delivered in a manner which keeps both them and 

pharmacy staff safe from the disease.  

 

6. NHS community pharmacist consultation service 

 

Service description 

 

Under the NHS community pharmacist consultation service patients who urgently need 

medicines or who have symptoms of a minor illness and contact either NHS 111 or an 

integrated urgent care clinical assessment service are referred to a community pharmacist 

for a consultation, thereby releasing capacity in other areas of the urgent care system such 

as accident and emergency (A&E) and general practices and improving access for patients.  

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The aims of this service are to: 

 

• Support the integration of community pharmacy into the urgent care system, and to 

appropriate refer patients with lower acuity conditions or who require urgent 

prescriptions, releasing capacity in other areas of the urgent care system. 

• Offer patients who contact NHS 111 the opportunity to access appropriate urgent 

care services in a convenient and easily accessible community pharmacy setting on 

referral from an NHS 111 call advisor and via the NHS 111 online service. 

• Reduce demand on integrated urgent care services, urgent treatment centres, 

emergency departments, walk in centres, other primary care urgent care services 

and GP Out of Hours services, and free up capacity for the treatment of patients with 

higher acuity conditions within these settings. 

• Appropriately manage patient requests for urgent supply of medicines and 

appliances. 

• Enable convenient and easy access for patients and for NHS 111 call advisor 

referral. 

• Reduce the use of primary medical services for the referral of low acuity conditions 

(i.e. minor illnesses) from NHS 111 and the need to generate urgent prescriptions. 

• Identify ways that individual patients can self-manage their health more effectively 

with the support of community pharmacists and to recommend solutions that could 

prevent use of urgent and emergency care services in the future. 

• Ensure equity of access to the emergency supply provision, regardless of the 

patient’s ability to pay for the cost of the medicine or appliance requested. 

• Increase patient awareness of the role of community pharmacy as the ‘first port of call’ 

for low acuity conditions and for medicines access and advice. 

• Be cost effective for the NHS when supporting patients with low acuity conditions. 

 

 

 

Page 298



279 

 
  

7. Community pharmacy hepatitis C antibody testing services 

 

Service description 

 

People who inject drugs who are not engaged in community drug and alcohol treatment 

services will be offered the opportunity to receive a Hepatitis C virus test from a community 

pharmacy of their choice (subject to the pharmacy being registered to provide the service). 

 

Where the test produces a positive result, the person will be referred for appropriate further 

testing and treatment via the relevant operational delivery network. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The aim of this service is to increase levels of testing for Hepatitis C virus amongst people 

who inject drugs who are not engaged in community drug and alcohol treatment services to:  

 

• Increase the number of diagnoses of Hepatitis C virus infection, 

• Permit effective interventions to lessen the burden of illness to the individual,  

• Decrease long-term costs of treatment, and  

• Decrease onward transmission of Hepatitis C virus. 

 

8.  Community pharmacy COVID-19 lateral flow device distribution 

service 

 

Service description 

 

Covid-19 lateral flow antigen tests allow the detection of people with high levels of the Covid-

19 virus, making them effective in identifying individuals who are most likely to transmit the 

virus, including those not showing symptoms. With up to a third of infected individuals not 

displaying symptoms, broadening asymptomatic testing is essential. Increased use of lateral 

flow devices can help identify more people who are highly likely to spread the virus, and 

therefore break the chain of transmission. This service allows people to collect lateral flow 

devices from a pharmacy. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The purpose of the service is to improve access to testing by making lateral flow device test 

kits readily available at pharmacies for asymptomatic people, to identify positive cases in the 

community and break the chain of transmission. The service will work alongside existing 

NHS Test and Trace Covid-19 testing routes. 

 

Tests will be administered away from the pharmacy. The pharmacy will not be involved in 

the generation or communication of results. Pharmacy teams will not be required to support 

the communication of results or next steps to the person taking the test. 

 

Page 299



280 

 
  

9. Community pharmacy hypertension case-finding service 

 

Service description 

 

Cardiovascular disease is one of the leading causes of premature death in England and 

accounts for 1.6 million disability adjusted life years. Hypertension is the biggest risk factor 

for the disease and is one of the top five risk factors for all premature death and disability in 

England. An estimated 5.5 million people have undiagnosed hypertension across the 

country.  

 

Early detection of hypertension is vital and there is evidence that community pharmacy has a 

key role in detection and subsequent treatment of hypertension and cardiovascular disease, 

improving outcomes and reducing the burden on GPs. 

 

Under this service, potential patients who meet the inclusion criteria will be proactively 

identified and offered the service. Where the patient accepts, the pharmacist will then 

conduct a face-to-face consultation in the pharmacy consultation room (or other suitable 

location if the service is provided outside of the pharmacy) and will take blood pressure 

measurements following best practice as described in NICE guidance (NG136) Hypertension 

in adults: diagnosis and management. 

 

The pharmacist will discuss the results with the patient and complete the appropriate next 

steps as set out in the service specification which includes (as appropriate): 

 

• sending the test results to the patient’s GP,  

• providing advice on maintaining healthy behaviours, or promoting health behaviours, 

• offering ambulatory blood pressure monitoring, 

• urgent referral to their GP, and 

• repeating the test. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

The aims and objectives of this service are to: 

 

• Identify people aged 40 years or older, or at the discretion of the pharmacist people 

under the age of 40, with high blood pressure (who have previously not had a 

confirmed diagnosis of hypertension), and to refer them to general practice to confirm 

diagnosis and for appropriate management; 

• At the request of a general practice, undertake ad hoc clinic and ambulatory blood 

pressure measurements; and 

• Promote healthy behaviours to patients. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 300



281 

 
  

10. Community pharmacy smoking cessation service 

 

Service description 

 

The NHS Long Term Plan has adopted the Ottawa Model for Smoking Cessation. The 

Ottawa Model establishes the smoking status of all patients admitted to hospital followed by 

brief advice, personalised bedside counselling, timely nicotine replacement therapy or 

pharmacotherapy, and follow-up after discharge. All people admitted to hospital who smoke 

will be offered NHS-funded tobacco treatment services. 

 

This service has been designed to enable NHS trusts to undertake a transfer of care on 

patient discharge, referring patients (where they consent) to a community pharmacy of their 

choice to continue their smoking cessation treatment, including providing medication and 

support as required. The ambition is for referral from NHS trusts to community pharmacy to 

create additional capacity in the smoking cessation pathway.  

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

• The aim of the service is to reduce morbidity and mortality from smoking, and to 

reduce health inequalities associated with higher rates of smoking.  

• The objective of the service is to ensure that any patients referred by NHS trusts to 

community pharmacy for the service receive a consistent and effective offer, in line 

with National Institute for Health and Care Excellence guidelines and the Ottawa 

Model for Smoking Cessation.  

Page 301



282 

 
  

Appendix D – enhanced services 
 

1. An anticoagulant monitoring service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy 

contractor to test the patient’s blood clotting time, review the results and adjust (or 

recommend adjustment to) the anticoagulant dose accordingly. 

 

2. An antiviral collection service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy 

contractor to supply antiviral medicines, in accordance with regulation 247 of the Human 

Medicines Regulations 2012 (exemption for supply in the event or in anticipation of 

pandemic disease), to patients for treatment or prophylaxis. 

 

3. A care home service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy contractor to 

provide advice and support to residents and staff in a care home relating to—  

 

• The proper and effective ordering of drugs and appliances for the benefit of residents 

in the care home, 

• The clinical and cost-effective use of drugs, 

• The proper and effective administration of drugs and appliances in the care home, 

• The safe and appropriate storage and handling of drugs and appliances, and  

• The recording of drugs and appliances ordered, handled, administered, stored or 

disposed of. 

 

4. A disease specific medicines management service, the underlying purpose of which is for 

a registered pharmacist to advise on, support and monitor the treatment of patients with 

specified conditions, and where appropriate to refer the patient to another health care 

professional. 

 

5. A gluten free food supply service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy 

contractor to supply gluten free foods to patients. 

 

6. An independent prescribing service, the underlying purpose of which is to provide a 

framework within which pharmacist independent prescribers may act as such under 

arrangements to provide additional pharmaceutical services with NHS England. 

 

7. A home delivery service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy contractor 

to deliver to the patient’s home drugs, and appliances other than specified appliances.  

 

8. A language access service, the underlying purpose of which is for a registered 

pharmacist to provide, either orally or in writing, advice and support to patients in a 

language understood by them relating to—  

 

• Drugs which they are using, 

• Their health, and  

• General health matters relevant to them, and where appropriate referral to another 

health care professional. 

 

Page 302



283 

 
  

9. A medication review service, the underlying purpose of which is for a registered 

pharmacist—  

 

• To conduct a review of the drugs used by a patient, including on the basis of 

information and test results included in the patient’s care record held by the provider 

of primary medical services that holds the registered patient list on which the patient 

is a registered patient, with the objective of considering the continued 

appropriateness and effectiveness of the drugs for the patient, 

• To advise and support the patient regarding their use of drugs, including encouraging 

the active participation of the patient in decision making relating to their use of drugs, 

and  

• Where appropriate, to refer the patient to another health care professional. 

 

10. A medicines assessment and compliance support service, the underlying purpose of 

which is for the pharmacy contractor —  

 

• To assess the knowledge of drugs, the use of drugs by and the compliance with drug 

regimens of vulnerable patients and patients with special needs, and  

• To offer advice, support and assistance to vulnerable patients and patients with 

special needs regarding the use of drugs, with a view to improving their knowledge 

and use of the drugs, and their compliance with drug regimens. 

 

11. A minor ailment scheme, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy contractor 

to provide advice and support to eligible patients presenting with a minor ailment, and 

where appropriate to supply drugs to the patient for the treatment of the minor ailment. 

 

12. A needle and syringe exchange service, the underlying purpose of which is for a 

registered pharmacist—  

 

• To provide sterile needles, syringes and associated materials to drug misusers, 

• To receive from drug misusers used needles, syringes and associated materials, and  

• To offer advice to drug misusers and where appropriate refer them to another health 

care professional or a specialist drug treatment centre. 

 

13. An on-demand availability of specialist drugs service, the underlying purpose of which is 

for the pharmacy contractor to ensure that patients or health care professionals have 

prompt access to specialist drugs. 

 

14. Out of hours services, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy contractor to 

dispense drugs and appliances in the out of hours period (whether or not for the whole 

of the out of hours period). 

 

15. A patient group direction service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy 

contractor to supply or administer prescription only medicines to patients under patient 

group directions. 

 

Page 303



284 

 
  

16. A prescriber support service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy 

contractor to support health care professionals who prescribe drugs, and in particular to 

offer advice on—  

 

• The clinical and cost-effective use of drugs, 

• Prescribing policies and guidelines, and  

• Repeat prescribing. 

 

17. A schools service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy contractor to 

provide advice and support to children and staff in schools relating to—  

 

• The clinical and cost-effective use of drugs in the school, 

• The proper and effective administration and use of drugs and appliances in the 

school, 

• The safe and appropriate storage and handling of drugs and appliances, and  

• The recording of drugs and appliances ordered, handled, administered, stored or 

disposed of. 

 

18. A screening service, the underlying purpose of which is for a registered pharmacist—  

 

• To identify patients at risk of developing a specified disease or condition,  

• To offer advice regarding testing for a specified disease or condition,  

• To carry out such a test with the patient’s consent, and  

• To offer advice following a test and refer to another health care professional as 

appropriate. 

 

19. A stop smoking service, the underlying purpose of which is for the pharmacy contractor 

— 

  

• To advise and support patients wishing to give up smoking, and  

• Where appropriate, to supply appropriate drugs and aids. 

 

20. A supervised administration service, the underlying purpose of which is for a registered 

pharmacist to supervise the administration of prescribed medicines at the pharmacy 

contractor’s premises. 

 

21. A supplementary prescribing service, the underlying purpose of which is for a registered 

pharmacist who is a supplementary prescriber and, with a doctor or a dentist is party to a 

clinical management plan, to implement that plan with the patient’s agreement. 

 

22. An emergency supply service, the underlying purpose of which is to ensure that, in cases 

of urgency or whilst a disease is, or in anticipation of a disease being imminently 

pandemic and a serious risk to human health, patients, at their request, have prompt 

access to drugs or appliances-  

 

Page 304



285 

 
  

• Which have previously been prescribed for them in an NHS prescription but for which 

they do not have an NHS prescription, and 

• Where, in the case of prescription only medicines, the requirements of regulation 225 

or 226 of the Human Medicines Regulations 2012 (which relate to emergency sale 

etc. by pharmacist either at patient’s request or while a disease is or in anticipation of 

a disease being imminently pandemic and a serious risk of potentially a serious risk 

to human health). 

   

Page 305



286 

 
  

Appendix E – terms of service for dispensing appliance contractors 
 

1. Dispensing of prescriptions 

 

Service description 

 

The supply of appliances ordered on NHS prescriptions, together with information and 

advice and appropriate referral arrangements in the event of a supply being unable to be 

made, to enable safe and effective use by patients and carers, and maintenance of 

appropriate records. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

To ensure patients receive ordered appliances safely and appropriately by the dispensing 

appliance contractor: 

 

• Performing appropriate legal, clinical and accuracy checks 

• Having safe systems of operation, in line with clinical governance requirements 

• Having systems in place to guarantee the integrity of products supplied 

• Maintaining a record of all appliances supplied which can be used to assist future 

patient care 

• Maintaining a record of advice given, and interventions and referrals made, where 

the dispensing appliance contractor judges it to be clinically appropriate 

• Providing the appropriate additional items such as disposable bags and wipes 

• Delivering the appropriate items if required to do so in a timely manner and in 

suitable packaging that is discreet. 

 

To ensure patients are able to use their appliances effectively by staff providing information 

and advice to the patient or carer on the safe use of their appliance(s). 

 

2. Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions 

 

Service description 

 

The management and dispensing of repeatable NHS prescriptions appliances in partnership 

with the patient and the prescriber. 

 

This service specification covers the requirements additional to those for dispensing, such 

that the dispensing appliance contractor ascertains the patient’s need for a repeat supply 

and communicates any clinically significant issues to the prescriber. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 306



287 

 
  

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

• To increase patient choice and convenience, by allowing them to obtain their regular 

prescribed appliances directly from a dispensing appliance contractor for a period 

agreed by the prescriber 

• To minimise wastage by reducing the number of appliances dispensed which are not 

required by the patient 

• To reduce the workload of GP practices, by lowering the burden of managing repeat 

prescriptions 

 

3. Home delivery service 

 

Service description 

 

The delivery of certain appliances to the patient’s home. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

To preserve the dignity of patients by ensuring that certain appliances are delivered: 

 

• With reasonable promptness, at a time agreed with the patient, 

• In a package that displays no writing or other markings which could indicate its 

content, and 

• In such a way that it is not possible to identify the type of appliance that is being 

delivered. 

 

4. Supply of appropriate supplementary items 

 

Service description 

 

The provision of additional items such as disposable wipes and disposal bags in connection 

with certain appliances. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

To ensure that patients have a sufficient supply of wipes for use with their appliance, and are 

able to dispose of them in a safe and hygienic way. 

 

5. Provide expert clinical advice regarding the appliances 

 

Service description 

 

The provision of expert clinical advice from a suitably trained person who has relevant 

experience in respect of certain appliances. 

 

Page 307



288 

 
  

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

To ensure that patients are able to seek appropriate advice on their appliance to increase 

their confidence in choosing an appliance that suits their needs as well as gaining 

confidence to adjust to the changes in their life and learning to manage an appliance. 

 

6. Where a telephone care line is provided, during the period when the 

dispensing appliance contractor is closed advice is either to be 

provided via the care line or callers are directed to other providers 

who can provide advice 

 

Service description 

 

Provision of advice on certain appliances via a telephone care line outside of the dispensing 

appliance contractor’s contracted opening hours. The dispensing appliance contractor is not 

required to staff the care line all day, every day, but when it is not callers must be given a 

telephone number or website contact details for other providers of NHS services who may 

be consulted for advice. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

Callers to the telephone care line are able to access advice 24 hours a day, seven days a 

week on certain appliances in order to manage their appliance.  

 

7. Signposting  

 

Service description 

 

Where a patient presents a prescription for an appliance which the dispensing appliance 

contractor does not supply the prescription is either: 

 

• With the consent of the patient, passed to another provider of appliances, or  

• If the patient does not consent, they are given contact details for at least two other 

contractors who are able to dispense it. 

 

Aims and intended outcomes 

 

To ensure that patients are able to have their prescription dispensed. 

  

Page 308



289 

 
  

Appendix F – steering group membership 

 

Name Post  Organisation 

Amanda Fletcher Consultant in public health Nottinghamshire County Council 

Andrew Beardsall 

Associate director primary care 

and quality Bassetlaw CCG 

Beth Carney 

Senior medicines optimisation 

pharmacist 

Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire CCG 

Coral Osborn Associate chief pharmacist 

Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire CCG 

Charlotte Goodson Adviser PCC CIC 

Claire Novak Insight specialist - public health Nottingham City Council 

David Gilding Public health intelligence Nottinghamshire County Council 

David Johns Consultant in public health Nottingham City Council 

David Millington Public health analyst Nottingham City Council 

David Murray Consultant in public health Nottingham City Council 

Eka Famodile Public health analyst Nottingham City Council 

Fiona McGonigle Associate  PCC CIC 

Jen Moss-Langfield Treasurer/director Nottinghamshire LMC 

Lee Eddell  Programme director Bassetlaw CCG 

Lucia Calland Senior pharmacist 

Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire CCG 

Lucy Hawkin 

Public health and commissioning 

manager Nottinghamshire County Council 

Luke Clarkson Contract manager NHS England 

Mina Fatemi 

Public health and commissioning 

manager Nottinghamshire County Council 

Mindy Bassi Head of medicines management 

Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire CCG 

Nick Hunter Chief officer Nottinghamshire LPC 

Rob Wise Head of medicines management Bassetlaw CCG 

Sam Banks 

Senior public health intelligence 

analyst Nottinghamshire County Council 

Sue Foley Public health consultant Nottinghamshire County Council 

Verena Marshall Primary care business manager NHS England  

 

 

 

  

Page 309



290 

 
  

Appendix G – patient and public engagement survey 
 

 
 
The Nottinghamshire County Council and Nottingham City Council pharmaceutical 
needs assessments survey 2021 
 
We are inviting you to tell us about pharmacy services in your area. To do a good job, we 
need to regularly review what services we have, what our local people need, and how things 
might change in the future. This process is called a ‘pharmaceutical needs assessment’ and 
we are preparing one for each of Nottinghamshire County Council and Nottingham City 
Council with the help of a company called Primary Care Commissioning Community Interest 
Company.  
 
Many people call them chemists but in this survey we use the word pharmacy. By a 
pharmacy, we mean a place you would use to get a prescription dispensed or buy medicines 
which you can only buy from a pharmacy. We don’t mean the pharmacy at a hospital or the 
part of a pharmacy where you buy beauty products. We also don’t mean other places such 
as convenience stores, garages and shops where you can buy medicines such as 
paracetamol. 
 
Your views are important to us so please spare a few minutes to complete this 
questionnaire. There are 14 questions in total in relation to your experience of pharmacies, 
and also some questions about you. We anticipate that it will take you around five to ten 
minutes to complete, depending on how much additional information you would like to give 
us. When responding to the questions please think about your experience over the last 12 
months. 
 
The questionnaire is anonymous; you aren’t asked for your name and address just the 
council area that you live in.  
 
Your responses will be held by Primary Care Commissioning Community Interest Company 
in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection 
Regulation.  
 
The results of this questionnaire will be published in the draft pharmaceutical needs 
assessments for Nottinghamshire County Council and Nottingham City Council which the 
councils will consult on in late spring/early summer 2022. 
 
If you would like more information about the questionnaire or an Easy Read version of it, 
please email PNAsurveys@pcc-cic.org.uk with a subject of “Nottingham City Council and 
Nottinghamshire County Council pharmacy public questionnaire”. 
 
Please select the council in whose area you live 
 

• Nottingham City Council 

• Nottinghamshire County Council 
 
How you use your pharmacy - either in person or by having someone else go there for 
you 

Page 310

mailto:PNAsurveys@pcc-cic.org.uk


291 

 
  

1. Please could you tell us whether you: 
 

• Always use the same pharmacy  
• Use different pharmacies but I prefer to visit one most often 
• Always use different pharmacies  
• Rarely use a pharmacy 
• Never use a pharmacy 

 
2. We would like to know what influences your choice of pharmacy.  Please could 

you tell us why you use this pharmacy? Please tick all the statements that 
apply to you. 

 

• Close to my home 

• Close to work 

• Close to my doctor 

• Close to children’s school or nursery 

• Close to other shops 

• The pharmacy delivers my medicines 

• The location of the pharmacy is easy to get to 

• It is easy to park at the pharmacy 

• I just like the pharmacy 

• I trust the staff who work there 

• The staff know me and look after me 

• The staff don’t know me  

• I’ve always used this pharmacy 

• The service is quick 

• They usually have what I need in stock 

• The pharmacy has good opening hours 

• The pharmacy collects my prescription and delivers my medicines 

• The pharmacy was recommended to me 

• The pharmacy provide good advice and information 

• The customer service 

• The service is fast 

• It is very accessible ie wheelchair/baby buggy friendly 

• It’s a well-known big chain 

• It’s not one of the big chains 

• Other [text box] 
 

3. Is there a more convenient and/or closer pharmacy that you don’t use? 
 

• Yes 

• No 

• Don’t know 
 

4. ...and if you have answered yes to question 3, please could you tell us why you 
do not use that pharmacy? 

 

• It is not easy to park at the pharmacy 

• I have had a bad experience in the past 

• The service is too slow 

• The staff are always changing 

• The staff don’t know me 

Page 311



292 

 
  

• They don’t have what I need in stock 

• The pharmacy doesn’t deliver medicines 

• There is not enough privacy 

• It’s not open when I need it 

• It’s not wheelchair/baby buggy friendly 

• Other [text box] 
 

5. Why do you usually visit a pharmacy? Please tick any or all that apply. 
 

• To get a prescription for myself 

• To get a prescription for someone else 

• Someone else gets my prescription for me 

• To buy medicines for myself 

• To buy medicines for someone else 

• Someone else buys medicines for me 

• To get advice for myself 

• To get advice for someone else 

• Someone else gets advice for me 

• I don’t as my medicines are delivered to me at home 

• Other [text box] 
 

6. How often do you use a pharmacy? 
 

• Daily 

• Weekly 

• Fortnightly 

• Monthly/every four weeks 

• Quarterly 

• I don’t use a pharmacy 

• Other [text box] 
 

7. What time is the most convenient for you to use a pharmacy?  
 

• Before 7 am 

• 7am to 9am 

• 9am to 12 noon 

• 12 noon to 3pm 

• 3pm to 6pm 

• 6pm to 9pm 

• 9pm to midnight 

• I don’t have a preference 
 

8. What day is the most convenient for you to use a pharmacy?  
 

• Monday 

• Tuesday 

• Wednesday 

• Thursday 

• Friday 

• Saturday 

• Sunday 

Page 312



293 

 
  

• Weekdays in general 

• Weekends in general 

• I don’t have a preference 
 
Travelling to a pharmacy 
 

9. If you go to the pharmacy by yourself or with someone, how do you usually get 
there? 

 

• On foot 

• By bus 

• By car 

• By bike 

• By taxi 

• Other [insert text box] 
 

10. ...and how long does it usually take to get there? 
 

• Less than 5 minutes 

• Between 5 and 15 minutes 

• More than 15 minutes but less than 20 minutes 

• More than 20 minutes 
 
Pharmacy services in general 
 

11. We would like to know how you find out information about a pharmacy such as 
opening times or the service being offered. Please tick any or all that apply. 

 

• I would call them 

• I would call 111 

• I would use the NHS.uk website 

• I would search the internet 

• I would ask a friend 

• I would just pop in and ask them  

• Look in the window  

• I would find out from reading the local newspaper 

• Other [text box] 
 

12. Do you feel able to discuss something private with a pharmacist? 
 

• Yes 
No 

• Never needed to 

• Don’t know 
 
 

13. Is there anything else you would like to tell us about local pharmacy services? 
 
[Text box] 
 
 

Page 313



294 

 
  

14. Are there any services that you would use if they were provided by 
pharmacies? 

 
[Text box] 
 
Equality questions for Nottingham City Council  
 
Equalities monitoring enables the Council to check that everyone in the city is accessing the 
services to which they are entitled and that no-one is being unlawfully discriminated against. 
Information provided will be treated confidentially and in accordance with the Data Protection 
Act 1998 and only used to ensure that everyone is treated fairly.  
 
All questions are voluntary and whether you choose to respond to some, none or all will not 
make any difference to the service you receive. However, answering as many questions as 
possible will help us to ensure that our services are fair and accessible to all. 
 
Are you: 

o Male 
o Female 
o Prefer not to say 

 
Which age group do you belong to? 

o Under 16 
o 16 to 24 
o 25 to 34 
o 35 to 44 
o 45 to 54 
o 55 to 64 
o 65 and over 
o Prefer not to say 

 
Do you consider yourself to be disabled? 

o Yes 
o No  
o Prefer not to say 

 
Please tick the statement which best describes you. 
 
I am: 

o White - English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 
o White - Irish 
o White - Gypsy Traveller 
o White - Other 
o Mixed - White and Caribbean 
o Mixed - White and Black African 
o Mixed - White and Asian 
o Mixed - Other 
o Asian - Indian 
o Asian - Pakistani 
o Asian - Bangladeshi 
o Asian - Kashmiri 
o Asian - Chinese 
o Asian - Other 
o Black - African 

Page 314



295 

 
  

o Black - Caribbean 
o Black - Other 
o Arab 
o Prefer not to say 
o Other ethnic group, please specify: 

 
Please tick the statement which best describes you. 
 
I am: 

o Bisexual 
o Gay man 
o Gay woman/Lesbian 
o Heterosexual or Straight 
o Prefer not to say 

 
Please tick the statement which best describes you. 
 
I am: 

o Agnostic 
o Atheist 
o Buddhist 
o Christian 
o Hindu 
o Jewish 
o Muslim 
o None 
o Pagan 
o Sikh 
o Prefer not to say 
o Other group, please specify: [text box] 

 
  

Page 315



296 

 
  

Appendix H – full results of the resident’s questionnaire 
 

All comments are verbatim, however where a pharmacy has been identified the comment 

has been anonymised. 

 

Q1. Please could you tell us whether you: 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Always use the same pharmacy  29 

Use different pharmacies but I prefer to visit one most often 22 

Rarely use a pharmacy 6 

Always use different pharmacies 1 

Never use a pharmacy 1 

 

Q2. We would like to know what influences your choice of pharmacy.  Please could 

you tell us why you use this pharmacy? Please tick all the statements that apply to 

you. 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Close to my home 45 

Close to work 7 

Close to my doctor 25 

Close to children’s school or nursery 2 

Close to other shops 9 

The pharmacy delivers my medicines 2 

The location of the pharmacy is easy to get to 28 

It is easy to park at the pharmacy 23 

I just like the pharmacy 9 

I trust the staff who work there 19 

The staff know me and look after me 10 

The staff don’t know me  4 

I’ve always used this pharmacy 6 

The service is quick 13 

They usually have what I need in stock 18 

The pharmacy has good opening hours 18 

Page 316



297 

 
  

The pharmacy collects my prescription and delivers my 
medicines 2 

The pharmacy was recommended to me 1 

The pharmacy provides good advice and information 9 

The customer service 11 

The service is fast 9 

It is very accessible ie wheelchair/baby buggy friendly 1 

It’s a well-known big chain 8 

It’s not one of the big chains 9 

Other  8 

 

Comments made in relation to a response of ‘Other’ were as follows: 

• “They don’t charge to deliver”  

• “They 'go the extra mile' to look after their patients.” 

• “One is linked to my doctors for my prescriptions” 

• “Offer good range of products, and health care services ( flu, covid vax,  etc)  in 

addition to medication dispensing.” 

• “It is my chosen e linked pharmacy to my GP” 

• “Electronic script goes through this pharmacy. They used to sort any repeats on my 

behalf but GP practice no longer allows this to happen.”  

• “Texts when my routine prescription is ready”  

• “I use the same one because its reliable service. The one closer to me was 

disgracefully bad service.” 

 

Q3. Is there a more convenient and/or closer pharmacy that you don’t use? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Yes 20 

No 33 

Don’t know 6 

 

Q4. ...and if you have answered yes to question 3, please could you tell us why you do 

not use that pharmacy? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

It is not easy to park at the pharmacy 5 

I have had a bad experience in the past 2 

The service is too slow 8 

The staff are always changing 1 

Page 317



298 

 
  

The staff don’t know me 2 

They don’t have what I need in stock 2 

The pharmacy doesn’t deliver medicines 0 

There is not enough privacy 4 

It’s not open when I need it 5 

It’s not wheelchair/baby buggy friendly 0 

Other 7 

 

Comments made in relation to a response of ‘Other’ were as follows: 

• “They charge for delivery."  

• “Fifty years of habit.” 

• “It's not on public transport route." 

• “I prefer using the bigger chain pharmacy where I can trust the dispensing 

pharmacist is appropriately qualified.” 

• “Very small and routinely has my neighbours in there!”  

• “It’s not close to my doctor and in opposite direction to home.”  

• “Terrible service.” 

 

Q5. Why do you usually visit a pharmacy? Please tick any or all that apply. 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

To get a prescription for myself 50 

To get a prescription for someone else 27 

Someone else gets my prescription for me 0 

To buy medicines for myself 26 

To buy medicines for someone else 10 

Someone else buys medicines for me 0 

To get advice for myself 18 

To get advice for someone else 5 

Someone else gets advice for me 0 

I don’t as my medicines are delivered to me at home 2 

Other 5 

 

Comments made in relation to a response of ‘Other’ were as follows: 

• “Get a vaccine” 

• “To buy face masks” 

• “Flu jabs” 

• “flu jab” 

Page 318



299 

 
  

• “To get my repeat prescription” 

 

Q6. How often do you use a pharmacy? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Daily 0 

Weekly 1 

Fortnightly 3 

Monthly/every four weeks 31 

Quarterly 15 

I don’t use a pharmacy 2 

Other 6 

Skipped 1 

 

Comments made in relation to a response of ‘Other’ were as follows: 

• “As required” 

• “Every 8 weeks at least” 

• “Usually every two months” 

• “When necessary, less than quarterly - frequency varies depending on need” 

• “Every 3 months for routine prescription” 

• “Every two months” 

 

 

 

 

 

Q7. What time is the most convenient for you to use a pharmacy?  

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Before 7 am 0 

7am to 9am 3 

9am to 12 noon 6 

12 noon to 3pm 8 

3pm to 6pm 10 

6pm to 9pm 8 

9pm to midnight 1 

I don’t have a preference 23 

 

Page 319



300 

 
  

Q8. What day is the most convenient for you to use a pharmacy?  

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Monday 1 

Tuesday 1 

Wednesday 0 

Thursday 0 

Friday 1 

Saturday 5 

Sunday 0 

Weekdays in general 11 

Weekends in general 3 

I don’t have a preference 37 

 

Q9. If you go to the pharmacy by yourself or with someone, how do you usually get 

there? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

On foot 32 

By bus 2 

By car 22 

By bike 0 

Bus / tram 1 

Tram 1 

By taxi 0 

Other 1 

 

No comment was made in relation to a response of ‘Other’. 

 

Q10. ...and how long does it usually take to get there? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Less than 5 minutes 22 

Between 5 and 15 minutes 28 

More than 15 minutes but less than 20 minutes 5 

Page 320



301 

 
  

More than 20 minutes 2 

Skipped 2 

 

Q11. We would like to know how you find out information about a pharmacy such as 

opening times or the service being offered. Please tick any or all that apply. 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

I would call them 14 

I would call 111 1 

I would use the NHS.uk website 3 

I would search the internet 50 

I would ask a friend 2 

I would just pop in and ask them  13 

Look in the window  12 

I would find out from reading the local newspaper 0 

Other 2 

 

Comments made in relation to a response of ‘Other’ were as follows: 

• “Ask whilst I’m in there” 

• “Look on net” 

 

Q12. Do you feel able to discuss something private with a pharmacist? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Yes 35 

No 9 

Never needed to 15 

 

Q13. Is there anything else you would like to tell us about local pharmacy services? 

 

• “I use the pharmacy near my doctors so I can pick up prescriptions easily. I tend to 

not go to pharmacies particularly for other medicines as I usually pick up anything I 

need when doing my supermarket shop.” 

• “I and my husband booked a flu vaccine at a local pharmacy (not our usual one as flu 

jab appointments were not available). Unfortunately our appointments got cancelled 

twice due to supply issues. We had booked quite a long time in advance as there 

were not many times available that we could attend. We then booked appointments 

for the next day at [pharmacy name and location] (we live in [location]). It was quite 

frustrating that we had waited longer to be able to get the jab locally but could have 

had it a lot sooner if we had travelled further.” 

Page 321



302 

 
  

• "I use the NHS app on my phone and am able to order my repeat prescription from 

my Doctor and then collect it from my pharmacy. I think this service is really useful for 

people who work long hours or shifts and my pharmacy opening hours means I can 

collect it up to 11pm. " 

• “The pharmacy that I use always has the medicine ready for me to pick up straight 

away.  I have a monthly prescription for both myself and my son.  The pharmacy that 

I used before that was next to my doctors always took a long time to get your 

prescription ready even if you went in a few days after it was sent to them they never 

seemed to make it up until you got there.  Hence why I changed to the one I am at 

now following the recommendation of a neighbour who is at the same surgery as 

me.” 

• “They are better than the GP's as they actually listen to you and are accessible.” 

• “Keep them locally accessible.” 

• “I have friends who do not speak English and need a language access service in 

community pharmacies. At present, this service is not available in the Midlands. This 

diverts them to their GP or Accident and Emergency Department where they can 

obtain an in-person or telephone interpreter. NHS guidance from 2018 says quite 

clearly that language access should be available in community pharmacies. Current 

local arrangements put patients at risk and increase demand on other NHS services.” 

• “Staff always pleasant and helpful.” 

• "I use an independent – [pharmacy name] - who service is excellent in all areas. I 

have experienced less positive service from [pharmacy name and location] - haven't 

had items in, shop very run down." 

• “My pharmacist opens quite late which I find useful as sometimes my workshift is 

past 6pm when most shops are closed.” 

• “Need more local, non-chain pharmacies” 

• “My lcoal one delivers medication to the local community and is well known and liked” 

• “My local pharmacy is great it was a [pharmacy name] but has just been taken over 

by a local company and is much better now”  

• “More privacy is needed. Even if you whisper to the person on the counter they then 

go and talk loud about it to the main person in the pharmacy so everyone hears so 

more privacy is needed in all chemists. Also it is very difficult to use pharmacy first 

because they only use one member of staff to deal with that but if the staff member is 

not there or busy then you cannot use that service which means you have to get a 

GP appointment but then the GP get mad because it is using up an appointment. 

Also it seems even though I have regular medication monthly I always have to go 

back a few days later to collect ones they don’t have in stock.” 

• "My local.pharmacy is not a chain, staff are friendly informative and owner and wife 

are experienced and knowledgeable pharmacists offering  health care services. 

Excellent" 

• “i go to the supermarket pharmacy as they have late night opening, and have space 

to not feel crowded.” 

• "1. It’s important the have a pharmacy within local shops 2. For me, it’s important that 

they are one of 5he big chains” 

• “I wish I had closer pharmacy to my address”  

• "Have a review if prescriptions think every 2 yr. Very helpful. Non medical staff are 

long serving and knowledge " 

• “Excellent customer service” 

 

Page 322



303 

 
  

Q14. Are there any services that you would use if they were provided by pharmacies? 

 

• “I have used the pharmacy this year for both my Covid booster and flu vaccinations, 

this was very convenient for me, and would happily use the pharmacy if other 

services were available. I also ask advice from my pharmacist regarding medications 

and they have a vast knowledge and think they are under used by the public.” 

• “Minor treatments, advice” 

• “Flu vaccination and they recently have carried out the Covid Boosters.” 

• “Any medical service that a pharmacy could offer” 

• “This question is far too open. To what sort of services are you referring?” 

• “Language access.” 

• “More women's health with privacy for women” 

• “I use my local pharmacy for yearly flu jab and med review.” 

• “Eye test” 

• "Hearing tests. Urine dip test for uti. Pharmacy first to be always available." 

• "Nurse practitioner services, GP services. Why not co locate health care professions/ 

services" 

• "Routine jabs you could get without troubling the GP eg shingles, pneumonia along 

with flu and Covid jabs, Simple blood tests for eg diabetes. Done I. Conjunction with 

the GP. Regular drug reviews and more education of the public the pharmacists are 

the drug specialists" 

• "Sexual health checks. Health checks " 

 

Equality questions 

 

Are you: 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Male 14 

Female 44 

Prefer not to say 0 

Skipped 1 

 

Which age group do you belong to? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

16 to 24 4 

25 to 34 10 

35 to 44 11 

45 to 54 8 

55 to 64 16 

Page 323



304 

 
  

65 and over  9 

Skipped 1 

 

Do you consider yourself to be disabled? 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Yes 11 

No 46 

Prefer not to say 1 

Skipped 1 

 

Please tick the statement which best describes you. I am: 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

White - English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 46 

White - Irish 1 

White - Gypsy Traveller 0 

White - Other   0 

Mixed - White and Caribbean 1 

Mixed - White and Black African 0 

Mixed - White and Asian 3 

Mixed - Other  0 

Asian - Indian 2 

Asian - Pakistani 2 

Asian - Bangladeshi 0 

Asian - Kashmiri 1 

Asian - Chinese 0 

Asian - Other  0 

Black - African 0 

Black - Caribbean 2 

Black - Other  0 

Arab 0 

Prefer not to say 0 

Other ethnic group, please specify: 0 

Page 324



305 

 
  

Skipped 1 

 

Please tick the statement which best describes you. I am: 

 

Answer options Number of responses 

Heterosexual or Straight 49 

Gay woman/Lesbian 2 

Gay man 2 

Bisexual 2 

Prefer not to say 2 

Skipped 2 

 

Please tick the statement which best describes you. I am: 

Answer options Number of responses 

Christian 22 

Muslim 2 

None 10 

Agnostic 6 

Atheist 11 

Hindu 1 

Prefer not to 4 

Pagan 2 

Skipped 1 

 

  

Page 325



306 

 
  

Appendix I – contractor questionnaire 

 
 

Pharmaceutical needs assessments in Nottingham City and Nottinghamshire 

County 

 

Work has commenced on preparing the new pharmaceutical needs assessments for 

Nottingham City Council and Nottinghamshire County Council which we anticipate will be 

published by 1 October 2022. We need your help to gather/confirm important information to 

support the development of these documents which: 

 

• may identify unmet needs for, or improvements or better access to, pharmaceutical 

services for the population of the two local authorities. This questionnaire will 

confirm/tell us where community pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors 

are already contributing to meeting these needs and may be able to help us and 

other commissioners meet the needs of the population in the future, and 

• will be the basis for market entry applications to open new premises and may inform 

relocations of existing premises, applications to change core opening hours or to 

provide additional pharmaceutical services. NHS England and NHS Improvement – 

Midlands will use the documents to make decisions regarding these matters. 

 

We have developed a questionnaire with the support of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment steering group of which Nottinghamshire Local Pharmaceutical Committee is a 

member. In developing the questionnaire we are only asking for information that is needed 

but is not routinely held or which we would like confirmation of. As you will see we have kept 

the questionnaire as short as possible and anticipate that it should take no more than five 

minutes to complete. 

While available until 12 noon Friday 25 February 2022, we would encourage you to complete 

the questionnaire now. 

 

For more information regarding PNAs we would recommend you go to: 

http://psnc.org.uk/contract-it/market-entry-regulations/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment/  

 

We are working with a company called Primary Care Commissioning CIC in the 

development of the pharmaceutical needs assessments. The responses you provide will be 

collected by Primary Care Commissioning CIC and will only be used for the purpose of this 

survey and developing the pharmaceutical needs assessments. Any data will be held in 

accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 and the UK General Data Protection 

Regulation. 

 

For queries relating to the information requested or the answers required please email 

PNAsurveys@pcc-cic.org.uk with a subject of “Nottingham City Council and Nottinghamshire 

County Council contractor questionnaire”.  

Page 326

http://psnc.org.uk/contract-it/market-entry-regulations/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment/
mailto:PNAsurveys@pcc-cic.org.uk


307 

 
  

Please insert the ODS code (also known as the F code or pharmacy code and starts with the 

letter F) of the pharmacy or dispensing appliance contractor premises you are completing 

the questionnaire on behalf of:  

 

 

 

 

Please insert the address of the pharmacy/dispensing appliance contractor premises you are 

completing the questionnaire on behalf of: 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Hours of opening 

 

NHS England and NHS Improvement – Midlands has provided us with the opening hours for 

the pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises in Nottinghamshire and a 

copy was attached to the email inviting you to complete this questionnaire. Please review the 

recorded opening hours for the premises you are completing the questionnaire on behalf of. 

 

Are the opening hours recorded by NHS England and NHS 

Improvement – Midlands correct? 

YES NO 

 

If not, please inform NHS England and NHS Improvement – Midlands directly and indicate 

the discrepancy/discrepancies below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please note that we will use the opening hours held by NHS England and NHS Improvement 

– Midlands for the purposes of the pharmaceutical needs assessments. 

 

2 Appliances 

 

Are prescriptions for appliances dispensed at the premises? 

 

 Please tick one box  

Yes, all types  

Yes, excluding stoma appliances  

Yes, excluding incontinence appliances  

Yes, excluding stoma and incontinence appliances  

Yes, just dressings  

No - appliances are not dispensed  

 

 

Page 327



308 

 
  

3 Other facilities 

 

3.1 Please tick whether you currently provide any or all of the collection and 

delivery services (non-commissioned) below. 

 

Collection and delivery: YES NO 

Collection of prescriptions from surgeries   

Private, free of charge delivery service   

Is this service available to all patients?   

Private, chargeable delivery service   

Is the service available to all patients?   

 

If the delivery service is restricted please confirm the patient groups who may use the 

service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 Apart from English which other languages, if any, are available to 

patients from staff at the premises every day – please list main languages 

spoken 

 

List of languages spoken: 

 

 

 

4 Housing developments 

 

There are currently a number of housing and other developments taking place across 

Nottingham City Council and Nottinghamshire County Council with more planned and the 

pharmaceutical needs assessments will need to identify whether the needs of those moving 

into new houses can be met by the existing spread of pharmacy and dispensing appliance 

contractor premises. With this in mind please select the options that best reflect your 

situation at the moment with regard to your premises and staffing levels.  

 

 Premises Staffing 

levels 

We have sufficient capacity to manage the increase in demand in 

our area. 

  

Page 328



309 

 
  

We don’t have sufficient capacity at present but could make 

adjustments to manage the increase in demand in our area. 

  

We don’t have sufficient capacity and would have difficulty in 

managing an increase in demand. 

  

 

5 Other information 

 

All the other information regarding the provision of pharmaceutical services that we require 

to write the pharmaceutical needs assessments can be sourced from either the NHS 

Business Services Authority website or NHS England and NHS Improvement. However if 

there is any information that you think is relevant please briefly outline it in the box below. 

 

[Insert text box.] 

 

6 Please provide us with your contact details. 

 

Name: 

 

Job title: 

 

Email: 

 

Telephone number: 

 

  

Page 329



310 

 
  

Appendix J – consultation report 
 

1 Introduction 

 

As part of the pharmaceutical needs assessment process the Health and Wellbeing Board is 

required to undertake a consultation of at least 60 days with certain organisations. The 

purpose of the consultation is to establish if the pharmaceutical providers and services 

supporting the population of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s area are accurately reflected 

in the final pharmaceutical needs assessment document. This report outlines the 

considerations and responses to the consultation and describes the overall process of how 

the consultation was undertaken.  

  

2 Consultation process 

 

In order to complete this process the Health and Wellbeing Board has consulted with those 

parties identified under regulation 8 of the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical 

Services) Regulations 2013 as amended, to establish if the draft pharmaceutical needs 

assessment addresses issues that they considered relevant to the provision of 

pharmaceutical services. Those consulted were:  

 

• Nottinghamshire Local Pharmaceutical Committee, 

• Nottinghamshire Local Medical Committee, 

• Contractors included in the pharmaceutical lists, 

• Healthwatch Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, 

• Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust, 

• Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, 

• East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust, 

• NHS England and NHS Improvement – Midlands, and 

• Nottinghamshire Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

An email was sent to the above organisations, inviting them to submit their views on the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. Weblinks to the pharmaceutical needs assessment, 

executive summary and questionnaire were included in the email.  

 

In addition, the consultation documents were made available and promoted via Nottingham 

Insight allowing members of the public the opportunity to also submit their views. 

 

Consultees were given the opportunity to respond by completing a set of questions and/or 

submitting additional comments. This was undertaken by completing the questions online.  

 

The questions derived were to assess the current provision of pharmaceutical services, have 

regard to any specified future circumstance where the current position may materially 

change and identify any current and future gaps in pharmaceutical services. 

 

The consultation ran from 26 May to 25 July 2022. 

  

Page 330



311 

 
  

This report outlines the considerations and responses to the consultation. It should be noted 

that participants in the consultation were not required to complete every question.  

 

The consultation received four responses, which identified as follows. 

 

Answer options 
Response 

percent 

Response 

count 

On behalf of a pharmacy/dispensing appliance 

contractor/dispensing practice 
25% 1 

On behalf of an organisation 50% 2 

A personal response 25% 1 

Chose not to respond 0% 0 

Answered question 4 

 

3 Summary of online questions, responses and the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 

considerations 

 

All comments made as part of the consultation are included verbatim. 

 

In asking “Has the purpose of the pharmaceutical needs assessment been explained”, the 

Health and Wellbeing Board is pleased to note that all respondents (100%) said “Yes”. 

 

Figure 27: Has the purpose of the pharmaceutical needs assessment been explained? 

 
 

One comment was made in response to this question: 

 

“To assess the current provision of Pharmaceutical services in our locality.” 

 

The next question asked, “Do you agree that the pharmaceutical needs assessment reflects 

the current provision of pharmaceutical services within your area?” and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board is pleased to note that all respondents (100%) either agreed or completely 

agreed. 

0

1

2

3

4

Yes No Don’t know

Page 331



312 

 
  

Figure 28: Do you agree that the pharmaceutical needs assessment reflects the 
current provision of pharmaceutical services within your area? 

 
 

One comment was made in response to this question. 

 

• “The part that our Pharmacy covers” 

 

When asked “Are there any gaps in service provision i.e. when, where and which services 

are available that have not been identified in the pharmaceutical needs assessment?” all 

respondents (100%) said “No”. 

 

Figure 29: Are there any gaps in service provision i.e. when, where and which 
services are available that have not been identified in the pharmaceutical needs 
assessment? 

 
 

One comment was made in response to this question. 

0

1

2

3

4

Completely
disagree

Disagree Neutral Agree Completely agree

0

1

2

3

4

Yes No Don't know

Page 332



313 

 
  

• “No gaps that I am aware of. A full range of ALL the commissioned services are 

being offered from our pharmacy and beyond.  

 

o Matching opening hours with the surgeries 

o Home delivery 

o NHS and Private Prescriptions 

o Minor ailments 

o Extended Care 

o Blood Pressure and AF case finding 

o Flu vacc 

o EHC 

o Covid vaccinations 

o Private prescriptions - Independent Prescribing 

o Healthy Living 

o Weight management 

o Smoking Cessation 

o NMS 

o DMS 

o CPCS 

o MDS and much more. 

Premises: Four consulting rooms” 

 

Three respondents (75%) agreed or completely agreed with the statement “Do you agree 

that the pharmaceutical needs assessment reflects the needs of your area’s population?”.  

 

Figure 30: Do you agree that the pharmaceutical needs assessment reflects the needs 
of your area’s population? 

 
 

One respondent (25%) disagreed with the statement and made the following comment in 

response to this question. 

 

0

1

2

3

4

Completely
disagree

Disagree Neutral Agree Completely agree

Page 333



314 

 
  

• “It should perhaps acknowledge the financial climate our citizens face - access isn’t 

just about geography . Ability to pay for prescriptions is more of a major issue for 

some who aren’t eligible for free prescriptions than physical access” 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board notes the pharmaceutical needs assessment is 

predominantly used by those who wish to apply to open new premises, NHS England in 

relation to determining such applications, and other commissioners in relation to deciding 

what services to commission and where. However, the Health and Wellbeing Board also 

notes that: 

 

• The NHS offers the option to buy a prescription prepayment certificates which may 

make prescriptions cheaper for those requiring regular prescription medications.  

• The requirement of contractors to collect prescription charges is set out in legislation 

except for those patients who are exempt. 

• Advanced services such as the community pharmacist consultation service requires 

the pharmacy to collect prescription charges where applicable and that requirement 

can only be changed through national negotiations. 

• The pharmaceutical needs assessment acknowledges that the Pharmacy First Minor 

Ailments Scheme is currently under review. The service is currently only open to 

those exempt from paying prescription charges.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that no amendments need to be made to the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. However, the comment raised will be fed into the review 

of the Pharmacy First Minor Ailments Scheme. 

 

Respondents were then asked for their views on whether the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment has provided information to inform market entry decisions i.e. decisions on 

applications for new pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises. The Health  

and Wellbeing Board notes that none of the respondents said “No”. 

 

Figure 31: Has the pharmaceutical needs assessment provided information to inform 
market entry decisions i.e. decisions on applications for new pharmacies and 
dispensing appliance contractor premises? 

 

0

1

2

3

4

Yes No Don’t know

Page 334



315 

 
  

Two respondents chose “Don’t know” as a response. One commented that: 

 

• “Not aware of any Market entry decisions in our area” 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board acknowledges that the pharmaceutical needs assessment 

is, by its very nature, a technical document and is predominantly used by those who wish to 

apply to open new premises, NHS England in relation to determining such applications, and 

other commissioners in relation to deciding what services to commission and where. This 

question is therefore predominantly aimed at existing and potential contractors and 

commissioners of services and the Health and Wellbeing Board is pleased to note that none 

of the current contractors answered ‘no’ to this question.  

 

Details of any market entry applications received, and decisions made during the 

development of the pharmaceutical needs assessment have been included within the 

document. All supplementary statements issued to respond to changes in the availability of 

pharmaceutical services, where those changes are relevant to the granting of applications, 

are made available via Nottingham Insight.  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that no amendments need to be made to the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

Consultees were then asked whether the pharmaceutical needs assessment provided 

information to inform how pharmaceutical services in Nottingham City may be commissioned 

in the future. The Health and Wellbeing Board is pleased to note that two respondents said 

“Yes”.  

 

Figure 32: Has the pharmaceutical needs assessment provided information to inform 
how pharmaceutical services in Nottingham City may be commissioned in the future? 

 
 

The two respondents who said they “Don’t know” made the following comments in response 

to this question. 

0

1

2

3

4

Yes No Don’t know

Page 335



316 

 
  

• “If the PNA is required to inform about future commissioning then a summary 

statement for the area would be beneficial.” 

• “Not aware of any.” 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has noted that the pharmaceutical needs assessment 

includes a chapter for each locality which summaries pharmaceutical service provision 

including any current and potential future gaps and service improvements that have been 

identified. The PNA conclusion provides summary statements for the Health and Wellbeing 

Board area against the regulatory requirements and concludes that there are no gaps in the 

current provision of pharmaceutical services and that no changes to services have been 

identified that would secure improvements, or better access to the provision of 

pharmaceutical services either now or expected within the lifetime of the pharmaceutical 

needs assessment. This was also reflected in the Executive Summary. The Health and 

Wellbeing Board is therefore satisfied that no amendments need to be made to the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

Consultees were then asked whether the pharmaceutical needs assessment provided 

enough information to inform future pharmaceutical service provision and plans for 

pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors. The Health and Wellbeing Board is 

pleased to note that three respondents said “Yes”. 

 

Figure 33: Has the pharmaceutical needs assessment provided enough information to 
inform future pharmaceutical services provision and plans for pharmacies and 
dispensing appliance contractors? 

 
 

The one respondent who said they “Don’t know” provided the following comment in response 

to this question. 

 

• “Not aware of any” 

 

0

1

2

3

4

Yes No Don’t know

Page 336



317 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that no amendments need to be made to the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

When asked if there are any pharmaceutical services that could be provided in the 

community pharmacy setting in the future that have not been highlighted, two respondents 

said “Yes”. 

 

Figure 34: Are there any pharmaceutical services that could be provided in the 
community pharmacy setting in the future that have not been highlighted? 

 
 

Two comments were made in response to this question. 

 

1. “Needs to mention the importance of accelerating the ability of secondary care sector 

to provide electronic prescribing service ( EPS)”  

 

2. “Oral contraceptive Management Service 

• Asthma and Hypertension Clinics 

• Travel Vaccinations 

• NHS Independent prescribing 

 

Awaiting commissioning of these services that will take the pressure off the surgeries.” 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board notes the point raised about the importance of accelerating 

the ability of the secondary care to provide electronic prescribing. However this falls outside 

the scope of the pharmaceutical needs assessment. Nottingham University Hospitals NHS 

Trust has selected Nervecentre to deliver their electronic prescribing across its two main 

sites, City Hospital and Queen’s Medical Centre. As this forms part of the national NHS 

Digital agenda and hospital agenda, the Health and Wellbeing Board is satisfied that no 

amendments are required to the pharmaceutical needs assessment. 

 

0

1

2

3

4

Yes No Don’t know

Page 337



318 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board notes that discussions are currently taking place around 

pharmacies providing an oral contraceptive management service. The Health and Wellbeing 

Board agrees that the suggestions made will be passed onto the appropriate organisations. 

However, as evidence of a need has not been provided such as specific patient groups, lack 

of supporting services in the area or examples of unmet need, it is satisfied that no 

amendments are required to the pharmaceutical needs assessment.  

 

The consultation then asked whether respondents agreed with the conclusions of the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment and the Health and Wellbeing Board is pleased to note 

that no respondents disagreed or completely disagreed with the conclusions. 

 

Figure 35: Do you agree with the conclusions of the pharmaceutical needs 
assessment? 

 
 

One respondent who chose ‘Neutral’ commented:  

 

• “Unaware of their decision for the locality” 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board notes that the overall conclusions for the pharmaceutical 

needs assessment are informed by the individual locality chapters. The Health and 

Wellbeing Board is satisfied that no amendments need to be made to the pharmaceutical 

needs assessment. 

 

Finally, those responding to the consultation were asked whether they had any further 

comments. One respondent did. 

 

• “Boots is referred to as The Boots Co Plc when it should Boots UK Limited.  

 

It appears that possibly due to the timing of production of this draft, the recent 

changes in the opening hours of a number of Boots pharmacies may not have been 

reflected in the draft PNA.” 

0

1

2

3

4

Completely
disagree

Disagree Neutral Agree Completely agree

Page 338



319 

 
  

The Health and Wellbeing Board notes the correct name for the Boots company and agrees 

to amend the pharmaceutical needs assessment accordingly. 

 

The opening hours for Boots pharmacies as set out in the draft pharmaceutical needs 

assessment corresponds with the information provided by NHS England at that time. 

Furthermore, the pharmaceutical needs assessment will be updated to include any further 

notifications of changes in opening hours received prior to its finalisation. 

 

5 Summary conclusions  

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is pleased to note that the overall response to the 

consultation has been positive. No concerns have been raised regarding non-compliance 

with the regulatory requirements, no pharmaceutical services provision has been missed and 

the main conclusions are agreed with. 

 

6 Amendments  

 

The following amendments have been made to the pharmaceutical needs assessment: 

 

• Boots Co Plc changed to Boots UK Limited throughout the document.  
 

Market entry 

• Section 10.2 updated to note that the change of ownership application received on 

27 January 2022 for the pharmacy at 25 Flams teed Road, Strelley, Nottingham, 

NG8 6LR to be operated by Omega Chemist Ltd was granted with effect from 9 July 

2022. 

• Section 8.2 updated to note that the relocation application from another health and 

wellbeing board was granted on 26 May 2022. The distance selling pharmacy will 

start to provide pharmaceutical services from its new premises from 4 August 2022. 

• Section 14.2 updated to note that a relocation application was received on 11 May 

2022 from a dispensing appliance contractor to relocate their premises from National 

Distribution Centre, Unit 1, Phoenix Centre, Millennium Way West, Nottingham, NG8 

6AS, to plot B1 Fairham Business Park, Clifton, Nottingham. The nearest postcode is 

NG11 8ES (the build is not fully completed). NHS England has until 11 September 

2022 to determine the application. 

• The total number of pharmacies has been amended throughout the document to 
reflect the above market entry decisions as have the relevant maps.  

 

Opening hours 

• Section 5.1.2 updated to reflect overall changes in opening hours.  

• Section 8.2 opening hours updated to include the distance selling pharmacy. 

• Section 9.2 opening hours updated to reflect one pharmacy now closing on Saturday. 

• Section 10.2 opening hours updated to reflect a reduction in opening hours for one 

pharmacy and that four pharmacies now open after 18:00 hours instead of five. 

• Section 11.2 opening hours updated to reflect a reduction in opening hours for one 

pharmacy. 

Page 339



320 

 
  

• Section 13.2. updated to reflect an increase in Saturday opening hours for one 

pharmacy. 

• Section 15 updated to reflect overall changes in opening hours. 

• Appendix K updated opening hours as of June 2022 and separate spreadsheet. 

 

Service provision 

• Section 5.1.3 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies providing 

the new medicine service for the year 2021 to 2022. 

• Section 5.1.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide the NHS community pharmacist consultation service as of 24 July 2022. 

• Section 5.3.1.5 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed 

up to provide the hypertension case finding service as of the 22 July 2022. The 

number of sign ups per month has been removed. 

• Section 5.3.1.6 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed 

up to provide the smoking cessation service as of the 18 July 2022. 

• Section 8.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide the hypertension case finding service as of 22 July 2022.  

• Section 9.2 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies providing 

the new medicine service for the year for 2021 to 2022. 

• Section 9.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide: 

o  the smoking cessation service as of the 18 July 2022 

o the hypertension case finding service as of 22 July 2022. 

• Section 10.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide the smoking cessation service as of 18 July 2022. 

• Section 11.2 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies providing 

the new medicine service for the year for 2021 to 2022. 

• Section 11.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide the hypertension case finding service as of 22 July 2022. 

• Section 12.2 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies providing 

the new medicine service for the year for 2021 to 2022. 

• Section 12.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide: 

o  the smoking cessation service as of the 18 July 2022 

o the hypertension case finding service as of 22 July 2022. 

• Section 13.2 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies providing 

the new medicine service for 2021 to 2022 and increase in the sign up to the NHS 

community pharmacist consultation service as of 24 July 2022. 

• Section 13.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide the smoking cessation service as of 18 July 2022. 

• Section 14.2 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies providing 

the new medicine service for the year for 2021 to 2022. 

• Section 14.4 updated to include the increase in the number of pharmacies signed up 

to provide the smoking cessation service as of 18 July 2022. 

Page 340



321 

 
  

• Locality maps showing pharmacies who have signed up to provide the hypertension 

case finding service have been removed as numbers have increased since the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment was drafted. 

 

Other changes 

• Title page updated to 1 October 2022 and ‘draft’ removed. 

• Paragraph 1.6.6 updated to “A report of the consultation including any changes to the 

pharmaceutical needs assessment has been added to appendix J.” 

• Appendix A updated “With effect from 1 October 2020 the regulations were amended 

to delay the requirement on health and wellbeing boards to publish their third 

pharmaceutical needs assessment by 1 April 2021. This was extended again until 1 

October 2022. The amendments were due to the impact the Covid-19 pandemic has 

had on all commissioners and providers of health and social care services.” 

• Executive summary updated to reflect changes. 

• Reformatting of the document and spell check. 

 

 

Page 341



322 

 
  

Appendix K – opening hours 

 
See separate opening hours spreadsheet – Appendix K Nottingham City Pharmacy Opening Hours (June 2022) 

Locality ODS CODE PHARMACY NAME ADDRESS 1 ADDRESS 2 City/Town County POSTCODE
Core Total Hrs 

(40/100)

KEY: Row 1 - Core 

hours, Row 2 - 

includes Sup hours

FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO 

Area Partnership 4

FGK20 Applegate Chemist 132 Alfreton Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3NS 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FME59 Asda Pharmacy Radford Road Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5DU 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 6

FWP78 Asims Pharmacy 14/16 Colwick Road Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4BU 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FFJ48 Boots 334 Derby Road Lenton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2DW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FKQ39 Boots 234 Beckhampton Road Bestwood Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5PA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FLL23 Boots Pharmacy 594 Mansfield Road Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2FS 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 17:30 08:30 17:30 08:30 17:30 08:30 17:30 09:00 17:30 09:00 17:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FLX00 Boots Pharmacy 1-3 Commercial Road Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8HD 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 17:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FVD01 Boots Pharmacy Bilborough Medical Centre, 48 

Bracebridge Drive

Bilborough Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 4PN 40 Hr Total Hours

08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FG256 Boots Pharmacy 541 Aspley Lane Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5RW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FYJ21 Boots Pharmacy 11-19 Lower Parliament St NTU (Victoria) 

Centre

Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 3QS 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 08:30 19:00 11:00 17:00

Area Partnership 7

FC109 Boots Pharmacy 222-224 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:30 17:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FW027 Boots Pharmacy Unit a, Riverside Retail Park Queen's Drive Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 1AL 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 19:00 10:30 16:30

Area Partnership 5

FHV17 Boots Pharmacy Cripps Health Centre University Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2QW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FN446 Boots Pharmacy Mary Potter Centre Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5HY 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FPK97 Boots UK Ltd 164 Bramcote Lane Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2QP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FEM31 Canning Ltd 2 Beastmarket Hill Old Market 

Square

Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 6FB 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FTE10 Canning Ltd 61 Ilkeston Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3GR 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:45 09:00 18:45 09:00 18:45 09:00 17:00 09:00 18:45 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FQN36 Carrington Pharmacy 343-345 Mansfield Road Carrington Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2DA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 16:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDT60 Cinder Hill Pharmacy 10 Broxtowe Lane Cinder Hill Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5NP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FRA41 Clickcare Pharmacy Ltd 

(INTERNET)

Unit 18, Ashforth Business Centre Ashforth Street Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 4BG 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FFT10 Clifton Health Pharmacy 372 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 9FE 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FHN87 Cox Pharmacy 87 Oakdale Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 7EJ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FVT05 D. Parmar Ltd 298 Woodborough Road Mapperley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 4JP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FMR24 Day Night Pharmacy Ltd 116 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AD 100 hr Total Hours

07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 08:00 00:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FA250 Evergreen Pharmacy 232 Highbury Road Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 9AF 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FFX56 Forest Pharmacy 131 Arnold Road Arnold Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5HR 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FF741 Glasshouse Chemist 41-44 Glasshouse Street Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 3LW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FF698 Goshen Pharmacy Limited 

(Formerly Mistrys Pharmacy)

Unit 2-4 Tesco Development, Top 

Valley Way

Top Valley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 9DD 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FW548 Hospital Pharmacy Services 

(Nottingham) Trust Pharmacy 

Nottingham University NHS Hospitals 

Trust B Floor, QMC Campus 

Derby Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2UH 100 hr Total Hours

09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 10:00 00:00 10:00 00:00

Area Partnership 6

FQ176 Hussains Late Night Pharmacy 69 Sneinton Dale Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4LQ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FKW86 Hyson Green Pharmacy 50 Gregory Boulevard Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5JD 100 hr Total Hours

08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 09:00 23:00 10:00 21:00

Area Partnership 5

FT754 Jaysons Pharmacy 97 Arleston Drive Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2GB 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FHT70 Jhoots Pharmacy 103-105 Hartley Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3AQ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FE463 Knights Chemist Unit 4, 9 Bestwood Park Drive West Rise Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5EJ 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FWL65 Lloyds Pharmacy 113 Sneinton Road Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4QL 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FAE17 Lloyds Pharmacy 682 Mansfield Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2GE 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FVN99 Lloyds Pharmacy 158 Russell Drive Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2BE 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FAH90 Lloyds Pharmacy 441a Beechdale Road Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 3LF 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:30 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FXH72 Medina Chemist 85-89 Radford Road Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5DR 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 19:00 10:00 19:00

Area Partnership 5

FQ318 Midlands Pharmacy Office 4 Courtyard Business  Southwold Drive` Wollaton Nottinghamshire NG8 1PA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FLX20 Midnight Pharmacy 194 Alfreton Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3PE 100 hr Total Hours

09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 13:00 15:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 12:00 0:00:00

Area Partnership 3

FJM65 Omega Chemist 25 Flamsteed Road Strelley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 6LR 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 17:15 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FM052 Peak Pharmacy 9 Bridgeway Centre The Meadows Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 2JD 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FTK04 Phakeys Pharmacy 149 Carlton Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 2FN 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 13:15 13:45 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDV95 Prescriptions4U Unit C, Broxtowe Business Park Centre Calverton Drive Strelley Nottingham NG8 6QP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FFA16 Queens pharmacy 403, Nuthall Road Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5DB 100 hr Total Hours

07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 09:00 23:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 2

FMD46 Radford Road Pharmacy 544 Radford Road New Basford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 7EA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FDL95 Riverside Pharmacy Bulwell Riverside Centre, 1-5 Main 

Street

Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8QH 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 09:00 15:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FJD56 Shallys Chemist 37 Beech Avenue Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 7LJ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FFF07 Sherwood Late Night 

Pharmacy

475 Mansfield Road Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2DR 100 Hr Total Hours

07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 10:00 17:00

Area Partnership 7

FRF42 Silverdale Pharmacy 44 Monksway Silverdale Nottingham Nottinghamshire 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FJ636 St Albans  Pharmacy st Albans HC Hucknall Lane Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8AQ 40 Hr Total Hours

08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FRF92 Tesco Stores Ltd Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Top Valley 

Way

Top Valley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 9DD 100 hr Total Hours

08:00 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 1

FKM40 Tesco Stores Ltd Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Jennison 

Street

Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8EQ 100 hr Total Hours

08:00 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:00 11:00 17:00

Area Partnership 6

FGX51 Turners Pharmacy 249 Sneinton Dale Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 7DQ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FJN60 Vantage Pharmacy Melbourne Park Medical Centre, 

Melbourne Road

Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5HL 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FFN21 Well 176 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FE148 Well  1 Livingstone Road, St Anns Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 3GG 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FXG89 Well The Hucknall Road Pharmacy, Off 

Kibworth Close

Heathfield Estate Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 1NA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FE193 Well 42 Bailey Street Old Basford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 0HA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FXE35 Well 12 Harrow Road Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 1FG 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDK05 Well 73-75 Bracebridge Drive Bilborough Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 4PH 100 hr Total Hours

07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 08:00 22:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 3

FT108 Well 412 Broxtowe Lane Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5ND 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

SATURDAY SUNDAYNottingham City Pharmacy Contractor Opening Hours MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY

P
age 342



Locality ODS CODE PHARMACY NAME ADDRESS 1 ADDRESS 2 City/Town County POSTCODE
Core Total Hrs 

(40/100)

KEY: Row 1 - Core 
hours, Row 2 - 

includes Sup hours
FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO FROM LUNCHTIME FROM TO 

Area Partnership 4

FGK20 Applegate Chemist 132 Alfreton Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3NS 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FGK20 Applegate Chemist 132 Alfreton Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3NS 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FME59 Asda Pharmacy Radford Road Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5DU 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 16:00

Area Partnership 4

FME59 Asda Pharmacy Radford Road Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5DU 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 6

FWP78 Asims Pharmacy 14/16 Colwick Road Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4BU 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FWP78 Asims Pharmacy 14/16 Colwick Road Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4BU 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FFJ48 Boots 334 Derby Road Lenton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2DW 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FFJ48 Boots 334 Derby Road Lenton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2DW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FKQ39 Boots 234 Beckhampton Road Bestwood Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5PA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 09:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FKQ39 Boots 234 Beckhampton Road Bestwood Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5PA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FLL23 Boots Pharmacy 594 Mansfield Road Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2FS 40 Hr Core Hours

09:30 16:30 09:30 16:30 09:30 16:30 09:30 16:30 09:30 16:30 09:30 14:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FLL23 Boots Pharmacy 594 Mansfield Road Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2FS 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 17:30 08:30 17:30 08:30 17:30 08:30 17:30 09:00 17:30 09:00 17:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FLX00 Boots Pharmacy 1-3 Commercial Road Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8HD 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 16:00 09:00 16:00 09:00 16:00 09:00 16:00 09:00 16:00 10:00 13:30 14:30 16:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FLX00 Boots Pharmacy 1-3 Commercial Road Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8HD 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 18:00 08:30 17:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FVD01 Boots Pharmacy Bilborough Medical Centre, 48 
Bracebridge Drive

Bilborough Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 4PN 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 12:00 13:30 17:30 09:00 12:00 13:30 17:30 09:00 12:00 13:30 17:30 09:00 12:00 13:30 17:30 09:00 12:00 13:30 17:30 09:00 14:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FVD01 Boots Pharmacy Bilborough Medical Centre, 48 
Bracebridge Drive

Bilborough Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 4PN 40 Hr Total Hours

08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 08:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FG256 Boots Pharmacy 541 Aspley Lane Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5RW 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FG256 Boots Pharmacy 541 Aspley Lane Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5RW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FYJ21 Boots Pharmacy 11-19 Lower Parliament St INTU (Victoria) 
Centre

Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 3QS 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 14:00 15:00 17:00 09:00 14:00 15:00 17:00 09:00 14:00 15:00 17:00 09:00 14:00 15:00 17:00 09:00 14:00 15:00 17:00 09:30 14:00 15:00 15:30

Area Partnership 6

FYJ21 Boots Pharmacy 11-19 Lower Parliament St NTU (Victoria) 
Centre

Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 3QS 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 09:00 19:00 08:30 19:00 11:00 17:00

Area Partnership 7

FC109 Boots Pharmacy 222-224 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 11:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FC109 Boots Pharmacy 222-224 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:00 19:00 08:30 17:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FW027 Boots Pharmacy Unit a, Riverside Retail Park Queen's Drive Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 1AL 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00

Area Partnership 5

FW027 Boots Pharmacy Unit a, Riverside Retail Park Queen's Drive Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 1AL 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 20:00 09:00 19:00 10:30 16:30

Area Partnership 5

FHV17 Boots Pharmacy Cripps Health Centre University Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2QW 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FHV17 Boots Pharmacy Cripps Health Centre University Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2QW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FN446 Boots Pharmacy Mary Potter Centre Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5HY 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FN446 Boots Pharmacy Mary Potter Centre Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5HY 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FPK97 Boots UK Ltd 164 Bramcote Lane Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2QP 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FPK97 Boots UK Ltd 164 Bramcote Lane Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2QP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FEM31 Canning Ltd 2 Beastmarket Hill Old Market Square Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 6FB 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FEM31 Canning Ltd 2 Beastmarket Hill Old Market Square Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 6FB 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:30 08:45 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FTE10 Canning Ltd 61 Ilkeston Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3GR 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:15 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FTE10 Canning Ltd 61 Ilkeston Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3GR 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:45 09:00 18:45 09:00 18:45 09:00 17:00 09:00 18:45 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FQN36 Carrington Pharmacy 343-345 Mansfield Road Carrington Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2DA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FQN36 Carrington Pharmacy 343-345 Mansfield Road Carrington Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2DA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 16:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDT60 Cinder Hill Pharmacy 10 Broxtowe Lane Cinder Hill Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5NP 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDT60 Cinder Hill Pharmacy 10 Broxtowe Lane Cinder Hill Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5NP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FRA41 Clickcare Pharmacy Ltd 
(INTERNET)

Unit 18, Ashforth Business Centre Ashforth Street Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 4BG 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FRA41 Clickcare Pharmacy Ltd 
(INTERNET)

Unit 18, Ashforth Business Centre Ashforth Street Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 4BG 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FFT10 Clifton Health Pharmacy 372 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 9FE 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FFT10 Clifton Health Pharmacy 372 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 9FE 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FHN87 Cox Pharmacy 87 Oakdale Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 7EJ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:30 12:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FHN87 Cox Pharmacy 87 Oakdale Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 7EJ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FVT05 D. Parmar Ltd 298 Woodborough Road Mapperley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 4JP 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FVT05 D. Parmar Ltd 298 Woodborough Road Mapperley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 4JP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 12:30 14:00 18:30 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FMR24 Day Night Pharmacy Ltd 116 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AD 100 hr Core Hours

07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 08:00 00:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FMR24 Day Night Pharmacy Ltd 116 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AD 100 hr Total Hours

07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 07:00 00:00 08:00 00:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FA250 Evergreen Pharmacy 232 Highbury Road Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 9AF 40 Hr Core Hours

08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FA250 Evergreen Pharmacy 232 Highbury Road Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 9AF 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 08:30 13:00 14:00 17:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FFX56 Forest Pharmacy 131 Arnold Road Arnold Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5HR 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FFX56 Forest Pharmacy 131 Arnold Road Arnold Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5HR 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FF741 Glasshouse Chemist 41-44 Glasshouse Street Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 3LW 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FF741 Glasshouse Chemist 41-44 Glasshouse Street Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG1 3LW 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FF698 Goshen Pharmacy Limited 
(Formerly Mistrys Pharmacy)

Unit 2-4 Tesco Development, Top Valley 
Way

Top Valley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 9DD 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FF698 Goshen Pharmacy Limited 
(Formerly Mistrys Pharmacy)

Unit 2-4 Tesco Development, Top Valley 
Way

Top Valley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 9DD 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FW548 Hospital Pharmacy Services 
(Nottingham) Trust Pharmacy 

Nottingham University NHS Hospitals 
Trust B Floor, QMC Campus 

Derby Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2UH 100 hr Core Hours

09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 11:30 00:00 11:30 00:00

Area Partnership 5

FW548 Hospital Pharmacy Services 
(Nottingham) Trust Pharmacy 

Nottingham University NHS Hospitals 
Trust B Floor, QMC Campus 

Derby Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 2UH 100 hr Total Hours

09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 09:00 24:00:00 10:00 00:00 10:00 00:00

Area Partnership 6

FQ176 Hussains Late Night Pharmacy 69 Sneinton Dale Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4LQ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

SATURDAY SUNDAYNottingham City Pharmacy Contractor Opening Hours MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY

P
age 343



Area Partnership 6

FQ176 Hussains Late Night Pharmacy 69 Sneinton Dale Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4LQ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FKW86 Hyson Green Pharmacy 50 Gregory Boulevard Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5JD 100 hr Core Hours

08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 09:00 23:00 10:00 21:00

Area Partnership 4

FKW86 Hyson Green Pharmacy 50 Gregory Boulevard Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5JD 100 hr Total Hours

08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 08:00 23:00 09:00 23:00 10:00 21:00

Area Partnership 5

FT754 Jaysons Pharmacy 97 Arleston Drive Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2GB 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FT754 Jaysons Pharmacy 97 Arleston Drive Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2GB 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 08:45 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FHT70 Jhoots Pharmacy 103-105 Hartley Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3AQ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FHT70 Jhoots Pharmacy 103-105 Hartley Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3AQ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FE463 Knights Chemist Unit 4, 9 Bestwood Park Drive West Rise Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5EJ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FE463 Knights Chemist Unit 4, 9 Bestwood Park Drive West Rise Park Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 5EJ 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 08:45 13:00 14:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FWL65 Lloyds Pharmacy 113 Sneinton Road Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4QL 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FWL65 Lloyds Pharmacy 113 Sneinton Road Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 4QL 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FAE17 Lloyds Pharmacy 682 Mansfield Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2GE 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FAE17 Lloyds Pharmacy 682 Mansfield Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2GE 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FVN99 Lloyds Pharmacy 158 Russell Drive Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2BE 40 Hr Core Hours

08:30 12:00 14:30 18:15 08:30 12:00 14:30 18:15 08:30 12:00 14:30 18:15 08:30 12:00 14:45 18:15 08:30 12:00 14:30 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FVN99 Lloyds Pharmacy 158 Russell Drive Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 2BE 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FAH90 Lloyds Pharmacy 441a Beechdale Road Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 3LF 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FAH90 Lloyds Pharmacy 441a Beechdale Road Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 3LF 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 17:30 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FXH72 Medina Chemist 85-89 Radford Road Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5DR 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00

Area Partnership 4

FXH72 Medina Chemist 85-89 Radford Road Hyson Green Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 5DR 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 21:00 09:00 19:00 10:00 19:00

Area Partnership 5

FQ318 Midlands Pharmacy Office 4 Courtyard Business  Southwold Drive Wollaton Nottinghamshire NG8 1PA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FQ318 Midlands Pharmacy Office 4 Courtyard Business  Southwold Drive` Wollaton Nottinghamshire NG8 1PA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 09:00 17:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 4

FLX20 Midnight Pharmacy 194 Alfreton Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3PE 100 hr Core Hours

09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 13:00 15:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 12:00 0:00:00

Area Partnership 4

FLX20 Midnight Pharmacy 194 Alfreton Road Radford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 3PE 100 hr Total Hours

09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 09:00 13:00 15:00 0:00:00 09:00 0:00:00 12:00 0:00:00

Area Partnership 3

FJM65 Omega Chemist 25 Flamsteed Road Strelley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 6LR 40 Hr Core Hours

08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 17:15 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FJM65 Omega Chemist 25 Flamsteed Road Strelley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 6LR 40 Hr Total Hours

08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 08:45 13:00 14:30 17:15 08:45 13:00 14:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FM052 Peak Pharmacy 9 Bridgeway Centre The Meadows Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 2JD 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 12:30 13:30 18:00 09:00 12:30 13:30 18:00 09:00 12:30 13:30 18:00 09:00 12:30 13:30 18:00 09:00 12:30 13:30 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FM052 Peak Pharmacy 9 Bridgeway Centre The Meadows Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG2 2JD 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 09:00 13:00 13:30 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDV95 Prescriptions4U Unit C, Broxtowe Business Park Centre Calverton Drive Strelley Nottingham NG8 6QP Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FTK04 Phakeys Pharmacy 149 Carlton Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 2FN 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 13:15 13:45 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:15 09:00 13:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FFA16 Queens pharmacy 403, Nuthall Road Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5DB 100 hr Core Hours

07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 09:00 23:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 3

FDV95 Prescriptions4U Unit C, Broxtowe Business Park Centre Calverton Drive Strelley Nottingham NG8 6QP 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FMD46 Radford Road Pharmacy 544 Radford Road New Basford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 7EA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FFA16 Queens pharmacy 403, Nuthall Road Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5DB 100 hr Total Hours

07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 09:00 23:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 1

FDL95 Riverside Pharmacy Bulwell Riverside Centre, 1-5 Main 
Street

Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8QH 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FMD46 Radford Road Pharmacy 544 Radford Road New Basford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 7EA 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FJD56 Shallys Chemist 37 Beech Avenue Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 7LJ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FDL95 Riverside Pharmacy Bulwell Riverside Centre, 1-5 Main 
Street

Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8QH 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 08:30 19:30 09:00 15:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FFF07 Sherwood Late Night 
Pharmacy

475 Mansfield Road Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2DR 100 Hr Core Hours

07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 10:00 17:00

Area Partnership 2

FJD56 Shallys Chemist 37 Beech Avenue Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG7 7LJ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 09:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FRF42 Silverdale Pharmacy 44 Monksway Silverdale Nottingham Nottinghamshire 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FFF07 Sherwood Late Night 
Pharmacy

475 Mansfield Road Sherwood Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 2DR 100 Hr Total Hours

07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 07:30 23:00 10:00 17:00

Area Partnership 1

FJ636 St Albans Pharmacy st Albans HC Hucknall Lane Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8AQ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 09:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FRF42 Silverdale Pharmacy 44 Monksway Silverdale Nottingham Nottinghamshire 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1
FRF92 Tesco Stores Ltd Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Top Valley 

Way
Top Valley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 9DD 100 hr Core Hours

08:00 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 1

FJ636 St Albans  Pharmacy st Albans HC Hucknall Lane Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8AQ 40 Hr Total Hours

08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 08:00 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1
FKM40 Tesco Stores Ltd Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Jennison 

Street
Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8EQ 100 hr Core Hours

08:00 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 1
FRF92 Tesco Stores Ltd Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Top Valley 

Way
Top Valley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 9DD 100 hr Total Hours

08:00 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 6

FGX51 Turners Pharmacy 249 Sneinton Dale Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 7DQ 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 1

FKM40 Tesco Stores Ltd Tesco Instore Pharmacy, Jennison 
Street

Bulwell Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 8EQ 100 hr Total Hours

08:00 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:30 06:30 22:00 11:00 17:00

Area Partnership 3

FJN60 Vantage Pharmacy Melbourne Park Medical Centre, 
Melbourne Road

Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5HL 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FGX51 Turners Pharmacy 249 Sneinton Dale Sneinton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 7DQ 40 Hr Total Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FFN21 Well 176 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AA 40 Hr Core Hours

08:30 12:30 14:00 18:00 08:30 12:30 14:00 18:00 08:30 12:30 14:00 18:00 08:30 12:30 14:00 18:00 08:30 12:30 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FJN60 Vantage Pharmacy Melbourne Park Medical Centre, 
Melbourne Road

Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5HL 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 08:30 19:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FE148 Well  1 Livingstone Road, St Anns Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 3GG 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 7

FFN21 Well 176 Southchurch Drive Clifton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG11 8AA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FXG89 Well The Hucknall Road Pharmacy, Off 
Kibworth Close

Heathfield Estate Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 1NA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 6

FE148 Well  1 Livingstone Road, St Anns Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 3GG 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FE193 Well 42 Bailey Street Old Basford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 0HA 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 09:00 13:00 14:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FXG89 Well The Hucknall Road Pharmacy, Off 
Kibworth Close

Heathfield Estate Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG5 1NA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 08:15 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 5

FXE35 Well 12 Harrow Road Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 1FG 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:30 17:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 2

FE193 Well 42 Bailey Street Old Basford Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG6 0HA 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDK05 Well 73-75 Bracebridge Drive Bilborough Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 4PH 100 hr Core Hours

07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 08:00 22:00 10:00 16:00

P
age 344



Area Partnership 5

FXE35 Well 12 Harrow Road Wollaton Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 1FG 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 08:30 18:15 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FT108 Well 412 Broxtowe Lane Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5ND 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 09:00 13:00 14:00 17:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FDK05 Well 73-75 Bracebridge Drive Bilborough Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 4PH 100 hr Total Hours

07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 07:00 23:00 08:00 22:00 10:00 16:00

Area Partnership 6

FTK04 Phakeys Pharmacy 149 Carlton Road Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG3 2FN 40 Hr Core Hours

09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 09:00 13:00 14:00 18:00 Closed Closed

Area Partnership 3

FT108 Well 412 Broxtowe Lane Aspley Nottingham Nottinghamshire NG8 5ND 40 Hr Total Hours

08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 08:30 18:30 Closed Closed Closed Closed

P
age 345



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board 
28 September 2022 

 
Report Title: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) – Annual 

Report 
 

Lead Board Member(s): Lucy Hubber – Director for Public Health, Nottingham 
City Council 
 

Report author and contact 
details: 

David Johns – Deputy Director for Public Health, 
Nottingham City Council 
david.johns@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Other colleagues who have 
provided input: 

 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
The JSNA for Nottingham City is a set of resources that provide an overview of the 
current and future health and social care needs of the local population to inform and 
guide the planning and commissioning of health, wellbeing and social care services 
of a local population. In identifying trends and patterns, it aims to support efforts to 
reduce health inequalities. This annual report provides the Board with an annual 
update on the JSNA, including key achievements and updates on future plans. 
 

Recommendation(s): The Board is asked to note the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment Annual Report. 
 

 

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

Aims and Priorities How the recommendation(s) 
contribute to meeting the Aims and 
Priorities: 
 

Aim 1: To increase healthy life 
expectancy in Nottingham through 
addressing the wider determinants of 
health and enabling people to make 
healthy decisions 
 

Currently, there are more than 50 JSNA 
chapters. These chapters have been 
created through the collaboration of a 
number of key stakeholders, including 
Public Health, Social Care, the Crime and 
Drugs Partnership and the NHS 
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (now the 
Integrated Care Board). 

Aim 2: To reduce health inequalities by 
having a proportionately greater focus 
where change is most needed 
 

Priority 1: Smoking and Tobacco 
Control 
 

Priority 2: Eating and Moving for Good 
Health 

Page 347

Agenda Item 6

mailto:david.johns@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Priority 3: Severe Multiple 
Disadvantage 
 

Priority 4: Financial Wellbeing 
 

How mental health and wellbeing is being championed in line with the Board’s 
aspiration to give equal value to mental and physical health: 
The over 50 JSNA chapters cover a full range of topic, giving due regard to mental 
health and wellbeing. 
 

 

List of background papers relied upon 
in writing this report (not including 
published documents or confidential 
or exempt information) 
 

None 

Published documents referred to in 
this report 
 

None 

 

Page 348



 

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA) 

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 

 

  

  

1.0 Background  
  

1.1 The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Nottingham City is a set of resources 
which provide an overview of the current and future health and social care needs of the 
local population to inform and guide the planning and commissioning of health, well-
being and social care services of a local population. In identifying trends and patterns, 
it aims to support efforts to reduce health inequalities. 

 

1.2 The JSNA for Nottingham City are published on Nottingham Insight. Currently, there 
are more than 50 JSNA chapters. These chapters have been created through the 
collaboration of a number of key stakeholders, including Public Health, Social Care, the 
Crime & Drugs Partnership and the CCG (now the “Integrated Care Board” or ICB). A 
reduction in system capacity over the last few years have made refreshing the JSNA in 

a timely manner, challenging.  
 
1.3 This JSNA Annual Report provides our Health and Wellbeing Board with an annual 

update on the JSNA. This includes key achievements since the last annual report and 
updates on future plans for the JSNA.  

 

2.0   Key Achievements  
  

2.1  Since the last JSNA Annual Report to the Health and Wellbeing Board in September 
2021, the JSNA Steering Group has not met. However, a working group containing key 
stakeholders has met regularly. This group explored collating local data collection at a 
‘place-based’ level. 

 
2.2   Despite limited capacity, a number of JSNA chapters have been with further chapters 

also nearing publication.  
 

3.0    JSNA dashboard 
 
3.1  Nottingham City Council has continued work to explore a range of future JSNA 

products. It has worked with partners from across the local Integrated Care Partnership 

and, in particular, the System Analytics and Intelligence Unit (SAIU).  
 
3.2    The SAIU has developed a set of priorities and system insight dashboards. As the work 

of the place-based JSNA working group progressed, a significant overlap was 
discovered with work being undertaken by the SAIU.  

 

Page 349

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/


3.3    Nottingham City Council is working with the SAIU to share expertise and develop JSNA 
dashboards. These dashboards will provide up-to-date data and intelligence on key 
topics such as Health and Wellbeing; Best Start for Life; Adult wellbeing; Ageing Well 

and others. The dashboards will continue to be supplemented by ‘deep-dive’ chapters. 
 
3.4  Initial work is currently being undertaken to create a ‘Health and Wellbeing’ pilot 

dashboard that contains information about Nottingham City’s population, ethnic 
diversity, life expectancy, healthy life expectancy and other population level measures.  

 
 

4.0   The 2022/23 Work Plan  

 
4.1   The pragmatic approach to prioritisation, previously endorsed by the JSNA Steering 

Group and the Health and Wellbeing Board during the COVID-19 pandemic has 

continued. Authors continue to be supported to complete routine updates (e.g. 

demographic data), and mandatory updates (e.g. Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment). 

Other chapters have continued where capacity has allowed (e.g. Children and Young 

People Special Educational Need and Disability).   

 

4.2   Chapter and Content Development 

Four chapters have been published since the last JSNA Annual Report. Links to 

JSNA chapters published since the last JSNA Annual Report are provided below: 
Demography chapter: the people of Nottingham (2021)  
Emotional and mental health needs of children and young people aged 0-25 years (2022)  

Life expectancy and healthy life expectancy (2022)  

Substance Misuse (illicit drugs and alcohol) (2022)  

 

Other chapters are nearing completion and will come to Health and Wellbeing board once 
complete:  
 

Listing of JSNA chapters nearing completion a: 
 

 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) 

 Children and Young People Special Educational Need and Disability (SEND) 

 The Health Impacts of COVID-19 on the population of Nottingham 

 Demography chapter: the people of Nottingham (2022). 
 
 

5.0   JSNA Impact 

 
5.1   The JSNA continues to have an impact through informing commissioning plans and 

local strategy development. This year, the data within the JSNA has informed the 

development of a new Health and Wellbeing Strategy and informs the work of the 

programmes set-up to deliver the strategy. 

 

5.2.   While the Health and Wellbeing Strategies for Nottingham City and Nottinghamshire 

will inform the Integrated Care Strategy for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, the core 

principles this new strategy develops will rely on intelligence from the JSNA. The work 

with the SAIU is an important part of ensuring that the JSNA, a joint venture between 

Page 350

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/behavioural-factors-and-wider-determinants-of-health/demography-chapter-the-people-of-nottingham-2021/
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/children-and-young-people/emotional-and-mental-health-needs-of-children-and-young-people-aged-0-25-years-2022/
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/behavioural-factors-and-wider-determinants-of-health/life-expectancy-and-healthy-life-expectancy-2022/
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/themes/health-and-wellbeing/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/adults/substance-misuse-illicit-drugs-and-alcohol-2022-final-draft/


health and local authority partners, continues to evolve to meet the needs of local 

commissioners. In doing so, the JSNA can continue to play a vital role in our planning 

to improve the health of the population and reduce inequalities.  

 

Page 351



This page is intentionally left blank



Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board 
28 September 2022 

 
Report Title: Nottingham City Place-Based Partnership (PBP) 

Update 
 

Lead Board Member(s): Dr Hugh Porter – Clinical Director, Nottingham City 
Place-Based Partnership 
Mel Barrett – Chief Executive, Nottingham City 
Council and Nottingham City Place-Based 
Partnership Lead 
Lucy Hubber – Director for Public Health, Nottingham 
City Council 
 

Report author and contact 
details: 

Rich Brady – Programme Director, Nottingham City 
Place-Based Partnership 
rich.brady@nhs.net 
 

Other colleagues who have 
provided input: 

Michelle Tilling – Locality Director, Nottingham City 
Place-Based Partnership 
 

Executive Summary: 
Since the formation of the PBP, partners have held ongoing and iterative discussions 
on the ambition to build the PBP into a key delivery partnership within the city and 
the Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Integrated Care System (ICS), able to take on 
delegated functions. Key elements of this have been acknowledged as supporting 
the delivery of system priorities and supporting each other as partners to deliver on 
statutory responsibilities, while simultaneously working together to improve health 
and wellbeing outcomes of the city’s population. This ambition has been incentivised 
by the enactment of the Health and Care Act in July 2022 and the expectation that 
PBPs will work with Integrated Care Boards (ICB) and Local Authorities to 
incrementally take on greater levels of delegated decision making, accountability for 
delivery and ownership for population health outcomes. 
 
This report provides an overview of the development sessions held with the PBP 
Executive Team and the resulting areas of focus that are to be developed into a PBP 
executive work programme. Also included within this update is an overview of a 
series of ‘Thriving General Practice’ sessions held with the PBP and Primary Care 
Network (PCN) Clinical Leadership, Practice and PCN Managers, and the 
Nottingham City General Practice Alliance (NCGPA), supporting the development of 
General Practice and PCNs in the city. 
 

Recommendation(s): The Board is asked to note the output of the Nottingham City 
Place-Based Partnership Executive Team development sessions and the ‘Thriving 
City General Practice’ sessions. 
 

 
 
 

Page 353

Agenda Item 7

mailto:rich.brady@nhs.net


 

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

Aims and Priorities How the recommendation(s) 
contribute to meeting the Aims and 
Priorities: 
 

Aim 1: To increase healthy life 
expectancy in Nottingham through 
addressing the wider determinants of 
health and enabling people to make 
healthy decisions 
 

The PBP has responsibility for the 
oversight of the delivery of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) 
2022-25. The PBP Executive Team 
development sessions and ‘Thriving City 
General Practice’ sessions are 
anticipated to enhance the delivery of the 
priorities set in the JHWS. 

Aim 2: To reduce health inequalities by 
having a proportionately greater focus 
where change is most needed 
 

Priority 1: Smoking and Tobacco 
Control 
 

Priority 2: Eating and Moving for Good 
Health 
 

Priority 3: Severe Multiple 
Disadvantage 
 

Priority 4: Financial Wellbeing 
 

How mental health and wellbeing is being championed in line with the Board’s 
aspiration to give equal value to mental and physical health: 
The PBP has a programme focussed on supporting Nottingham citizens to better 
access preventative support to improve mental health and wellbeing. This 
programme is aligned with the programmes being delivered as part of the JHWS. 
 

 

List of background papers relied upon 
in writing this report 

None 
 
 

Published documents referred to in 
this report 

Next steps for integrating primary care: 
Fuller Stocktake report 
 

 
Place-Based Partnership Development Sessions 
 
1. In preparation for the legislative changes and the ambition to grow the PBP into a 

key delivery partnership, a series of three independently facilitated development 
sessions were held with PBP Executive Team members between May and July 
2022. The overarching aims of these sessions were to: 

 review the progress of the PBP to date, including key achievements, areas of 
strength and areas for development; 

Page 354

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/next-steps-for-integrating-primary-care-fuller-stocktake-report.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/next-steps-for-integrating-primary-care-fuller-stocktake-report.pdf


 establish a shared ambition for the partnership, going forward; 

 explore opportunities for the partnership to take shared approaches to 
addressing challenges such as reducing inequalities and work together to 
tackle some of the deep-rooted challenges facing the population and partners 
in the city; and 

 explore opportunities to align resources for maximum benefit of the 
population, partners and the partnership. 

 
2. Partners began the sessions by reflecting on the work of the partnership in its 

formative years, noting key achievements of the PBP programmes and the 
development of the partnerships itself, including the strong relationships built 
between partners. Partners noted that the work of the PBP and its programmes 
have enabled relationships and trust between partners to grow, providing a 
strong foundation for partnership working during the response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and beyond. 

 
3. Partners noted the responsibility delegated to the PBP to oversee the delivery of 

the JHWS. This marked an important milestone for the partnership: two partner 
organisations (Nottingham City Council and the Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
ICB) delegating delivery oversight of a statutory responsibility to the PBP. 

 
4. Partners agreed that while the priorities set in the JHWS and other ongoing PBP 

programmes provide the basis for partners to deliver a set of programmes 
focused on a preventative approach to supporting population health and 
wellbeing, partners wanted to explore further opportunities to utilise the collective 
resources of the partnership that would allow partners to act collectively in 
response to shared challenges. 

 
5. Across the three sessions, partners reflected on the challenges facing the city 

population to enjoy good health and wellbeing, as well as the challenges facing 
the constituent partner members of the PBP. While many of the challenges facing 
the population and partner organisations are significant, partners recognised the 
opportunities in tackling shared challenges in partnership and discussed areas 
where they could have the biggest impact working in partnership. 

 
6. Following the development sessions, an executive work programme has been 

agreed by the PBP Executive Team, containing six programmes to be led by 
Executive Team members focused on: 

 Community Empowerment 

 Workforce Development 

 Primary and Secondary Care Interface 

 Integrated Neighbourhood Model of Support 

 Social Value Actions 

 A Data-Informed PBP 
 
7. The six programmes are underpinned by a seventh programme focused on the 

development of the PBP itself, creating the conditions for the PBP to become a 
key delivery partnership in the city and incrementally take on delegated functions 
as the partnership matures. 

 

Page 355



8. The executive work programme will be in addition to and compliment the 
currently agreed population cohort focused programmes of: 

 Severe Multiple Disadvantage 

 Smoking and Tobacco Control 

 Eating and Moving for Good Health 

 Financial Wellbeing 

 Race Health Inequalities 

 Mental Health 

 Care Leavers 

 PCN Development (including PCN projects and the Thriving General Practice 
programme) 

 
9. Each programme is to be led by members of the PBP Executive Team. Executive 

Programme Leads will meet over the coming months to explore the scope for 
each programme, to be agreed at a development session in November. Following 
the agreed scope of these programmes, an update on the PBP Executive work 
programme will be brought to the Board for information. 
 

Thriving City General Practice 
 
10. In addition to the executive programme, as noted, the PBP has a role in 

supporting the development of PCNs, which have been built on the foundations 
of general practices collaborating across eight areas in the city. 

 
11. It has been well recognised by the ICS leadership that a successful and effective 

ICS cannot be achieved without equally successful and effective primary care. In 
recognition of this, the ICS’ Independent Chair and Chair of the ICB, Dr Kathy 
McLean, asked Dr Stephen Shortt to lead the development of an ICS Primary 
Care Strategy. 

 
12. The purpose of the strategy is to set out an invigorating and ambitious vision and 

plan for primary care in Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, delivering high quality 
care at an individual, team, practice, PCN, place and system level. The initial 
draft of the strategy is under development and is to be shared across the system, 
including at an event for GPs on 28 September. 

 
13. In anticipation of the strategy, and recognising its long history of working 

together, Dr Hugh Porter (the PBP Clinical Director) and Michelle Tilling (the PBP 
Locality Director) led a series of session with GPs. The aim of these sessions 
was to support General Practice in the city to develop collective local thinking of 
what would enable it to thrive both within the PBP, and within the wider ICS, 
ensuring cohesive city input into the anticipated Primary Care Strategy, while 
enabling city General Practice to have a clear ask of the ICB as the strategy 
moves to its delivery phase. This was in addition to exploring what was already 
within practices own control to change. The Thriving City General Practice 
Programme was created to fulfil these purposes and will run over the course of 
2022/23. 

 
14. The three initial Thriving City General Practice sessions were held over the 

summer, led by Dr Hugh Porter and Michelle Tilling, with PBP and PCN Clinical 

Page 356



Leadership, Practice and PCN Managers, and the NCGPA. The aim of the first 
set of sessions was to create a shared vision for the future of city General 
Practice and to enable compilation of a work programme supporting the delivery 
of this. All sessions have been well attended, and outputs deliberately focused on 
tangible actions aligned to both short and medium-term timescales. The 
associated work programme is currently being collated. 

 
15. The remaining sessions are scheduled to take place in quarters two, three and 

four of 2022/23. Each session will focus on a particular aspect of the work 
programme within the new Primary Care Strategy that would benefit from wider 
partner engagement or further collective discussion to galvanise plans. At 
present, plans are for Workforce Focus (September) and Digital and IT 
(November). January 2023’s session is currently set aside for further response to 
the ‘Next steps for integrating primary care: Fuller Stocktake report’. 

Page 357



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Statutory Officer’s Report for the Nottingham City Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Corporate Director of People 
28 September 2022 

 
Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services (ILACS) 
 
An Ofsted inspection of the Council’s Children’s Services was carried out in July 
2022. The inspection found that more work is needed to ensure that children and 
young people get the right care and support at the right time, while also 
acknowledging the strengths. 
 
Regular inspections are carried out by Ofsted at all local authorities that provide 
support and care for children who are vulnerable or at risk. Nottingham’s inspection 
took place from 4-22 July. The full report, published on 5 September, identified some 
key areas for improvement: 

 a quicker response when children are first identified as being at-risk; 

 more social workers to support children and young people; 

 more places for children who need to come into care; 

 greater support for people aged over 21 who leave care; 

 more help for young people aged 16 and 17 who are homeless; and 

 better monitoring of children who are absent from school. 
 
Ofsted judged the Council’s Children’s Services to be ‘Inadequate’. This is a lower 
rating than the previous ‘Requires Improvement’ judgment in 2019. Although more 
work is needed, the inspectors acknowledged that improvements had already been 
made in Children’s Services. In particular, they found that: 

 children are well-supported once they are allocated a social worker. Strong 
relationships are formed between the social worker and the families they help; 

 a clear process is in place to intervene when a child’s circumstances are not 
improving; 

 children are matched for adoption much more quickly and siblings are often 
adopted together; 

 foster carers provide consistent, good quality care; 

 the emotional and mental health needs of children are being met; 

 unaccompanied asylum-seeking children are well supported; and 

 the Service works well with partners to provide the best outcomes for children 
and young people. 

 
During the visit, inspectors noted that City Councillors and the Chief Executive 
remain committed to improving the quality of Children’s Services, despite the 
financial challenges being faced by the Council. An action plan to address the areas 
for improvement is now being drawn up. 
 
 
 
 

Page 359

Agenda Item 9



 

Child Friendly City – Nottingham 
 
Nottingham has taken the first step on a journey working with children’s charity 
UNICEF UK towards international recognition as a Child Friendly City. As the 
Council takes the first steps on the UNICEF UK programme, it aims to better 
understand how much people know about supporting children and young people’s 
rights. 
 
An online survey about children’s rights has been set up to support Nottingham’s 
Child Friendly City journey and enable an understanding of the collective knowledge 
and opinions on children’s rights. The survey is open to everyone, even if they do not 
directly work with children and young people, as everyone has a part to play in 
making Nottingham a Child Friendly City. Filling in this survey is a simple way to 
support this. 
 
The Council is also seeking the views and opinions of children and young people, 
and Board members who with them are welcome to share the links below: 

 Children’s Survey (for children aged 5 to 11 years) 

 Young People’s Survey (for young people aged 11 to 17 years) 
 
For more information, please see the Child Friendly Nottingham website: 
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ChildFriendlyNottingham 
 
Holiday Activity Fund (HAF) – Summer 2022 
 
This summer, the Council has funded 60 community, voluntary and education 
partners to deliver 91 Holiday Clubs across the city. To date, more than 5,000 
children have attended clubs, taken part in multi-sport and enriching activities and 
been fed. Highlights from the summer have been: 

 over 4,000 meals have been supplied daily for children in receipt of free school 
meals; 

 ‘Cook at Home’ activities were provided for families, helping to extend the food 
reach of the programme to the wider family; 

 sustained engagement from Police Beat Teams across provision, helping to 
break down barriers between children and Police; 

 inspirational special educational needs and disabilities work based at Oakfield 
School, Rosehill School and Nethergate Academy across the summer; 

 the first holiday club at the Ukrainian Centre, where children made works of art to 
remind them of home; 

 graffiti work demonstrating the impact of the HAF on the walls of Robin Hood 
Primary School; and 

 Warburton’s donated 7,000 loaves of bread throughout the programme which 
were distributed by Nottingham Forest Community. 

 
 
 
 
 

Catherine Underwood 
Corporate Director for People 

Page 360

https://online1.snapsurveys.com/CFNPPBaselineSurvey2022
https://online1.snapsurveys.com/CFCChildrensViews2022
https://online1.snapsurveys.com/CFCYouthViews2022
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ChildFriendlyNottingham


Nottingham City Health and Wellbeing Board 
Work Plan 2022/23 

 
Recurring Agenda Items 

 
Lead Officer 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – 
New Chapters 
 

Brian Johnston (NCC) 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy – 
Delivery Update (July, November and 
March) 
 

Rich Brady (PBP) 

Nottingham City Place-Based 
Partnership Update 
 

Rich Brady (PBP) 

Joint Health Protection Board Update 
 

Lucy Hubber (NCC) 

Board Member Updates 
 

All Board Members 

Work Plan 
 

Adrian Mann (NCC) 

 

Meeting Date 
 

Agenda Item Lead Officer 

Wednesday 
30 November 2022 

1:30pm 

Integrated Care 
Partnership Strategy 
 
 

Lucy Hubber (NCC) 

Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy – 
Delivery Update 
 

Rich Brady (PBP) 

Wednesday 
25 January 2023  

1:30pm 

Safeguarding Adults 
Board – Annual Report 
 
 

Ross Leather (NCC) 

Wednesday 
29 March 2023 

1:30pm 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 361

Agenda Item 10



Potential items to be 
scheduled 

 

Autism Strategy 
 
 

Anne-Marie Furnell (NCC) 
Rasool Gore (ICP) 

Substance Misuse – 
Strategic Commissioning 
Review 
 

Helen Johnston (NCC) 

Neurodiversity 
 

 

 

Annual Reports 
 

Month of Reporting 

Public Health – Annual Report 
 

May 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy – 
Annual Performance Review 
 

May 

Commissioning Reviews and 
Commissioning Intentions – Annual 
Review 
 

May 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – 
Annual Report 
 

September 

Safeguarding Adults Board – Annual 
Report 
 

January 

 
Items for the Board’s work plan should be forwarded to Adrian Mann 
(Governance Services, Nottingham City Council, 
adrian.mann@nottinghamcity.gov.uk). 
 
Authors MUST discuss their proposed reports (and any supporting 
presentation) with Lucy Hubber (Director for Public Health, Nottingham City 
Council, lucy.hubber@nottinghamcity.gov.uk) before submitting the report to a 
Board meeting. Reports and their recommendations must be produced in the 
form of a formal, written document, headed by a standard cover sheet (which 
is available from Governance Services). Presentations to help illustrate reports 
must be no more than 10 minutes in length. 

Page 362

mailto:adrian.mann@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:lucy.hubber@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Minutes of the Commissioning Sub-Committee
	5 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2022-25
	Enc. 1 for Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2022-25
	Enc. 2 for Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2022-25

	6 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Annual Report
	Enc. 1 for Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Annual Report

	7 Nottingham City Place-Based Partnership Update
	9 Board Member Updates
	10 Work Plan

